
Page 1 of 4 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, MAY 17, 2021 
7:00 PM AT CITY HALL 

 

 
 
The meeting will also be accessible via video conference and the public may access/participate in the 
meeting in the following ways: 
 
a) By dialing the phone number +13126266799 or +19292056099 or +12532158782 or +13017158592 or 
+13462487799 or +16699006833 and when prompted, enter the meeting ID (access code) 962 7287 1738. 
b) iPhone one-tap: +13126266799,,96272871738#  or +19292056099,,96272871738# 
c) Join via smartphone or computer using this link: https://zoom.us/j/96272871738.   
d) View the live stream on Channel 15 YouTube using this link: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCCzeig5nIS-
dIEYisqah1uQ  (view only).  
e) Watch on Cedar Falls Cable Channel 15 (view only). 
 
To request to speak when allowed on the agenda, participants must click “Raise Hand” if connected by 
smartphone or computer, or press *9 if connected by telephone. All participants will be muted by the presiding 
officer when not actually speaking. 

Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular Meeting of May 3, 2021. 

Agenda Revisions 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City 

business.) 

Special Presentations 

2. Proclamation recognizing May 16-22, 2021 as National Public Works Week. 

3. Proclamation recognizing June 5, 2021 as National Trails Day. 

Special Order of Business 

4. Public hearing on a proposal to undertake a public improvement project for the Olive Street Box 
Culvert Project, and to authorize acquisition of private property for said project. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published May 7, 2021) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Resolution approving a public improvement project for the Olive Street Box Culvert Project, and 
authorizing acquisition of private property for said project. 

1



Page 2 of 4 

5. Public hearing on the proposed rezoning from A-1, Agricultural District and R-1, Residential Zoning 
District to MU, Mixed Use Residential Zoning District of certain property located north of Huntington 
Road and west of Cedar Heights Drive, and also on an associated amendment to the Future Land 
Use Map by changing the designation from Office & Business Park to Planned Development. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published May 7, 2021) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public Comments. 
 
e) Resolution amending the Future Land Use Map by changing the designation from Office & 
Business Park to Planned Development, for property located west of Cedar Heights Drive and north 
of Huntington Road.  
 
f) Pass an ordinance amending Section 26-118 of the Code of Ordinances by removing certain 
property located west of Cedar Heights Drive and north of Huntington Road from the A-1, Agricultural 
District and R-1, Residential Zoning District, and placing the same in the MU, Mixed Use Residential 
Zoning District, upon its first consideration. 

Old Business 

6. Resolution extending the mask mandate for the City of Cedar Falls. 

New Business 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 
discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

7. Approve the following applications for cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permits:  
a) Dollar General Store, 2921 Center Street. 
b) Dollar General Store, 1922 Valley Park Drive. 
c) Fleet Farm, 400 West Ridgeway Avenue. 
d) Fleet Farm Fuel, 108 West Ridgeway Avenue. 
e) Mini Mart, 1420 West 1st Street. 
f) Prime Mart, 2323 Main Street. 

8. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
a) Hurling Hatchet, 100 East 2nd Street, Class B beer - renewal. 
b) Hy-Vee Clubroom, 6301 University Avenue, Special Class C liquor - renewal. 
c) Berk's Main Street Pub, 207 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
d) Voodoo Lounge, 401 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
e) Casey's General Store, 2425 Center Street, Class E liquor - renewal. 
f) Casey's General Store, 5226 University Avenue, Class E liquor - renewal. 
g) Walgreens, 2509 Whitetail Drive, Class E liquor - renewal. 
h) North Shore Boat Club, Island Park, Class B beer & outdoor service - 5 day permit. 
i) Mini-mart, 1420 West 1st Street, Class E liquor – new. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

9. Resolution approving and adopting the City’s FY22 Appropriations Resolution. 

10. Resolution amending an inter-fund loan from the Capital Projects Fund to the Sewer Enterprise Fund 
relative to funding for the Water Reclamation UV Disinfection & Biosolids Handling Facilities 
Improvements Project and the Bluff Street Lift Station.  

2



Page 3 of 4 

11. Resolution amending an inter-fund loan (#1) from the Health Trust  Fund to the Sewer Enterprise 
Fund relative to funding for the Water Reclamation UV Disinfection & Biosolids Handling Facilities 
Improvements Project. 

12. Resolution amending an inter-fund loan (#2) from the Health Trust Fund to the Sewer Enterprise 
Fund  relative to funding for the Water Reclamation UV Disinfection & Biosolids Handling Facilities 
Improvements Project. 

13. Resolution amending an inter-fund loan (#3) from the Health Trust Fund to the Sewer Enterprise 
Fund relative to funding for the Water Reclamation UV Disinfection & Biosolids Handling Facilities 
Improvements Project. 

14. Resolution amending an inter-fund loan (#4) from the Health Trust Fund to the Sewer Enterprise 
Fund relative to funding for the Water Reclamation UV Disinfection & Biosolids Handing Facilities 
Improvements Project, Bluff Street Lift Station and the Park Drive Lift Station. 

15. Resolution designating the dates and locations for the annual Sturgis Falls Celebration and Cedar 
Basin Music Festival. 

16. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for the Use of State or Local 
Overtime and Authorized Expense/Strategic Initiative Program for Organized Crime Drug 
Enforcement Task Forces (OCDETF) for FY2021. 

17. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Wrecker/Towing/Storage 
Service with L&M Transmission. 

18. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Wrecker/Towing/Storage 
Service with Rasmussen Towing, Inc. 

19. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement to Support Economic Development 
Program of the College Hill Partnership relative to an FY22 Economic Development Grant. 

20. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement to Support Economic Development 
Program of Cedar Falls Community Main Street relative to an FY22 Economic Development Grant. 

21. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement to Support Economic Development 
in the Cedar Valley with Grow Cedar Valley relative to the FY22 Economic Development Grant. 

22. Resolution approving and accepting an Access Easement relative to proposed development at 422 
Main Street.  

23. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Subrecipient Agreement for Federally Funded 
Project with the Northeast Iowa Food Bank for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG-CV2) 
funding relative to the CARES Act. 

24. Resolution approving an amendment to the Autumn Ridge Master Plan relative to Autumn Ridge 
Tenth Addition. 

25. Resolution approving the preliminary plat of Autumn Ridge Tenth Addition. (contingent upon 
approval of previous item) 

26. Resolution approving the final plat of Autumn Ridge Tenth Addition. (contingent upon approval of 
previous item) 

27. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Maintenance and Repair of 
Primary Roads in Municipalities with the Iowa Department of Transportation. 

28. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of two Owner Purchase Agreements, and approving 
and accepting two Temporary Construction Easements and three Permanent Easements, in 
conjunction with the West 27th Street Sanitary Sewer Extension Project. 

3



Page 4 of 4 

29. Resolution setting June 7, 2021 as the date of the public hearing on a proposal to undertake a public 
improvement project for the Ashworth Drive Extension Project, and to authorize acquisition of private 
property for said project.  

30. Resolution receiving and filing, and setting June 7, 2021 as the date of public hearing on the 
proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the West 27th Street Sanitary 
Sewer Extension Project.  

31. Resolution receiving and filing, and setting June 7, 2021 as the date of public hearing on the 
proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the Oak Park Boulevard 
Sanitary Sewer Replacement Project. 

Ordinances 

32. Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
Boards and Commissions, upon its first consideration. 

33. Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to prohibiting parking on portions of Algonquin and Ashworth Drive, upon its first 
consideration. 

Allow Bills and Claims 

34. Allow Bills and Claims of May 17, 2021. 

City Council Referrals 

City Council Updates 

Staff Updates 

Adjournment 

4



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, MAY 3, 2021 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, 
Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn. Absent: None.  

 
53307 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Miller that the minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of April 19, 2021 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously.  

 
53308 -     Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, expressed concerns with the agenda format. 
   
53309 - Mayor Green read the following proclamations: 
 

 Proclamation recognizing May 3-9, 2021 as Professional Municipal Clerks Week. 
Mayor Green recognized City Clerk Jacque Danielsen. 

 Proclamation recognizing May 9-15, 2021 as Police Week and May 15, 2021 as 
Peace Officers Memorial Day. Police Chief Craig Berte commented and 
announced a Memorial Event. 

 Proclamation recognizing May 2021 as National Bike Month, May 17-23, 2021 as 
Bike to Work Week, and May 19, 2021 as Ride of Silence Day in Cedar Falls. 
Bicycle and Pedestrian Committee member Andrew Shroll commented and 
announced a Memorial Ride. 

 Proclamation recognizing May 5, 2021 as National Astronaut Day. NASA 
Astronaut and Cedar Falls native Raja Chari commented. 

53310       Mayor announced that in accordance with the public notice of April 21, 2021, this 
was the time and place for a public hearing on proposed amendments to the 
City's FY2021 Budget. It was then moved by Darrah and seconded by Harding 
that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. 
Motion carried unanimously.  

53311 -  The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 
proposed amendments. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Controller/City 
Treasurer Roeding provided a brief summary of the proposed amendments. 
Following comments and questions by Rick Sharp, 1623 Birch Street, T.J. Frein, 
1319 Austin Way, and Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, the Mayor declared the 
hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
53312 -     It was moved by Harding and seconded by Darrah that Resolution #22,342, 

approving and adopting amendments to the City's FY2021 Budget, be adopted. 
Following questions and comments by Councilmembers Harding, Darrah and 

5

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

Sires, and responses by Finance & Business Operations Director Rodenbeck, 
Controller/City Treasurer Roeding, Public Safety Director Olson, Mayor Green 
and City Administrator Gaines, the Mayor put the question on the motion and 
upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Kruse, 
Harding, Darrah, Dunn, Miller, deBuhr. Nay: Sires. Motion carried. The Mayor 
then declared Resolution #22,342 duly passed and adopted.  

 
53313 -    It was moved by Miller and seconded by Harding that Ordinance #2988, 

amending Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances relative to mayor 
and city administrator duties, be passed upon its third and final consideration. 
Following comments by Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, and Councilmembers 
Harding and Dunn, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the 
roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Kruse, Harding, Darrah, 
Dunn, Miller, deBuhr. Nay: Sires. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared 
Ordinance #2988 duly passed and adopted. 

 
53314 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by deBuhr that the following items on the 

Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 

Receive and file Mayor's Monthly Report for April 2021. 

 Receive and file the Work Session minutes of April 19, 2021 relative to the 
following item: 
a) City Council meeting packet deadline. 

 Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of April 19, 2021 relative to 
the following item: 
a) Solid Waste Commission Overview. 

 Receive and file revised bylaws for the Human Rights Commission. 

 Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of March, 2021. 

 Receive and file the Bi-Annual Report of College Hill Partnership relative to FY21 
Self-Supported Municipal Improvements District (SSMID) funds and an FY21 
Economic Development Grant. 

 Approve a request for a temporary sign at 3611 Eastpark Road on May 8, 2021. 

 Approve the following applications for cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permits:  
a) Buzz Smoke & Vapor, 2125 College Street Suite A. 
b) Cloud 9 Glass & Novelty, 2125 College Street Suite C. 
c) Five Corner Liquor & Wine, 809 East 18th Street. 
d) Hansen's Dairy, 127 East 18th Street. 
e) Happy's Wine & Spirits, 5925 University Avenue. 
f) Metro Mart, 103 Franklin Street. 
g) Murphy USA, 518 Brandilynn Boulevard. 
h) Prime Mart, 2728 Center Street. 
i) Thunder Ridge Ampride, 2425 Whitetail Drive. 
j) Up In Smoke, 2218 College Street. 

6

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

 Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
a) Double Tap, 312 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
b) Suds, 2223 1/2 College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
c) Casey's General Store, 5908 Nordic Drive, Class E liquor - renewal. 
d) Cedar Basin Music Festival, Sturgis Park, Class B beer & outdoor service - 5 
day permit. 
e) Live to 9, 200 Block of State Street and 100 Block of East 2nd Street, Class B 
beer & outdoor service – eight 5 day permits (May 31-June 5, June 7-12, June 
14-19, June 23-28, July 5-10, July 12-17, July 19-24, and July 26-31). 
f) Chuck E. Cheese's, 5911 University Avenue, Special Class C liquor - new. 

        Motion carried unanimously. 

53315 -     It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Harding that the following resolutions 
be introduced and adopted: 

 
Resolution #22,343, levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to 
remove snow and ice from sidewalks abutting the property located at 1022 W. 
22nd Street. 

Resolution #22,344, levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to 
clean up the property located at 412 N. Ellen Street. 

Resolution #22,345, approving and authorizing execution of Amendment No. 1 to 
the Managed Content Licensing and Servicing Agreement with Gordon Flesch 
Company, Inc. relative to replacement of the City’s document imaging system. 

Resolution #22,346, approving and authorizing execution of a Storm Water 
Maintenance and Repair Agreement with Community Bank & Trust relative to a 
post-construction stormwater management plan for 312 West 1st Street. 

Resolution #22,347, approving and authorizing execution of a Storm Water 
Maintenance and Repair Agreement with Tidal Wave Auto Spa relative to a post-
construction stormwater management plan for 416 Brandilynn Boulevard. 

Resolution #22,348, approving and authorizing execution of a Temporary 
Construction Easement Agreement for Stairway, in conjunction with the 
Downtown Streetscape and Reconstruction Project - Phase II. 

Resolution #22,349, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for 
Traffic Safety Improvement Program (TSIP) Funding with the Iowa Department of 
Transportation relative to the Greenhill Road & South Main Street Intersection 
Improvements Project. 

 Resolution #22,350, approving and authorizing execution of a revised 
Professional Service Agreement with Snyder & Associates, Inc. for 2021 survey 
services.  

Resolution #22,351, receiving and filing, and approving the plans, specifications 
and estimate of cost for the Cedar Heights Drive Reconstruction Project.  

7

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

 Resolution #22,352, approving a Central Business District (CBD) Overlay Zoning 
District site plan for façade improvements at 315 State Street. 

 Resolution #22,353, approving a HWY-1 Highway Commercial Zoning District 
site plan for construction of a coffee shop at 315 Viking Plaza. 

 Resolution #22,354, approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental 
Agreement #1 to the Professional Service Agreement with Nagle Signs Inc. 
relative to the Cedar Falls Wayfinding Signage Project.  

 Resolution #22,355, approving and accepting an Easement for utilities relative to 
the development project located at 312 West 1st Street. 

 Resolution #22,356, setting May 17, 2021 as the date of the public hearing on a 
proposal to undertake a public improvement project for the Olive Street Box 
Culvert Project, and to authorize acquisition of private property for said project.  

 Resolution #22,357, setting May 17, 2021 as the date of public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning from A-1, Agricultural District and R-1, Residential Zoning 
District to MU, Mixed Use Residential Zoning District of certain property located 
north of Huntington Road and west of Cedar Heights Drive, and also on an 
associated amendment to the Future Land Use Map by changing the designation 
from Office & Business Park to Planned Development. 

Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn, Miller, deBuhr. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #22,343 through #22,357 duly 
passed and adopted. 

53316 -   It was moved by Harding and seconded by Kruse that Resolution #22,358, 
approving and adopting amendments to Administrative Policy No. 7, City Council 
Meeting Procedures, be adopted. It was then moved by deBuhr and seconded by 
Sires to amend the motion to change the timeline for packet publication from 
Tuesday prior to the meeting to Thursday prior to the meeting. Following 
comments and questions by Councilmembers Harding, deBuhr, Dunn and Kruse 
and responses by Finance & Business Operations Director Rodenbeck, Mayor 
Green and City Administrator Gaines, the motion to amend carried 4-3, with 
Kruse, Harding and Dunn voting Nay. Following comments by Rick Sharp, 1623 
Birch Street, and T.J. Frein, 1319 Austin Way, it was moved by Kruse and 
seconded by Harding to amend the day to Wednesday instead of Thursday. 
Following comments by Councilmembers Harding, Sires, Kruse and deBuhr, and 
responses by City Attorney Rogers, Mayor Green, City Administrator Gaines, and 
Community Development Director Sheetz, the motion carried 4-3 with Darrah, 
Miller and deBuhr voting Nay. The Mayor then put the question on the original 
motion as amended, and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Kruse, Harding, Sires, Dunn. Nay: Darrah, Miller, 
deBuhr. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #22,358 duly 
passed and adopted. 
 

8

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

53317 -    It was moved by Harding and seconded by Miller that Resolution #22,359, 
approving and adopting a revised job classification for the position of Tourism & 
Cultural Programs Manager in the Community Development Department, be 
adopted. Following comments by Bob Manning, 2908 West 3rd Street, 
Councilmembers Darrah and Harding, and responses by Community 
Development Director Sheetz, the Mayor put the question on the motion, and 
upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Kruse, 
Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn, Miller. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then 
declared Resolution #22,359 duly passed and adopted. 

 
53318 -      It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Miller that Resolution #22,360, 

approving and adopting the Imagine College Hill! Vision Plan, be adopted. 
Community Development Director Sheetz provided background, timeline and 
priorities of the plan. Ferrell Madden consultant, Mary Madden commented on 
the plan recommendations. Following a question by Councilmember Kruse and a 
response by Sheetz, the Mayor called for public comment. 

 
     The following individuals spoke in favor of the proposed Vision Plan: 

     Kathryn Sogard, Executive Director of College Hill Partnership  
     Chris Martin, 421 West Seerley Boulevard 

   Dr. Andrew Morse, 1621 Franklin Street, University Liaison to the College 
Hill Partnership 

     Dr. Becky Hawbaker, 2309 Iowa Street 
     Dave Deibler, 1616 Campus Street 
     David Grant, 2010 Clay Street 
     Yvonne Pettegrew, 1115 West 12th Street 
 
   The following individuals spoke opposed to, or had concerns with the proposed 

Vision Plan:  
     Rick Sharp, 1623 Birch Street 
     T.J. Frein, 1319 Austin Way 
     Eashaan Vajpeyi, 3831 Convair Lane, representing Concerned Citizens for 

College Hill 
 
     Following comments by Councilmembers Dunn, deBuhr, Kruse, Miller, Harding, 

Darrah and Sires, it was moved by Sires and seconded by Kruse to amend the 
motion to receive and file the Vision Plan instead of adopting it. Community 
Development Director Sheetz and Mayor Green responded to comments by 
Councilmembers deBuhr, Harding, Miller, Kruse and Darrah. Following 
comments by Kathryn Sogard, Eashaan Vajpeyi, Dave Deibler, Kyle Dehmlow, 
2113 Vera Way, David Grant, Rick Sharp, T.J. Frein, and Bob Manning, 2908 
West 3rd Street, and Mayor Green, the motion to amend failed 3-4, with Harding, 
Darrah, Dunn, and Miller voting Nay.  Following comments and questions by 
Councilmembers Kruse, Miller, deBuhr and Harding, and responses by Mayor 
Green, City Clerk Danielsen, Community Development Director Sheetz, and City 
Administrator Gaines, the Mayor put the question on the original motion, and 
upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Harding, 
Darrah, Dunn, Miller. Nay: Kruse, Sires, deBuhr. Motion carried. The Mayor then 
declared Resolution #22,360 duly passed and adopted. 

9

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 6 - 

 

 
53319 -    It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the bills and claims of May 

3, 2021 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer be 
authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper funds in 
payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn, Miller, deBuhr. Nay: None. 
Motion carried. 

 
53320 - Councilmember Sires would like the City to look into providing water options for 

residents with sand point wells. 
    
  Councilmember Darrah provided an update on the Cedar Falls Racial Equity 

Task Force. 
 
53321 -     City Administrator Gaines announced the Public Information Meeting regarding 

Greenhill Road and South Main Street improvements on May 6, 2021 from 5:30-
7:00pm at the Public Safety facility. 

      
       Library Director Stern informed that beginning May 17, 2021, the library would be 

providing curbside service during the carpet installation. There will also be a 
temporary computer lab setup at the Community Center. 

 
53322 -    It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Miller that the meeting be adjourned at 

10:25 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
     ________________________________ 
  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
 

 

10

Item 1.



 

   MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

 

 

 

 
 

 
NATIONAL PUBLIC WORKS WEEK 

MAY 16-22, 2021 
 

WHEREAS, public works services provided in our community are an integral 
part of our citizens’ everyday lives; and 
 
WHEREAS, the support of an understanding and informed citizenry is vital to 
the efficient operation of public works systems and programs such as water, 
sewers, streets and highways, public buildings, and solid waste collection; and 
 
WHEREAS, the health, safety and comfort of this community greatly depends 
on these facilities and services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the quality and effectiveness of these facilities, as well as their 
planning, design, and construction, is vitally dependent upon the efforts and 
skill of public works officials; and 
 
WHEREAS, the efficiency of the qualified and dedicated personnel who staff 
public works departments is materially influenced by the people’s attitude and 
understanding of the importance of the work they perform, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Robert M. Green, Mayor of the City of Cedar Falls, do 
hereby proclaim the week of May 16-22, 2021 as National Public Works 
Week in the City of Cedar Falls and I call upon all citizens and civic 
organizations to acquaint themselves with the issues involved in providing our 
public works and to recognize the contributions which public works officials 
make every day to our health, safety, comfort, and quality of life. 

   

 Signed this 13th day of May, 2021. 

 

______________________________________                                          

Mayor Robert M. Green 

 11

Item 2.



 

   MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

 

 

 

 
 

NATIONAL TRAILS DAY 
JUNE 5, 2021 

 
WHEREAS, National Trails Day was established in 1993 by the American Hiking 

Society to commemorate the myriad ways Americans enjoy our public trails; and 

WHEREAS, the Cedar Valley boasts an exceptional network of more than a hundred 

miles of hard-surfaced and soft trails in our city, county and state parks and public 

lands, as well as a unique Paddler’s Trail for boats, canoes and kayaks on the Cedar 

River and its tributaries; and 

WHEREAS, the Cedar Trails Partnership, Cedar Valley Association for Soft Trails 

(CVAST), Hartman Reserve, George Wyth State Park, Impact Outdoors, the Cedar 

Falls Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee, the Black Hawk County 

Conservation Board, and other groups have worked diligently over decades to 

ensure quality trail experiences for residents and visitors alike; and 

WHEREAS, it is fitting that Cedar Falls celebrate our wonderful trail system and the 

groups who have labored to create, expand and improve it, as well as to envision 

Cedar Falls as a premier stop along the Great American Rail-Trail; 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Robert M. Green, Mayor of the City of Cedar Falls, do hereby 

proclaim June 5, 2021 as National Trails Day in the city and I encourage all citizens 

to celebrate this day by walking, running, jogging, or paddling our trails for personal 

well-being enjoyment;  and further I encourage local long-term efforts to secure 

Cedar Falls’ place as the premier waypoint for national travelers along the Great 

American Rail-Trail.  

 Signed this 13th day of May, 2021. 

 

______________________________________                                          

Mayor Robert M. Green 

 

12

Item 3.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO:   Honorable Mayor Robert M Green and City Council 
 
 FROM:  Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE:  May 13th, 2021 
 
 SUBJECT: Olive Street Box Culvert Replacement 
    City Project No. BR-106-3215 
    Public Hearing 
 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is planning to remove and replace the existing 2 span slab 
bridge at Olive Street with a twin box culvert. The existing bridge will be replaced with a 
box culvert extending from the existing College Street Culvert to the east side of Olive 
Street, downstream channel improvements will be incorporated, sidewalk improvements 
for walkability to the College Hill corridor, and placement of a new road above the 
culvert. The project will include improvements to the water main, storm sewer and 
sanitary sewer. Right-of-Way acquired for the project will be used for culvert alignment 
and stream channel restorations. Plans for the project shows the need for fee title 
and/or easement acquisitions from approximately four (4) properties.  
 
These acquired property acquisitions are a result of the new culvert design. Due to the 
changes in the culvert, stream channel improvements, and the necessary utility 
upgrades, the City plans to acquire the right-of-way from the properties at the four 
corners of the existing bridge. Temporary construction easements will be necessary for 
three properties located on the northwest, northeast and southwest. One property in its 
entirety will be condemned as part of the project located at the southeast side of the 
bridge. 
 
Iowa law requires that the City Council holds a public hearing to authorize proceeding 
with the project, including the purchase of right-of-way. The public hearing offers an 
opportunity for the public, especially those from whom the fee title and easement 
acquisition will be purchased, to comment on the project. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 

13

Item 4.



LEGEND

JUNE 2020

ROW EXHIBIT

CULVERT REPLACEMENT

OLIVE STREET BOX 

CITY PROJECT NUMBER: BR-106-3215

AECOM PROJECT NUMBER: 60623997
CITY OF CEDAR FALLSpermanent easement

TEMPORARY EASEMENT

TEMP. EASEMENT LINES

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINES

CF102

City Of Cedar Falls

CF101

2017-2019 Olive St

CV Commercial LLC

CF104

2016 Olive St

Geisler, Michael B

City Of Cedar Falls

City Of Cedar Falls

CF103

2010 Olive St

Cunningham, Eugene

Cunningham, Mark

2005 Olive St

Contract Buyer Eilers, Dwayne II

Mukai, Karen B Trust

Mukai, Teru Trust

2009 Olive St

Contract Buyer Eilers, Dwayne II

Mukai, Karen B Trust

Mukai, Teru Trust

Existing Easement

Existing Easement

O

FEET

20

14

Item 4.



1 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 TO: Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager  
 

 DATE: May 13, 2021 

 SUBJECT: Rezoning Request 4800 Block Cedar Heights Drive Oster Property (RZ21-001) 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
REQUEST: 
 

Rezone property from A-1, Agricultural District and R-1, Residential Zoning 
District to MU, Mixed Use Residential Zoning District. Update the Pinnacle 
Prairie Master Plan accordingly. 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Oster Family Limited Partnership 
 

LOCATION: 
 

500 feet north of Huntington Road, west Side of Cedar Heights Drive 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
Oster Family Limited Partnership has requested to rezone approximately 15 acres of property 
from the A-1, Agricultural District (approx. 12 acres) and R-1, Residential Zoning District 
(approx. 3 acres) to MU, Mixed Use Residential Zoning District. As shown on the attached 
rezoning plat, this property is located 500 feet north of Huntington Road along the west side of 
Cedar Heights Drive. The applicant has submitted a concept plan for the area proposed for 
rezoning that will be intended largely for multi-unit dwellings.  
 
BACKGROUND 
A similar rezoning request was considered by the Planning and Zoning Commission in 
September and October 2020. That petition was denied by the Commission due to the lack of 
an east-west street connection through the development to Cedar Heights Drive. The applicant 
had revised their original proposal to modify the street pattern to include a street connection that 
will align with the Huntington Drive intersection with Cedar Heights Drive. They are now 
requesting to incorporate this new area of multi-unit dwellings into the Pinnacle Prairie Master 
Plan, which is zoned MU, Mixed Use Residential Zoning District.  
 
The approximately 624 acres to the west and south were rezoned from RP Planned Residential 
Zoning District and A-1 Agricultural Zoning District to MU Mixed Use Residential Zoning District 
in 2004, subject to a developmental procedures agreement and master plan, known as Pinnacle 

15

Item 5.



2 
 

Prairie. The submitted master plan was revised in 2015, with an associated amendment to their 
developmental procedures agreement. The approved 2015 Master Plan is shown below for 
reference and is also included in your packet as an attachment. 

 
The property north of the subject property is currently zoned C-1 Commercial Zoning District, 
and is developed with multi-unit dwellings. The property across Cedar Heights Drive to the east 
was zoned MU in 2006, but the area along Cedar Heights Drive intended for commercial uses 
remains undeveloped.  
 
The intent of this request for rezoning is to incorporate the subject property into the larger 
Pinnacle Prairie MU District and update the eastern portion of the master plan accordingly. A 
draft “Pinnacle Prairie East Concept Plan” is attached to this report.  
 
If the rezoning is approved and master plan updated, the next step would be to bring forward a 
preliminary plat for the larger concept plan area. This will make it possible to final plat the multi-
family area, so the owner can market it to potential buyers. A detailed site plan would be 
submitted when development is proposed, which will need to be in compliance with the adopted 
master plan and subdivision plat. The developmental procedures agreement will also need to be 
updated to address the changes in the master plan.  
 
 
 
 

16

Item 5.



3 
 

ANALYSIS 
 
Existing and Proposed Zoning 
The purpose of A-1 Agricultural District is to act as a "holding zone" in areas of the city that 
are undeveloped and not served by essential municipal services (i.e., sanitary sewer, water, 
roadways) but where future growth and development is anticipated according to the 
Comprehensive Plan. The purpose of R-1 Residential Zoning District is to provide 
opportunities for low density, primarily single-dwelling residential development in areas that 
are served by essential municipal services.  
 
The Mixed Use (MU) Residential Zoning District designation is established for the purpose of 
accommodating integrated residential and neighborhood commercial land uses on larger 
parcels of land for the purpose of creating viable, self-supporting neighborhood districts. The 
MU residential district strives to encourage innovative development that incorporates high-
quality building design, careful site planning, and preservation of unique environmental 
features with an emphasis upon the creation of open spaces and amenities that enhance the 
quality of life of residents. To that end, a detailed master plan is required at the time of 
rezoning. As stated previously, an updated master plan for the eastern portion of the Pinnacle 
Prairie development has been submitted by the applicant. This includes the area proposed for 
rezoning. The draft “Pinnacle Prairie East Concept Plan” is described in more detail below. 
However, the first test for a proposed rezoning is whether it complies with the Comprehensive 
Plan.  
 
Compliance with the Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Map 
 
During review of the previous rezoning proposal, the Commission voted to recommend a 
change to the Future Land Use Map in the in the City’s Comprehensive Plan. The Future Land 
Use Map in the City’s Comprehensive Plan designates the area that is the subject of the 
rezoning request as a combination of “Office and Business Park,” “Planned Development,” and 
“Greenways and Floodplain,” as shown on the following page. The applicant made a good case 
that the appropriate designation of the area east of the Green Creek floodplain is “Planned 
Development” as it will allow this area to be integrated into the master planned development to 
the west and south.  Staff concurred, provided there are adequate street connections provided 
from the new proposed MU area to the Pinnacle Prairie development to the west.  Staff also 
agreed with their assessment that “the property located on the east side of Cedar Heights Drive 
across the street from the subject property is identified on the City’s Plan as “Neighborhood 
Commercial/Mixed Use” and is entitled for a retail commercial center.  Additional residential 
units in this area will increase the viability of the development of the site for neighborhood 
commercial use and provide retail and service businesses within walking distance of the 
proposed project.”  There is a concern that there may be too much area designated on the 
future land use map for commercial use to be supported by the market, which may explain why 
the land on the east side of Cedar Heights Drive remains undeveloped. Additional residential 
development in the area may provide additional market demand for neighborhood commercial 
development. The Commission’s recommendation to amend the Future Land Use Map to 
designate the area east of the Green Creek floodplain and west of Cedar Heights Drive as 
appropriate for “Planned Development,” is being forwarded to City Council concurrently 
with the proposed rezoning request.  
 

17

Item 5.



4 
 

 
 
Future Land use Map (Legend) 

Planned Development- 
Office and Business Park -  
Greenways and Floodplain- 

 
 
Amendment to the Pinnacle Prairie Master Plan 
As stated in the zoning ordinance, “the owner of a property may seek approval of a mixed use 
residential zoning designation with the simultaneous submittal of a comprehensive development 
site plan. Zoning approval cannot be given without an approved development site plan.”  
Fortunately, in this case a significant amount of work and thought has already been done on the 
Pinnacle Prairie MU District master plan, so it is a matter of amending the current (2015) master 
plan to incorporate the area proposed for rezoning into this larger plan for development of the 
mixed use neighborhood. There are a number of elements listed in the zoning code that are 
required to be addressed in the master plan, as listed below: 
 

(1)  Building locations.  

(2)  Streets, drives, accessways.  

(3)  Parking lots.  

(4)  Landscape plan, open space areas.  

(5)  Pedestrian traffic plan, including sidewalks, bicycle paths.  

(6)  Architectural renderings of all sides of each building, including accessory structures.  

(7)  Signage plan.  

(8)  List of expected uses within the development.  

Within the area east of Green Creek and north of 
Huntington Road, amend Future Land Use Map 
Designation from Office and Business Park to 
“Planned Development” 

Property to be rezoned MU  

18

Item 5.



5 
 

(9)  Stormwater detention and erosion control plans.  

(10)  Topographic features of the site including land and soils capability analysis.  

(11)  Residential densities.  

(12)  Natural drainageways, floodplain areas.  

(13)  Municipal utility locations.  

(14)  Residential recreation or park areas.  

 
In a larger MU District, such as Pinnacle Prairie, which encompasses more than 600 acres, 
build out takes years and portions of the master planned area may be sold to other developers, 
who will prepare detailed site plans for their portion of the development. Therefore, in practice, 
our expectation is that the master plan would address each of these elements generally, with 
the specific requirements met during subdivision review and site plan review for specific building 
sites once development is imminent.  
 
There does, however, need to be a level of detail necessary to evaluate the rezoning request 
and to establish how the area will function as a cohesive and well-planned neighborhood at full 
build-out, including the street network, plan for the extension of utilities, sanitary sewer, and 
stormwater management, proposed distribution of various land uses and housing types, and 
plan for parks, trails, and open space amenities, and any neighborhood-serving commercial 
areas. Each of these aspects of the proposed updated master plan is discussed in more detail 
below. 
 

 

19

Item 5.



6 
 

 
The revised Pinnacle Prairie East Concept Plan is shown above and is included as an 
attachment in your packet for more careful review. Note that there are a number of notable 
areas on the concept plan:  

 There are two north-south street connections through the concept plan area: Oster 
Parkway and Rownd Street/Street E to the roundabout that links Cedar Heights Drive to 
Viking Road.  

 With this proposal, Prairie View Road is extended in a curvilinear, yet easterly direction to 
connect with Cedar Heights Drive at the intersection of Huntington Road. This will provide 
an important means of access and circulation for area residents.  

 The townhome area illustrates that a majority of the units would have vehicular access 
from rear alleys. Additional information about the townhome area is described in the next 
section of the report; 

 A note has been added to the concept plan that street and lot layouts may need to be 
adjusted to ensure that new homes are not located in the floodplain. New lots cannot be 
platted with more than 25% of their lot area within a flood hazard area.  

 It should also be noted that the small commercial area in the southeast corner of the 
development that includes the extended Prairie View Road and Huntington Road 
intersection will be almost entirely within a flood hazard area, if the new preliminary 
FEMA Flood Insurance Rate Maps are adopted in 2022. This area will need to be platted, 
including the street connection across the Green Creek, prior to the adoption of the new 
maps to avoid violation of the subdivision platting rules as noted above.  

 The applicant has indicated that if for whatever reason the commercial area becomes 
unviable due to floodplain issues, that adequate area will be reserved for a potential east-
west street connection along the southern edge of the multi-family area to Cedar Heights 
Drive. This commitment will need to be included in the development agreement required 
with the change to the master plan. Currently the concept plan illustrates a drive flanked 
by parking spaces and garages. If the multi-family area is proposed for final plat and site 
plan review prior to the commercial area, the proposed layout of the multi-unit dwellings, 
drives, parking, and garages will need to be adjusted to reserve the area as an outlot 
unencumbered with garages and parking to ensure a street can be appropriately 
designed and constructed through this area. In addition, the centrally located access may 
need to be shifted to the north to ensure adequate spacing with this potential future 
street.  All these adjustments can be avoided if the commercial area is platted and street 
constructed prior to the multi-family area.  

 
Land Uses  
In the case of Pinnacle Prairie, since specific building designs were not known at the time of 
rezoning and the owner desired to establish a certain design aesthetic and ensure a high quality 
living and business environment, a set of design guidelines (The Pinnacle Prairie General 
Design Guidelines, dated 2-23-16) and a private design review process was set up to ensure a 
consistent quality of construction and design throughout the neighborhood.  
 
The Pinnacle Prairie MU district is divided into distinctive areas, each with its own set of allowed 
uses and design guidelines. The area generally east of Oster Parkway is entitled, The Villages, 
which is in large part residential in character, with a mix of single family, townhouses, and with 
the addition of this newly proposed area along Cedar Heights Drive, it will contain approximately 
12 additional acres intended for multi-family dwellings and an additional 3 acres for single family 

20

Item 5.



7 
 

development. This area also includes the small neighborhood commercial area at the 
intersection of Cedar Heights Drive and Huntington Road. The applicant proposes to use the 
same set of design guidelines for the areas requested for rezoning.  
  
There are separate design standards for each residential building type. The pages of the design 
guidelines related to each of these dwelling types are attached for your reference. These 
standards will ensure that the area proposed for rezoning will be developed with the same level 
of design as the rest of the Pinnacle Prairie development, including landscaping, signage, and 
the general Prairie-style aesthetic envisioned by the owner.  
 
Staff notes that when individual site plans are submitted for review, the placement of the 
buildings, parking, and open space amenities should be carefully reviewed through the Planning 
and Zoning Commission and City Council to ensure a high quality living environment for future 
residents. Multi-family buildings should be oriented toward the street with parking located 
behind, under, or to the side of buildings and screened with landscaping. Each building should 
have usable yard/courtyard areas as well as good access to neighborhood open space 
amenities and trails.  
 
For townhomes, staff recommends a focus on alley-loaded models as shown in the design 
guidelines as there is a general lack of this housing type in the community and it will reduce the 
need for extensive driveway curb cuts along neighborhood streets and ensure that these higher 
density dwellings will fit more seamlessly into the single family residential character of the 
neighborhood. The applicant has refined the townhome area in the concept plan to show a 
concept of rear-loaded units that front on the street with garages located at the rear of the units 
with access from an alley. Some additional minor adjustments to the street pattern when the 
area is platted may yield a more efficient layout and break up the longer blocks, but staff finds 
that the concept captures the intent to provide an alley-loaded product. If driveways are moved 
to the alley rather than the street, it will:  

 reduce traffic congestion and vehicular conflict points on fronting streets;  

 achieve streets with sidewalks uninterrupted by front driveways;  

 provide more room for street trees and front yard landscaping; and  

 reserve the street space for on-street parking for visitors.  
 
Staff also notes that if alley-loaded townhome designs are used there may be more 
opportunities to integrate townhomes strategically throughout the neighborhood rather than 
concentrating them in just one large area.  
 
With regard to the small commercial area, buildings would also have to meet the Pinnacle 
Prairie design guidelines and will be reviewed in detail at the time the area is proposed for 
development. As noted below, the street access and trail access should be carefully designed to 
ensure that neighborhood residents have easy access to what is intended to be a 
neighborhood-serving commercial area.  
 
Street network and traffic circulation 
The 2015 master plan illustrates the roadway alignments, access locations and proposed 
intersection designs and locations for the major streets within the development (Prairie Parkway, 
Oster Parkway, Viking Road, and a portion of Prairie View Road. Other potential streets 
connections are also illustrated, but additional local streets are just conceptually shown with 

21

Item 5.



8 
 

arrows. Lots and blocks are not illustrated so it is difficult to understand how the neighborhood 
would be laid out with a local street pattern, and how the trails, parks, and stormwater 
management areas would be located in relation to the streets. Staff requested that the applicant 
submit a more defined concept plan showing a concept for streets, blocks and lots, so one can 
clearly see how the neighborhood could function as a whole. This preliminary work will be a 
precursor for the subdivision platting, which will be required prior to sale of any portion of the 
development, including the multi-family area proposed for rezoning.  
 
The submitted concept plan for the transportation network has a number of positive aspects:  

 There is good public access to the trail network and to the 3.5 park, which fronts on both 
Prairie View Road and Street B;  

 Streets are laid out in an attractive curvilinear and generally connected pattern. Some of 
the block lengths exceed the recommended block length of 600 feet, but with a few 
adjustments at the time of platting this can be addressed, such as extending Street G to 
connect with Street C.  

 Open space appears to be well distributed throughout the neighborhood with a trail 
system to linking them to provide walking and biking routes.  

 Prairie View Road, a major collector, will extend across the area to provide circulation 
within and through the neighborhood with connection points with major north-south routes 
at Oster Parkway, Rownd, and Cedar Heights Drive.   

 
The City will soon be making improvements to Cedar Heights Drive and associated 
infrastructure. With that project, adjustments in the right-of-way will be made at the intersection 
of Huntington Road to allow for a future roundabout, which would allow the street to be 
extended to the west to serve the commercial area and any additional development proposed in 
the future to the existing lots that were created behind the homes in the Ideal Acres subdivision 
along Cedar Heights Drive. While currently these lots are owned and used as extended yard 
areas for these homes, there would be the potential for additional homes to be developed if a 
means of access is provided. There are a number of possible scenarios for providing access. 
Extending a street north from an extended Huntington Road is one possibility. When this area is 
platted, this issue will need to be studied more fully to determine how best to provide access to 
this undeveloped land whether it is from an extended Huntington Road or from the east-west 
street connection in the multi-family area to the north or from both. 
 
Access to Public Services and Stormwater Management 
Water, electric, gas, and communications utility services are available to the proposed future 
developments in accordance with the service policies of Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU). During 
preliminary plats, final plats and site plan reviews, more detail on the sizing of lines, location, 
and other aspects will be reviewed.  
 
As shown below, sanitary sewer lines extend east-west across the area coinciding with the 
natural drainage pattern of the area, so are readily available for extension to serve the 
neighborhood. There is also a north-south sanitary line that runs along Green Creek that serves 
the eastern portion of the development. On the master plan you will note that these sanitary 
lines are located along the proposed alignment of Prairie View Road until it reaches the larger 
neighborhood open space area, which coincides with the natural drainage pattern and the 
Green Creek riparian corridor.  
 

22

Item 5.



9 
 

A regional stormwater management system is proposed that follows the drainage pattern one 
can see on the aerial photograph below. Note also that the floodplain for Green Creek is 
extensive. While the floodplain is generally shown as green space on the proposed concept 
plan, there are lots along the south side of Street A and along the north side of a portion of 
Prairie View Road that are partially or wholly within the floodplain. The City’s floodplain 
regulations and subdivision rules will not allow development in these areas, except that up to 
25% of a residential lot may be located in the floodplain as long as the buildable area on the lot 
is not within the floodplain. While the applicant has not amended the concept plan to address 
this issue, they have included a note on the concept plan that adjustments to the block and lot 
layout may be necessary to ensure that new homes are not located within the floodplain. While 
it would be best to consider this issue early in the planning stage, the issue will have to be 
resolved prior to platting. With regard to the multi-family area east of Green Creek, the plan 
does a better job of respecting the floodplain boundary with no building encroachment into these 
areas.  
 

 
 
Open Space, Parks, and Trails 
The MU District requires 10% of the land area to remain as open space. The concept presented 
includes a refined representation of the open space that coincides with the floodplain for Green 
Creek and the proposed regional stormwater management area. Trails extend along Street J 
from the Pinnacle Prairie area to the west and follow Prairie Parkway into the greenway 
connecting the 3.5 acre park to the larger area to the west and across the creek to the east. The 
concept plan shows a well-connected trail network.  
 
It should also be noted that the April, 2015 staff report to City Council states:  

Per the original concept plan site data, 2% must remain specifically as park space. Based on 
the Commission’s favorable discussion March 3rd (2015), 2.6 acres of trail are part of that 
park amount. The Developmental Procedures Agreement addresses that. Note: Any trails along 
the road within that area calculation are counted at half the area, since a 5’ sidewalk is required. 
There could be changes in the future that would require adjustment to the Master Plan in order to 
meet the 2% requirement.  

23

Item 5.



10 
 

Any revised developmental procedures agreement should continue to include an updated parks 
and trails calculation based on the larger area included with this rezoning.  
 
Technical Comments:  

1. A preliminary and final plat will be required prior to any land sales within the master 
planned area. Platting is helpful in determining the lots and development areas that will 
benefit from the streets, regional stormwater management system, open space 
amenities, park areas, and trails, so that that cost of constructing and maintaining these 
facilities can be addressed through the sale of the lots and establishment of homeowner’s 
associations with appropriate fee structures. It is not in the best interest of either the 
owner or the City to plat this area in a piecemeal fashion since so much of the 
infrastructure is shared. The platting process will help the owner determine how these 
benefits and costs should be shared, so they can be assured that their investment will be 
appropriately recaptured as lots are sold. The sale of land to Immanuel Lutheran Church 
prior to platting is a case in point. The church had difficulty developing the land they 
acquired from Oster through a plat of survey and experienced considerable delay in 
preparing plat documents and obtaining off-site easements to address stormwater 
management since the larger area has not been platted and the regional stormwater 
system has not been established.  

 
2. A new or amended developmental procedures agreement will need to be drafted and 

signed prior to approval of the rezoning.  
 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
Notice of the public hearing was mailed to the adjoining property owners and published in the 
Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier.   
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Community Development Department recommends approval of the proposed 
amendment to the Future Land Use Map changing the designation east of the Green Creek 
floodplain and west of Cedar Heights Drive from “Office and Business Park” to “Planned 
Development;” and  
 
The Community Development Department recommends approval of RZ21-001, a request 
to rezone property from A-1, Agricultural District, and R-1, Residential Zoning District, to MU, 
Mixed Use Residential Zoning District, and to update the Pinnacle Prairie Master Plan 
accordingly, subject to a new or amended development agreement that addresses the specific 
issues outlined in the staff report with regard to platting, connected street pattern, parks, trails, 
and open space, building forms and placement, stormwater management, and alternative street  
alignments and lot configurations, if necessary due to floodplain issues.  
 
At their meeting on October 14, 2020, on a vote of 8-0, the Planning and Zoning 
Commission recommended approval of the proposed amendment to the Future Land Use 
Map as described above; and on April 14, 2021, on a vote of 9-0, the Planning and Zoning 
Commission recommended approval of the proposed rezoning.   
 
 

24

Item 5.



11 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion  
3/24/2021 

The next item for consideration by the Commission was a request to rezone the area 
500 feet north of Huntington Road along the west side of Cedar Heights drive from A-
1 and R-1 to MU and update the Pinnacle Prairie Master plan. Chair Leeper 
introduced the item and Ms. Howard provided background information. She noted 
that this was a new application for a rezoning, but a similar request was considered 
last year by the Commission and was denied.  She explained the current uses and 
how they would change if rezoned and noted that the applicant would like to 
incorporate this area into the larger Pinnacle Prairie Master Plan. The item was 
reviewed in the fall and part of the review included looking at the future land use map 
in this location and updating that as well. She noted that the Commission had 
recommended approval of the change to the Future Land Use Map at that time. She 
noted the applicant would like to refine the master plan for Pinnacle Prairie East. Ms. 
Howard displayed the 2015 Master Plan and discussed the potential update. She 
discussed the previous proposal in 2020 that was denied due to a lack of an east-
west street connection to Cedar Heights Drive. With this new master plan proposal 
they show a new street layout that includes extension of Prairie View Road to Cedar 
Heights Drive at its intersection with Huntington Road. They would propose to 
continue to use their same design standards as apply currently in the Pinnacle Prairie 
development, which establishes prairie-style aesthetic. Ms. Howard explained that 
there will be focus on alley loaded types of townhomes and the neighborhood 
commercial area will have street access and trail connections to ensure residents 
have easy access. She elaborated on the Prairie View Drive extension to connect 
with Cedar Heights Drive and noted that there are still some outstanding questions 
about the viability of the commercial area shown on the master plan due to floodplain 
issues. If it is determined that the commercial area is not feasible, the applicant has 
agreed to shift the east-west extension of Prairie View Road to the north to extend 
along the southern boundary of the multi-family area that is the subject of this 
rezoning. Howard noted that if this were to occur, then the concept plan shown for the 
multi-family area will need to be modified to accommodate the street right-of-way.  

Ms. Howard displayed a view of the area proposed for rezoning, noting that it will 
contain primarily multi-family development with approximately 12 units per acre with 
buildings oriented toward the street and good access to open space amenities and 
trails. The street network and traffic circulation will provide good public access to the 
trail network and a park, the streets will be laid out in an attractive yet connected 
curvilinear pattern, and the open space is well distributed. She explained some of the 
potential adjustments with regard to the east-west connection. The location has 
access to public services and Ms. Howard noted that adjustments to the open space, 
parks and trails will be addressed in the development agreement. With regard to 
technical comments she explained that a preliminary and final plat will be required 
prior to any land sales within the master plan area. Although the issues in the 
previous developmental procedures agreement have now been resolved, a new 
agreement will need to be drafted and signed prior to setting a public hearing at City 
Council for the requested rezoning. Staff recommends initial discussion at this time 
and setting public hearing for April 4. 

LeaAnn asked why we don’t know if commercial will be allowed in that spot. Ms. 
Howard explained that the floodplain maps are currently under review for changes so 
it will depend on when the plan is submitted and whether they can comply with the 
new flood insurance rate maps, likely to be finalized by FEMA next spring. 

Eric Johnson, Beecher Law Firm, asked if Carrie Hansen had joined the meeting 
online. Staff stated that she was not. He explained that he is available for any 

25

Item 5.



12 
 

questions with regard to the project.  

Since there were no questions, Mr. Larson made a motion to set the public hearing 
for April 14, 2021. Ms. Sears seconded the motion. The motion was approved 
unanimously with 8 ayes (Holst, Larson, Leeper, Lynch, Prideaux, Saul, Schrad and 
Sears), and 0 nays. 

 

Public 
hearing 
and vote  
4/14/2021 

 

The Commission then considered a rezoning request near Huntington Road and 
Cedar Heights Drive from A-1 Agricultural District and R-1 Residential District to 
MU Mixed Use Residential District, and to update the Pinnacle Prairie Master 
Plan to include this new area. Chair Leeper introduced the item and Ms. Howard 
provided background information. She explained that approximately 12 acres of 
the property would be rezoned from A-1 to MU and approximately three acres 
from R-1 to MU. The proposal would incorporate the new land into the larger 
Pinnacle Prairie Mixed Use District and update the master plan appropriately. 
She displayed a revised concept for Pinnacle Prairie East and the view of the 
area proposed for rezoning to MU and discussed the plans for those areas. She 
discussed the street network and traffic circulation as well as alternate routes 
and adjustments that may need to be made. Ms. Howard noted that a 
preliminary and final plat will be required prior to any land sales within the master 
planned area and a new developmental procedures agreement will need to be 
drafted and signed prior to setting a public hearing at City Council. Staff 
recommends approval of the request to rezone property from A-1 and R-1 to 
MU, and to update the Pinnacle Prairie Master Plan accordingly, subject to a 
new or amended development agreement that addresses the specific issues 
outlined in the staff report.  

Carrie Hansen, Schoppe Design Associates, spoke about the connection of 
Prairie View out to Cedar Heights and the location of Huntington where the new 
roundabout is planned to go. She stated that if this is not possible they have 
agreed to relocate it to another portion of the proposed multi- family area. She 
noted that they have met their obligations for the Goldenrod and Prairie Parkway 
roundabout improvement that had been noted previously. They have also 
submitted a revised development procedures agreement that addresses the 
items in staff’s report and will continue to work with staff to finalize those 
documents.  

 Mr. Holst made a motion to approve the item. Ms. Lynch seconded the motion. 
The motion was approved unanimously with 9 ayes (Hartley, Holst, Larson, 
Leeper, Lynch, Prideaux, Saul, Schrad and Sears), and 0 nays. 

 
 
 
Attachments: Rezoning Plat 
  2015 Pinnacle Prairie Master Plan  
  Proposed updated master plan and concept plan for “Pinnacle Prairie East” 
  Updated Design Guidelines for Pinnacle Prairie 
  Applicant’s letter requesting rezoning 

26

Item 5.



27

Item 5.



28

Item 5.



Schoppe Design Associates, Inc.
LAND PLANNING & LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE

March 8,2021

Department of Community Development
City of Cedar Falls
220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Re: Cedar Heights Drive Property Rezoning Request (2)

CEDAR HEIGHTS DRIVE PROPERTY
Explanation of Request

The initial MU rezoning justification submitted for the subject petition was included with the original
application packet on June 12, 2020. The reasons noted in the Cedar Heights Drive Property —

Explanation of Request letter dated June 12, 2020 remain valid and as such are again submitted and
attached to this updated rezoning justification for reference. A number of events and changes to the
petition have transpired since the original request was filed and are explained below.

The Planning and Zoning Commission first heard the land use map amendment and rezoning request on
September 9, 2020. While the proposed land uses were generally well received by both staff and
Commissioners, there was significant discussion regarding the lack of an east-west connection to Cedar
Heights Drive. It was the petitioner’s position that the proposed access points were adequate to
facilitate effective traffic operations, and further that vehicular crossings of the floodplain and open
space corridors should be limited due to environmental impacts. A number of residents also spoke at
the meeting, and it was ultimately decided to continue the case to the Commission’s next meeting to
explore solutions to noted comments and so that the petitioner could meet with the adjacent residents
to further discuss the project and answer any questions.

The resident meeting was held via Zoom on October 1, 2020 and nine residents participated. The
proposal was clarified and numerous questions were answered. The meeting went very well and the
resident response to the project was generally positive.

In response to the comments made by staff and Commissioners at the September 9, 2020 meeting,
several revisions were made to the request and resubmitted for consideration at the October 14, 2020
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting:

• Pinnacle Prairie East Concept Plan:
o Nose-in parking was removed in the revised townhome pod.
o The trail was relocated immediately adjacent to the proposed commercial pod at

Huntington and Cedar Heights.
A note was added to the plan regarding potential floodplain adjustmen 126 5. Main Street

Oswego, IL 60543
p: 630 551 3355

1: 630 551 3639
schoppeclesign. net29

Item 5.



Schoppe Design Associates, Inc
LAND PLANNINC & LANDSCAPE ARC HITECTIJRF

• Pinnacle Prairie Master Plan:
The updated Pinnacle Prairie East Concept Plan was dropped into the overall Master
Plan.
Site data was updated to reflect new land use acreages.

Both staff and the Commission concurred that the map amendment for the 15-acre parcel be changed
to Planned Development to allow for the combination of multi-family and single-family uses as part of
the overall Pinnacle Prairie development and the Commission voted 8-0 in favor of this portion of the
request.

The revised plans did not however, include an east-west roadway connection to Cedar Heights Drive.
There was discussion amongst the Commissioners that the crossing might make sense at Huntington
given the proposed roundabout improvement and proximity to the commercial pod. However, without
a commitment from the petitioner to provide this connection, the rezoning request ultimately failed by
a vote of 4-4.

Rather than proceed to the City Council with a negative recommendation from the Planning and Zoning
Commission, the petitioner continued negotiations with staff to come to resolution on the outstanding
roadway connection issue. A number of options were explored, ultimately culminating in the now
revised and proposed plan that incorporates an east-west roadway crossing of the creek at Huntington.
The addition of this crossing resulted in a slight redesign of the single-family pod to the west.
Additionally, given the unknown impact of the floodplain on the viability of the proposed commercial
pod at this location, a note has been added to the plan that if in the future it is determined that the
commercial pod is undevelopable, the east-west connection road would be relocated to the southern
edge of the multi4amily pod to the north.

In addition to the plan changes, the petitioner’s obligations for the improvements at Goldenrod and the
Prairie Parkway roundabout previously noted in staff’s report have been satisfactorily addressed.

It is the petitioner’s position that we have successfully resolved the outstanding issues and concerns
noted to date and respectfully request approval of the petition for rezoning to MU.

Thank you for your consideration.

S~erely, ~

Carrie L Hansen
Director of Planning and Government Services

CLH:

Page 2 of 2
30

Item 5.



June 12, 2020

Department of Community Development
City of Cedar Falls
220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Re: Cedar Heights Drive Property Rezoning Request

To Whom It May Concern:

Per the City’s rezoning application requirements, below please find a brief explanation of the
proposal.

Cedar Heiahts Drive Property
Explanation of Request

The petitioner is requesting a rezoning of the subject property to MU, Mixed Use Residential for
future development of both multi-family and single-family residential uses. The two residential
use areas would be separated by an existing wide drainage corridor with proposed multi-family
units to the east and single-family lots to the west. While there are no specific development
plans at this time, the rezoning is being requested to assist with marketing to interested
buyers/builders who would still be required to come back to the City for formal plan approval for
ultimate product and design.

It is the petitioner’s intent to add the 15-acre property to the Pinnacle Prairie project,
immediately adjacent to the west and south. Doing so will result in the application of and
adherence to the same high-quality development design standards of the Pinnacle Prairie
development and add an additional mix of residential uses to the overall project. The City’s MU
District “strives to encourage innovative development that incorporates high-quality building
design, carefUl site planning, preservation of unique environmental features with an emphasis
upon the creation of open spaces and amenities that enhance the quality of life of residents.” The
accompanying Rezoning Concept Plan focuses on this goal and represents an idea of how the
newly added MU property could be integrated into the Pinnacle Prairie project.

1265, Main Street
Oswego, IL 60543

~
schopp eclesign. net

Schoppe Design Associates, Inc.
LAND PLANNING & LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE

31

Item 5.



~ia
Schoppe Design Associates, Inc.
LAND PLANNING & LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE

The proposed multi-family use on the eastern portion of the property is a compatible extension of
the existing medium density residential land use immediately adjacent to the property on the
north. The physical barrier of the drainage corridor to the west orients the subject property more
to the east, and as such the design contemplates a grand entry from Cedar Heights Drive. The
conceptual design depicts 180 total units in 6,24-unit and 2, 18-unit three story buildings. The
design incorporates an open space theme immediately upon entering the development and
continues with both a visual and physical extension of this amenity throughout the site. There is
a main open space corridor in the middle of the project that serves not only as a gathering space
for the residents but also visually connects the project entrance to the open space and drainage
corridor to the west. The space can include a variety of complementary elements such as trails,
benches, and a gazebo. In addition to the more centralized open space, each individual building
has access to its own open space/courtyard area on a more intimate scale. There is an
interconnected system of walking paths which all lead either to the central open space corridor
within the project or to a fliture more regional frail within the adjacent open space and drainage
corridor, connecting to the Pinnacle Prairie project and trail system. The site plan also includes a
dog park, a desired amenity for multi-family projects of this type.

The proposed single-family use is located west of the drainage area and as such orients westward
in terms of compatible land use. This use is accordingly derived from the designated future
single-family land use of the Pinnacle Prairie project adjacent to the west, and additionally from
the existing single-family residences of the Green Creek Subdivision adjacent on the north. The
Concept Plan illustrates how approximately 6 single-family lots could be created utilizing a cul
de-sac design;

The City’s Comprehensive Plan designates the area contained in the MU rezoning request for a
combination of Planned Development and Office/Business Park. The delineation between these
two uses is in an unusual diagonal manner and leaves an oddly shaped triangle that would appear
extremely challenging to develop. The limited and awkward size of the office/business park
designated parcel and its lack of access to an arterial road do not seem conducive to development
of the property for office/business park use. Given that the remainder of the property is
designated as Planned Development and the proposal is to add the subject property to the
Pinnacle Prairie project, also designated as Planned Development on the City’s Comprehensive
Plan, the requested rezoning to MU appears to be compatible with the goals of the Plan for this
area. Additionally, the property located on the east side of Cedar Heights Drive across the street
from the subject property is identified on the City’s Plan as “Neighborhood Commercial/Mixed
Use” and is entitled for a retail commercial center. Additional residential units in this area will
increase the viability of the development of the site for neighborhood commercial use and
provide retail and service businesses within walking distance of the proposed project.

Page 2 of 3
32

Item 5.



Schoppe Design Associates, Inc.

Thank you for your consideration, and we respectfully request a favorable review of the request.

Sincerely,

Carrie L. Hansen
Director of Platming and Government Services

CLH:

LAND PLANNINC & LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE

Page 3 of 3
33

Item 5.



OFFICE / MULTI-FAMILY

COMM.

S.W.M.

TOWNHOME

SINGLE FAMILY

SINGLE FAMILY

FAITH     DR.

S.W.M.

OPEN SPACE

WATER  TOWER COMMERCIAL / OFFICE
OR

MULTI-FAMILYCOMMERCIAL OR
MULTI-FAMILY

 PROFESSIONAL OFFICES /
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES TRACT C

OR
TOWNHOME

HEARTLAND
VINEYARD
CHURCH

PINNACLE RIDGE
SINGLE FAMILY

IMMANUEL
LUTHERAN

CHURCH

BETHANY BIBLE
CHAPEL

 PROF. OFFICES /
PROF. SERVICES

WHISPERING PINES
TOWNHOMES

R.In/
R.Out

PR
IV

ATE
 D

RIV
E N

PRIVATE DRIVE N

STREET J

ST
REE

T M

STREET A COURT A

ST
RE

ET
 B

SINGLE FAMILYTOWNHOME

SINGLE FAMILY

S.W.M.

PRAIRIE   VIEW   RD .

GREEN CREEK RD.

VIKING PL.

PARK

SINGLE FAMILY

SINGLE FAMILY

DR
AI

NA
GE

 W
AY

S.
W

.M
.S.W.M.

S.W.M.

CONNECTION TO
OFF SITE TRAIL

IMMANUEL
LUTHERAN

CHURCH

SIN
GLE

 FA
M

ILY

G
re

en
 C

re
ek

San. Easement

PRAIRIE   VIEW   RD .

STREET H

PR
AI

RI
E 

   
  S

T.

CEDAR   HEIG
HTS   DR.

VIKING   RD.

OST
ER

    
PK

W
Y. 

   E
XT

.

O
STER   PKW

Y.

GREENHILL   RD.

RO
W

N
D 

   
ST

.
RO

W
N

D 
   

   
 S

T.

CEDAR
HEIG

HTS  DR.

STREET K
STREET C

STREET H

STREET F

ST
RE

ET
 G

STREET E

STREET L
STREET J

ST
REE

T M

PROPOSED
RE-ALIGNMENT OF
HUNTINGTON RD.

3.5 ac.
ST

REE
T I

ST
REE

T D

PR
IV

ATE
 D

RIV
E N

PRIVATE DRIVE N

STREET J

ST
REE

T M

STREET A COURT A

ST
RE

ET
 B

SINGLE FAMILYTOWNHOME

SINGLE FAMILY

S.W.M.

PRAIRIE   VIEW   RD .

GREEN CREEK RD.

VIKING PL.

PARK

SINGLE FAMILY

SINGLE FAMILY

DR
AI

NA
GE

 W
AY

S.
W

.M
.S.W.M.

S.W.M.

CONNECTION TO
OFF SITE TRAIL

IMMANUEL
LUTHERAN

CHURCH

SIN
GLE

 FA
M

ILY

G
re

en
 C

re
ek

San. Easement

PRAIRIE   VIEW   RD .

STREET H

PR
AI

RI
E 

   
  S

T.

CEDAR   HEIG
HTS   DR.

VIKING   RD.

OST
ER

    
PK

W
Y. 

   E
XT

.

O
STER   PKW

Y.

GREENHILL   RD.

RO
W

N
D 

   
ST

.
RO

W
N

D 
   

   
 S

T.

CEDAR
HEIG

HTS  DR.

STREET K
STREET C

STREET H

STREET F

ST
RE

ET
 G

STREET E

STREET L
STREET J

ST
REE

T M

PROPOSED
RE-ALIGNMENT OF
HUNTINGTON RD.

3.5 ac.
ST

REE
T I

ST
REE

T D

PR
IV

ATE
 D

RIV
E N

PRIVATE DRIVE N

STREET J

ST
REE

T M

STREET A COURT A

ST
RE

ET
 B

SINGLE FAMILYTOWNHOME

SINGLE FAMILY

S.W.M.

PRAIRIE   VIEW   RD .

GREEN CREEK RD.

VIKING PL.

PARK

SINGLE FAMILY

SINGLE FAMILY

DR
AI

NA
GE

 W
AY

S.
W

.M
.S.W.M.

S.W.M.

CONNECTION TO
OFF SITE TRAIL

IMMANUEL
LUTHERAN

CHURCH

SIN
GLE

 FA
M

ILY

G
re

en
 C

re
ek

San. Easement

PRAIRIE   VIEW   RD .

STREET H

PR
AI

RI
E 

   
  S

T.

CEDAR   HEIG
HTS   DR.

VIKING   RD.

OST
ER

    
PK

W
Y. 

   E
XT

.

O
STER   PKW

Y.

GREENHILL   RD.

RO
W

N
D 

   
ST

.
RO

W
N

D 
   

   
 S

T.

CEDAR
HEIG

HTS  DR.

STREET K
STREET C

STREET H

STREET F

ST
RE

ET
 G

STREET E

STREET L
STREET J

ST
REE

T M

PROPOSED
RE-ALIGNMENT OF
HUNTINGTON RD.

3.5 ac.
ST

REE
T I

ST
REE

T D

8

12

10

9

1099

7

6

14

11

11

7

11

10

9

9 10

8

10

7

7

10

11

8

8

6 7 9

9

14

9

7

9

8

5

6

9

9

9

12
9

9

PR
IV

ATE
 D

RIV
E N

PRIVATE DRIVE N

STREET J

ST
REE

T M

STREET A COURT A

ST
RE

ET
 B

SINGLE FAMILYTOWNHOME

SINGLE FAMILY

S.W.M.

PRAIRIE   VIEW   RD .

GREEN CREEK RD.

VIKING PL.

PARK

SINGLE FAMILY

SINGLE FAMILY

DR
AI

NA
GE

 W
AY

S.
W

.M
.S.W.M.

S.W.M.

CONNECTION TO
OFF SITE TRAIL

IMMANUEL
LUTHERAN

CHURCH

SIN
GLE

 FA
M

ILY

G
re

en
 C

re
ek

San. Easement

PRAIRIE   VIEW   RD .

STREET H

PR
AI

RI
E 

   
  S

T.

CEDAR   HEIG
HTS   DR.

VIKING   RD.

OST
ER

    
PK

W
Y. 

   E
XT

.

O
STER   PKW

Y.

GREENHILL   RD.

RO
W

N
D 

   
ST

.
RO

W
N

D 
   

   
 S

T.

CEDAR
HEIG

HTS  DR.

STREET K
STREET C

STREET H

STREET F

ST
RE

ET
 G

STREET E

STREET L
STREET J

ST
REE

T M

PROPOSED
RE-ALIGNMENT OF
HUNTINGTON RD.

3.5 ac.
ST

REE
T I

ST
REE

T D

30
9.

00
1_

PD
P0

6

126 S. Main Street

p: 630 551-3355
Oswego, IL 60543

f: 630 551-3639
schoppedesign.net

North

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 S

ch
op

pe
 D

es
ig

n 
A

ss
oc

ia
te

s, 
In

c.
 2

02
0

D
IR

: P
:\3

09
\3

09
.0

01
\D

W
G

S\
3.

 P
R

EL
IM

 P
LA

N
S\

PD
P\

D
W

G
\3

09
.0

01
_P

D
P0

6.
dw

g

PINNACLE PRAIRIE EAST CONCEPT PLAN
Prepared
By:

Prepared
For:

Cedar Falls, Iowa

Oster Partners
Date: July 30, 2020

Scale: 1" = 200'

Rev.: Mar. 8, 2021

Graphic Scale0'

100' 400' 800'

200'

MULTI FAMILY
NEIGHBORHOOD

COMMERCIAL

FEMA 100 YEAR FLOODPLAIN
(PRELIMINARY)

FEMA 500 YEAR FLOODPLAIN
(PRELIMINARY)

FEMA 100 YEAR FLOODPLAIN
(EFFECTIVE)

PROPOSED VIKING
ROAD BIKE TRAIL

PINNACLE PRAIRIE
TRAIL SYSTEM

PROPOSED CEDAR HEIGHTS
RD. BIKE TRAIL

NOTE:

STREETS AND LOT LAYOUTS MAY NEED TO
BE ADJUSTED TO ENSURE THAT NEW HOMES
ARE NOT LOCATED IN THE FLOODPLAIN

34

Item 5.



BIKE TRAIL

Townhome

GENERAL SITE DATA & KEY
Residential UseNon-Residential Use

Single Family

Multi-Family

Institutional

Water Tower Site

Commercial

Commercial / Office

Mixed Use

S.W.M. (Storm Water Management) Parks and Open Space
Common Area Use

Mixed Use Commercial

Mixed Use Multi-Family

Ac.

Ac.

Ac.

Ac.

Ac.

Ac.

Ac.

12.8

5.0

21.2

43.6

86.3

5.9

28.6

Ac.134.4

Ac.32.9

Ac.19.9

Ac.69.4 Ac.14.2

Office / Multi-Family Ac.7.0

*Included in "Mixed Use" total acreage

*Included in "Mixed Use" total acreage

Western Home Ac.103.0

Professional Services / Professional Offices Ac.62.4

Mixed Use Office Ac.51.8
*Included in "Mixed Use" total acreage Municipal Use

ACCESS POINTS

All Access Points are
full access unless noted
with "R.In/R.Out" for
Right in/Right out.

8.20 Miles of Trails
43,295 Linear Feet

R.O.W. (Dedicated Right of Ways) Ac.48.9

Commercial - Zoned HWY-1 Ac.64.4

Western Home - Zoned R-3 Ac.43.5

NOTE: All uses are zoned MU
unless otherwise noted.Parks, Open Space & S.W.M. - Zoned R-3 Ac.3.6

R.O.W. - Zoned HWY-1 Ac.4.5

S.W.M. - Zoned HWY-1 Ac.1.2

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 S

ch
op

pe
 D

es
ig

n 
A

ss
oc

ia
te

s, 
In

c.
 2

01
4

D
IR

: P
:\3

09
\3

09
.0

01
\D

W
G

S\
2.

 C
O

N
C

EP
T 

PL
A

N
S\

C
D

P\
D

W
G

\3
09

.0
01

_M
P1

6.
dw

g

Date: Apr. 9, 2015
Scale: 1" = 300'

Rev.: Mar. 8, 2021

30
9.

00
1_

M
P1

6

126 S. Main Street

p: 630 551-3355
Oswego, IL 60543

f: 630 551-3639
schoppedesign.netGraphic Scale0'

150' 600' 1200'

300'

North MASTER  PLAN

Prepared
By:

Prepared
For:

Cedar Falls, Iowa

Oster Partners

WAL-MART

MENARDS

COMMERCIAL  / OFFICE
              15.9 AC.

WATER
TOWER

5 AC.

COMMERCIAL / OFFICE
OR

MULTI-FAMILY
18.1 AC.

TOWNHOME
21.3 AC.

COMMERCIAL
OR

MULTI-FAMILY
14.0 AC.

OFFICE / MULTI-FAMILY
7.0 AC.

IMMANUEL
LUTHERAN

CHURCH
3.1 AC.

SINGLE FAMILY
OR

MULTI-FAMILY
18.1 AC.

 PROFESSIONAL OFFICES /
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

TRACT C
OR

TOWNHOME
19.9 AC.

 PROFESSIONAL OFFICES /
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

TRACT A
20.1 AC.

MULTI-FAMILY
(UNDER

CONTRACT)
7.9 AC.

COMMERCIAL
25.6 AC.

FARM & FLEET

WESTERN HOME
COMMUNITIES

146.5 AC.

HEARTLAND
VINEYARD
CHURCH

 PROFESSIONAL OFFICES /
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

1.9 AC.

MULTI-FAMILY
22.6 AC.

S.W.M.
8.7 AC.

BIOLIFE

S.W.M.
10.4 AC.

COMMERCIAL / OFFICE
9.6   AC.

S.W.M.
17.2 AC.

COMM.
2.4 AC.S.W.M.

1.0 AC.

 PROFESSIONAL OFFICES /
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

TRACT B
OR

TOWNHOME
17.2 AC.

FULL
ACCESS

COMM.   4.8 AC.

COMMERCIAL
5.9 AC.

TOWNHOME  1.6 AC.

SINGLE FAMILY
15.8 AC.

MIXED   USE
86.3 AC.

SINGLE FAMILY
8.3 AC.

WHISPERING PINES
TOWNHOME

10 AC.

COMMERCIAL
38.8 AC.

CONNECTION TO
OFF SITE TRAIL

CONNECTION TO
OFF SITE TRAIL

DISCOUNT TIRE

BETHANY BIBLE
CHAPEL
7.2 AC.

MULTI-FAMILY
6.0 AC.

ARROWHEAD
MEDICAL CENTER

LOCKARD

MIDWEST
ONE BANK

PARK
3.5 AC.

PARK
3.6 AC.

S.W.M.
            1.2 AC.

R.In/
R.Out

R.In/
R.Out

R.In/
R.Out

R.In/
R.Out

R.In/
R.Out

SINGLE FAMILY
92.2 AC.

S.W.M. 2.0 AC.

CONNECTION TO
EXISTING BIKE TRAIL

CONNECTION TO
EXISTING MAIN
STREET BIKE TRAIL

CONNECTION TO
EXISTING MAIN
STREET BIKE TRAIL

S.W.M.
18.5 AC.

PARK
0.8 AC.

S.W.M.
0.6 AC.

PARK
2.6 AC.

S.W.M.
0.7 AC.

S.W.M.
1.0 AC.

R.In/
R.Out

R.In/
R.Out

R.In/
R.Out

R.In/
R.Out

PARK
1.5 AC.

 PROF. OFFICES /
PROF. SERVICES

3.3 AC.

MULTI-FAMILY
12.0 AC.

IMMANUEL
LUTHERAN

CHURCH
2.5 AC.

S.W.M.
10.3 AC.

35

Item 5.



G e n e r a l  D e s i g n  G u i d e l i n e s                 
C e d a r  F a l l s ,  I o w a M a r c h  8 ,  2 0 2 1

D a t e :

36

Item 5.



C o n t e n t s         
C e d a r  F a l l s ,  I o w a M a r c h  8 ,  2 0 2 1

D a t e :

I. THE VISION
Concept Plan ............................................................... 1

II. THE COMMUNITY GATEWAY
Key Map.............................................................................. 2
Gateways ............................................................................. 3

III. THE PRAIRIE BUSINESS PARK
Key Map.............................................................................. 4
Business Park Uses ............................................................. 5
Buildings ............................................................................. 5
Building Siting .................................................................... 5
Parking Lots ........................................................................ 5
Lighting ............................................................................... 6
Landscape ........................................................................... 7
Signage ................................................................................ 7
Common Area Association ................................................. 7

IV. THE PRAIRIE COMMERCIAL DISTRICT
Key Map.............................................................................. 8
Commercial District Uses ................................................... 9
Buildings ............................................................................. 9
Building Siting .................................................................... 9
Parking Lots ........................................................................ 9
Lighting ............................................................................. 10
Landscape ..........................................................................11
Signage ...............................................................................11
Common Area Association ................................................11

V. THE VILLAGES
Key Map............................................................................ 12
Single-Family .................................................................... 13
Attached Single Family .....................................................14
Multi-Family ..................................................................... 15
Signage ...............................................................................16
Parks and Pathways............................................................16
Common Area Association ................................................16

VI. WESTERN HOME
Key Map.............................................................................17
Applicability ......................................................................18
Buildings ............................................................................18
Landscape ..........................................................................18
Signage ...............................................................................18
Pathways ............................................................................18
Common Area Association ................................................18

VII. THE SUBMITTAL AND REVIEW PROCESS
Review and Submittal Process ......................................... 19
Approval Process .............................................................. 19

APPENDIX
Deciduous Trees ................................................................ 20
Evergreen Trees / Shrubs .................................................. 20
Ornamental Trees ..............................................................21
Deciduous Shrubs ..............................................................21
Perennials / Grasses .......................................................... 22

CREDITS ....................................................................................... 23

37

Item 5.



I

C e d a r  F a l l s ,  I o w a M a r h c  8 ,  2 0 2 1
D a t e :

T h e  V i s i o n         

THE VISION FOR PINNACLE PRAIRIE BEGAN AS THE DREAM 
of  Merrill J. Oster, whose global financial information and agribusiness 
companies were launched from Main Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, a street 
he frequented as a farm boy. A fifth-generation Oster, Merrill saw the 
opportunity to create a new type of community, one that drew on his 
heritage and love for Cedar Falls. He wanted to create a unified community 
that will be developed in harmony with the land and wildlife; to work with 
the landform, which contains the highest point in Blackhawk County; to 
create a unique community in which to live, work, shop, play and raise a 
family. 

THE VISION IS BASED ON THE DESIRE to integrate the natural 
environment, and interweave it with the built  environment through 
landscape, trails, the use of native plants and naturally occurring colors.  
From the time visitors or future residents enter through the gateways and 
pass through the Business and Retail Cores and widely varied residential 
neighborhoods, they will perceive a unified, harmonious community in 
touch with the land and embracing the future.

HOW WILL THE VISION BE REALIZED? The entry experience will 
be accentuated throughout the landscape by using monumental signage 
and natural areas filled with native prairie. The rich color palette will be 
drawn from the natural environment: the colors of the soils and plants, the 
yellows, blues, reds, and browns of the clay, and the varying shades of 
greens and browns from the crops, grasses, and trees.

THE LANDSCAPE WILL BE DESIGNED using ornamental grasses and 
other similar plants, as well as naturally occurring fieldstone and limestone. 
Appropriate open space elements for active play and passive contemplative 
areas will be integrated into the overall design. By connecting the built and 
natural environments with a trail system, the visitor and resident alike will 
have access to areas that will provide solitude and spiritual restoration 
with color and elements to attract wildlife.

THE ARCHITECTURAL CHARACTER OF THE COMMUNITY 
will emphasize a pleasing visual environment achieved by breaking up 
rooflines and large facades through architectural movement, and varying 
textures while minimizing the negative impact of large expanses of 
featureless walls.  A system of cohesive signage will be implemented that 
is harmonious between the various uses and visually consistent elements.  
The size and visual prominence of parking lots will be de-emphasized by 
encouraging, when practical by users, placement to the rear of the buildings 
away from main streets, as well as providing adequate landscape islands 
and plantings for visual and general cooling effects.  Parking lots will be 
unified with the rest of the development through the use of landscape, 
signage, and a lighting system scaled to its intended use, whether for 
parking or for streets.

TAKEN TOGETHER, these elements will create a community that is fresh, 
vital, and brimming with the promise envisioned in Merrill Oster’s original 
vision. This community will be a source of pride for future generations of 
Cedar Falls residents, a place that they call HOME.

38

Item 5.



BIKE TRAIL

Townhome

GENERAL SITE DATA & KEY
Residential UseNon-Residential Use

Single Family

Multi-Family

Institutional

Water Tower Site

Commercial

Commercial / Office

Mixed Use

S.W.M. (Storm Water Management) Parks and Open Space
Common Area Use

Mixed Use Commercial

Mixed Use Multi-Family

Ac.

Ac.

Ac.

Ac.

Ac.

Ac.

Ac.

12.8

5.0

21.2

43.6

86.3

5.9

28.6

Ac.134.4

Ac.32.9

Ac.19.9

Ac.69.4 Ac.14.2

Office / Multi-Family Ac.7.0

*Included in "Mixed Use" total acreage

*Included in "Mixed Use" total acreage

Western Home Ac.103.0

Professional Services / Professional Offices Ac.62.4

Mixed Use Office Ac.51.8
*Included in "Mixed Use" total acreage Municipal Use

ACCESS POINTS

All Access Points are
full access unless noted
with "R.In/R.Out" for
Right in/Right out.

8.20 Miles of Trails
43,295 Linear Feet

R.O.W. (Dedicated Right of Ways) Ac.48.9

Commercial - Zoned HWY-1 Ac.64.4

Western Home - Zoned R-3 Ac.43.5

NOTE: All uses are zoned MU
unless otherwise noted.Parks, Open Space & S.W.M. - Zoned R-3 Ac.3.6

R.O.W. - Zoned HWY-1 Ac.4.5

S.W.M. - Zoned HWY-1 Ac.1.2

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 S

ch
op

pe
 D

es
ig

n 
A

ss
oc

ia
te

s, 
In

c.
 2

01
4

D
IR

: P
:\3

09
\3

09
.0

01
\D

W
G

S\
2.

 C
O

N
C

EP
T 

PL
A

N
S\

C
D

P\
D

W
G

\3
09

.0
01

_M
P1

6.
dw

g

Date: Apr. 9, 2015
Scale: 1" = 300'

Rev.: Mar. 8, 2021

30
9.

00
1_

M
P1

6

126 S. Main Street

p: 630 551-3355
Oswego, IL 60543

f: 630 551-3639
schoppedesign.netGraphic Scale0'

150' 600' 1200'

300'

North MASTER  PLAN

Prepared
By:

Prepared
For:

Cedar Falls, Iowa

Oster Partners

WAL-MART

MENARDS

COMMERCIAL  / OFFICE
              15.9 AC.

WATER
TOWER

5 AC.

COMMERCIAL / OFFICE
OR

MULTI-FAMILY
18.1 AC.

TOWNHOME
21.3 AC.

COMMERCIAL
OR

MULTI-FAMILY
14.0 AC.

OFFICE / MULTI-FAMILY
7.0 AC.

IMMANUEL
LUTHERAN

CHURCH
3.1 AC.

SINGLE FAMILY
OR

MULTI-FAMILY
18.1 AC.

 PROFESSIONAL OFFICES /
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

TRACT C
OR

TOWNHOME
19.9 AC.

 PROFESSIONAL OFFICES /
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

TRACT A
20.1 AC.

MULTI-FAMILY
(UNDER

CONTRACT)
7.9 AC.

COMMERCIAL
25.6 AC.

FARM & FLEET

WESTERN HOME
COMMUNITIES

146.5 AC.

HEARTLAND
VINEYARD
CHURCH

 PROFESSIONAL OFFICES /
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

1.9 AC.

MULTI-FAMILY
22.6 AC.

S.W.M.
8.7 AC.

BIOLIFE

S.W.M.
10.4 AC.

COMMERCIAL / OFFICE
9.6   AC.

S.W.M.
17.2 AC.

COMM.
2.4 AC.S.W.M.

1.0 AC.

 PROFESSIONAL OFFICES /
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

TRACT B
OR

TOWNHOME
17.2 AC.

FULL
ACCESS

COMM.   4.8 AC.

COMMERCIAL
5.9 AC.

TOWNHOME  1.6 AC.

SINGLE FAMILY
15.8 AC.

MIXED   USE
86.3 AC.

SINGLE FAMILY
8.3 AC.

WHISPERING PINES
TOWNHOME

10 AC.

COMMERCIAL
38.8 AC.

CONNECTION TO
OFF SITE TRAIL

CONNECTION TO
OFF SITE TRAIL

DISCOUNT TIRE

BETHANY BIBLE
CHAPEL
7.2 AC.

MULTI-FAMILY
6.0 AC.

ARROWHEAD
MEDICAL CENTER

LOCKARD

MIDWEST
ONE BANK

PARK
3.5 AC.

PARK
3.6 AC.

S.W.M.
            1.2 AC.

R.In/
R.Out

R.In/
R.Out

R.In/
R.Out

R.In/
R.Out

R.In/
R.Out

SINGLE FAMILY
92.2 AC.

S.W.M. 2.0 AC.

CONNECTION TO
EXISTING BIKE TRAIL

CONNECTION TO
EXISTING MAIN
STREET BIKE TRAIL

CONNECTION TO
EXISTING MAIN
STREET BIKE TRAIL

S.W.M.
18.5 AC.

PARK
0.8 AC.

S.W.M.
0.6 AC.

PARK
2.6 AC.

S.W.M.
0.7 AC.

S.W.M.
1.0 AC.

R.In/
R.Out

R.In/
R.Out

R.In/
R.Out

R.In/
R.Out

PARK
1.5 AC.

 PROF. OFFICES /
PROF. SERVICES

3.3 AC.

MULTI-FAMILY
12.0 AC.

IMMANUEL
LUTHERAN

CHURCH
2.5 AC.

S.W.M.
10.3 AC.

2

39

Item 5.



II

C e d a r  F a l l s ,  I o w a M a r h c  8 ,  2 0 2 1
D a t e :

T h e  C o m m u n i t y  G a t e w a y         

GATEWAYS SERVE AS AN ENTRANCE OR MEANS OF ACCESS. 

The gateways of Pinnacle Prairie mark the signed entrances within your 

unique community, the place where you live, work, play learn, shop and 

most importantly raise your family.   The use of native Iowa limestone 

combined with native plants, create a grand statement to bring the 

natural landscape to your door and welcome you home.

40

Item 5.



2

C e d a r  F a l l s ,  I o w a M a r c h  8 ,  2 0 2 1
D a t e :

T h e  C o m m u n i t y  G a t e w a y  -  K e y  M a p         

Primary 
Gateway

Secondary 
Gateway

Primary 
Gateway

Secondary 
Gateway

41

Item 5.



3

C e d a r  F a l l s ,  I o w a M a r c h  8 ,  2 0 2 1
D a t e :

T h e  C o m m u n i t y  G a t e w a y         

1. Prairie Parkway entry sign

2. Typical Oster Parkway section

3. Typical Prairie View Rd. section 

GATEWAYS:
The gateways are designed 
using naturally occurring 
Iowa limestone in large slabs. 
These will be used to create a 
limestone outcrop onto which 
the graphics will be placed.

Landscape materials will 
primarily be ornamental and 
native grasses to enhance the 
feeling that Pinnacle Prairie 
once was part of the multi-state 
tallgrass prairie that covered 
the entire state of Iowa. Plants 
like Big Bluestem (also called 
Turkey’s foot), Little Bluestem, 
Cordgrass, Coneflower and 
Cardinal Flower that once 
dominated the landscape will 
dominate the “Gateway.”

1

2

3

42

Item 5.



III

C e d a r  F a l l s ,  I o w a M a r h c  8 ,  2 0 2 1
D a t e :

T h e  P r a i r i e  B u s i n e s s  P a r k         

IS A LOCATION CLOSE TO A WIDE VARIETY OF HOUSING   

types within walking distance of the office on your wish list?  Does 

having stores, restaurants and parks within a short stroll get your 

attention?  Concerned about the ability to grow your business someday?  

Will the telecommunication infrastructure in your business community 

keep up with your business needs?  These questions are part of any 

sound business location strategy.  At Pinnacle Prairie, we have the 

answers your business needs.  

43

Item 5.



4

C e d a r  F a l l s ,  I o w a M a r c h  8 ,  2 0 2 1
D a t e :

T h e  P r a i r i e  B u s i n e s s  P a r k  -  K e y  M a p         

The Prair ie  Business
Park

44

Item 5.



5

C e d a r  F a l l s ,  I o w a M a r c h  8 ,  2 0 2 1
D a t e :

T h e  P r a i r i e  B u s i n e s s  P a r k         

PRAIRIE BUSINESS PARK 
USES
1. General Office

Corporate
Multi-story Rental / Condo
Individual users-Architects, 
Attorneys, etc.

2. Office / Research  
3. Corporate Campus
4. Neighborhood Commercial

Grocery Store
Cleaner
Bakery
Card Shop  

5. Convenience Store
6. Gas Station
7. Medical / Dental
8. Financial
9. Ancillary Uses

Drugstore
Medical Supplies

10. Restaurant at appropriate 
locations

11. Multi-Family Residential
(For Multi-Family design 
standards, see page 13, The 
Villages - Multi-Family)

12. Townhomes
(For Townhome design 
standards, see page 12, The 
Villages - Attached Single-
Family)

BUILDINGS
Buildings will be of brick or 
naturally occurring stone to 
accentuate the prairie character of 
the Park.  

The architectural design of the 
buildings located in the 3.3 acre 
Professional Offices / Professional 
Services area at the southwest 
corner of Greenhill Rd. and Oster 
Parkway will use the existing 
nearby residential styles as the 
basis for their design on all side of 
the buildings

1. Brick will be as manufactured 
by: Glen-Gery Brick or equal. 

2. Stone for bases and plinths 
shall be Anamosa limestone or 
equal.

3. Windows shall be Bronze or 
Champagne to blend with the 
color choice of the brick. 

BUILDING SITING
1. Buildings will be sited on the 

lot so that the primary building 
elevation is oriented to the 
street, with primary parking 
facilities encouraged in the rear 
and softened by landscaping 
or berming. This is intended to 
present the natural landscape to 
the visitor rather than a parking 
lot.

2. Buildings are to take advantage 
of the terrain rather than 
creating a flat plane. This may 
mean that a building may 
appear as a one-story structure 
along the street, but may be 
two stories in the rear, with the 
main parking lot entry at the 
lower level.

3. Buildings on corner lots will be 

placed at corner setbacks with 
parking encouraged to the rear.

PRIMARY PARKING LOTS
1. Primary parking lot placement 

will be encouraged to the 
rear of the building and will 
contain landscape islands 
for the placement of shade 
trees and lighting.  If primary 
parking lots are located in the 
front, enhanced landscaping 
will be required around the 
perimeter.  Parking lot islands 
shall be a minimum of 10’ 
from back of curb to back of 
curb.

2. Number of parking spaces will 
be per Cedar Falls ordinance 
for the appropriate use.

3. Landscape plantings shall  
provide for shade and 
ornamental trees, deciduous 
and evergreen shrubs and 
evergreen trees along the 
periphery.    

4. Where parking lots for 
the Business Center abut 
residential uses, a minimum 
48” screen planting is required 
at installation.  Plantings 
shall reach a maximum of 
6’ at maturity, and can be 
deciduous, evergreen or a 
mix and shall be upright in 
growth habit so as to minimize 
maintenance.

1-5.  Typical Architecture

     

5

Pinnacle
Prairie

HVAC behind roof

Anamosa limestone
Brick

1

4

2 3

45

Item 5.



6

C e d a r  F a l l s ,  I o w a M a r c h  8 ,  2 0 2 1
D a t e :

T h e  P r a i r i e  B u s i n e s s  P a r k  -  L i g h t i n g         

Notes:
 - The lighting fixtures illustrated are to be used in the undeveloped non-residential areas as depicted.
 - All light poles shall be the same or shorter than the height of the building to which they are accessory.

PRAIRIE BUSINESS PARK  (West of Prairie Parkway)

PRAIRIE BUSINESS PARK  (East of Prairie Parkway)
and PRAIRIE COMMERCIAL DISTRICT

Green Lantern Box DownlightGreen Lantern Hanging 
Lantern

Bronze/Brown or Green Lantern 
pole mounted

Bronze/Brown or Green 
Box Downlight LED

Bronze/Brown or Green 
Box Downlight

46

Item 5.



7

C e d a r  F a l l s ,  I o w a M a r c h  8 ,  2 0 2 1
D a t e :

T h e  P r a i r i e  B u s i n e s s  P a r k         

Graphics will match monument 
sign and be no more than 18” in 
height.

COMMON AREA 
ASSOCIATION
Each site owner will be a member 
of the Business Center Association 
as well and the overall Master 
Pinnacle Prairie Association for 
the maintenance of common areas, 
stormwater management basins, 
gateways and common open space.

LANDSCAPE
The intent of the landscape is to set 
Pinnacle Prairie apart from other 
developments and to bring the built 
environment into harmony with the 
natural environment.  Therefore, 
materials to be used will include:
1. Hardscape

- Retaining or decorative 
walls will be constructed of 
naturally occurring fieldstone 
or quarried limestone in 
color and texture to blend 
with the building.

 - Decorative paving will be 
clay brick also in colors to 
blend the structure into the 
landscape.

2. Irrigation required in all front 
yards to ensure that plant 
material thrives along all major 
streets.

3. Plant Types - Shade trees, 
ornamental trees, evergreen 
trees, deciduous and evergreen 
shrubs, perennials and grasses 
shall be ornamental and native 
species capable of thriving in 
USDA Plant Hardiness Zones 
4a and 5b.
 - Street trees: all streets 

will have parkway trees at 
50’ on center spacing and 
minimum 2.5” caliper size at 
installation.

 - Shade trees: shall be 2.5”- 
4”caliper with no more than 
50% of the trees in any one 
caliper size.

 - Ornamental trees: 
Ornamental trees shall vary 
in height from 6’-10’ and 
generally shall be used in 
multi-stem form.

 - Evergreen trees/shrubs:   
Evergreens shall be a mix 
of 6’-10’ in height at time 
of installation with no more 
than 50% of any one size.  
Shrubs shall be a minimum 
of 30” in height or spread 
depending on species.

 - Deciduous shrubs: shrubs 
shall be a minimum 24” in 
height at time of planting.

 - Perennials / grasses: these 
are the preferred plant 
for the landscape, as they 
require little maintenance 
or irrigation. Plantings 
shall be minimum of 1/2 
gallon containers at time of 
installation and spaced 18” 
on center.  

4. Planting Quantities – In 
keeping with the vision to 
distinguish Pinnacle Prairie 
from other developments, 
planting quantities shall 
generally be 10-15% greater 
than that required by City 
ordinances.

SIGNAGE
Monument signs shall be of the 
size detailed herein and shall 
be made of native limestone or 
equal. Corporate logos may be 
incorporated into the sign face and 
lettering shall be no more than 
24” in height unless the building 
size exceeds 10,000 square feet. 
In this case the lettering size will 
be determined by the Cedar Falls 
ordinance.

Secondary signage will be allowed 
at the main entry of the building. 

1. Typical site and landscape plan

2. Typical identity monument

3. Character of parking area 
landscape screening 

    

3

2

9’

8”

4’

1’

3’

1

47

Item 5.



IV

C e d a r  F a l l s ,  I o w a M a r h c  8 ,  2 0 2 1
D a t e :

T h e  P r a i r i e  C o m m e r c i a l  D i s t r i c t         

CONVENIENT, ACCESSIBLE AND DIVERSE. The Pinnacle Prairie 

Commercial District will provide for regional retail shopping areas.  

Residents of Pinnacle Prairie will benefit from the nearby opportunity to 

buy groceries, clothes, home improvement, and recreational goods.

48

Item 5.



8

C e d a r  F a l l s ,  I o w a M a r c h  8 ,  2 0 2 1
D a t e :

T h e  P r a i r i e  C o m m e r c i a l  D i s t r i c t  -  K e y  M a p         

The Prair ie  Commercial 
Distr ict

49

Item 5.



9

C e d a r  F a l l s ,  I o w a M a r c h  8 ,  2 0 2 1
D a t e :

T h e  P r a i r i e  C o m m e r c i a l  D i s t r i c t         

4

BUILDING SITING
1. Buildings within the 

Commercial Zoned   
HWY-1 areas will be sited to 
accentuate their prominence 
along Viking Road while 
taking advantage of the 
natural terrain and vistas when 
possible. Landscaping of these 
uses should emphasize natural 
and flowing movements and 
are not intended to block the 
view from Viking Road.

2. Buildings within the 
Commercial, Professional 
Services and Office areas will 
be sited on the lot so that the 
primary building elevation 
is oriented to the street, with 
primary parking facilities 
encouraged in the rear and 
softened by landscaping or 
berming. This is intended to 
present the natural landscape 
to the visitor rather than a 
parking lot.

3. The siting of buildings within 
the Professional Services and 
Office should take advantage 
of the terrain rather than 
creating a flat plane. As an 
example, a building may 
appear as a one-story structure 
along the street, but may be 
two stories in the rear, with the 
main parking lot entry at the 
lower level or vice versa.

PARKING LOTS
1. Parking lot placement within 

the Commercial Zoned HWY-
1 areas will be allowed in the 
front of the building and will 
contain landscape islands for 
the placement of shade trees 

1-4.   Typical Architectural style   PRAIRIE COMMERCIAL 
DISTRICT USES
1. Regional Commercial

 - Shopping Centers
 - Hotels / Motels
 - Restaurants
 - Service Stations
 - Retail Uses
 - Office / Research
 - Corporate Campus

2. Neighborhood Commercial
 - Grocery Store
 - Cleaner
 - Bakery
 - Card Shop
 - Convenience Store
 - Gas Station
 - Multi-family Residential

(For Multi-Family design 
standards, see page 13, The 
Villages - Multi-Family)

BUILDINGS
Buildings and structures should be 
built primarily of brick, naturally 
occurring fieldstone or quarried 
limestone with colors, designs and 
patterns that highlight the natural 
color palette and textures of rural 
Iowa and the prairie character of 
the District while still allowing for 
corporate branding and theming to 
come through in the overall design.
1. Brick will be as manufactured 

by: Glen-Gery Brick or equal.
2. Stone for bases and plinths 

shall be Anamosa limestone or 
equal.

3. Cultured Stone or approved 
equal shall be allowed in leiu 
of natural stone & full brick.

4. Windows shall be Bronze or 
Champagne to blend with the 
color choice of the brick. 

and lighting, in accordance 
with City of Cedar Falls 
requirements.  

2. Parking lot placement within 
the Commercial, Professional 
Services and Office will be 
encouraged to the rear of the 
building and will contain 
landscape islands for the 
placement of shade trees and 
lighting.  

3. If primary parking lots are 
located in the front, enhanced 
landscaping will be required 
around the perimeter.  Parking 
lot islands shall be a minimum 
width of 10’ from back of curb 
to back of curb.

4. Number of parking spaces will 
be per Cedar Falls ordinance 
for the appropriate use.

5. Landscape plantings shall 
include shade and ornamental 
trees, deciduous and evergreen 
shrubs and evergreen trees 
along the periphery.    

6. Where parking lots for 
the Prairie Commercial 
District abut residential 
uses, a minimum 48” high 
screen planting is required 
at installation.  Plantings 
shall reach a maximum of 
6’ at maturity, and can be 
deciduous, evergreen or a 
mix and shall be upright in 
growth habit so as to minimize 
maintenance.

1

2 3

50

Item 5.



10

C e d a r  F a l l s ,  I o w a M a r c h  8 ,  2 0 2 1
D a t e :

T h e  P r a i r i e  C o m m e r c i a l  D i s t r i c t  -  L i g h t i n g         

Notes:
 - The lighting fixtures illustrated are to be used in the undeveloped non-residential areas as depicted.
 - All light poles shall be the same or shorter than the height of the building to which they are accessory.

PRAIRIE BUSINESS PARK  (West of Prairie Parkway)

PRAIRIE BUSINESS PARK  (East of Prairie Parkway)
and PRAIRIE COMMERCIAL DISTRICT

Green Lantern Box DownlightGreen Lantern Hanging 
Lantern

Bronze/Brown or Green Lantern 
pole mounted

Bronze/Brown or Green 
Box Downlight LED

Bronze/Brown or Green 
Box Downlight

51

Item 5.



11

C e d a r  F a l l s ,  I o w a M a r c h  8 ,  2 0 2 1
D a t e :

T h e  P r a i r i e  C o m m e r c i a l  D i s t r i c t         

multi-stem form.
 - Evergreen trees/shrubs:   

Evergreens shall be a mix 
of 6’-10’ in height at time 
of installation with no more 
than 50% of any one size.  
Shrubs shall be a minimum 
of 30” in height or spread 
depending on species.

 - Deciduous shrubs: shrubs 
shall be a minimum 24” in 
height at time of planting.

 - Perennials / grasses: these 
are the preferred plant 
for the landscape, as they 
require little maintenance 
or irrigation. Plantings 
shall be minimum of 1/2 
gallon containers at time 
of installation and spaced 
18” on center.  Planting 
Quantities – In keeping with 
the vision to distinguish 
Pinnacle Prairie from other 
developments, planting 
quantities shall generally 
be 10-15% greater than that 
required by City ordinances.

SIGNAGE
Monument signs shall be of the 
size detailed herein and shall be 
made of brick, naturally occurring 
fieldstone or quarried limestone 
designs and patterns that highlight 
the natural color palette and 
textures of rural Iowa the signs 
should reflect the prairie character 
of the District while still allowing 
for corporate branding and 
theming to come through in the 
overall design and to blend with 
the building. Corporate logos may 
be incorporated into the sign face, 
and lettering shall be no more than 

1-4. Site & Parking Lot 
Landscaping

LANDSCAPE
The intent of the landscape is to set 
Pinnacle Prairie apart from other 
developments and to bring the built 
environment into harmony with the 
natural environment.  Therefore, 
materials to be used will include:
1. Hardscape

- Retaining or decorative 
walls will be constructed of 
naturally occurring fieldstone 
or quarried limestone in 
color and texture to blend 
with the building.

 - Decorative paving will be 
clay brick also in colors to 
blend the structure into the 
landscape.

2. Irrigation required in all front 
yards to ensure that plant 
material thrives along all major 
streets.

3. Plant Types - Shade trees, 
ornamental trees, evergreen 
trees, deciduous and evergreen 
shrubs, perennials and grasses 
shall be ornamental and native 
species capable of thriving in 
USDA Plant Hardiness Zones 
4a and 5b.
 - Street trees: all streets will 

have parkway trees planted 
at the rate of 1 tree per 
80’ of street frontage and 
minimum 2.5” caliper size at 
installation.

 - Shade trees: shall be 2.5”- 
4”caliper with no more than 
50% of the trees in any one 
caliper size.

 - Ornamental trees: 
Ornamental trees shall vary 
in height from 6’-10’ and 
generally shall be used in 

24” in height unless the building 
size exceeds 10,000 square feet. 
In this case the lettering size will 
be determined by the Cedar Falls 
ordinance.

Secondary signage will be allowed 
at the main entry of the building. 
Graphics will match the monument 
sign and be no more than 18” in 
height.

COMMON AREA 
ASSOCIATION
Each site owner will be a member 
of the Business Center Association 
as well and the overall Master 
Pinnacle Prairie Association for 
the maintenance of common areas, 
stormwater management basins, 
gateways and common open space.

1

2

4

3

52

Item 5.



V

C e d a r  F a l l s ,  I o w a M a r h c  8 ,  2 0 2 1
D a t e :

T h e  V i l l a g e s         

DIVERSE AND DISTINCTIVE LIFE STYLE OPPORTUNITIES 

will draw inspiration from Midwestern towns including that of Cedar 

Falls, where tree-lined streets, parks, traditional and contemporary 

architecture, and connecting sidewalks enhance the walkable character of 

the Community. Pinnacle Prairie will be a delightful blend of traditional 

neighborhood design and 21st century technology. Most of the diverse and 

distinctive homes and apartments will be less than a ten minute walk from 

shops, churches, medical care, parks and offices, all connected by the trail 

system. A wide variety of housing choices will accommodate everyone 

from singles to seniors, first-time buyers to empty nesters.

53

Item 5.



12

C e d a r  F a l l s ,  I o w a M a r c h  8 ,  2 0 2 1
D a t e :

T h e  V i l l a g e s  -  K e y  M a p         

The Vi l lages

54

Item 5.



13

C e d a r  F a l l s ,  I o w a M a r c h  8 ,  2 0 2 1
D a t e :

T h e  V i l l a g e s         

7. Landscape
 - Hardscape patios shall be 
brick or concrete

 - Wood decks shall be a 
natural color. 

 - Planting: Each single-family 
home shall have a minimum 
$2,500 landscape package. 
The package shall consist of 
one 2.5”caliper shade tree 
in the rear yard; one 7’H. 
ornamental or evergreen tree 
in the front yard and a mix 
of shrubs, perennials and 
grasses. 

 - Street trees: Street trees shall 
be a minimum of 2.5” caliper 
and shall be planted in the 
parkway at the rate of one 
(1) tree per lot. On corner 
lots, two (2) street trees per 
lot shall be required.

 - Perimeter: Where single-
family lots abut a community 
road, a minimum 10’ 
wide buffer planting will 
be provided. Buffer area 
shall include berming and 
planting. Berms shall be 
meandering and range in 
height from 2’-4’. Plantings 
shall be a mix of shade 
trees, ornamental and 
evergreen trees and shrubs 
and perennials. At time of 
planting, plants shall provide 
a minimum of 25% visual 
screen to the homes.

SINGLE FAMILY
The single-family neighborhoods 
will be a blend of traditional homes 
and contemporary design.  Each 
neighborhood will have a mix of 
lot sizes and architectural styles.  
1. Minimum single story home 

shall be 1,200SF.
2. Minimum two story home 

shall be 1,600SF with a 
minimum first floor of 800SF.

3. Sideyard sertback shall be 5’. 
All other setback requirements 
shall be per Cedar Falls 
ordinance

4. Fencing shall be per Cedar 
Falls ordinance. If chain link 
is used, it shall be black vinyl 
clad.

5. Garages that are separate 
from the main structure or 
attached by means of a garden 
room may have a second floor 
“granny flat” or work room 
with separate access.

6. Building Materials:
Exterior walls:
 - Siding; wood or vinyl   
clapboard

 - Brick; color range from red 
to brown and sand

 - Wood shingle
 - Native limestone
 - Hardi Plank
 - Cultured Stone

Roofing:
 - Composite shingles 30 year 
minimum

 - Wood shingles / shakes
 - Slate
 - Synthetic shake shingles
 - Metal roofing is not allowed

1. Entry Level Single Family

2. Entry Level Single Family

3. Move - Up Single Family 

4. Move - Up Single Family

5. Upper / Custom Single Family 

6. Upper / Custom Single Family

3 4

65

1 2

55

Item 5.



14

C e d a r  F a l l s ,  I o w a M a r c h  8 ,  2 0 2 1
D a t e :

T h e  V i l l a g e s         

ATTACHED SINGLE-FAMILY
The attached single-family 
neighborhoods will be a blend 
of traditional  town homes and 
alley loaded court homes. Each 
neighborhood can have a mix of 
unit types and may have a mix of 
traditional and alley loaded homes.
1. Minimum single story home 

shall be 1,050SF.
2. Minimum two story home 

shall be 1,250SF.
3. Setback requirements shall be 

per Cedar Falls ordinance
4. Building Materials:

Exterior walls:
 - Siding; wood or vinyl   
clapboard

 - Brick; color range from red 
to brown and sand

 - Wood shingle
 - Native limestone
 - Hardi Plank
 - Cultured Stone

Roofing:
 - Composite shingles 30 year 
minimum

 - Wood shingles / shakes
 - Slate
 - Synthetic shake shingles
 - Metal roofing is not allowed

5. Landscape
 - Hardscape patios shall be 
brick or concrete

 - Wood decks shall be a 
natural color. 

 - Planting: Each unit shall 
have a minimum $1,500 
landscape package.  Plants 
are encouraged to be native 
species or hybrids of native 
species.

 - Street trees: Street trees shall 

be a minimum of 2.5” caliper 
and shall be planted in the 
parkway at the rate outlined 
in Cedar Falls ordinances.

1. Alley loaded townhome style 
unit

2. Typical plan view showing alley 
loaded townhome style unit

3. Typical plan view showing 
traditional townhome style unit

4. Traditional townhome style 
unit 

1 2

3 4

STREET

ST
RE

ET

56

Item 5.



15

C e d a r  F a l l s ,  I o w a M a r c h  8 ,  2 0 2 1
D a t e :

T h e  V i l l a g e s         

MULTI-FAMILY
The multi-family neighborhoods 
may be a blend of rental and 
condominium units. Each 
neighborhood is intended to 
provide housing opportunities for 
those who do not wish to own a 
traditional home or town home or 
do not wish to purchase at their 
particular time in life. 
1. Minimum unit size shall be 

850SF.
2. Setback requirements shall be 

per Cedar Falls ordinances
3. Garages will be provided for 

minimum of 50% of all units. 
Garages may be internal to the 
main structure or in a separate 
location near the building.

4. Building Materials:
 - Exterior walls: 

 - Siding; wood or vinyl 
clapboard

 - Brick; color range from 
red to brown and sand

 - Stucco / plaster
 - Wood shingle
 - Native limestone
 - Cultured Stone or 

approved equal shall be 
allowed in leiu of natural 
stone & full brick.

 - Roofing:
 - Composite shingles 30-

year minimum
 - Wood shingles / shakes
 - Slate
 - Synthetic shake shingles
 - Metal roofing is not 

allowed.
6. Landscape

 - Hardscape patios shall be  
brick or concrete

 - Decks shall be cedar or 
redwood

 - Planting: Each unit shall 
have a minimum $1,000 
landscape package exclusive 
of sod or seed cost. Plants 
are encouraged to be native 
species of hybrids of native 
species. 

 - Street Trees: Street trees 
shall be a minimum of 2.5” 
caliper and shall be planted 
in the parkway at the rate 
of one (1) tree per 50’ of 
frontage.

 - Perimeter: Where multi-
family lots abut a community 
road, a minimum 10’ 
buffer planting area will be 
provided. Buffer will include 
berming and planting. Berms 
shall be meandering and 
range in height from 4’-8’. 
Plantings shall be a mix 
of shade trees, ornamental 
and evergreen trees, shrubs 
and perennials. At time of 
planting, plants shall provide 
a min. of 20% visual screen 
to the homes.

1

3

1. Typical 3-story multi-family 
units with underground parking

2. Typical 4-story multi-family 
units with underground parking

3. Typical 3-story multi-family 
units with at grade garage 
parking

4. Typical 3-story multi-family 
units with underground parking

5. Typical 3-story multi-family 
units with at grade garage 
parking

2

4

5

57

Item 5.



16

C e d a r  F a l l s ,  I o w a M a r c h  8 ,  2 0 2 1
D a t e :

T h e  V i l l a g e s         

SIGNAGE
Signage will be allowed for each 
neighborhood and may be located 
at each entry from a community 
road.

Graphics may contain a logo and 
text may be no more than 24” in 
height. 
   - Placement will be as shown 
     herein. 
   - Graphic fonts will be at
     purchaser’s discretion.
   - Advertising or other
     miscellaneous signage,
     except directional signs will not 
     be allowed.

Signs will be constructed in 
accordance with the  
accompanying design. Materials 
will be native Anamosa limestone 
to match the “Community 
Gateway” shown elsewhere in this 
document. 

PARKS AND PATHWAYS
Pinnacle Prairie will be served 
by two parks.  Each park will be 
developed with a tot lot, a sitting 
area with a 10’-12’ shelter, and 
benches.  A 6 foot pathway system 
will be developed throughout 
Pinnacle Prairie to provide bicycle 
and pedestrian connectivity 
between the various commercial 
and business uses, the open space 
amenities, and the neighborhoods 
of the project. 

COMMON AREA 
ASSOCIATION
Each single family, attached   
single family and multi-family 
neighborhood will have a 
homeowners association for the 
maintenance of common areas, 
monument signage and buffers. 
Each residential area will also 
be part of the overall Master 
Pinnacle Prairie Association for 
the maintenance of the gateways, 
medians in major streets, 
stormwater management basins 
and parks.

1

1. Typical residential 
neighborhood sign

2. Typical street section 

3. Typical neighborhood park 
showing trail connection

2

3

10’

6”

4’

12”

4’
Walk

12’ 
Parkway

14’
Drive Lane

14’
Drive Lane

12’
Parkway

4’
Walk

3” Rolled 
Curb
 

3” Rolled 
Curb

 

58

Item 5.



VI

C e d a r  F a l l s ,  I o w a M a r h c  8 ,  2 0 2 1
D a t e :

W e s t e r n  H o m e         

LIFE PROGRESSES WITH A SERIES OF CHANGES, with 

fulfillment sought at every stage.  The Western Home development offers 

a superior retirement community for all seniors with various lifestyle 

wants and needs.  From independent living housing choices to high 

quality senior care and continuing care options, Western Home provides 

another component of the unified and inclusive community envisioned 

for Pinnacle Prairie.

59

Item 5.



17

C e d a r  F a l l s ,  I o w a M a r c h  8 ,  2 0 2 1
D a t e :

W e s t e r n  H o m e  -  K e y  M a p         

The Western Home 
Community

60

Item 5.



18

C e d a r  F a l l s ,  I o w a M a r c h  8 ,  2 0 2 1
D a t e :

W e s t e r n  H o m e         

1. Typical residential 
neighborhood sign

2. Western Home Master Plan

LANDSCAPE
 - Hardscape patios shall be brick 
or concrete

 - Wood decks shall be a natural 
color. 

 - Planting: Each single-family 
home shall have a minimum 
$2,000 landscape package. The 
package shall consist of one 
2.5”caliper shade tree in the 
rear yard; one 7’H. ornamental 
or evergreen tree in the front 
yard and a mix of shrubs, 
perennials and grasses. Plants 
are encouraged to be native 
species or hybrids of native 
species.

 - Street trees: Street trees shall 
be a minimum of 2.5” caliper 
and shall be planted in the 
parkway at the rate of one (1) 
tree per lot. On corner lots, two 
(2) street trees per lot shall be 
required.

 - Perimeter: Where residential 
units abut Prairie Parkway, 
a minimum 10’ wide buffer 
planting will be provided. 
Buffer area shall include 
berming and planting. Berms 
shall be meandering and range 
in height from 2’-4’. Plantings 
shall be a mix of shade trees, 
ornamental and evergreen trees 
and shrubs and perennials. At 
time of planting, plants shall 
provide a minimum of 25% 
visual screen to the homes.

SIGNAGE
Signage will be allowed for each 
neighborhood and may be located 
at each entry from a community 
road.

2

APPLICABILITY
The guidelines and standards 
within Western Home section of 
the General Design Guidelines 
shall be applicable to any land that 
is within 100’ if Prairie Parkway.

BUILDINGS
Due to the importance of the 
Pinnacle Prairie frontage, all 
buildings will incorporate four 
sided architecture where the side 
and rear elevations of the homes or 
buildings will be of same quality of 
design and materials that are used 
on the front elevation.

1

10’

6”

4’

12”

Graphics may contain a logo and 
text may be no more than 24” in 
height. 

 - Placement will be as shown 
herein. 

 - Graphic fonts will be at 
purchaser’s discretion

 - Advertising or other 
miscellaneous signage, except 
directional signs will not be 
allowed.

Signs will be constructed in 
accordance with the  
accompanying design. Materials 
will be native Anamosa limestone 
to match the “Community 
Gateway” shown elsewhere in this 
document. 

PATHWAYS
A bike path will be developed 
through Western Home along 
Western Boulevard that will 
connect to the bike path along 
South Main Street and Prairie 
Parkway.  This bike path will 
provide bicycle and pedestrian 
connectivity between commercial 
uses, open space amenities and the 
neighborhoods of the project.

COMMON AREA 
ASSOCIATION
Western Home will be a member 
of the overall Master Pinnacle 
Prairie Association for the 
maintenance of common areas, 
stormwater management basins, 
gateways, common open space and 
parks.

100’

LIMITS OF 
APPLICABILITY

61

Item 5.



VII

C e d a r  F a l l s ,  I o w a M a r h c  8 ,  2 0 2 1
D a t e :

T h e  S u b m i t t a l  a n d  R e v i e w  P r o c e s s         

THE SUBMITTAL AND REVIEW PROCESS - The General Design 

Guidelines include an efficient and equitable review process that will be 

administered by the Declarant of Pinnacle Prairie.  The review process 

has been established pursuant to, and in accordance with, the Master 

Declaration, for the purpose of implementing the Design Guidelines.

62

Item 5.



19

C e d a r  F a l l s ,  I o w a M a r c h  8 ,  2 0 2 1
D a t e :

          

b. Lots
c. Setbacks
d. Common areas
e. Walks and bike paths

2. Landscape Plan including:
a. Location of buildings or 

lots, parking areas, walks 
and other paved surfaces

b. Quantity and locations of 
proposed trees, shrubs, 
perennials, groundcovers, 
and turf

c. Ground contours

3. Copy of proposed Covenants, 
Conditions and Restrictions

Note:  Architectural construction 
documents are not required for pre-
permit design approval.
III. REVIEW AND 

EVALUATION
Within 14 calendar days of receipt, 
the Declarant shall evaluate the 
applicant’s plans for conformance 
to the Pinnacle Prairie Design 
Guidelines and return one original 
package with an approval status 
together with any deficiencies 
so noted on the documents.  The 
approval status may be any one of 
the following:

 - Approved as submitted, no 
resubmittal required.

 - Approved as noted, no 
resubmittal required.  (In 
this case, specific elements 
that are deemed deficient 
will be identified.  Provided 
the noted deficiencies are 
addressed in the permit 
submittal, the plans will be 
approved for permit.)

 - Approved as noted, 
resubmittal is required.  (In 

1. Example Application include one full size set of plans 
and one electronic copy of the 
following documents:
1. Architectural Elements:

a. Design drawings of front, 
side and rear elevations of 
buildings

b. Description/Illustrations 
of representative exterior 
building materials/
manufacturers

c. Product brochures/collateral 
of front, side and rear 
elevations’ materials

2. Site Plan including:
a. Building and parking area 

locations
b. Walks
c. Setbacks
d. Type and location of light 

poles
e. Dumpster locations and 

screening

3. Landscape Plan including:
a. Location of buildings, 

parking areas, walks and 
any other paved surfaces

b. Quantity and location of 
required trees, shrubs, 
perennials, groundcovers 
and turf

c. Ground contours
d. Point tabulation based on 

City of Cedar Falls point 
system

The submittal for development 
within The Villages or Western 
Home shall consist of one full size 
set of plans and one electronic 
copy of the following documents:

1. Preliminary Plat including:
a. Street layout

this case, specific elements 
that are deemed deficient 
will be identified so that 
they may be addressed and 
verified in the subsequent 
resubmittal.)

 - Rejected, resubmittal is 
required.  (In this case, 
specific elements that are 
deemed deficient will be 
identified so that they may 
be addressed and verified in 
the subsequent resubmittal.)

Not withstanding the forgoing, 
the Declarant shall have final 
discretion to deviate from these 
guidelines to take into account the 
use,building lines, topography of 
the lot, access points, etc.

IV. CITY APPROVAL
Once the Applicant’s plans have 
been approved by the Declarant, no 
further design approval from the 
Declarant shall be required.  The 
Applicant may proceed through 
the typical City of Cedar Falls 
development approval process.  
The City of Cedar Falls will 
review the submitted plans for 
conformance to the City’s codes 
and ordinances. The City will 
be responsible to enforce zoning 
standards, setbacks, building 
construction and codes, and 
minimum landscape standards.  All 
architectural, landscaping and site 
plans shall be at the discretion of 
the Declarant.

THE REVIEW AND 
SUBMITTAL PROCESS

All proposed building and 
development within of Pinnacle 
Prairie must be reviewed and 
approved by the Declarant prior 
to seeking development approval 
from the City of Cedar Falls.  
The Declarant will review each 
builder’s development package 
for conformance to the Design 
Guidelines, and will review 
individual homeowner’s submittals 
using the same standards.

All reviews, substitutions and 
approvals by the Declarant will be 
considered binding and final.

The Declarant will have authority 
over both new construction and 
exterior remodels, additions and 
other improvements.

I. PRE-SUBMITTAL 
MEETING

Prior to submitting plans for 
approval, the Applicant is 
encouraged to meet with the 
Declarant to informally discuss 
Applicant’s plans.  The Declarant 
will be available to help interpret 
the standards and offer suggestions 
about the applicant’s design 
concepts.  The Applicant is urged 
to meet with the Declarant as 
early as possible to assist in the 
Applicant’s decision to build in 
Pinnacle Prairie.

II. SUBMITTAL
Applicant shall submit a master 
set of development plans to the 
Declarant of Pinnacle Prairie.  The 
submittal for development within 
the Prairie Business Park and 
Prairie Commercial District shall 

1

DEVELOPMENT APPROVAL APPLICATION 
 

Applicant shall submit plans for review as outlined in the Pinnacle Prairie Review and Submittal Process, 
as outlined on Page 18. 
 
List the specific documents being submitted: 
 
1)  ________________________________________________________________________________  

2)  ________________________________________________________________________________  

3)  ________________________________________________________________________________  

4)  ________________________________________________________________________________  

5)  ________________________________________________________________________________  

6)  ________________________________________________________________________________  

 
Builder/Developer:  __________________________  Contact Name:  ____________________________  

Address:  ____________________________________________________________________________  

City:  _____________________________________  State: _________________  Zip: _______________  

Telephone:  __________________________________________________________________________  

E-Mail Address:  ______________________________________________________________________  

Date Submitted:  ______________________________________________________________________  

 
Approval Status: 
 
 Approved as submitted, no resubmittal required 
 Approved as noted, no resubmittal required 
 Approved as noted, resubmittal required 
 Rejected, resubmittal required 

 
Reviewed by:  ________________________________________________________________________  

Date Reviewed:  ______________________________________________________________________  

Comments: 
_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

63

Item 5.



20

C e d a r  F a l l s ,  I o w a M a r c h  8 ,  2 0 2 1
D a t e :

A p p e n d i x  -  R e p r e s e n t a t i v e  P l a n t  P a l e t t e         

1. Quercus macrocarpa - Bur Oak

2. Acer saccharum - Sugar Maple

3. Tilia cordata - Littleleaf Linden

4. Ulmus x sp. - Disease-Resistant 
Elm

5. Quercus alba - White Oak

6. Gleditsia triacanthos - 
Honeylocust

7. Carya ovata - Shagbark Hickory

8. Pseudotsuga mensiesii - 
Douglas Fir

9. Pinus strobus - Eastern White 
Pine

DECIDUOUS TREES 
Street trees: all streets will have 
parkway trees at 40’ on center and 
minimum 2.5” caliper size.
Shade trees: shall be 2.5”- 4”cal. 
with no more than 50% of the trees 
in any one caliper size.

Plant Palette:
Acer x fremanii - 

Freeman Maple cultivars
Acer saccharum - 

Sugar Maple
Carya ovata - 

Shagbark Hickory
Celtis occidentalis - 

Common   Hackberry
Gleditsia triacanthos -

Honeylocust 
Gymnocladus dioicus - 

Kentucky Coffeetree
Juglans nigra - 

Black Walnut
Quercus alba - 

White Oak
Quercus bicolor - 

Swamp White Oak
Quercus macrocarpa - 

Bur Oak
Quercus rubra - 

Red Oak
Platanus x acerifolia - 

London Planetree
Populus tremuloides -

Quaking Aspen
Tilia americana - 

American Linden
Tilia cordata - 

Littleleaf Linden
Ulmus x sp. - 

Disease-resistant Elm

EVERGREEN TREES  /
SHRUBS 
Evergreen  trees/shrubs: 
Evergreen trees shall be a mix 
of 6’-10’ in height at time of 
installation with more than 50% 
of any one size.  Shrubs shall be 
a minimum of 30” in height or 
spread depending on species.

Plant Palette: 
Juniperus communis sp. - 

Common Juniper cultivars  
Juniperus virginiana - 

Eastern Red Cedar
Juniperus chinensis sp. - 

Chinese Juniper
Picea glauca

Black Hills Spruce
Picea pungens
Colorado Spruce 
Pinus strobus - 

White Pine
Pinus nigra - 

Austrian Pine
Pseudotsuga menziesii - 

Douglas Fir 
Thuja occidentalis - 

Eastern Arborvitae

1

4

7 8 9

6

32

5

64

Item 5.



21

C e d a r  F a l l s ,  I o w a M a r c h  8 ,  2 0 2 1
D a t e :

A p p e n d i x  -  R e p r e s e n t a t i v e  P l a n t  P a l e t t e         

1. Aronia arbutifolia - Red 
Chokeberry

2. Viburnum trilobum - American 
Cranberry Viburnum

3. Cornus racemosa - Gray 
Dogwood

4. Hamamelis virginiana - 
Common Witchhazel

5. Amelanchier canadensis - 
Shadblow Serviceberry

6. Cercis canadensis - Eastern 
Redbud

7. Euonymus alatus - Burning Bush

8. Rhus aromatica - Gro-Low 
Sumac

9. Syringa meyeri ‘Palibin’ - Dwarf 
Korean Lilac

1 2 3

4

7

5

8

6

9

ORNAMENTAL TREES
Ornamental trees shall vary in 
height from 6’-10’ and generally 
be used in multi-stem form.
Plant Palette:
Acer ginnala - 

Amur Maple
Alnus glutinosa - 

Black Alder
Amelanchier canadensis -

Shadblow Serviceberry
Betula Nigra -

River Birch
Betula papyrifera - 

Paper Birch  
Carpinus caroliniana - 

American Hornbeam
Cercis canadensis - 

Eastern Redbud
Crataegus crus-gali var. inermis -

Thornless Cockspur Hawthorn
Hamamelis virginiana - 

Common Witchhazel
Malus sp. - 

Flowering Crabapple cultivars
Ostrya virginiana - 

American Hophornbean
Prunus americana -

American Plum
Prunus serotina - 

Black Cherry
Viburnum prunifolium - 

Blackhaw Viburnum

DECIDUOUS SHRUBS
Shrubs shall be a minimum 24” in 
height at time of planting.
Plant Palette:
Aronia arbutifolia - 

Red Chokeberry
Cornus alternifolia -

Pagoda Dogwood
Cornus sericea - 

Redtwig Dogwood cultivars
Cornus racemosa - 

Gray Dogwood
Diervilla lonicera -

Dwarf Bush Honeysuckle
Euonymus alatus - 

Burning Bush 
Ilex verticillata -

Winterberry
Myrica pennsylvanica -

Northern Bayberry
Physocarpus opulifolius -

Common Ninebark
Rhus aromatica -  

Gro-Low Sumac
Rhus glabra  - 

Smooth Sumac
Rhus typhina - 

Staghorn Sumac
Rosa spp. - 

Shrub Rose cultivars
Spirea japonica sp. - 

Spirea 
Symphoricarpus albus -

Snowberry
Symphoricarpus orbiculatus -

Indiancurrant Coralberry
Syringa meyeri ‘Palibin’ - 

Dwarf Korean Lilac 
Viburnum dentatum - 

Arrowwood Viburnum
Viburnum trilobum - 

American Cranberry Viburnum

65

Item 5.



22

C e d a r  F a l l s ,  I o w a M a r c h  8 ,  2 0 2 1
D a t e :

A p p e n d i x  -  R e p r e s e n t a t i v e  P l a n t  P a l e t t e         

1. Liatris pychnostachy - Prairie 
Blazing Star

2. Echinacea purpurea - Purple 
Coneflower

3. Heuchera micrantha ‘Palace 
Purple’ - Palace Purple Coral 
Bells

4. Leucanthemum ‘Becky’ - Becky 
Shasta Daisy

5. Equisetum hyemale - 
Scouringrush

6. Andropogon gerardii - Big 
Bluestem

7. Panicum virgatum - Switch 
Grass

8. Sedum spectable ‘Neon’ - Neon 
Sedum

9. Rudbeckia hirta - Black Eyed 
Susan            

1 2 3

4 5 6

7 8 9

PERENNIALS / GRASSES
These are the preferred plant for 
the landscape, as they require 
little maintenance or irrigation.  
Plantings shall be minimum of 
1/2 gallon containers at time of 
installation  and spaced 18” on 
center.  Mulch to be shredded 
hardwood bark mulch no more 
than  2” in depth.

Plant Palette:
Acorus calamus - 

Sweet Flag
Aquilegia canadensis - 

American Columbine
Andopogon gerardii - 
Big Bluestem
Andropogon scoparius - 

Little Bluestem
Asclepias incarnata - 

Swamp Milkweed
Aster novae-engliae - 

New England Aster
Baptesia sp. - 

False Indigo
Bouteloua curtipendula - 

Sideoats Grama 
Calamagrostis acutifolia ‘Karl     
Foerester’ - 

Karl Foerester Grass
Calamagrostis canadensis - 

Blue Joint Grass
Carex species - 

Sedges
Coreopsis sp. - 

Coreopsis
Echinacea pallida - 

Pale Purple Coneflower
Echinacea purpurea - 

Purple Coneflower
Equisetum hyemale -

Scouringrush
Filipendula rubra - 

Queen of the Prairie
Hemerocallis sp. - 

Daylily

Heuchera micrantha ‘Palace 
Purple’ - 

Palace Purple Coral Bells
Iris virginica var. shrevei - 

Wild Blue Flag Iris 
Leucanthemum ‘Becky’

Becky Shasta Daisy
Liatris pychnostachya - 

Prairie Blazing Star
Lobelia siphilitica - 

Brat Blue Lobelia
Miscanthus sinensis ‘Purpurascens’  

Purple Flame Grass
Nepeta racemosa

Walker’s Low Catmint
Panicum virgatum - 

Switch Grass
Physostegia virginiana - 

Obedient Plant cultivars
Ratibida pinnata - 

Yellow Coneflower
Rudbeckia hirta  - 

Black-eyed Susan
Scirpus species - 

Bulrushes
Sedum spectable ‘Neon’

Neon Sedum
Silphium laciniatum - 

Compass Plant
Silphium terebinthinaceum - 

Prairie Dock
Solidago species - 

Goldenrod
Sorghastrum nutans -

Indian Grass
Sporobolus heterolepis - 

Prairie Dropseed
Uniola latifolia - 

Northern Sea Oats
Verbena hastata - 

Blue Vervain

66

Item 5.



23

C e d a r  F a l l s ,  I o w a M a r c h  8 ,  2 0 2 1
D a t e :

          

Master Developer:

4501 Prairie Parkway
Cedar Falls, IA 50613
Phone 319.277.8000
Fax 319.277.8080

Owner:

Land Planner / Landscape Architecture:

126 S. Main Street
Oswego, IL 60543

Phone 630.551.3355
www.schoppedesign.net

67

Item 5.



68

Item 5.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 273-8600 

 
ORDINANCE NO._____________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SECTION 26-118,  

DISTRICT BOUNDARIES OF DIVISION I GENERALLY  

OF ARTICLE III DISTRICT AND DISTRICT  

REGULATIONS OF CHAPTER TWENTY-SIX (26), ZONING,  

OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, 

AND RE-ENACTING SAID SECTION 26-118 OF SAID ORDINANCE, AS 

AMENDED, SO AS TO APPLY AND INCLUDE THE  

CHANGE IN THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF  

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AS PROVIDED BY THIS ORDINANCE. 

 

 WHEREAS, a proposal was submitted to the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning 

Commission to rezone approximately 3 acres of property from R-1 Residence District to MU, 

Mixed Use Residential District; and approximately 12 acres of property from A-1 Agricultural 

District to MU, Mixed Use Residential District, more specifically described below; and  

 

 WHEREAS, said MU, Mixed Use Residential District, allows for development flexibility 

according to a master plan to ensure that the area is developed in an orderly manner according to 

the principles of the Cedar Falls Comprehensive Plan; and 

 

 WHEREAS, said area shall be incorporated into the larger Pinnacle Prairie Master Plan, 

which has been amended to include said 15 acres, which amended master plan has been 

submitted with the rezoning application, the principles and provisions of which will be 

incorporated into a developmental procedures agreement between the City and the owners of the 

property, which will be considered for adoption in a separate action by resolution concurrent 

with this rezoning;  

 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission considered the rezoning request and 

proposed elements of the amended Pinnacle Prairie MU Master Plan and find that said rezoning 

and amended master plan is consistent with the City of Cedar Falls Comprehensive Plan and the 

intent of the MU Mixed Use Residential District;  

 
WHEREAS, the City Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

finds that the rezoning (Case #RZ21-001) is consistent with the adopted Comprehensive Plan of the 

City of Cedar Falls and therefore has recommended to the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, that all that area described below shall be removed from the A-1 Agricultural District and the 

R-1 Residence District and placed in the MU, Mixed Use Residential District, as follows: 

 
 

69

Item 5.



Legal Description 

The West 110 feet of Lot 1; Lots 2, 3, and 4 except that part deeded to the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa in 565 CLD 326 for street purposes, all in “Ideal Acres” in Black Hawk County, Iowa (now 

in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa) 

AND 

The North 528 feet of Lot 13, all in “Ideal Acres” in Black Hawk County, Iowa (now in the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa) 
 

And 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it to be in the best 

interests of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, that said proposal be made and approved; and 

 

  WHEREAS, the said Section 26-118, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of Article 

III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-Six (26), Zoning, of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, provides that the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, attached thereto, is incorporated into and made a part of said Ordinance; 

 

 WHEREAS, notice of public hearing has been published, as provided by law, and such 

hearing held on the proposed amendment; now, therefore, 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

 

 Section 1.  That the following described real estate: 

 

Legal Description 

The West 110 feet of Lot 1; Lots 2, 3, and 4 except that part deeded to the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa in 565 CLD 326 for street purposes, all in “Ideal Acres” in Black Hawk County, Iowa (now 

in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa) 

AND 

The North 528 feet of Lot 13, all in “Ideal Acres” in Black Hawk County, Iowa (now in the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa) 
 

Be and the same is hereby removed from the A-1 Agricultural District and the R-1 Residence District 

and added to the MU, Mixed Use Residential District.  

 

Section 2. That the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, be and the same is hereby 

amended to show the property described in Section 1, above, as now being in the MU, Mixed Use 

Residential District, and the amended map is hereby ordained to be the zoning map of the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa, as amended. 

 

 Section 3. That said Section 26-118, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of Article 

III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-Six (26), Zoning, of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, be and the same is hereby repealed and hereby re-

enacted in the identical language as the same now is, in order that the same shall apply to and include 

the change hereby made in the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 

 

 

 

70

Item 5.



INTRODUCED:    May 17, 2021    

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:      

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:      

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:      

ADOPTED:         

 

 

         _________________________ 

ATTEST:        Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

____________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

71

Item 5.



RESOLUTION NO. _______ 
 

RESOLUTION EXTENDING A FACE MASK MANDATE FOR THE 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 
 WHEREAS, we, the elected representatives of the City of Cedar Falls, took an oath to 
uphold and defend the Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the State of Iowa, 
and  
 

WHEREAS, the emergence of the novel coronavirus, SARS-CoV-2, that causes the 
disease COVID-19, can result in serious illness or death and can easily be spread from person to 
person, and 

 
 WHEREAS, on January 31, 2020, the United States Department of Health and Human 
Services declared a national public health emergency related to the dangers posed by COVID-19, 
and  
 

WHEREAS, on March 9, 2020, the Governor of the State of Iowa, Kim Reynolds, signed a 
proclamation of disaster emergency for the entire State of Iowa based on the increasing numbers 
in the State of Iowa testing positive for COVID-19, and 

  
WHEREAS, on March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the COVID-19 

outbreak to be a worldwide pandemic, and  
 
WHEREAS, on March 13, 2020, the President of the United States signed an emergency 

declaration under the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act authorizing 
emergency response measures in all fifty states in response to COVID-19, and  

 
WHEREAS, the most current local data relating to COVID-19 as provided by the Iowa 

Department of Public Health (“IDPH”) and the Black Hawk County Department of Public Health 
(“BHCDPH”) show that the State of Iowa and Black Hawk County continue to experience significant 
community spread of this disease, and  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa has a compelling interest to protect the lives of its 

residents, and  
 
WHEREAS, Article III, Section 38A of the Iowa Constitution grants municipalities the power 

to determine their local affairs and government not inconsistent with the laws of the general 
assembly, and  

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 364 of the Iowa Code reaffirms the constitutional grant of home rule 

authority to municipalities “to exercise any power and perform any function it deems appropriate to 
protect and preserve the rights, privileges, and property of the city of its residents, and to preserve 
and improve the peace, safety, health, welfare, comfort and convenience of its residents”, and  

 
WHEREAS, a city “may exercise its general powers subject only to limitations expressly 

imposed by state or city law,” and the exercise of a city power “is not inconsistent with a state law 
unless it is irreconcilable with the state law.” Iowa Code section 364.2(2) and (3), and  

 
WHEREAS, a city may set standards and requirements which are higher or “more stringent 

than those imposed by state law, unless a state law provides otherwise.” Iowa Code Section 
364.3(3)(a); City of Des Moines v. Gruen, 457 N.W.2d 340, 343 (Iowa 1990); Bryan v. City of Des 
Moines, 261 N.W.2d 685, 687 (Iowa 1978), and 

72

Item 6.



 
WHEREAS, the Center of Disease Control (“CDC”), the IDPH, and BHCDPH, have all 

determined and encouraged that face coverings are an critical tool in the fight against COVID-19 
that could reduce the spread of the virus particularly when used universally within a community, 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the IDPH’s reopening guidance advises that members of the public consider 

the use of cloth face coverings when distancing is not possible because wearing a face covering in 
public places where social distancing measures are difficult can help slow the spread of COVID-19, 
and  

 
WHEREAS, a requirement that persons in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa wear face 

coverings is essential to reducing the risk of transmission of COVID-19, and necessary to protect 
the health, welfare, and safety of residents and visitors and to accelerate local recovery efforts, and  

 
WHEREAS, a requirement that persons wear a face covering is generally not irreconcilable 

with the Governor’s proclamations and the guidance of the Iowa Department of Public Health, and  
 
WHEREAS, this resolution is not meant to be stigmatizing or punitive and is in the best 

interest of the health, welfare, and safety, and economic recovery of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
and its residents. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, as 

follows: 
 
Section 1. Every person in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa must wear a face covering when:  

a) In public, as opposed to one’s place of residence, when one cannot stay six (6) 
feet apart from others.  

b) Inside any indoor public settings, including but not limited to:  
1. Grocery stores  
2. Pharmacies  
3. Hardware stores  
4. Retail stores  
5. Other public settings that are not one’s place of residence and when among 

people who do not live in the same household  
6. City buildings  

c) Outside if maintaining a distance of six (6) feet apart is not possible  
d) Using public transportation or private car services (including taxis, ride share, or 

carpooling) 
  

Section 2. No business that is open to the public may provide service to a customer or allow 
a customer to enter its premises, unless the customer is wearing a face covering as required by 
this resolution, and businesses that are open to the public must post signs at entrance(s) 
instructing customers of their obligations to wear a face covering while inside.  

 
Section 3. Those who are exempt from wearing a face covering are:  

a) Persons younger than 5 years of age.  
b) Anyone who has trouble breathing, on oxygen therapy, or ventilator.  
c) Anyone who is unconscious, incapacitated, or otherwise unable to remove their 

face covering without assistance.  
d) Anyone who has been told by a medical, legal, or behavioral health professional 

not to wear face coverings.  
e) Anyone actively engaged in a public safety role, including but not limited to law 

73

Item 6.



enforcement, firefighters, or emergency medical personnel. 
 

Section 4. Places and times where persons are exempt from wearing a face covering:  
a) While traveling in a personal vehicle alone or with only household members.  
b) While a person is alone or with only household members.  
c) While exercising at moderate or high intensity e.g. swimming, jogging, biking. 
d) While seated at a food establishment in the process of eating or drinking.  
e) While obtaining a service that would require temporary removal of the person’s face 

covering.  
f) When federal or state law prohibits wearing a face covering or requires the removal 

of a face covering.  
 

Section 5. If a cloth face covering is chosen, appropriate use of a cloth face covering 
includes:  

a) A snug fit, but comfortable against the side of the face.  
b) Completely covers the nose and mouth.  
c) Is secured with ties or ear loops.  
d) Includes multiple layers of fabric.  
e) Allows for breathing without restriction.  
f) Can be laundered and machine dried without damage or change in shape.  

 
Section 6. This resolution shall be effective immediately upon signing by the Mayor and 

expires at 11:59 PM on the 23rd day of June, 2021. Upon its effective date this resolution replaces 
and supersedes Resolution #22,097 dated September 8, 2020, and extended by Resolution 
#22,140 dated October 19, 2020, Resolution #22,193 dated December 7, 2020, Resolution 
#22,227 dated January 19, 2021, Resolution #22,272 dated March 1, 2021, and Resolution 
#22,307 dated April 5, 2021.  Prior to the expiration of this resolution, the City Council of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa may extend the mandate by adopting a new resolution. 

 
Section 7.  If any provision of this resolution is in irreconcilable conflict with a specific 

directive in the Governor’s proclamation then in effect as it pertains to the wearing of a mask or 
face covering, the Governor’s proclamation shall prevail.    

 
Section 8. If any section, provision, or part of this resolution is adjudged invalid or 

unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the resolution as a whole or any 
section, provision, or part of this resolution not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 

 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of May, 2021. 
 
 
        
        ___________________________ 
ATTEST:        Robert M. Green, Mayor 
 
 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

74

Item 6.



75

Item 7.



76

Item 7.



77

Item 7.



78

Item 7.



79

Item 7.



80

Item 7.



81

Item 7.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Green and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director 

Craig Berte, Police Chief 

Date:  May 13, 2021 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Hurling Hatchet, 100 East 2nd Street, Class B beer - renewal. 

b) Hy-Vee Clubroom, 6301 University Avenue, Special Class C liquor - renewal. 

c) Berk's Main Street Pub, 207 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 

d) Voodoo Lounge, 401 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 

e) Casey's General Store, 2425 Center Street, Class E liquor - renewal. 

f) Casey's General Store, 5226 University Avenue, Class E liquor - renewal. 

g) Walgreens, 2509 Whitetail Drive, Class E liquor - renewal. 

h) North Shore Boat Club, Island Park, Class B beer & outdoor service - 5 day permit. 

i) Mini-mart, 1420 West 1st Street, Class E liquor – new. 

82

Item 8.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council Members 

  FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: May 10, 2021 

 SUBJECT: FY2022 Appropriations Resolution 

 
Please find attached the Appropriations Resolution for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 
2021 and ending June 30, 2022 submitted for your approval.  The resolution outlines in 
detail the FY2022 budget that was approved by Council in February.  For informational 
purposes, the FY2021 budgeted revenues are also attached.  Starting two years ago, 
there was a new requirement by the State of Iowa to include a detail listing of all 
transfers in the budget.  Therefore, to comply with this requirement, we have included 
that listing as part of the resolution again this year.    
 
As stated above, this resolution simply takes the budget that was approved by Council 
and outlines the detailed line items that departments will use throughout the fiscal year 
to allocate their resources to.  
 
If you have any questions regarding the resolution, please feel free to contact me.  

83

Item 9.



84

Item 9.



85

Item 9.



86

Item 9.



87

Item 9.



88

Item 9.



89

Item 9.



90

Item 9.



91

Item 9.



92

Item 9.



93

Item 9.



94

Item 9.



95

Item 9.



96

Item 9.



97

Item 9.



98

Item 9.



99

Item 9.



100

Item 9.



101

Item 9.



102

Item 9.



103

Item 9.



104

Item 9.



105

Item 9.



106

Item 9.



107

Item 9.



108

Item 9.



109

Item 9.



110

Item 9.



111

Item 9.



112

Item 9.



113

Item 9.



114

Item 9.



115

Item 9.



116

Item 9.



117

Item 9.



118

Item 9.



119

Item 9.



120

Item 9.



121

Item 9.



122

Item 9.



123

Item 9.



124

Item 9.



125

Item 9.



DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council Members 

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: May 5, 2021 

 SUBJECT: Sewer Fund Internal Loans – Amended Interest Rate 

 
Attached are five resolutions amending the interest rate on the internal loans to the 
Sewer Fund from 2.80% to 1.50%.  Due to the current low interest rate market, staff 
reviewed the interest rates on the City’s internal loans.  The City’s bond financial advisor 
noted that in comparing to sewer revenue bonds that have been sold on the market with 
a similar rating from Moody’s and similar maturity dates, rates range from 1.44%-1.75%.  
Based on this information, it seemed appropriate that the City should decrease the 
interest rate on the internal loans from the Capital Projects Fund and the Health Trust 
Fund to be consistent with a true market rate. Therefore we are recommending 
adjusting the rate on the loans from 2.80% to 1.50% 
  
The 1.50% rate is fair to the Sewer Fund (the paying fund).  This rate is also beneficial 
to the Capital Projects Fund and the Health Trust Fund that will yield this rate since 
interest rates received on investments is currently around .30%.   
 
If you have questions regarding the resolutions, please feel free to contact me.   

126

Item 10.



RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 
 

RESOLUTION AMENDING AN INTER-FUND LOAN 
FROM THE CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS  

TO THE SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Sewer Enterprise Fund of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, was in 

need of funds to assist in completing the disinfection project at the treatment facility in 

accordance with EPA standards and the Bluff Street Lift Station; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council passed Resolution No. 18,074 on May 29, 2012 

approving a loan agreement with the Capital Projects Fund of the City of Cedar Falls for 

an amount not to exceed Four Million, Three Hundred Thousand Dollars 

($4,300,000.00) to meet these requirements; and 

 

WHEREAS, the outstanding balance of the loan as of June 1, 2021 will be Two 

Million, Three Hundred, and Sixty-Five Thousand ($2,365,000.00); and 

 

WHEREAS, the original resolution stated that the interest rate may be adjusted 

annually based on current market rates and the rate was adjusted in 2016 and 2018; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, in light of prevailing interest rates, the City Council believes that the 

interest rate on the loan agreement should be amended from its current rate of 2.80%; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, after considering interest rates available on long-term loans or 

bonds from other sources, without the additional cost of issuing new revenue debt, the 

City Council as owner of the Sewer Enterprise Fund of the City of Cedar Falls has 

determined that a loan from the Capital Projects Fund of the City of Cedar Falls at the 

rate of 1.50% per annum is favorable and in the best interest of said Fund;  

 

 

 
127

Item 10.



NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, that the interest rate on the loan agreement be amended to 1.50% per annum, 

effective June 1, 2021, is hereby approved and authorized in accordance with the 

criteria stated above; and  

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the terms of the loan repayment set forth in 

the original resolution, excluding the amended interest rate, are hereby approved to 

continue.  

 

ADOPTED this 17th day of May 2021. 

                                                                                                                                              
_____________________ 

                                                                   Robert M. Green, Mayor 
                                                                                                         
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Jacque Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
 

128

Item 10.



RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 
 

RESOLUTION AMENDING AN INTER-FUND LOAN 
FROM THE HEALTH TRUST FUND OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS  

TO THE SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Sewer Enterprise Fund of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, was in 

need of funds to assist in completing the disinfection project at the treatment facility in 

accordance with EPA standards; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council passed Resolution No. 18,075 on May 29, 2012 

approving a loan agreement with the Health Trust Fund of the City of Cedar Falls for an 

amount not to exceed Three Million, Nine Hundred Thousand Dollars ($3,900,000.00) to 

meet these requirements; and 

 

WHEREAS, the outstanding balance of the loan as of June 1, 2021 will be Two 

Million, One Hundred, and Forty-Five Thousand Dollars ($2,145,000.00); and 

 

WHEREAS, the original resolution stated that the interest rate may be adjusted 

annually based on current market rates and the rate was adjusted in 2016 and 2018; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, in light of prevailing interest rates, the City Council believes that the 

interest rate on the loan agreement should be amended from its current rate of 2.80%; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, after considering interest rates available on long-term loans or 

bonds from other sources, without the additional cost of issuing new revenue debt, the 

City Council as owner of the Sewer Enterprise Fund of the City of Cedar Falls has 

determined that a loan from the Health Trust Fund of the City of Cedar Falls at the rate 

of 1.50% per annum is favorable and in the best interest of said Fund;  

 

 

 
129

Item 11.



NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, that the interest rate on the loan agreement be amended to 1.50% per annum, 

effective June 1, 2021, is hereby approved and authorized in accordance with the 

criteria stated above; and  

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the terms of the loan repayment set forth in 

the original resolution, excluding the amended interest rate, are hereby approved to 

continue.  

 

ADOPTED this 17th day of May 2021. 

                                                                                                                                              
_____________________ 

                                                                  Robert M. Green, Mayor 
                                                                                                         
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Jacque Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
 

130

Item 11.



RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 
 

RESOLUTION AMENDING AN INTER-FUND LOAN 
FROM THE HEALTH TRUST FUND OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS  

TO THE SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Sewer Enterprise Fund of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, was in 

need of funds to assist in completing the disinfection project at the treatment facility in 

accordance with EPA standards; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council passed Resolution No. 18,359 on November 26, 

2012 approving a loan agreement with the Health Trust Fund of the City of Cedar Falls 

for an amount not to exceed Three Million, Dollars ($3,000,000.00) to meet these 

requirements; and 

 

WHEREAS, the current outstanding balance of the loan as of June 1, 2021 will 

be One Million, Six Hundred, and Fifty Thousand Dollars ($1,650,000.00); and 

 

WHEREAS, the original resolution stated that the interest rate may be adjusted 

annually based on current market rates and the rate was adjusted in 2016 and 2018; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, in light of prevailing interest rates, the City Council believes that the 

interest rate on the loan agreement should be amended from its current rate of 2.80%; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, after considering interest rates available on long-term loans or 

bonds from other sources, without the additional cost of issuing new revenue debt, the 

City Council as owner of the Sewer Enterprise Fund of the City of Cedar Falls has 

determined that a loan from the Health Trust Fund of the City of Cedar Falls at the rate 

of 1.50% per annum is favorable and in the best interest of said Fund;  

 

 

 
131

Item 12.



NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, that the interest rate on the loan agreement be amended to 1.50% per annum, 

effective June 1, 2021, is hereby approved and authorized in accordance with the 

criteria stated above; and  

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the terms of the loan repayment set forth in 

the original resolution, excluding the amended interest rate, are hereby approved to 

continue.  

 

ADOPTED this 17th day of May 2021. 

                                                                                                                                              
_____________________ 

                                                                   Robert M. Green, Mayor 
                                                                                                         
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Jacque Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
 

132

Item 12.



RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 
 

RESOLUTION AMENDING AN INTER-FUND LOAN 
FROM THE HEALTH TRUST FUND OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS  

TO THE SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Sewer Enterprise Fund of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, was in 

need of funds to assist in completing the disinfection project at the treatment facility in 

accordance with EPA standards; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council passed Resolution No. 18,734 on August 12, 2013 

approving a loan agreement with the Health Trust Fund of the City of Cedar Falls for an 

amount not to exceed Four Million, Seven Hundred Thousand Dollars ($4,700,000.00) 

to meet these requirements; and 

 

WHEREAS, the current outstanding balance of the loan as of June 1, 2021 will 

Two Million, Eight Hundred, and Twenty Thousand Dollars ($2,820,000.00); and 

 

WHEREAS, the original resolution stated that the interest rate may be adjusted 

annually based on current market rates and the rate was adjusted in 2016 and 2018; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, in light of prevailing interest rates, the City Council believes that the 

interest rate on the loan agreement should be amended from its current rate of 2.80%; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, after considering interest rates available on long-term loans or 

bonds from other sources, without the additional cost of issuing new revenue debt, the 

City Council as owner of the Sewer Enterprise Fund of the City of Cedar Falls has 

determined that a loan from the Health Trust Fund of the City of Cedar Falls at the rate 

of 1.50% per annum is favorable and in the best interest of said Fund;  

 

 

 
133

Item 13.



NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, that the interest rate on the loan agreement be amended to 1.50% per annum, 

effective June 1, 2021, is hereby approved and authorized in accordance with the 

criteria stated above; and  

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the terms of the loan repayment set forth in 

the original resolution, excluding the amended interest rate, are hereby approved to 

continue.  

 

ADOPTED this 17th day of May 2021. 

                                                                                                                                              
_____________________ 

                                                                   Robert M. Green, Mayor 
                                                                                                         
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Jacque Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
 

134

Item 13.



RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 
 

RESOLUTION AMENDING AN INTER-FUND LOAN 
FROM THE HEALTH TRUST FUND OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS  

TO THE SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Sewer Enterprise Fund of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, was in 

need of funds to assist in completing the disinfection project at the treatment facility in 

accordance with EPA standards, the Bluff Street Lift Station, and the Park Drive Lift 

Station; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council passed Resolution No. 19,623 on July 20, 2015 

approving a loan agreement with the Health Trust Fund of the City of Cedar Falls for an 

amount not to exceed One Million, Two Hundred Thousand Dollars ($1,200,000.00) to 

meet these requirements; and 

 

WHEREAS, the current outstanding balance of the loan as of June 1, 2021 will 

be Eight Hundred and Forty Thousand Dollars ($840,000.00); and 

 

WHEREAS, the original resolution stated that the interest rate may be adjusted 

annually based on current market rates and the rate was adjusted in 2016 and 2018; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, in light of prevailing interest rates, the City Council believes that the 

interest rate on the loan agreement should be amended from its current rate of 2.80%; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, after considering interest rates available on long-term loans or 

bonds from other sources, without the additional cost of issuing new revenue debt, the 

City Council as owner of the Sewer Enterprise Fund of the City of Cedar Falls has 

determined that a loan from the Health Trust Fund of the City of Cedar Falls at the rate 

of 1.50% per annum is favorable and in the best interest of said Fund;  

 

 
135

Item 14.



 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, that the interest rate on the loan agreement be amended to 1.50% per annum, 

effective June 1, 2021, is hereby approved and authorized in accordance with the 

criteria stated above; and  

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the terms of the loan repayment set forth in 

the original resolution, excluding the amended interest rate, are hereby approved to 

continue.  

 

ADOPTED this 17th day of May 2021. 

                                                                                                                                              
_____________________ 

                                                                   Robert M. Green, Mayor 
                                                                                                         
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Jacque Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
 

136

Item 14.



   CEDAR FALLS DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
  4600 S. MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Director 

Date:  May 12, 2021 

Re: Sturgis Falls – Prohibited Animals 

Attached is a memo in reference to the Cedar Falls Animal Control Ordinance, Section 6-
70, Animals Prohibited: Sturgis Falls Celebration and Cedar Basin Music Festival, the 
events for 2021 will be held Wednesday June 23rd at 5:00 p.m. through Sunday, June 
27th at midnight 
 
The city ordinance does require the City Council to designate the dates in order for the 
ordinance to take effect each year. We are requesting that you make that designation 
for this year’s Sturgis Falls Celebration.  

 
 

137

Item 15.



                

 

                                                                                            

MEMORANDUM 
CEDAR FALLS POLICE DEPARTMENT 

REVISED:  11-01-2013 
 
 

        
             DATE: 5/12/21_ 

 
 
TO:  _Director Olson & Chief Berte_ 
 
FROM:  _Lt. Kari Rea_ 
 
SUBJECT:  _Animals Prohibited_  
 
 

In reference to the Cedar Falls Animal Control Ordinance, Section 6-70, Animals 
Prohibited: Sturgis Falls Celebration and Cedar Basin Music Festival, the events for 2021 
will be held Wednesday June 23rd at 5:00 p.m. through Sunday, June 27th at midnight. 
 
Per the ordinance, animals should not be permitted in the following locations, on the dates 
and times listed above.  These locations would include parks, streets, sidewalks and 
parking lots. 
 
Gateway Park and Merriams Midway 
Overman Park 
Sturgis Park 
Policeman’s Park 
Franklin and Clay Streets from 1st to 4th Streets 
2nd and 3rd Streets from Washington to Franklin Streets 
100-blk E. 2nd Street  
100-400-blk State Street 
State Street Plaza 
Lincoln Street from 1st to McKinley Streets 
1st Street from Main to the East side of the Main Street Bridge 
Public Parking Area from Cedar City Creamery to Policeman’s Park 
Lincoln Street to the Railroad Tracks 
 
Animals should not be permitted on the streets / sidewalks or in the area of the 
parade/parade route on Saturday June 26th, between the hours of 6:00 a.m. and Noon. 
 

138

Item 15.



Streets impacted by this include: 
 
Clay Street from 8th to 11th Streets 
11th Street from Clay to Main Streets 
Main Street from 11th to 3rd Streets 
3rd Street from Main to Franklin Streets 
Franklin Street from 3rd to 5th Streets 
 
In addition, animals should not be permitted on the streets or in the area of the Arts ‘n 
Crafts fair from 6:00 a.m. through 6:00 p.m. on Sunday, June 27th.  Streets impacted by 
the Arts ‘n Crafts fair are as follows: 
 
3rd Street from Washington to Franklin 
Franklin and Clay Streets from 1st to 4th Streets 
 
This request includes parks, streets and other areas that are currently planned to be used 
for the events.  There is always the change of unexpected changes, due to bad weather or 
other unforeseen circumstances.  For this reason I would recommend we be flexible and 
we allow other parks and streets that may be affected at the last minute.  These changes 
or additions to the Sturgis Falls Celebration or Cedar Basin Music Festival would be 
approved without further notice to the Council.  The Sturgis Falls Celebration committee 
intends to post notices at many park entrances notifying patrons of the ordinance. 
 
Thank you, 
Lt. Kari Rea

 
    

139

Item 15.



   CEDAR FALLS DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
  4600 S. MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Director 

Date:  May 7, 2021 

Re: Overtime Grant  

Attached is an Organized Crime Drug Enforcement Task Force (OCDETF) grant agreement 
to reimburse the City for overtime expenditures related to specific investigations that are 
drug related by members of the Tri-County Drug Task Force. This is a grant that we have 
received many times in the past that assists in funding payroll for persons assigned to the 
Task Force. This grant allows for $3,000 in overtime reimbursement for FY21. 
 
I recommend approval of the grant.  

140

Item 16.



141

Item 16.



142

Item 16.



143

Item 16.



144

Item 16.



145

Item 16.



146

Item 16.



147

Item 16.



148

Item 16.



1 

   CEDAR FALLS DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
  4600 S. MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Green and City Council  

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Director 

Date:  May 4, 2021 

Re: FY22 Towing Contract 

The Public Safety Department has completed the bidding process for the FY22 towing 
contract. Two towing companies, L&M Transmission and Rasmussen Towing, Inc. both 
bid an identical amount of $75.00 for City paid tows. Tows requested by the City that are 
paid for by the vehicle owner for illegal parking, accidents or other tows are capped at 
$75 per tow to ensure a fair pricing structure for the citizen. There are also requirements 
and restrictions for storage fees and response times associated with towing. We have 
worked out a shared tow plan with dispatch for alternately calling the towing companies. 
Copies of the contracts are attached for your approval.  

We recommend approval of the contracts.  

149

Item 17.



150

Item 17.



151

Item 17.



152

Item 17.



153

Item 17.



154

Item 17.



155

Item 17.



156

Item 17.



157

Item 17.



158

Item 17.



159

Item 17.



1 

   CEDAR FALLS DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
  4600 S. MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Green and City Council  

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Director 

Date:  May 4, 2021 

Re: FY22 Towing Contract 

The Public Safety Department has completed the bidding process for the FY22 towing 
contract. Two towing companies, L&M Transmission and Rasmussen Towing, Inc. both 
bid an identical amount of $75.00 for City paid tows. Tows requested by the City that are 
paid for by the vehicle owner for illegal parking, accidents or other tows are capped at 
$75 per tow to ensure a fair pricing structure for the citizen. There are also requirements 
and restrictions for storage fees and response times associated with towing. We have 
worked out a shared tow plan with dispatch for alternately calling the towing companies. 
Copies of the contracts are attached for your approval.  

We recommend approval of the contracts.  

160

Item 18.



161

Item 18.



162

Item 18.



163

Item 18.



164

Item 18.



165

Item 18.



166

Item 18.



167

Item 18.



168

Item 18.



169

Item 18.



170

Item 18.



ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: May 10, 2021 

 SUBJECT: Funding Agreement with College Hill Partnership 

 
 
Attached is the agreement with College Hill Partnership (CHP).  The agreement sets forth the 

requirements that must be met by CHP in order to receive $2,250 of economic development 

funds for FY22. 

 

If you have any questions, please feel free to let me know.  

 

171

Item 19.



172

Item 19.



173

Item 19.



174

Item 19.



175

Item 19.



ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: May 10, 2021 

 SUBJECT: Funding Agreement with Community Main Street 

 
 
Attached is the agreement with Community Main Street (CMS).  The agreement sets forth the 

requirements that must be met by CMS in order to receive $12,000 of economic development 

funds for FY22. 

 

If you have any questions, please feel free to let me know.  

 

176

Item 20.



177

Item 20.



178

Item 20.



179

Item 20.



180

Item 20.



ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: May 10, 2021 

 SUBJECT: Funding Agreement with Grow Cedar Valley 

 
 
Attached is the agreement with Grow Cedar Valley (GCV).  The agreement sets forth the 

requirements that must be met by GCV in order to receive $22,660 of economic development 

funds for FY22, with the option for incentive payments. The FY22 agreement provides for a 

maximum incentive of $22,000. 

 

If you have any questions, please feel free to let me know.  

 

181

Item 21.



182

Item 21.



183

Item 21.



184

Item 21.



185

Item 21.



186

Item 21.



187

Item 21.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 TO: Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  

 FROM: Thom Weintraut, AICP, Planner III 

 DATE: May 11, 2021  

 SUBJECT: Public Ingress/Egress Easement Dedication  
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

A dedication of a public ingress/egress easement beginning at the southern 
end of the north-south alley located on 4th Street between Main and State 
Streets 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Dan Fencl 
 

LOCATION: 
 

The property is located at 422 Main Street, more specific, Lots 4, 5, and 6, 
Block 8 of Garrison & Deans Addition to Cedar Falls and Parcel “D” of Block 
8, Garrison & Deans Addition to Cedar Falls 
 

 

 
The applicant wishes to dedicate a public ingress/egress easement to allow traffic entering the 
north-south alley from 4th Street to continue through site and exit on State Street (see attached 
map). The current ingress/egress easement, dedicated in 1986, allows traffic entering the alley 
from 4th Street to exit onto Main Street. Mr. Fencl owns the property at 422 Main Street, which 
extends the entire block between Main and State Streets, and the parking lot on the parcel north 
of 422 Main Street. Mr. Fencl wishes to sell the parking lot property to a developer, but there is a 
25 foot wide ingress/egress easement dividing the property hindering redevelopment.  The 25 
foot easement will need to be vacated to allow development, which is the reason for the 
dedication of this new easement.  
 
As part of this easement agreement, Mr. Fencl  is required to construct new pavement through a 
landscape area to provide a direct connection from the existing alley down to the 422 Main 
Street property and then east to connect to State Street.  Mr. Fencl anticipates the construction 
of the improvements will be completed the week of May 17-21, 2021. Once the construction has 
been completed, the staff will bring forward a request to vacate the 25 foot easement across the 
parking lot property.     
 
Attached are the new access easement agreement and a subordination agreement executed by 
BankIowa, the mortgage holder, acknowledging the encumbrance of the new easement to the 
City of Cedar Falls.   
 

188

Item 22.



               City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
               Dedication of Ingress/Egress 
               Easement                

A
lle

y 

Existing ingress/egress 
easement 

New ingress/egress 
easement 

 
 
Fencl Property– 422 Main Street 

189

Item 22.



RESOLUTION NO. ______________ 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND ACCEPTING AN ACCESS EASEMENT FOR 

PUBLIC INGRESS/EGRESS  ON LOTS 4, 5 AND 6, BLOCK 8, OF GARRISON AND DEANS 

ADDITION TO CEDAR FALLS AND PARCEL “D” IN PART OF BLOCK 8, GARRISION & 

DEANS ADDITION TO CEDAR FALLS CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 

BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA 

 

 WHEREAS, a request was submitted to the Cedar Falls Planning and Community Services 

Department to dedicate a 16.5 foot and 20 foot wide public ingress and egress easement on Lots 4, 5 

and 6, Block 8, of Garrison and Deans Addition to Cedar Falls and Parcel “D” in part of Block 8, 

Garrison and Deans Addition to Cedar Falls City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa and 

 

 WHEREAS, said public easement will allow traffic from an existing north/south alley 

located along 4th Street between Main and State Street to an exit on State Street. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that a 16.5 foot and 20 foot public ingress and egress easement is hereby 

dedicated upon the property described as: 

 

THE EASTERN 16.5 FEET OF PARCEL “D” EXTENDING SOUTH FROM THE 

EXISTING ALLEY 35.47 FEET AND THEN WIDENING TO 20 FEET AND 

CONTINUING 19.95 FEET SOUTH TO LOT 6, 

 

AND 

 

THE EASTERN 20 FEET OF LOT 6 EXTENDING 9.58 FEET SOUTH TO LOT 5, 

 

AND 

 

THE EASTERN 20 FEET OF LOT 5 EXTENDING SOUTH 40.87 FEET 

 

AND 

 

THE PORTION OF LOT 4 BEGINNING 19.4 FEET SOUTH OF THE NORTHERN LOT 

LINE OF LOT 4 EXTENDING 20 FEET SOUTH AND THENCE RUNNING PARALLEL 

TO SAID LINE 132.25 FEET TO THE RIGHT-OF-WAY OF STATE STREET. 

 

 INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of May, 2021. 

 

 

 

             

   Robert M. Green, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

        

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

190

Item 22.



191

Item 22.



192

Item 22.



193

Item 22.



194

Item 22.



195

Item 22.



196

Item 22.



197

Item 22.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

 

  

  

 

 
 
   
 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Michelle Pezley, Planner III 

 DATE: May 11, 2021 

 SUBJECT: CARES Act Community Development Block Grant Funds (CDBG-CV2) 
Service Agency Contracts- Northeast Iowa Food Bank 

 
 
In April 2020, the CARES Act was passed in response to COVID-19.  The State notified 
the City in mid-May that a portion of the State’s CDBG funds were anticipated to be 
proportionally allocated to Entitlement Communities through the Iowa Economic 
Development Authority (IEDA).  City Council approved the contract on their January 19th 
meeting, including an outline of how much of the funding would be distributed.   
 
The City received $369,432 as part of the CDBG-CV2.  The funds are broken up to four 
categories:  Service Agencies ($115,000), City response to Covid-19 ($75,430), 
Schools response to Covid-19 ($111,152), Administration ($40,026).  Staff has been 
working with the service agencies and schools to complete contracts over the past few 
months.  This is the last of the eight contracts staff proposes under the schools and 
service agencies.  Attached is the Northeast Iowa Food Bank Subrecipient agreement 
($40,000.00) to help support four positions within the Northeast Iowa Food Bank that 
have increased in job duties from Covid-19. 
  
Staff recommends approving the contract with Northeast Iowa Food Bank.  The City 
Attorney has reviewed the contract and State-required attachments. 
 
Please contact staff with any questions.  Thank you.  
 
Xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development  
       Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager      

198

Item 23.



199

Item 23.



200

Item 23.



201

Item 23.



202

Item 23.



203

Item 23.



204

Item 23.



205

Item 23.



206

Item 23.



207

Item 23.



208

Item 23.



209

Item 23.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Jaydevsinh Atodaria (JD), Planner I 

 DATE: May 13, 2021 

 SUBJECT: The Autumn Ridge Master Plan Amendment 
 

 
REQUEST: Request to approve revised Autumn Ridge Master Plan  

 
PETITIONER: BKND, Inc., Owner; CGA Engineering, Engineer 

 
LOCATION: 
 

West of Union Road and south of W. 1st Street 

 
PROPOSAL 
It is proposed to amend the RP master plan for the Autumn Ridge development, which was 
originally approved in 2001.  The proposed change includes minor revision from the previously 
updated Site Plan for Lot 3 Autumn Ridge 2nd Addition in 2005 with 50 units to 53 units 
distributed over 9 lots, thus slightly increasing the density of the area. In addition, as there have 
been several smaller changes over the years to the RP Plan, it is important to update the master 
plan for the entire development, so that it reflects changes made in previously platted areas, 
including the unplatted area proposed as Autumn Ridge 10th Addition, which will add 6 condo 
buildings, just north of Autumn Ridge 2nd Addition. 
 
BACKGROUND 
BKND, Inc. is proposing the next phase of the Autumn Ridge development with an amendment 
to the master plan. Autumn Ridge subdivision along Union Road has developed over the past 
20 years beginning with a series of retirement condos and patio homes along Autumn Ridge 
Road coupled with an expansion of single-family dwellings along Paddington Drive, Berry Hill 
Road, and Shocker Road. A recent expansion in the Autumn Ridge Subdivision includes some 
single-family dwellings and duplexes along Thresher Court. In total, the entire Autumn Ridge 
development consists of approximately 105 acres of land reserved for a mixture of residential 
homes from single-family dwelling units, retirement units, and condominiums.  
 
In 2005, the owner submitted an RP Plan amendment for Lot 3 of Autumn Ridge 2nd addition to 
updating the previously approved 22 unit senior condominium facility with 2 six-plex buildings 
and a five-plex building. At that time, a concept of similar continuation of 6 six-plexes on the 
area north of Lot 3 was presented which was to be done in the future. But it was noted that the 
area north will have to be platted prior to building anything in the future. With this application, the 

210

Item 24.



developer has submitted a preliminary and final plat for Autumn Ridge 10th Addition, which 
includes the addition of 6 six-plexes, just north of Autumn Ridge 2nd addition (Same area as 
before). The RP master plan and the developmental procedures agreement must be updated to 
reflect these proposed changes, before approval of the new preliminary and final plat for 
Autumn Ridge 10th Additions.  
 
For any proposed development that is not consistent with the approved RP master plan, an 
amendment is required to be approved by Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council. 
The proposed new master plan possesses minor changes from the previously approved master 
plan in terms of density of residential units, common public space/amenities and street 
connections. Therefore, both the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council must first 
review and approve the revised RP master plan prior to the approval of the preliminary plat and 
final plat for Autumn Ridge 10th Addition located in the southern part of the Autumn Ridge 
development. 
 
City staff notes that the proposed master plan was reviewed at a regular scheduled meeting on 
24th November 2020 along with the new proposed 9th Addition. However, at this time applicant 
only wishes to continue forward with an update to the master plan for Autumn Ridge 10th 
Addition, therefore a new master plan exhibit has been attached in the packet for review.   
 
ZONING 
The purpose of the R-P Planned Residence District is to permit the establishment of multi-use 
and integrated use residential developments and to provide for the orderly planned growth of 
residential developments in larger tracts of land. The RP District allows flexibility in the types of 
dwellings, lot sizes, building heights, and setbacks. However, to ensure that the area is 
developed in an orderly manner, provides for efficient traffic circulation between neighborhoods, 
and includes the necessary infrastructure to meet the needs of the future residents, a master 
plan must be submitted with the rezoning, which is adopted through a  developmental 
procedures agreement.  
 
The entire Autumn Ridge development is about 105 acres and was rezoned to R-P, Planned 
Residential District from A-1, Agricultural Zoning District in 2001. As part of that rezoning, an RP 
master plan (shown below) along with a developmental procedures agreement was approved 
for the entire development area. The original master plan illustrates a mix of housing types, a 
proposed layout for the streets, and a 3 to 5-acre lake which would serve as both a stormwater 
retention/detention facility for much of the 105-acre development and as shared community 
space and trails around the perimeter of the lake. These various elements were also identified in 
the developmental procedures agreement.  
 
 
 

211

Item 24.



 
 
 
Over the past 20 years, Autumn Ridge has been developed in many phases with increasing 
density in some areas and reductions in others, altering street connections and changing the 
types of housing as per the developer’s market strategy. There were amendments to the RP 
Plan in 2005 and 2006 to reflect changes south of the east-west drainage way (Autumn Ridge 
2nd, 3rd, and 4th Additions). The illustration below particularly highlights the Autumn Ridge 2nd 
Addition and its RP Plan Amendment for Lot 3 to include 9 buildings, 50 units instead of 
originally proposed 22 unit senior condominiums. Over the years, other significant variations 
from the original plan include the elimination of the street connection across the drainage way 
and changes to the housing types and locations. 

Original 2001 RP Master Plan for Autumn Ridge 

Original RP Master Plan for Autumn Ridge RP Master Plan Amendment for Lot 3, Autumn 

Ridge 2
nd

 Addition  

212

Item 24.



 
STAFF ANALYSIS 
The Master Plan exhibit submitted with the application highlights the proposed 10th addition in 
the subdivision in context with the rest of the development in Autumn Ridge. The updated RP 
master plan proposed by the developer is described below, with areas of change from the 
original plan highlighted and staff recommendations noted.  
 
 

 
Autumn Ridge 10th Addition: 
This subdivision is located just west of Autumn Lane and is accessed from Union Road from 
Thresher Court in the north and Autumn Ridge Road in the south. The proposed addition is a 
continuation of six plexes that are built just south of the proposed subdivision. The addition is 
planned with 6 lots in two phases with one 6-plex per lot. Access to the units will be from private 
drives, which will be extended westward from Autumn Lane. The private streets will not be 
connecting with any abutting street northward or southward. The proposal aligns with the RP 
plan amendment approved in 2005 with a marginal increase in density, which illustrated the six-
plexes in place of the original proposal of independent living units, and will be a further 
continuation of the same in two phases once platted for development.  

 

Proposed Autumn Ridge 10th Addition 

Phase No. of Lots No. of Townhomes 

One  3 18 

Two 3 18 

Total 6 36 

 
 
 

Proposed Revised RP Master Plan for Autumn 

Ridge 

213

Item 24.



Sidewalk Connections 

Over 20 years of time, there have been many changes in the subdivision. Street connectivity is 
important to provide good access to properties, distribute traffic and reduce congestion and 
emergency response times, and provide opportunities for future development on abutting 
properties. In addition, establishing pedestrian connections throughout neighborhoods promotes 
walkability and safe passage for pedestrians.  

 
With the proposal, the developer will be adding the public sidewalk along the west side of 
Autumn Lane, thus bridging the pedestrian connection gap between Autumn Ridge 2nd Addition 
on the south to Autumn Ridge 7th addition on the north. The same has been shown on the 
preliminary plat and mentioned under the public improvement section in the deed of dedication. 
City Staff notes the importance of following through on the commitment to install sidewalks as 
lots are developed to ensure better livability of the community.  

 
As per City Code Section 20.5 – C-(10) and section 20.5 – C-(11), public sidewalks shall be 
installed at the time of new building construction on new or recently platted lots or within five 
years following final subdivision approval. The deed of dedication with the subdivision notes the 
same as well. City staff notes that the public sidewalks should be installed by the developer to 
continue allowing connected pedestrian movement across the subdivision to ensure walkability 
throughout the subdivision. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval of the requested R-P Master Plan 
Amendment for Autumn Ridge Development at their regular meeting on 12th May 2021 with a 
vote of 6 ayes and 0 nays. The Community Development Department also recommends 
approval of the proposed RP Master Plan Amendment to include Autumn Ridge 10th Addition 
with the following stipulation: 
 

1. Any comments or direction specified by the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
2. Conformance with all city staff recommendations and technical requirements. 

 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion 
& Vote 
05/12/2021 

Chair Leeper introduced the item and Mr. Atodaria explained the proposal for 
amendment of the Autumn Ridge Master Plan. He discussed that the proposal 
was partly discussed at Planning and Zoning Meeting on November 24th, 2020 
wherein two proposals were discussed for amendment in the R-P Master Plan. 
However, at this time the applicant wishes to move forward with just one of the 
proposals. Mr. Atodaria stated that the proposed amendment would allow the 
development of Autumn Ridge 10th Addition with 6 six-plexes in two phases. He 
also mentioned that this will be accessed by two private drives from Autumn 
Lane and the developer will be adding public sidewalks along Autumn Lane to 
bridge the existing sidewalk gap in the subdivision. Mr. Atodaria mentioned that 
staff recommends approval of the requested amendment of the R-P Master Plan 
with stipulations and he and the applicant representative Mr. Daters will be 
available to answer any questions that the commission or any public may have. 
 
Applicant representative Mr. Daters stated that there is no specific comment at 
this time and mentioned that the developer intends to start construction soon on 
the project and therefore respectfully requests the consideration to make a 
recommendation to City Council. Mr. Daters mentioned that he will be available 

214

Item 24.



for any questions that the commission has or any public. 
 
Ms. Prideaux stated that the proposal is not concerning and made a motion to 
approve the item. Ms. Lynch seconded the motion. The motion was approved 
unanimously with 6 ayes (Larson, Leeper, Lynch, Prideaux, Saul, and Sears), 
and 0 nays. 
 

 

215

Item 24.



Pheasant
Ridge Golf

Course

Wynnewood Dr

Pheasant Dr

Berry Hill Rd

Paddington Dr

Thresher Ct

Shocker Rd

Autumn Ridge Rd

Cor duro yD r
Fieldston e Blvd

Go
lde

n L
n

Au
tum

n L
n

San
dahlwoodCir

Harvest Ln

N U
nio

n R
d

Un
ion

 Rd

W 1st St®¬57µ40 C-1

R-1

R-1SU

RP

A-1

A-1

Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission
May 12, 2021

Master Plan Amendment for Autumn
Ridge Subdivision

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

University Ave
Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Hu
ds

on
Rd

W Ridgeway Ave

S M
ain

 St

C ente rS t

Ma
in

St

W 12th St

W 1st St

E V ikin

g Rd
W Viking Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

W 27th St

E Greenhill Rd

Lincoln St

NUnion Rd E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ver

see
Rd

E 1st St
®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63£¤20

£¤218

^
Location

Map

216

Item 24.



W
W

W
W

W W W W

W
W

W
W

W W W W

W
W

W
W

W W W W

W
W

W
W

W W W W

W
W

W
W

W W W W

OH EOH EOH EOH EOH EOH EOH E

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
5106 Nordic Drive

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Ph 319-266-0258
www.cgaconsultants.com

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

78
6\

dw
gs

\E
xh

ib
its

\5
78

6 
- M

as
te

r P
la

n 
20

21
-0

4-
09

_1
0t

h 
Ad

di
tio

n.
dw

g 
- P

re
lim

 P
la

t 2
 o

f 5
 - 

 0
4-

14
-2

1 
- 8

:1
8a

m
 - 

AC
D2

76

CGA AUTUMN RIDGE  TENTH ADDITION
1 OF 1

5786

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA MASTER PLAN
ACD

ACD

ACD 04-09-21

04-09-21

04-09-21

MASTER PLAN - AUTUMN RIDGE  10th ADDITION
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

N

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

200'100' 300'

PHASE LOTS UNITS

1 3 18

2 3 18

TOTAL 6 36

AUTUMN RIDGE 10TH LEGEND

AUTUMN RIDGE 10TH

CONDOMINIUM LOT = 6

217

Item 24.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNION RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUTUMN LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
THRESHER CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUTUMN RIDGE RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOCKER RD



218

Item 24.



219

Item 24.



220

Item 24.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Jaydevsinh Atodaria (JD), Planner I 

  Matthew Tolan, Civil Engineer II 

 DATE: May 13, 2021 

 SUBJECT: The Autumn Ridge 10th Addition Preliminary Plat and Final Plat 
 

 
REQUEST: Request to approve Autumn Ridge 10th Addition Preliminary and Final Plat  

 
PETITIONER: BKND, Inc., Owner; CGA Engineering, Engineer 

 
LOCATION: 
 

The property is located west of Autumn Lane in Autumn Ridge Subdivision 

 
PROPOSAL 
The applicant proposes a preliminary plat for Autumn Ridge 10th Addition, which will include lots 
intended for 6 six-plexes along Autumn Lane in the Autumn Ridge development. The proposed 
subdivision includes the development of six plexes in two phases and it would be similar to the 
six-plexes which are already existing, just south of the proposed subdivision.  
 
City staff notes that the case was already presented at the regular scheduled Planning and 
Zoning Meeting on 24th November 2020 along with the newly proposed Autumn Ridge 9th 
Addition and RP Master Plan Amendment for the entire subdivision. At this time, the applicant 
wishes to move forward with the Autumn Ridge 10th Addition and if approved would likely start 
the construction of the proposed 10th Addition. Attachments in the packet include both 
preliminary and final plat documents along with all the required legal paper work to process the 
cases.  
 
BACKGROUND 
BKND, Inc. is proposing the next phase of the Autumn Ridge development with an amendment 
to the master plan. Autumn Ridge subdivision along Union Road has developed over the past 
20 years beginning with a series of retirement condos and patio homes along the Autumn Ridge 
Road coupled with an expansion of single-family dwellings along Paddington Drive, Berry Hill 
Road, and Shocker Road. A recent expansion in the Autumn Ridge Subdivision includes some 
single-family dwellings and duplex along Thresher Court. In total, the entire Autumn Ridge 
development consists of approximately 105 acres of land reserved for a mixture of residential 
homes from single-family dwelling units, retirement units, and condominiums. In 2013, the 
owner submitted and got the approval of a preliminary plat for the majority of the remaining area 

221

Item 25.



of the development. However, there was no Master Plan amendment done at the time. At 
present, the developer proposes to update the RP Master Plan and proposes a new preliminary 
plat for Autumn Ridge 10th Addition in concert with the revised master plan.  
 
Before approval of this preliminary and final plat, a Master Plan amendment is required to be 
approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council as it is one of the requisite 
items with R-P, Planned Residential Zone, and the development of the subdivision is per the 
approved Master plan. Therefore, both Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council must 
first review and approve the master plan before the review of the preliminary plat for the 
proposed Autumn Ridge 10th Addition. 
 
ZONING 
The proposed subdivision plat includes 6 lots on 5.41(approx.) acres of land which will be 
accessed with two private drives from Autumn Lane. The property is zoned RP, Planned 
Residential which permits a variety of uses subject to an approved master development plan. In 
this case, there was an RP Plan amendment approved in 2006 to include the six-plexes in place 
of the proposed senior living facility. As described in the staff report for the updated RP Master 
Plan for Autumn Ridge, the new master plan illustrates the proposed concept for the 6-plexes in 
Autumn Ridge 10th Addition.  
 
The purpose of the R-P Planned Residence District is to permit the establishment of multi-use 
and integrated use residential developments and to provide for the orderly planned growth of 
residential developments in larger tracts of land. The RP District allows flexibility in the types of 
dwellings, lot sizes, building heights, and setbacks. However, to ensure that the area is 
developed in an orderly manner, provides for efficient traffic circulation between neighborhoods, 
and includes the necessary infrastructure to meet the needs of the future residents, a master 
plan must be submitted with the rezoning, which is adopted through a  developmental 
procedures agreement. It is also intended that such planned residence districts be designed 
and developed in substantial conformity with the standards of the comprehensive plan and 
with recognized principles of civic design, land use planning, and landscape architecture.  
 
A 35-foot building setback will be continued around the “perimeter” of the RP district in this area. 
Lots 2 and 5 are located on the perimeter of the RP Zoning district; therefore a 35-foot rear yard 
setback is shown on the plat. The deed of dedication, developmental procedures agreement, 
along with a new revised Master plan and preliminary plat will outline the minimum building 
setback standards. City staff notes that the proposed lots appear to be of sufficient lot width and 
lot area to satisfy the RP district requirements. 
 
STAFF ANALYSIS 
Development of the proposed Autumn Ridge 10th Addition will proceed from south to north and 
will be located just west of Autumn Lane. The proposed addition will be accessed from Autumn 
Ridge Road on the south end and Thresher Court on the north end. 
 
The developer proposes thirty-six (36) townhomes in the form of 6, six-plexes. The developer’s 
request aligns with the latest updated “Master Plan” (if approved) and the proposal will not lead 
to any new density in the subdivision. Two phases of development are proposed with three six-
plexes in each phase. Units will be accessed from private drives that extend from Autumn Lane.  
 
 
 

222

Item 25.



Phase No. of Lots No. of Townhomes 

One  3 18 

Two 3 18 

Total 6 36 

 
City Staff notes that a public sidewalk will be required along the west side of Autumn Lane that 
will bridge the gap between existing sidewalks. In response, the applicant shows the proposed 
sidewalk along the west side of Autumn Lane in the preliminary plat, and also same has been 
noted under the “Public Improvement” section in the deed of dedication (Attached for review). 
 
Details of the proposed lots for the six-plexes: 
 
Setbacks:  
As per the R-P, Planned Residential District, there are no minimum yard or height requirements 
except that the minimum yards, as specified in the R-4 residence district shall be provided 
around the boundaries of the planned residence district. The developer plans to continue the 35 
feet perimeter setback as per the original approved plan for the lots located along the perimeter 
line of the subdivision. In addition, the developer proposes the following minimum setbacks for 
the development of six-plexes. 
 
Minimum Front Yard setback = 20 feet 
Minimum Side Yard setback = 8 feet 
Minimum Rear Yard setback = 35 feet 
 
City staff finds that the setbacks will be appropriate for the development of proposed six-plexes 
on the lots. City staff notes that the proposed setbacks should be mentioned in the deed of 
dedication. 
 
Lot size 
The proposed lot size varies from 0.88 acres to 0.94 acres in area. City staff notes that there are 
no details on the configuration of a multi-unit dwelling proposed by the developer. But the 
applicant indicates that the proposal will be similar to the existing six-plexes, just south of the 
proposed area.  
 
Public Sidewalks: 
A public sidewalk will be required along Autumn Lane along the frontage of the six-plex lots. 
Sidewalks must be continuous and connect to other sidewalks in the larger subdivision.  
 
Utilities: 
The proposed subdivision will be accessed with private drives and will be extending the utility 
lines from the adjacent existing development of the Autumn Ridge subdivision. 
 
The developer has designated areas within the proposed lots for the private drive rights-of-way, 
utility easements, and drainage easements that will define the developable area of the lots 
intended for the six-plex buildings.  
 
Notification of neighboring property owners: 
City Staff sent courtesy notices to the surrounding property owners on 17th November 2020. And 
the city staff also sent out another courtesy notice to the surrounding property owners on 30th 

223

Item 25.



April 2021. The applicant has submitted a deed of dedication for the subdivision, which has 
been attached with the packet for reference.  
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
 
Utilities - City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, noted that the water, 
electric, gas and communication services are available to the site. The developer is responsible for 
the construction of a properly sized water system from the existing 8” water main on the west side 
of Autumn Lane and the private water main south of Autumn Ridge 10th. Included in the 
installation are valves, fire hydrants and water service stubs for the new lots. Water main sizing 
and fire hydrant and valve placement locations will need to be finalized during water construction 
plan review. The developer is responsible for the cost of the streetlights required for any City 
streets. See attached Developer Information Sheet for detailed information regarding utility 
installations. The easements identified on the plat satisfy CFU requirements. 
 
Stormwater Management – The petitioner’s engineer has submitted a stormwater management 
plan to the City and it has been reviewed by the City Engineer. The City Engineer has 
determined that the plan meets the City’s subdivision requirements and also finds that the 
design will improve the drainage pattern that has developed over the years on this undeveloped 
parcel of land. Following is a summary of the proposed stormwater management system for the 
new subdivision. 
 
A regional detention facility was constructed as a part of Autumn Ridge 6th addition. The 
stormwater facilities are platted currently under Autumn Ridge 6th Addition. However, this 
stormwater facility is designed to serve this tract of land now known as Autumn Ridge 10th 
Addition. Conveyance to the regional detention on Autumn Ridge 10th Addition is collected either 
in the private street with intakes or captured by overland swales protected in drainage 
easements. Collection from private street intakes will be captured and piped to the north fringe 
of the detention basin previously established in Autumn Ridge 6th Addition. Likewise, the 
overland drainage swales will convey rear-yard drainage within the swales into intakes to be 
collected by the private storm sewer network or by overland route towards the northern basin.  
 
During construction, it will be the developer’s responsibility to develop and maintain a Storm 
Water Pollution Prevention Plan that will limit onsite erosion from construction-related activities, 
as outline by City Code.  
 
Sanitary Sewer - The sanitary sewer currently runs along Autumn Lane. The developer will be 
extending private sanitary sewer service connections from existing manholes located on Autumn 
Lane. The private sanitary sewer will be extended westerly along the private street network to 
service each unit.  
 
Other – City staff notes that all the legal paperwork for the final plat of Autumn Ridge 10th 
Addition has been submitted to city staff and is attached in the packet for review. City staff notes 
that any outstanding permit issues regarding building, SWPPP, and land use permit be sorted 
out prior to commencing construction work for the project.  
 
 
 
 
 

224

Item 25.



STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval of the proposed Preliminary and Final 
Plat for Autumn Ridge 10th Addition at their regular meeting on 12th May 2021 with a vote of 6 
ayes and 0 nays. The Community Development Department also recommends approval of the 
proposed the proposed preliminary and final plat for 10th Addition and recommends approval 
with the following stipulation:  
 

1. Any comments or direction specified by the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
2. Conformance with all city staff recommendations and technical requirements. 

 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion 
& Vote 
05/12/2021 

Chair Leeper introduced the item and Mr. Atodaria explained the proposal for the 
proposed preliminary and final plat for Autumn Ridge 10th Addition. He discussed 
that the proposal was partly discussed at Planning and Zoning Meeting on 
November 24th, 2020 wherein two proposals were discussed. However, at this 
time the applicant wishes to move forward with just one of the proposals. Mr. 
Atodaria stated that the proposed preliminary plat would allow the creation of 36 
units on 6 lots. He also mentioned that the proposal will be a two-phase 
development which will allow the development of three lots and three six-plexes 
in phase I and the remaining three lots and three six-plexes in phase II. He also 
explained the setbacks, ingress/egress, and drainage easements for the 10th 
addition. Mr. Atodaria also highlighted the proposed mailbox location, the 
sidewalk that will be added along Autumn Lane, and connection of North-South 
private drive. He also stated that the proposal meets the zoning code regulations 
and since all the development is private; the applicant would also like to approve 
the final plat for the Autumn Ridge 10th addition. Mr. Atodaria stated that the staff 
has received all the legal paperwork concerning the final plat and the final plat is 
in line with the proposed preliminary plat. Mr. Atodaria mentioned that staff 
recommends approval of the proposed preliminary and final plat for Autumn 
Ridge 10th addition with stipulations and he and the applicant representative Mr. 
Daters will be available to answer any questions that the commission or any 
public may have. 
 
There was no additional discussion. Ms. Saul made a motion to approve the 
item. Ms. Lynch seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously 
with 6 ayes (Larson, Leeper, Lynch, Prideaux, Saul, and Sears), and 0 nays. 
 

 

225

Item 25.



Thresher Ct
Cor duroy Dr

Go
lde

n L
n

Autumn Ridge Rd

Shocker Rd

Au
tum

n L
n

Paddington Dr

RP

Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission
May 12, 2021

Preliminary and Final Plat for Autumn
Ridge 10th Addition

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

University Ave
Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Hu
ds

on
Rd

W Ridgeway Ave

S M
ain

 St

C ente rS t

Ma
in

St

W 12th St

W 1st St

E V ikin

g Rd
W Viking Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

W 27th St

E Greenhill Rd

Lincoln St

NUnion Rd E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ver

see
Rd

E 1st St
®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63£¤20

£¤218

^Location
Map

226

Item 25.



Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
5106 Nordic Drive

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Ph 319-266-0258
www.cgaconsultants.com

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

68
4\

dw
g\

Su
rv

ey
\P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
Pl

at
\5

68
4 

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

Pl
at

.d
wg

 - 
PP

 1
 o

f 3
 - 

 1
1-

11
-2

0 
- 1

0:
48

am
 - 

sj
c3

25

CGA AUTUMN RIDGE TENTH ADDITION
1 OF 3

5684

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA PRELIMINARY PLAT
MJS

SJC

TRS

10-22-20

02-16-18

LEGEND

SIGN

X X X X

105

W (*) W

San(*) San

StS (*) StS

M

C C

G (*) G

OH E OH E

E (*) E

T(*) T

T T

PRELIMINARY PLAT
AUTUMN RIDGE TENTH ADDITION

 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

OWNERS OF RECORD
B.N.K.D., INC.
1603 RUBBLE ROAD
WAVERLY, IOWA 50677

SURVEY REQUESTED BY:

ZONING INFORMATION:
CURRENT: RP (PLANNED RESIDENCE DISTRICT)

SURVEYOR AND ENGINEER
TRAVIS R. STEWART, P.L.S.
ADAM DATERS, P.E.
CLAPSADDLE-GARBER ASSOCIATES
P.O. BOX 754 - 16 E. MAIN STREET
MARSHALLTOWN, IOWA 50158
(641)752-6701

NOTE:
ALL BEARINGS ARE THE RESULT OF G.P.S. OBSERVATIONS
USING NAD83 IOWA STATE PLAN NORTH ZONE

CLOSURE:
- ALL SUBDIVISION BOUNDARIES ARE WITHIN THE 1:10,000 ERROR OF

CLOSURE REQUIREMENT
- ALL LOTS ARE WITHIN THE 1:5000 ERROR OF CLOSURE REQUIREMENT.

VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

SURVEY LEGEND
GOVERNMENT CORNER MONUMENT FOUND

SET MAG NAIL

PARCEL OR LOT CORNER MONUMENT FOUND

GOVERNMENT CORNER MONUMENT SET

ID CAP #17162
SET 1/2" x 30" REBAR w/ORANGE PLASTIC

1/2" x 30" REBAR w/ORANGE PLASTIC ID CAP #17162

AS NOTED ON PLAN

PROJECT
LOCATION

FLOOD ZONE
(ZONE X )
PANEL # 19013C0161F
EFFECTIVE DATE: JULY 18, 2011

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
AN UNPLATTED TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER AND THE EAST ONE-HALF
OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER, ALL IN SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, CITY
OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:
BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 15, AUTUMN RIDGE SEVENTH ADDITION, AS RECORDED ON INSTRUMENT
#2017-10235; THENCE SOUTH 0°11'36" EAST, 360.10 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTH LINE OF TRACT "B", AUTUMN RIDGE 2ND
ADDITION, AS RECORDED ON INSTRUMENT #2004-36806; THENCE NORTH 88°47'56" WEST, 410.16 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST
LINE OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 9; THENCE NORTH 0°12'39" WEST, 239.02
FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 9; THENCE
NORTH 0°11'08" EAST, 121. 06 FEET ALONG THE WEST LINE OF THE EAST ONE-HALF OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID
SECTION 9; THENCE SOUTH 88°48'01" EAST, 409.43 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF TRACT "C", AUTUMN RIDGE SIXTH ADDITION,
AS RECORDED ON INSTRUMENT #2017-6522 AND THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 15, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

AND

TRACT "B", AUTUMN RIDGE 2ND ADDITION IN THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP
89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA, AS
RECORDED ON INSTRUMENT #2004-36806.

AND

THAT PART OF LOT 2, AUTUMN RIDGE 2ND ADDITION IN THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 9,
TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY,
IOWA, AS RECORDED ON INSTRUMENT #2004-36806, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:
BEGINNING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF PARCEL "C" AS RECORDED ON INSTRUMENT #2013-16185; THENCE SOUTH 89°46'47"
WEST, 410.00 FEET ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID PARCEL "C" AND THE NORTH LINE OF PARCEL "E" AS RECORDED ON
INSTRUMENT #2017-20633 TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF
SECTION 9; THENCE NORTH 0°12'26" WEST, 151.14 FEET ALONG SAID WEST LINE TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF TRACT "B" AS
RECORDED ON INSTRUMENT #2004-36806; THENCE SOUTH 88°47'58" EAST, 410.16 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID TRACT
"B" TO THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 2; THENCE SOUTH 0°11'36" EAST, 140.97 FEET ALONG SAID EAST LINE TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING.

THIS PARCEL CONTAINS 5.42 ACRES.

SETBACK DATA

Pages or sheets covered by this seal:

Signature Date

My license renewal date is December 31, 2021

Iowa License Number 17162

Travis R. Stewart, PLS

I hereby certify that this land surveying document was
prepared and related survey work was performed by me
or under my direct personal supervision and that I am a
duly Licensed Professional Land Surveyor under the
laws of the State of Iowa.

DATE PREPARED : 10-22-20

O
F E

N

EIS

ES O

ANO
I

L
WA I

GN

EDL

P
R

19579

EIC NS

E
R

Pages or sheets covered by this seal:

Signature Date

My license renewal date is December 31, 2020

Iowa License Number 19579

Adam C. Daters, PE

I hereby certify that this engineering document was
prepared by me or under my direct personal supervision
and that I am a duly licensed Professional Engineer
under the laws of the State of Iowa.

AD

AM

A
D

C .

ET

R
S

B.N.K.D., INC.
1603 RUBBLE ROAD
WAVERLY, IOWA 50677

N

CITY LIMITS

MAILBOX NOTES:
1. CLUSTER MAILBOX UNITS SHALL COMPLY WITH

ALL USPS STANDARDS & SPECIFICATIONS.

2. CONTRACTOR WILL CONSULT WITH THE CITY OF
CEDAR FALLS PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

3. ALL CLUSTER MAILBOXES SHALL BE PLACED IN
THE R.O.W.

TS

T
RAWE.RSIVART

NE SEDIL C

17162

WAI O

P
R

O
F

E
SS IONAL L AND SUR

V
E

Y
O

R

SHEET 1 OF 3, SHEET 2 OF 3, AND SHEET 3 OF 3.

(  )     RECORDED AS

FRONT YARD = 20 FT
REAR YARD =  35 FT
SIDE YARD =   8 FT

*SETBACKS LISTED ARE MINIMUM, REFER TO PLAT FOR
SHOWN SETBACKS.

SITE NOTE:
1. NO ABOVE GROUND UTILITIES TO BE PLACED ON OVERLAND FLOW PATHS AND ESTABLISHED DRAINAGE EASEMENTS.

227

Item 25.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECIDUOUS TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHRUBS (BUSHES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN (TYPE AS NOTED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTOUR LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEANOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEEHIVE INTAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD ELECTRICAL LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURIED ELECTRICAL LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWER POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL BOX/TRANSFORMER

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE PEDESTAL



M
M

M

M

Sa
n(

D) TV
TVTV TV

Sa
n(

D) T(D) T(D) T(D) T(D) T(D)T(D) T(D) T(D) T(D) T(D) T(D) T(D)

W(D)W(D)W(D)W(D)W(D)W(D)W(D)W(D)W(D)W(D)

W(D)W(D)W(D)W(D)W(D)W(D)W(D)W(D)W(D)

W
(D

)

W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D)

San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D)

Sa
n(

D)
Sa

n(
D)

Sa
n(

D) Sa
n(

D)

San(D)San(D)San(D)San(D)San(D)San(D)

W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D)

W(D) W(D)

Sa
n(

D)

W
(D

)

W
(D

)

W
(D

)

W
(D

)

W
(D

)

W
(D

)

W
(D

)

M
M

M

StS(D)

StS(D)

St
S(

D)

M

St
S(

D)
St

S(
D)

St
S(

D)
St

S(
D)

St
S(

D)

StS(D)

StS(D)

TV
TVTV TV

Sa
n(

D)

TV TV TVTV

TV
TV

TVTVTVTVTV

TV

TVTVTV

TV
TV

TVTVTVTV

TV
TV

TVTVTVTVTVTVTVTVTV

E(
D)

E(
D)

E(D) E(D) E(D)E(D)E(D)E(D)

G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)

E(
D)

E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D)

E(
D)

E(
D)

E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D)

E(
D)

E(
D)

E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D)

E(
D)

E(
D)

E(
D)

W
(D

)

W
(D

)

W(D) W(D)

Sa
n(

D)

W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

H
Y

D

H

YD

H
YD

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

H
YD

ZONED: RP

PHASE 2
PHASE 1

ZONED: RP

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

San San SanSanSanSanSanSanSanSanSan

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

SanSanSan

StS StS StS StS StS StS StSStS StS StS StS

StSStSStS

StSStSStSStSStSStS StSStSStS

ZONED: RP

(DRAINAGE STORM SEWER, AND
DETENTION EASEMENT DOC# 2014-10457)

ZO
N

E
D

: R
P

ZONED: RP

ZONED: RP

(D
O

C
 #

20
13

-1
61

85
)

ZO
N

E
D

: R
P

PROPOSED INGRESS/EGRESS
ACCESS EASEMENT

PROP. LINE (TYP.)

BUILDING LAYOUT (TYP.)

(D
O

C
 #

20
17

-2
06

33
)

ZO
N

E
D

: R
P

20.00'

147.02' 140.28' 140.08'

13
8.

25
'

27
1.

82
'

27
1.

93
'

27
1.

70
'

27
1.

58
'

13
8.

42
'

121.06'

13
7.

30
'

27
2.

13
'

169.61'

20.00'  DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

20.00'  DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

43.0' INGRESS/EGRESS
ACCESS EASEMENT

43.0' INGRESS/EGRESS
ACCESS EASEMENT

40
9.

43
'

S
88

°4
8'

01
"E

 
(N

89
°3

0'
13

"W
)

571.06'
S0°11'36"E (N1°02'16"W)

41
0.

00
' (4

09
.8

7'
)

S
89

°4
6'

47
"W

 
(N

88
°5

5'
43

"E
)

460.15'
N0°12'26"W

121.06'
N0°11'08"E

106.50'

239.02'
N0°12'39"W

360.10'
S0°11'36"E (N1°02'16"W)

41
0.

16
' (4

09
.9

9'
)

S
88

°4
7'

56
"E

 
(S

89
°3

9'
13

"E
)

41
0.

13
' (4

09
.9

9'
)

S
88

°4
7'

58
"E

 
(S

89
°3

9'
13

"E
)

151.14'

290.54'

140.97' (140.99')

69.99'

69.99'

R2
5'

R2
5'

R10
'

R10'

R10
'

R10
'

R2
5' R25

'

30
.0

' I
N

G
R

E
S

S
/E

G
R

E
S

S
A

C
C

E
S

S
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

N.
 L

IN
E 

TR
AC

T 
"B

"
SE

E 
NO

TE
 1

578.42'

30
.0

1'

125.35'

26
6.

95
'

26
6.

91
'

237.36'

26
6.

72
'

26
6.

69
'

128.97'

30
.0

0'

287.25' 290.55'

140.18' 150.40'

140.14' 140.34'

280.48'
S0°11'36"E (N1°02'16"W)

290.58'
S0°11'36"E (N1°02'16"W)

41
0.

16
' (4

09
.9

9'
)

N
88

°4
7'

56
"W

 
(S

89
°3

9'
13

"E
)

N.
 L

IN
E 

LO
T 

2

20.01'

25
9.

26
' (2

59
.0

4'
)

15
0.

17
'

LOT 1
0.94 ACRES

LOT 2
0.92 ACRES

LOT 3
0.87 ACRES

LOT 4
0.88 ACRES

LOT 5
0.91 ACRES

LOT 6
0.90 ACRES

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
5106 Nordic Drive

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Ph 319-266-0258
www.cgaconsultants.com

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

68
4\

dw
g\

Su
rv

ey
\P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
Pl

at
\5

68
4 

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

Pl
at

.d
wg

 - 
PP

 2
 o

f 3
 - 

 1
1-

11
-2

0 
- 1

0:
48

am
 - 

sj
c3

25

CGA AUTUMN RIDGE TENTH ADDITION
2  OF 3

5684

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA PRELIMINARY PLAT
MJS

SJC

TRS

10-22-20

02-16-18

PRELIMINARY PLAT - AUTUMN RIDGE TENTH ADDITION
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

N

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

60'30' 90'

25'  DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

12'  DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

DATE PREPARED : 10-22-20

1339.03'
N0°12'26"W

UNRECORDED STORM SEWER EASEMENT
PER FILE NUMBER: 2017-10235

10' UTILITY EASEMENT
FILE NUMBER: 2017-10235

10' UTILITY EASEMENT
FILE NUMBER: 2017-20633

2632.75' (2632.63')
N0°11'08"E (N0°40'12"W)

NW CORNER OF THE EAST 12 OF
THE NORTHEAST 14 SEC. 9,
T89N, R14W. FOUND MAG NAIL
IN ASPHALT. (DOC# 2014-11919)

NE CORNER OF THE
SOUTHWEST 14 OF THE
SOUTHEAST 14 SEC. 9, T89N,
R14W. FOUND 1" PINCH PIPE.
(FILE NUMBER: 2015-12479)

NW CORNER OF THE
NORTHEAST 14 OF THE
SOUTHEAST 14 SEC. 9, T89N,
R14W. FOUND LIMESTONE
WITH CUT "X". (FILE NUMBER:
2015-12480)

EXISTING WALK (TYP.)

PROPOSED WALK (TYP.)

NOTES
1. NORTH LINE OF AUTUMN RIDGE 2ND ADDITION (DOC

#2004-36806) AND PARCEL "A" (MISC. BK. 345 PG. 524)
2. STREET A, STREET, B AND STREET C SHALL ALL BE PRIVATE IN

NATURE AND SHALL BE A PERMANENT ACCESS EASEMENT.

EAST 14 CORNER
 SEC. 9, T89N, R14W

 FOUND IRON PIN
 (BK 0345 PG 681))

13
39

.1
7'

 (1
33

8.
91

')
S

88
°4

8'
12

"E
 

(S
89

°3
9'

13
"E

)

SO
UT

H 
LI

NE
 O

F 
E1 2 -

 N
E1 4 S

EC
. 9

-8
9-

14

WEST LINE OF E1
2 - NE1

4 SEC. 9-89-14
WEST LINE OF NE1

4 - SE1
4 SEC. 9-89-14

FND 12" IRON PIN W/
ILLEGIBLE YELLOW

PLASTIC CAP

P.O.B. UNPLATTED TRACT
SE CORNER LOT 15

FND 12" IRON PIN W/
BROKEN YELLOW

PLASTIC CAP

FND 12" REBAR W/
YELLOW PLASTIC CAP

P.O.B. LOT 2, AUTUMN
RIDGE SECOND ADD.
NE CORNER PARCEL "C"
FND 12" REBAR W/
YELLOW PLASTIC CAP

10' UTILITY
EASEMENT

PROPOSED
MAILBOX
LOCATION

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 (

TY
P

.)

BUILDING SETBACK LINE (TYP.)/35' PERIMETER SETBACK

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 (

TY
P

.)

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 (

TY
P

.)

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 (

TY
P

.)

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 (

TY
P

.)

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 (

TY
P

.)

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 (

TY
P

.)

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 /A

C
C

E
S

S
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T 
LI

N
E

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 /A

C
C

E
S

S
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T 
LI

N
E

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 /A

C
C

E
S

S
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T 
LI

N
E

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 /A

C
C

E
S

S
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T 
LI

N
E

BUILDING SETBACK LINE /ACCESS EASEMENT LINE BUILDING SETBACK LINE /ACCESS EASEMENT LINE

BUILDING SETBACK LINE (TYP.)/35' PERIMETER SETBACK

LO
T 

LI
N

E

LO
T 

LI
N

E

LO
T 

LI
N

E
LO

T 
LI

N
E

LOT LINE LOT LINE LOT LINE

228

Item 25.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1 AUTUMN RIDGE SECOND ADDITION LEDGES II 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 15 AUTUMN RIDGE SEVENTH ADDITION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 14 AUTUMN RIDGE SEVENTH ADDITION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT "C" AUTUMN RIDGE SIXTH ADDITION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT "B" AUTUMN RIDGE SECOND ADDITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PT. LOT 2 AUTUMN RIDGE SECOND ADDITION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 12 AUTUMN RIDGE SEVENTH ADDITION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUTUMN LANE (60' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUTUMN   RIDGE   SEVENTH   ADDITION' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL "C" PT. OF LOT 2 AUTUMN RIDGE SECOND ADDITION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL "E" PT. OF LOT 2 AUTUMN RIDGE SECOND ADDITION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
THRESHER COURT (70' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: LINDA S OSBORN UNPLATTED SW  NE   14 NE   14ZONED A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: JENNIFER K JACOBSON AND JAYNE A SPEAR UNPLATTED NW  SE   14 SE   14ZONED A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE1/4 SE1/4 SEC. 9-89-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE1/4 NE1/4 SEC. 9-89-14



M
M

M

M

Sa
n(

D) TV
TVTV TV

Sa
n(

D) T(D) T(D) T(D) T(D) T(D)T(D) T(D) T(D) T(D) T(D) T(D) T(D)

W(D)W(D)W(D)W(D)W(D)W(D)W(D)W(D)W(D)W(D)

W(D)W(D)W(D)W(D)W(D)W(D)W(D)W(D)W(D)

W
(D

)
W

(D
)

W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D)

San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D)

Sa
n(

D)
Sa

n(
D)

Sa
n(

D) Sa
n(

D)

San(D)San(D)San(D)San(D)San(D)San(D)

W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D) W(D)

W(D) W(D)

Sa
n(

D)

W
(D

)

W
(D

)

W
(D

)

W
(D

)

W
(D

)

W
(D

)

W
(D

)

M
M

M

StS(D)

StS(D)

St
S(

D)

M

St
S(

D)
St

S(
D)

St
S(

D)
St

S(
D)

St
S(

D)

StS(D)

StS(D)

TV
TVTV TV

Sa
n(

D)

TV TV TVTV

TV
TV

TVTVTVTVTV

TV

TVTVTV

TV
TV

TVTVTVTV

TV
TV

TVTVTVTVTVTVTVTVTV

E(
D)

E(
D)

E(D) E(D) E(D)E(D)E(D)E(D)

G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)G(D)

E(
D)

E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D)

E(
D)

E(
D)

E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D)

E(
D)

E(
D)

E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D)

E(
D)

E(
D)

E(
D)

W
(D

)

W
(D

)

W(D) W(D)

Sa
n(

D)

W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

H
Y

D

H

YD

H
YD

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

H

YD

ZONED: RP

PHASE 2
PHASE 1ZONED: RP

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

San San SanSanSanSanSanSanSanSanSan

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

SanSanSan

StS StS StS StS StS StS StSStS StS StS StS

StSStSStS

StSStSStSStSStSStS StSStSStS

ZONED: RP

(DRAINAGE STORM SEWER, AND
DETENTION EASEMENT DOC# 2014-10457)

ZO
N

E
D

: R
P

ZONED: RP

ZONED: RP

(D
O

C
 #

20
13

-1
61

85
)

ZO
N

E
D

: R
P

(D
O

C
 #

20
17

-2
06

33
)

ZO
N

E
D

: R
P

986

987

98
8

98
8

98
8

98
7

98
6

98
5

98
4

98
3

98
2

98
2

98
1

98
1

981
98

2

98
2

976 977 978 979 980 981 982 983 984 985 986 987 988 989 990 991

98
2

98
1

98
0

97
9

97
8

97
7

97
6

97
5

20.00'

PROPOSED INGRESS/EGRESS
ACCESS EASEMENT

PROP. LINE (TYP.)

BUILDING LAYOUT (TYP.)

20.00'  DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

20.00'  DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

31.00'

41
0.

00
' (4

09
.8

7'
)

S
89

°4
6'

47
"W

 
(N

88
°5

5'
43

"E
)

147.02' 140.28' 140.08'

13
8.

25
'

27
1.

82
'

27
1.

93
'

27
1.

70
'

27
1.

58
'

13
8.

42
'

121.06'

13
7.

30
'

27
2.

13
'

169.61'

40
9.

43
'

S
88

°4
8'

01
"E

 
(N

89
°3

0'
13

"W
)

571.06'
S0°11'36"E (N1°02'16"W)

460.15'
N0°12'26"W

121.06'
N0°11'08"E

106.50'

239.02'
N0°12'39"W

360.10'
S0°11'36"E (N1°02'16"W)

151.14'

290.54'

140.97' (140.99')

69.99'

69.99'

287.25' 290.55'

140.18' 150.40'

140.14' 140.34'

280.48'
S0°11'36"E (N1°02'16"W)

290.58'
S0°11'36"E (N1°02'16"W)

25
9.

26
' (2

59
.0

4'
)

15
0.

17
'

20.01'

LOT 1
0.94 ACRES

LOT 2
0.92 ACRES

LOT 3
0.87 ACRES

LOT 4
0.88 ACRES

LOT 5
0.91 ACRES

LOT 6
0.90 ACRES

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
5106 Nordic Drive

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Ph 319-266-0258
www.cgaconsultants.com

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

68
4\

dw
g\

Su
rv

ey
\P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
Pl

at
\5

68
4 

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

Pl
at

 3
 o

f 3
.d

wg
 - 

PP
 3

 o
f 3

 - 
 1

1-
11

-2
0 

- 1
0:

48
am

 - 
sj

c3
25

CGA AUTUMN RIDGE TENTH ADDITION
3  OF 3

5684

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA PRELIMINARY PLAT
MJS

SJC

TRS

10-22-20

02-16-18

N

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

60'30' 90'

UNRECORDED STORM SEWER EASEMENT
PER FILE NUMBER: 2017-10235

10' UTILITY EASEMENT
FILE NUMBER: 2017-10235

DATE PREPARED : 10-22-20

NOTES
THE EXTENT OF TOPOGRAPHIC CHANGES SHALL
CONSIST OF ROADWAY GRADING AND LOT GRADING.
· STREET , STREET B AND STREET C ARE TO BE

DESIGNATED AS PRIVATE ROADWAYS
· SLOPES SHALL NOT EXCEED 4:1 IN ANY ACCESS

EASEMENT AREA

10' UTILITY EASEMENT
FILE NUMBER: 2017-20633

25'  DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

12'  DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

1339.03'
N0°12'26"W2632.75' (2632.63')

S0°11'08"W (N0°40'12"W)

NW CORNER OF THE EAST 12 OF
THE NORTHEAST 14 SEC. 9,
T89N, R14W. FOUND MAG NAIL
IN ASPHALT. (DOC# 2014-11919)

NE CORNER OF THE
SOUTHWEST 14 OF THE
SOUTHEAST 14 SEC. 9, T89N,
R14W. FOUND 1" PINCH PIPE.
(FILE NUMBER: 2015-12479)

NW CORNER OF THE
NORTHEAST 14 OF THE
SOUTHEAST 14 SEC. 9, T89N,
R14W. FOUND LIMESTONE
WITH CUT "X". (FILE NUMBER:
2015-12480)

EAST 14 CORNER
 SEC. 9, T89N, R14W

 FOUND IRON PIN
 (BK 0345 PG 681))

13
39

.1
7'

 (1
33

8.
91

')
S

88
°4

8'
12

"E
 

(S
89

°3
9'

13
"E

)

SO
UT

H 
LI

NE
 O

F 
E1 2 -

 N
E1 4 S

EC
. 9

-8
9-

14

WEST LINE OF E1
2 - NE1

4 SEC. 9-89-14
WEST LINE OF NE1

4 - SE1
4 SEC. 9-89-14

PRELIMINARY PLAT - AUTUMN RIDGE TENTH ADDITION
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

FND 12" IRON PIN W/
ILLEGIBLE YELLOW

PLASTIC CAP

FND 12" REBAR W/
YELLOW PLASTIC CAP

P.O.B. UNPLATTED TRACT
SE CORNER LOT 15

FND 12" IRON PIN W/
BROKEN YELLOW

PLASTIC CAP

P.O.B. LOT 2, AUTUMN
RIDGE SECOND ADD.
NE CORNER PARCEL "C"
FND 12" REBAR W/
YELLOW PLASTIC CAP

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 (

TY
P

.)

BUILDING SETBACK LINE (TYP.)/35' PERIMETER SETBACK

10' UTILITY
EASEMENT

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 (

TY
P

.)

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 (

TY
P

.)

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 (

TY
P

.)

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 (

TY
P

.)

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 (

TY
P

.)

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 (

TY
P

.)

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 /A

C
C

E
S

S
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T 
LI

N
E

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 /A

C
C

E
S

S
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T 
LI

N
E

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 /A

C
C

E
S

S
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T 
LI

N
E

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 /A

C
C

E
S

S
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T 
LI

N
E

BUILDING SETBACK LINE /ACCESS EASEMENT LINE BUILDING SETBACK LINE /ACCESS EASEMENT LINE

BUILDING SETBACK LINE (TYP.)/35' PERIMETER SETBACK

LO
T 

LI
N

E

LO
T 

LI
N

E

LO
T 

LI
N

E
LO

T 
LI

N
E

LOT LINE LOT LINE LOT LINE

229

Item 25.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1 AUTUMN RIDGE SECOND ADDITION LEDGES II 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 15 AUTUMN RIDGE SEVENTH ADDITION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 14 AUTUMN RIDGE SEVENTH ADDITION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT "C" AUTUMN RIDGE SIXTH ADDITION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT "B" AUTUMN RIDGE SECOND ADDITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PT. LOT 2 AUTUMN RIDGE SECOND ADDITION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 12 AUTUMN RIDGE SEVENTH ADDITION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUTUMN LANE (60' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUTUMN   RIDGE   SEVENTH   ADDITION' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL "C" PT. OF LOT 2 AUTUMN RIDGE SECOND ADDITION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL "E" PT. OF LOT 2 AUTUMN RIDGE SECOND ADDITION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
968

AutoCAD SHX Text
969

AutoCAD SHX Text
970

AutoCAD SHX Text
971

AutoCAD SHX Text
972

AutoCAD SHX Text
973

AutoCAD SHX Text
974

AutoCAD SHX Text
975

AutoCAD SHX Text
976

AutoCAD SHX Text
985

AutoCAD SHX Text
984

AutoCAD SHX Text
979

AutoCAD SHX Text
980

AutoCAD SHX Text
981

AutoCAD SHX Text
983

AutoCAD SHX Text
984

AutoCAD SHX Text
985

AutoCAD SHX Text
986

AutoCAD SHX Text
989

AutoCAD SHX Text
990

AutoCAD SHX Text
991

AutoCAD SHX Text
990

AutoCAD SHX Text
987

AutoCAD SHX Text
988

AutoCAD SHX Text
989

AutoCAD SHX Text
990

AutoCAD SHX Text
986

AutoCAD SHX Text
987

AutoCAD SHX Text
988

AutoCAD SHX Text
989

AutoCAD SHX Text
990

AutoCAD SHX Text
991

AutoCAD SHX Text
992

AutoCAD SHX Text
993

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: LINDA S OSBORN UNPLATTED SW  NE   14 NE   14ZONED A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: JENNIFER K JACOBSON AND JAYNE A SPEAR UNPLATTED NW  SE   14 SE   14ZONED A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
THRESHER COURT (70' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE1/4 SE1/4 SEC. 9-89-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE1/4 NE1/4 SEC. 9-89-14



230

Item 25.



ZONED: RP

PHASE 2

PHASE 1

ZONED: RPZONED: RP

(DRAINAGE STORM SEWER, AND
DETENTION EASEMENT DOC# 2014-10457)

ZO
N

E
D

: R
P

ZONED: RP

ZONED: RP

(D
O

C
 #

20
13

-1
61

85
)

ZO
N

E
D

: R
P

PROPOSED INGRESS/EGRESS
ACCESS EASEMENT SEE

DETAIL SHEET 3 OF 3

PROP. LINE (TYP.)

(D
O

C
 #

20
17

-2
06

33
)

ZO
N

E
D

: R
P

20.00'

20.00'  DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

20.00'  DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

N.
 L

IN
E 

TR
AC

T 
"B

"
SE

E 
NO

TE
 1

43.0' INGRESS/EGRESS
ACCESS EASEMENT

43.0' INGRESS/EGRESS
ACCESS EASEMENT

20
.0

' I
N

G
R

E
S

S
/E

G
R

E
S

S
A

C
C

E
S

S
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

2.00'

18.00'

LOT 1
0.94 ACRES

LOT 2
0.92 ACRES

LOT 3
0.87 ACRES

LOT 4
0.88 ACRES

LOT 5
0.91 ACRES

LOT 6
0.90 ACRES

41
0.

00
' (

40
9.

87
')

S
89

°4
6'

47
"W

 (N
88

°5
5'

43
"E

)

41
0.

16
' (

40
9.

99
')

S
88

°4
7'

56
"E

 (S
89

°3
9'

13
"E

)

41
0.

13
' (

40
9.

99
')

S
88

°4
7'

58
"E

 (S
89

°3
9'

13
"E

)

41
0.

16
' (

40
9.

99
')

N
88

°4
7'

56
"W

 (S
89

°3
9'

13
"E

)

N.
 L

IN
E 

LO
T 

2

20.01'

147.02' 140.28' 140.08'

13
8.

25
'

27
1.

82
'

27
1.

93
'

27
1.

70
'

27
1.

58
'

13
8.

42
'

121.06'

13
7.

30
'

169.61'

40
9.

43
'

S
88

°4
8'

01
"E

 (N
89

°3
0'

13
"W

)

571.06'
S0°11'36"E (N1°02'16"W)

460.15'
N0°12'26"W

121.06'
N0°11'08"E

239.02'
N0°12'39"W

360.10'
S0°11'36"E (N1°02'16"W)

151.14'

290.54'

140.97' (140.99')

69.99'

69.99'

287.25' 290.55'

140.18' 150.40'

140.14' 140.34'

280.48'
S0°11'36"E (N1°02'16"W)

290.58'
S0°11'36"E (N1°02'16"W)

25
9.

26
' (

25
9.

04
')

15
0.

17
'

27
2.

13
'

17
0.

46
'

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
5106 Nordic Drive

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Ph 319-266-0258
www.cgaconsultants.com

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

68
4\

dw
g\

Su
rv

ey
\F

in
al

 P
la

t\5
68

4 
Fi

na
l P

la
t.d

wg
 - 

FP
 2

 o
f 3

 - 
 0

4-
21

-2
1 

- 7
:1

3a
m

 - 
sj

c3
25

CGA AUTUMN RIDGE TENTH ADDITION
2  OF 3

5684

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA FINAL PLAT
MJS

SJC

TRS

10-22-20

02-16-18

FINAL PLAT - AUTUMN RIDGE TENTH ADDITION
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

N

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

60'30' 90'

25'  DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

12'  DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

DATE PREPARED : 10-22-20

1339.03'
N0°12'26"W

UNRECORDED STORM SEWER EASEMENT
PER FILE NUMBER: 2017-10235

10' UTILITY EASEMENT
FILE NUMBER: 2017-10235

10' UTILITY EASEMENT
FILE NUMBER: 2017-20633

2632.75' (2632.63')
N0°11'08"E (N0°40'12"W)

NW CORNER OF THE EAST 12 OF
THE NORTHEAST 14 SEC. 9,
T89N, R14W. FOUND MAG NAIL
IN ASPHALT. (DOC# 2014-11919)

NE CORNER OF THE
SOUTHWEST 14 OF THE
SOUTHEAST 14 SEC. 9, T89N,
R14W. FOUND 1" PINCH PIPE.
(FILE NUMBER: 2015-12479)

NW CORNER OF THE
NORTHEAST 14 OF THE
SOUTHEAST 14 SEC. 9, T89N,
R14W. FOUND LIMESTONE
WITH CUT "X". (FILE NUMBER:
2015-12480)

NOTES
1. NORTH LINE OF AUTUMN RIDGE 2ND ADDITION (DOC

#2004-36806) AND PARCEL "A" (MISC. BK. 345 PG. 524)
2. STREET A, STREET, B AND STREET C SHALL ALL BE PRIVATE

AND SHALL BE ENCOMPASSED IN  A PERMANENT ACCESS
EASEMENT.

EAST 14 CORNER
 SEC. 9, T89N, R14W

 FOUND IRON PIN
 (BK 0345 PG 681))

13
39

.1
7'

 (1
33

8.
91

')
S

88
°4

8'
12

"E
 (S

89
°3

9'
13

"E
)

SO
UT

H 
LI

NE
 O

F 
E1 2 -

 N
E1 4 S

EC
. 9

-8
9-

14

WEST LINE OF E1
2 - NE1

4 SEC. 9-89-14
WEST LINE OF NE1

4 - SE1
4 SEC. 9-89-14

FND 12" IRON PIN W/
ILLEGIBLE YELLOW

PLASTIC CAP

FND 12" REBAR W/
YELLOW PLASTIC CAP

P.O.B. UNPLATTED TRACT
SE CORNER LOT 15

FND 12" IRON PIN W/
BROKEN YELLOW

PLASTIC CAP

P.O.B. LOT 2, AUTUMN
RIDGE SECOND ADD.
NE CORNER PARCEL "C"
FND 12" REBAR W/
YELLOW PLASTIC CAP

10' UTILITY
EASEMENT

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 (

TY
P

.)

BUILDING SETBACK LINE (TYP.)/35' PERIMETER SETBACK

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 (

TY
P

.)

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 (

TY
P

.)

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 (

TY
P

.)

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 (

TY
P

.)

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 (

TY
P

.)

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 (

TY
P

.)

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 /A

C
C

E
S

S
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T 
LI

N
E

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 /A

C
C

E
S

S
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T 
LI

N
E

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 /A

C
C

E
S

S
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T 
LI

N
E

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 /A

C
C

E
S

S
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T 
LI

N
E

BUILDING SETBACK LINE /ACCESS EASEMENT LINE BUILDING SETBACK LINE /ACCESS EASEMENT LINE

BUILDING SETBACK LINE (TYP.)/35' PERIMETER SETBACK

LO
T 

LI
N

E

LO
T 

LI
N

E

LO
T 

LI
N

E
LO

T 
LI

N
E

LOT LINE LOT LINE LOT LINE

1 ADDRESS CITY COMMENTS SJC 04-21-2021

231

Item 25.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1 AUTUMN RIDGE SECOND ADDITION LEDGES II 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 15 AUTUMN RIDGE SEVENTH ADDITION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 14 AUTUMN RIDGE SEVENTH ADDITION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT "C" AUTUMN RIDGE SIXTH ADDITION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT "B" AUTUMN RIDGE SECOND ADDITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PT. LOT 2 AUTUMN RIDGE SECOND ADDITION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 12 AUTUMN RIDGE SEVENTH ADDITION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUTUMN LANE (60' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUTUMN   RIDGE   SEVENTH   ADDITION' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL "C" PT. OF LOT 2 AUTUMN RIDGE SECOND ADDITION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL "E" PT. OF LOT 2 AUTUMN RIDGE SECOND ADDITION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
THRESHER COURT (70' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: LINDA S OSBORN UNPLATTED SW  NE   14 NE   14ZONED A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: JENNIFER K JACOBSON AND JAYNE A SPEAR UNPLATTED NW  SE   14 SE   14ZONED A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE1/4 SE1/4 SEC. 9-89-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE1/4 NE1/4 SEC. 9-89-14



ZONED: RP

PHASE 2
PHASE 1

ZONED: RP

ZO
N

E
D

: R
P

ZONED: RP

(D
O

C
 #

20
13

-1
61

85
)

ZO
N

E
D

: R
P

INGRESS/EGRESS ACCESS
EASEMENT

PROP. LINE (TYP.)

(D
O

C
 #

20
17

-2
06

33
)

ZO
N

E
D

: R
P

20.00'

20.00'  DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

20.00'  DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

571.06'
S0°11'36"E  (N1°02'16"W)

41
0.

00
' (

40
9.

87
')

S
89

°4
6'

47
"W

 (N
88

°5
5'

43
"E

)

460.15'
N0°12'26"W

121.06'
N0°11'08"E

290.54'
S0°12'53"E

N.
 L

IN
E 

TR
AC

T 
"B

"
SE

E 
NO

TE
 1

287.25'
S0°14'23"E

290.55'
S0°14'23"E

43.0' INGRESS/EGRESS
ACCESS EASEMENT

43.0' INGRESS/EGRESS
ACCESS EASEMENT

30
.0

' I
N

G
R

E
S

S
/E

G
R

E
S

S
A

C
C

E
S

S
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

140.18'
S0°11'36"E  (N1°02'16"W)

150.40'
S0°11'36"E  (N1°02'16"W)140.14'

S0°11'36"E  (N1°02'16"W)
140.34'

S0°11'36"E  (N1°02'16"W)

2.00'

18.00'

LOT 1
0.94 ACRES

LOT 2
0.92 ACRES

LOT 3
0.87 ACRES

LOT 4
0.88 ACRES

LOT 5
0.91 ACRES

LOT 6
0.90 ACRES

578.42'
N0°14'23"W

125.35'
S0°14'23"E

26
6.

95
'

N
89

°4
5'

37
"E

43.00'

S0°11'36"E
 (N1°02'16"W)

26
6.

91
'

S
89

°4
5'

37
"W

237.36'
S0°14'23"E

26
6.

72
'

N
89

°4
7'

38
"E

43.00'

S0°11'36"E
 (N1°02'16"W)

26
6.

69
'

S
89

°4
7'

38
"W

128.97'
S0°14'23"E

30
.0

0'
S

89
°4

6'
47

"W

N.
 L

IN
E 

LO
T 

2

146.98' 140.27'

13
8.

25
'

N
89

°4
6'

23
"E

27
1.

82
'

N
89

°4
6'

23
"E

27
1.

93
'

N
89

°4
5'

37
"E

27
1.

70
'

N
89

°4
7'

38
"E

27
1.

58
'

S
89

°4
6'

47
"W

13
8.

42
'

S
89

°4
6'

47
"W

169.61'

140.08' 150.47'

130.40'120.18'120.14' 120.34'

13
7.

30
'

27
2.

13
'

40
9.

43
'

S
88

°4
8'

01
"E

 (N
89

°3
0'

13
"W

)

20.01'

25
9.

26
' (

25
9.

04
')

15
0.

17
'

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
5106 Nordic Drive

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Ph 319-266-0258
www.cgaconsultants.com

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

68
4\

dw
g\

Su
rv

ey
\F

in
al

 P
la

t\5
68

4 
Fi

na
l P

la
t 3

 o
f 3

.d
wg

 - 
FP

 3
 o

f 3
 - 

 0
4-

21
-2

1 
- 7

:1
3a

m
 - 

sj
c3

25

CGA AUTUMN RIDGE TENTH ADDITION
3  OF 3

5684

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA FINAL PLAT
MJS

SJC

TRS

10-22-20

02-16-18

FINAL PLAT - AUTUMN RIDGE TENTH ADDITION
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

N

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

60'30' 90'

25'  DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

12'  DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

DATE PREPARED : 10-22-20

(DRAINAGE STORM SEWER, AND
DETENTION EASEMENT DOC# 2014-10457)

UNRECORDED STORM SEWER EASEMENT
PER FILE NUMBER: 2017-10235

10' UTILITY EASEMENT
FILE NUMBER: 2017-10235

10' UTILITY EASEMENT
FILE NUMBER: 2017-20633

NW CORNER OF THE
NORTHEAST 14 OF THE
SOUTHEAST 14 SEC. 9, T89N,
R14W. FOUND LIMESTONE
WITH CUT "X". (FILE NUMBER:
2015-12480)

SO
UT

H 
LI

NE
 O

F 
E1 2 -

 N
E1 4 S

EC
. 9

-8
9-

14

WEST LINE OF E1
2 - NE1

4 SEC. 9-89-14 WEST LINE OF NE1
4 - SE1

4 SEC. 9-89-14

FND 12" REBAR W/
YELLOW PLASTIC CAP

P.O.B. UNPLATTED TRACT
SE CORNER LOT 15

FND 12" IRON PIN W/
BROKEN YELLOW

PLASTIC CAP

P.O.B. LOT 2, AUTUMN
RIDGE SECOND ADD.
NE CORNER PARCEL "C"
FND 12" REBAR W/
YELLOW PLASTIC CAP

10' UTILITY
EASEMENT

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 (

TY
P

.)

BUILDING SETBACK LINE (TYP.)/35' PERIMETER SETBACK

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 (

TY
P

.)

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 (

TY
P

.)

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 (

TY
P

.)

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 (

TY
P

.)

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 (

TY
P

.)

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 (

TY
P

.)

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 /A

C
C

E
S

S
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T 
LI

N
E

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 /A

C
C

E
S

S
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T 
LI

N
E

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 /A

C
C

E
S

S
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T 
LI

N
E

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

 L
IN

E
 /A

C
C

E
S

S
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T 
LI

N
E

BUILDING SETBACK LINE /ACCESS EASEMENT LINE BUILDING SETBACK LINE /ACCESS EASEMENT LINE

BUILDING SETBACK LINE (TYP.)/35' PERIMETER SETBACK

LO
T 

LI
N

E

LO
T 

LI
N

E

LO
T 

LI
N

E
LO

T 
LI

N
E

LOT LINE LOT LINE LOT LINE

1 ADDRESS CITY COMMENTS SJC 04-21-2021

232

Item 25.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1 AUTUMN RIDGE SECOND ADDITION LEDGES II 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 15 AUTUMN RIDGE SEVENTH ADDITION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT "B" AUTUMN RIDGE SECOND ADDITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PT. LOT 2 AUTUMN RIDGE SECOND ADDITION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUTUMN LANE (60' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUTUMN   RIDGE   SEVENTH   ADDITION' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL "C" PT. OF LOT 2 AUTUMN RIDGE SECOND ADDITION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL "E" PT. OF LOT 2 AUTUMN RIDGE SECOND ADDITION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
THRESHER COURT (70' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: LINDA S OSBORN UNPLATTED SW  NE   14 NE   14ZONED A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: JENNIFER K JACOBSON AND JAYNE A SPEAR UNPLATTED NW  SE   14 SE   14ZONED A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT "C" AUTUMN RIDGE SIXTH ADDITION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE1/4 SE1/4 SEC. 9-89-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE1/4 NE1/4 SEC. 9-89-14



233

Item 25.



234

Item 25.



235

Item 25.



236

Item 25.



237

Item 25.



238

Item 25.



239

Item 25.



240

Item 25.



241

Item 25.



242

Item 25.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: David Wicke, PE – City Engineer 
 
 DATE: May 12, 2021 
 
 SUBJECT: City of Cedar Falls and Iowa Department of Transportation Agreement  
  For Maintenance and Repair of Primary Roads in Municipalities 
 
 
The attached agreement between the City of Cedar Falls and the Iowa Department of 
Transportation (IDOT) defines the responsibilities for maintenance and repair of various primary 
roads located within the Cedar Falls city limits.  
 
The agreement is for a 5-year period from July 1st, 2021 to June 30th of 2026. Agreements of 
this type have been approved for previous 5-year periods in which the current agreement is set 
to expire on June 30th, 2021. This agreement defines the responsibilities of the parties involved 
and does not require any exchange of funds.  
 
The Engineering Division of the Department of Public Works recommends approving the 
agreement with the Iowa Department of Transportation for the “Agreement for Maintenance and 
Repair of Primary Roads in Municipalities” 
 
 
 
 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 Brian Heath, Operation and Maintenance Division Manager. 
 

243

Item 27.



244

Item 27.



245

Item 27.



246

Item 27.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: May 13th, 2021 
 
 SUBJECT: West 27th Street Sanitary Sewer Extension  
  City Project Number RC-000-3240 
  Property Acquisitions & Temporary Easements 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is planning to extend sanitary sewer service prior to the West 
27th Street Reconstruction project.  The proposed sanitary sewer extension will be a 
separate construction contract and is planned to be constructed in 2021 with street 
improvements to follow in 2022-2023.  The proposed sewer extension will serve the 
proposed Cedar Falls High School site along with future residential development north 
of West 27th Street and east of Union Road. The project will require the acquisition of 
temporary and permanent easements from three (3) properties to complete 
construction. The owners of the following properties have accepted our offer. 
 
Parcel # Owner Address/Parcel ID Acquisition Type 

1-SAN The Rasmusson Company 8914-22-201-007 Permanent Easement 
Temporary Easement 

2A-SAN Donald and Kathleen Rasmusson 8914-22-201-011 Permanent Easement 
Temporary Easement 

2B-SAN Jack P Rasmusson Family Trust 8914-22-201-011 Permanent Easement 
Temporary Easement 

3-SAN Cedar Falls Community School 
District (CFCSD) 

8914-15-451-004 Permanent Easement  

 
 
Attached is a map that identifies the location of these properties. 
 
The City will use Sanitary Sewer Rental Funds for the design and right of way portion of 
this project, until the sanitary sewer district is established at the end of the project. The 
City entered into a Professional Services Agreement with AECOM Technical Services, 
Inc., of Waterloo, Iowa, on July 6th, 2020 for property acquisition and design services. 
Funds for this project are identified in the Cedar Falls Capital Improvements Program in 
FY21, FY22 and FY23 under item number 138. If approved, the City Attorney will 

247

Item 28.



prepare the necessary closing documents and staff will complete the acquisition 
process for these parcels. 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council state their support in the form of a resolution 
approving the acquisitions and authorize the Mayor to execute the agreements for the 
W. 27th Street Sanitary Sewer project. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 

248

Item 28.



W
.
 
2

7
t
h

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

S
A

N
I
T

A
R

Y
 
S

E
W

E
R

 
E

X
T

E
N

S
I
O

N

C
I
T

Y
 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
N

O
.
 
R

C
-
0

0
0

-
3

2
4

0

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
C

E
D

A
R

 
F

A
L

L
S

,
 
I
O

W
A

5
0
1
 
S

y
c
a
m

o
r
e
 
S

t
r
e
e
t
,
 
S

u
i
t
e
 
2
2
2

W
a
t
e
r
l
o
o
,
 
I
o
w

a
 
 
5
0
7
0
4
-
1
4
9
7

T
 
5
1
5
.
2
3
2
.
6
5
3
1
 
 
 
 
F

 
5
1
5
.
2
3
2
.
0
2
7
1

W
W

W
.
A

E
C

O
M

.
C

O
M

L
a
s
t
 
s
a
v
e
d
 
b
y
:
 
T

Y
L
E

R
.
G

A
M

E
R

D
I
N

G
E

R
(
2
0
2
1
-
0
1
-
1
3
)
 
 
 
 
 
L
a
s
t
 
P

l
o
t
t
e
d
:
 
2
0
2
1
-
0
1
-
1
3

F
i
l
e
n
a
m

e
:
 
\
\
U

S
W

A
T

1
F

P
0
0
1
\
D

A
T

A
\
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
\
6
0
6
3
7
6
6
9
\
9
0
0
-
C

A
D

-
G

I
S

\
2
1
0
-
S

A
N

I
T

A
R

Y
\
H

-
S

H
E

E
T

.
D

W
G

H.1

R
I
G

H
T

 
O

F
 
W

A
Y

W
.
 
2
7
t
h

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

249

Item 28.



250

Item 28.



251

Item 28.



252

Item 28.



253

Item 28.



254

Item 28.



255

Item 28.



256

Item 28.



257

Item 28.



258

Item 28.



259

Item 28.



260

Item 28.



261

Item 28.



262

Item 28.



263

Item 28.



264

Item 28.



265

Item 28.



266

Item 28.



267

Item 28.



268

Item 28.



269

Item 28.



270

Item 28.



271

Item 28.



272

Item 28.



273

Item 28.



274

Item 28.



275

Item 28.



276

Item 28.



277

Item 28.



278

Item 28.



279

Item 28.



280

Item 28.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO:   Honorable Mayor Robert M Green and City Council 
 
 FROM:  Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE:  May 13, 2021 
 
 SUBJECT: Ashworth Drive Roadway Extension 
    City Project No. CP-197-3244 
    Setting Public Hearing 
 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is planning to extend Ashworth Drive from Prairie Winds 4th 
Addition to Hudson Road. The project will require the acquisition of easements to 
complete the street connection. The project will include placement of water main, storm 
sewer and sanitary sewer.  
 
Plans for the project shows the need for fee title and/or easement acquisitions from two 
(2) properties. The proposed plan for the constructed street shows the need for 
permanent acquisition of the driveway easement at 4923 Hudson Road and a 
permanent acquisition from property at 4919 Hudson Road. 
 
Iowa law requires that the City Council holds a public hearing to authorize proceeding 
with the project, including the purchase of right-of-way. The public hearing offers an 
opportunity for the public, especially those from whom the fee title and easement 
acquisition will be purchased, to comment on the project. 
 
The Engineering Division recommends setting Monday, June 7th, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. as 
the date and time for the public hearing on this project 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 

281

Item 29.



PROPOSED
31' WIDE P.C.C. PAVEMENT

ASHWORTH DRIVE
(60' R.O.W.)

LOT 18 LOT 17 LOT 16 LOT 15 LOT 14

"PRAIRIE WINDS 4TH ADDITION"

"P
RA

IR
IE

 W
IN

DS
 4

TH
 A

DD
IT

IO
N"

"UNPLATTED"

SE 1/4 NW 1/4
SEC. 26-T89N-R14W

10' UTILITY
EASEMENT

30'± 31'±

4923 HUDSON ROAD
(APPROXIMATE HOUSE LOCATION) EXISTING INGRESS/EGRESS

EASEMENT

44'± 45'±

PROPOSED
P.C.C. DRIVEWAY

PRELIMINARY LAYOUT FOR
ASHWORTH DRIVE EXTENSION TO

HUDSON ROAD
JANUARY 2021

HU
DS

ON
 R

OA
D

SCALE:  1" = 40'
282

Item 29.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONLY

tolanm
Polygon

tolanm
Callout
4919 HUDSON ROAD(APPROXIMATE HOUSE LOCATION)



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: May 13, 2021 
 
 SUBJECT: West 27th Street Sanitary Sewer Extension  
  City Project Number RC-000-3240 
  Request for PS&E Approval 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs 
and Quantities for the West 27th Street Sanitary Sewer Extension Project. 
 

We recommend setting Monday, June 7th, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. as the date and time for the public 
hearing on this project and Tuesday, June 15th, 2021 at 2:00 p.m. as the date and time for 
receiving and opening bids. We also request that the Notice to Bidders be published by May 
21st, 2021. The Plans and Specifications will be ready for distribution to contractors on May 21st, 
2021, allowing more than three (3) weeks of review before contract letting. 
 

This project consists of 1,600 linear feet of sanitary sewer placement to extend sanitary sewer 
service prior to the West 27th Street Reconstruction project. This proposed sanitary sewer 
extension will be a separate construction contract with street improvements to follow in 2022-
2023. The proposed sewer extension will serve the proposed Cedar Falls High School site 
along with future residential development north of West 27th Street and east of Union Road.  
 

The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $281,396.00.  The City will use 
Sanitary Sewer Rental Funds for the design and right of way portion of this project, until the 
sanitary sewer district is established at the end of the project. 
 

The Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities are available for your review at 
the City Clerk's office or the Engineering Division of the Public Works Department. 
 

xc: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 

  

283

Item 30.



NTS NTS

$
$

U
S

E
R
$
$

$
$

P
E

N
$
$

$
$

P
R

F
$
$

$
$

D
A

T
E
$
$

$
$

D
G

N
$
$

PREPARED FOR PREPARED BY

N
N

T 319.232.6531    F 319.232.0271

 

WATERLOO, IOWA  50703

501 SYCAMORE STREET, SUITE 222

319-268-5161

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613

220 CLAY STREET

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

VICINITY MAP - STATE OF IOWA LOCATION MAP - WEST CEDAR FALLS, IA

SEWER EXTENSION
W. 27th STREET SANITARY

FALLS

CEDAR

CITY PROJECT NO. RC-000-3240

JANUARY 2021

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

PRELIMINARY DRAWINGS

PLYMOUTH

LYON

SIOUX

CHEROKEE

OSCEOLA

O'BRIEN CLAY

BUENA

VISTA

DICKINSON EMMET

PALO

ALTO

POCAHONTAS

KOSSUTH WINNEBAGO

HANCOCK

WORTH

CERRO

GORDO

MITCHELL

FLOYD

HOWARD

CHICKASAW

WINNESHIEK

ALLAMAKEE

CLAYTONFAYETTE

DUBUQUEDELAWAREBUCHANAN

BREMER

BLACK

HAWK

BUTLERFRANKLINWRIGHTHUMBOLDT

GRUNDYHARDINHAMILTON

WEBSTER

CALHOUN
SACIDAWOODBURY

MONONA
CRAWFORD CARROLL GREENE BOONE STORY MARSHALL

TAMA BENTON LINN JONES

CEDAR

JACKSON

CLINTON

JOHNSONIOWAPOWESHIEKJASPER
POLKDALLASGUTHRIEAUDUBONSHELBYHARRISON

POTTAWATTAMIE CASS ADAIR MADISON WARREN MARION MAHASKA KEOKUK WASHINGTON

MUSCATINE

LOUISA

HENRYJEFFERSONWAPELLOMONROELUCASCLARKEUNIONADAMS
MONTGOMERYMILLS

FREMONT
PAGE TAYLOR RINGGOLD DECATUR WAYNE APPANOOSE DAVIS VAN

BUREN

MOINES

DES

LEE

LOCATION

PROJECT 

supplemental specifications.

Urban Design and Specifications and the latest City of Cedar Falls 

This project was designed in accordance with the 2021 Iowa Statewide

A.1

DateSignature

Printed or Typed Name

Pages or sheets covered by this seal:

DateSignature

Printed or Typed Name

Pages or sheets covered by this seal:

I hereby certify that this engineering document was prepared

by me or under my direct personal supervision and that I am

a duly licensed Professional Engineer under the laws of the

State of Iowa.

 

 

IIIIII
III
III
II
II
II
II

II
II
II
II
II
II
II
II
I
I
I
II
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
II
I
II
II
II
II
II
II

II
II
II
III
III
IIIII

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII
I
II
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
II
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

L
IC

E
N

S
E

D
 

PROFESSIONA

L 
E

N
G
IN

E
E
R

IOW A

MICHELLE M.

MICHELLE M. SWEENEY

My license renewal date is December 31, 2021

SWEENEY

20830

A.1, B.1, C.1-C.2, EC.1-EC.4

G.1, H.1, J.1, MSA.1-MSA.2

2/2/2021

284

Item 30.



2
' 

M
IN
.

12' 12'3'

CL   27th Street

6" MODIFIED SUBBASE

5' 3'

Granular Surfacing

Travel Lane Paved Shoulder

5'

Paved Shoulder Travel Lane

Granular Surfacing

Ditch Grade
Match Existing

Ditch Grade
Match Existing

12" SUBGRADE PREPARATION

6:1
Approx.

3:1
Approx.

6:1
Approx.

3:1
Approx.

Subdrain Subdrain

← 2% (Match Existing)

← 2%

2% → (Match Existing)

2% →

TEMPORARY: 6" PCC OR 7" HMA

 
 
 
T

Y
P
IC

A
L
 
C

R
O

S
S
 
S

E
C

T
IO

N
 
 
 

                    B-01.DGN

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
N

D
 

D
E

T
A
IL

S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

B.1

TYPICAL TEMP PAVEMENT CROSS SECTION

PAVEMENT

SUBBASE

6"

NOT TO SCALE

NOT TO SCALE

POROUS BACKFILL

2
" 

M
IN
.

2" MIN.

12" MIN.

TYPICAL SUBDRAIN TRENCH

Max. Spacing

Transverse Joint at 17 Foot-

and Centerline Required

Longitudinal Joint for Shoulder-

PCC Jointing:

Into Exisiting Subdrain

Subdrain Shall Tie

B
S

C
-
-
-

D
R

N
C

H
K

D
A

T
E

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

$
$

U
S

E
R
$
$

$
$

P
E

N
$
$

$
$

P
R

F
$
$

      

 
 
 

C
H

E
C

K
 

P
L

A
N

S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D
E

C
 
2
0
2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

     60637669

DRAWING NO

SHEET NO

FILENAME

PROJECT NO

DATE

 
 
 

C
I

T
Y
 

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 

N
O
.
 

R
C
-
0
0
0
-
3
2
4
0
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

W
.
 
2
7
t
h
 

S
T

R
E

E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

S
A

N
I

T
A

R
Y
 

S
E

W
E

R
 

E
X

T
E

N
S
I

O
N
 
 
 
 
 

               

                            

W
W

W
.A

E
C

O
M
.C

O
M

T
 3

1
9
.2

3
2
.6

5
3
1
  
  
F
 3

1
9
.2

3
2
.0

2
7
1

W
a
te
rl
o
o
, 
Io

w
a
  
5
0
7
0
4
-1

4
9
7

5
0
1
 S

y
c
a

m
o
re
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 S

u
it
e
 2

2
2

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

R
E

V

D
E
S

D
R

N
1-
IN

C
H

C
H

K

A
P
P

           

D
E
S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

V
E
R
IF

Y
 
S
C

A
L
E
 
IF
 
P
L
A

N
 

S
H

E
E
T
 
IS
 
R
E

D
U

C
E

D

$
$

D
A

T
E
$
$

$
$

D
G

N
$
$

 
 
 
 
 

C
I

T
Y
 

O
F
 

C
E

D
A

R
 

F
A

L
L

S
,
 
I

O
W

A
 
 
 
 

   JANUARY 2021

285

Item 30.



 
 
 
 
E

S
T
IM

A
T

E
D
 

Q
U

A
N

T
IT
IE

S
 
 
 

                    C-01.DGN

             03

 
 
 

A
N

D
 
E

S
T
IM

A
T

E
 
R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E
 
 

C.1

ESTIMATE REFERENCE

THE PLACEMENT OF THE GRANULAR SURFACING.

B-SHEETS. UNIT PRICE PER SQUARE YARD INCLUDES LABOR, EQUIPMENT AND MATERIALS FOR

GRANULAR SURFACING - SEE TYPICAL TEMP PAVEMENT CROSS SECTION DETAIL IN 12.

BYPASS PUMPING IF NEEDED.

CONNECTION PER THE REQUIREMENTS OF SUDAS 6010.3.05.C.2.  PRICE INCLUDES TEMPORARY

PLANS.  WORK INCLUDES, BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO, EXCAVATION AND BACKFILL AND PIPE 

EQUIPMENT AND MATERIALS FOR CONNECTION TO EACH EXISTING MANHOLE AS SHOWN ON THE 

CONNECTION TO EXISTING SANITARY MANHOLE - UNIT PRICE FOR EACH INCLUDES LABOR, 11.

BOLTS AND WASHERS). 

SANITARY SEWER" AND SHALL BE SW-601 TYPE C (BOLT DOWN COVER WITH STAINLESS STEEL 

ALL CASTINGS SHALL BE STAMPED TO PRODUCE RAISED LETTERING WITH "CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

AND PIPE CONNECTIONS.  COMPLY WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF SUDAS 6010 AND FIGURE 6010.301.

FOR EACH MANHOLE INSTALLED.  WORK INCLUDES, BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO, EXCAVATION, BACKFILL, 

MANHOLE, SW-301, 48 INCH - UNIT PRICE FOR EACH INCLUDES LABOR, EQUIPMENT AND MATERIALS 10.

INSTALLATION.  COMPLY WITH SUDAS 4040.2.01 TYPE S FOR PIPE MATERIALS.

PREPARATION, COUPLINGS FOR CONNECTING DISSIMILAR PIPING MATERIALS, AND PIPE 

BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO, EXCAVATION AND BACKFILL OF POROUS MATERIALS, SURFACE 

REPLACEMENT OF SUBDRAIN DISTURBED DURING CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES.  WORK INCLUDES, 

SUBDRAIN INSTALLATION, LESS THAN 10 INCHES - UNIT PRICE PER LINEAR FOOT INCLUDES 9.

A PRESSURE REDUCTION AND SUPPORT OF THE PIPE.

AMOUNT OF EXPOSED PIPE FOR A UTILITY CROSSING TO 20 FEET. ANYTHING BEYOND THAT REQUIRES

ALL EXCAVATED SOIL MUST REMAIN UNFROZEN FOR BACKFILL. NNG'S PROCEDURES LIMIT THE

24 INCHES, THE GROUND MUST BE THAWED PRIOR TO EXCAVATION OF HIGH-PRESSURE GAS PIPE.

SHALL BE CAPPED AND SHALL BE INCIDENTAL TO PIPE PLACEMENT. IF FROST LEVEL EXCEEDS

SPECIFICATIONS. MATERIAL SHALL BE PLACED PER FIGURE 3010.103, CLASS F-3. E, FUTURE LINES 

TO URBAN STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS MANUAL PAGE 5 SUPPLEMENTAL 

3010, 2.02, A AS AMENDED BY THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS 

THIS ITEM.  SANITARY SEWER BEDDING SHALL BE CLASS I MATERIAL PER SUDAS SECTION 

CONNECTION TO EXISTING COLLECTION SYSTEM COMPONENTS IS CONSIDERED INCIDENTAL TO 

PIPE MATERIALS SHALL COMPLY WITH SUDAS 4010.2.01.E. BYPASS PUMPING NEEDED DURING 

FLEXIBLE GRAVITY PIPE TRENCH BEDDING SHALL COMPLY WITH F-3 PER SUDAS FIGURE 3010.103.  

DEWATERING, PIPE BEDDING AND PIPE.  COMPLY WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF SUDAS 3010 AND 4010.  

SEWER GRAVITY MAIN.  WORK INCLUDES, BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO, EXCAVATION AND BACKFILL, 

PER LINEAR FOOT INCLUDES LABOR, EQUIPMENT AND MATERIALS FOR INSTALLATION OF SANITARY 

SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, TRUSS, 8 INCH, 12 INCH, AND 15 INCH - UNIT PRICE 6-8.

IS AN ESTIMATED QUANTITY.

EQUIPMENT AND MATERIALS FOR REPLACEMENT OF UNSUITABLE BACKFILL MATERIAL. THIS AMOUNT 

SUITABLE SOIL REQUIREMENTS OF SUDAS 3010 FOUND UNDER PAVEMENT. PRICE INCLUDES LABOR, 

REPLACEMENT OF UNSUITABLE BACKFILL MATERIAL - INCLUDES MATERIAL THAT DOES NOT MEET THE5.

COMPLY WITH SUDAS 2010. 

LIMITED TO, SUBBASE PLACEMENT (6" THICK), COMPACTION AND FINISH GRADING. 

MATERIALS FOR THE PLACEMENT OF SUBBASE.  WORK INCLUDES, BUT IS NOT 

MODIFIED SUBBASE - UNIT PRICE PER SQUARE YARD INCLUDES LABOR, EQUIPMENT AND 4.

COMPLY WITH SUDAS 2010.

TO, EXCAVATING, MANIPULATING, REPLACING, COMPACTING, AND TRIMMING TO THE PROPER GRADE.

AND MATERIALS FOR SUBGRADE PREPARATION (12 INCHES). WORK INCLUDES, BUT IS NOT LIMITED

SUBGRADE PREPARATION, 12 INCH - UNIT PRICE PER SQUARE YARD INCLUDES LABOR, EQUIPMENT3. 

INCIDENTAL TO THIS BID ITEM.

DONE AT A MINIMUM DEPTH OF 15" AND SHOULD NOT BE DONE WHILE SOIL IS WET AND THIS WILL BE

AREA. PLOWING/RESTORATION OF FIELD IS INCIDENTAL TO THIS BID ITEM. DEEP TILLAGE SHALL BE

FOR STRIP, SALVAGE AND RESPREAD OF 8 INCHES TOPSOIL IN GRASS AREAS AND 2 FEET IN FIELD

STRIP, SALVAGE, AND RESPREAD TOPSOIL - PRICE INCLUDES LABOR, EQUIPMENT AND MATERIALS 2.

OFF-SITE IS INCLUDED PER SUDAS 2010.

CLEARING AND GRUBBING PER THE REQUIREMENTS OF SUDAS 2010.  PROPER DISPOSAL OF DEBRIS 

CLEARING AND GRUBBING - ACRE PRICE INCLUDES LABOR, EQUIPMENT AND MATERIALS FOR 1.

FOLLOWING BID ITEM NOTES ARE CONSIDERED INCIDENTAL TO THE PROJECT.

ALL ITEMS NECESSARY FOR CONSTRUCTION THAT ARE NOT SPECIFICALLY CALLED OUT IN THE 

PARTS THAT ARE NOT ABLE TO BE SALVAGED AND REINSTALLED.

INSTALLED AND INCLUDE REMOVING AND REINSTALLING FENCE AND REPLACEMENT OF ANY FENCE 

AND STANDARD DETAIL MI-103. UNIT PRICE WILL BE MEASURED PER LINEAR FOOT FOR FIELD FENCE

FIELD FENCE, REMOVAL AND REINSTALL - REFER TO IOWA DOT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS 251927.

PAYMENT SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH SUDAS 11020.1.08.A.2.

MOBILIZATION - LUMP SUM PRICE SHALL BE AS DEFINED IN SUDAS 11020.1.02.  MEASUREMENT AND 26.

ENTRANCE

CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE - REFER TO SUDAS 9040.120. THIS SHALL BE PLACED AT THE FIELD25.

COMPLY WITH SUDAS 9040.  USE HIGH FLOW TYPE SILT FENCE MATERIAL.  

EQUIPMENT AND MATERIALS FOR INSTALLATION, MAINTENANCE AND REMOVAL OF SILT FENCE.  

SILT FENCE - UNIT PRICE PER LINEAR FOOT INCLUDES, BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO, LABOR, 22-24.

(SLOPES) AND 9040.104 (CHANNELS).

WITH SUDAS 9040.2.05.A.2.D - RECP TYPE 2.D.   INSTALL RECP PER SUDAS FIGURES 9040.103 

STAPLES AND ANCHORING DEVICES.  COMPLY WITH SUDAS 9040.  RECP MATERIAL SHALL COMPLY 

TEMPORARY ROLLED EROSION CONTROL.  WORK INCLUDES EXCAVATION, INSTALLATION OF RECP, 

INCLUDES, BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO, LABOR, EQUIPMENT AND MATERIALS FOR THE INSTALLATION OF 

TEMPORARY ROLLED EROSION CONTROL PRODUCTS (RECP) - UNIT PRICE PER SQUARE YARD 21.

SWPPP PER THE REQUIREMENTS OF SUDAS 9040.

SWPPP MANAGEMENT - LUMP SUM PRICE INCLUDES MANAGEMENT AND DOCUMENTATION OF THE 20.

MIXTURE).

SHALL COMPLY WITH SUDAS 9010.2.02.E - TYPE 5 (RURAL TEMPORARY EROSION CONTROL 

PREPARATION, FERTILIZING, SEEDBED PREPARATION, SEEDING AND MULCHING.  SEED MIXTURE 

HYDRAULIC SEEDING PER THE REQUIREMENTS OF SUDAS 9010.  WORK INCLUDES SURFACE 

PRICE PER ACRE INCLUDES, BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO, LABOR, EQUIPMENT AND MATERIAL FOR 

SEEDING, FERTILIZING AND MULCHING FOR HYDRAULIC SEEDING - TYPE 5 SEED MIXTURE - UNIT 19.

AND DITCH MIXTURE).

SHALL COMPLY WITH SUDAS 9010.2.02.C - TYPE 3 (PERMANENT WARM-SEASON SLOPE 

PREPARATION, FERTILIZING, SEEDBED PREPARATION, SEEDING AND MULCHING.  SEED MIXTURE 

HYDRAULIC SEEDING PER THE REQUIREMENTS OF SUDAS 9010.  WORK INCLUDES SURFACE 

PRICE PER ACRE INCLUDES, BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO, LABOR, EQUIPMENT AND MATERIAL FOR 

SEEDING, FERTILIZING AND MULCHING FOR HYDRAULIC SEEDING - TYPE 3 SEED MIXTURE - UNIT 18.

WITH IDOT ARTICLE 4188.03 AND INSTALLED PER SUDAS 8030.3.01.

PAYMENT WILL BE AT PER LF OF INSTALLED SAFETY FENCE.  SAFETY FENCE SHALL COMPLY17.

BE LIMITED TO 30-CALENDAR DAYS. ALSO DETAILED ON SHEET J.1.

AND MAINTENANCE OF THE REQUIRED TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES.  W. 27TH STREET CLOSURE WILL

1070.2.06 AND REFERENCE SUDAS DETAIL 8030.116.  THE PRICE INCLUDES SETUP, REMOVAL 

DEVICES FOR STREETS AND HIGHWAYS) IN EQUIPMENT AND PLACEMENT.  COMPLY WITH SUDAS 

REQUIREMENTS OF THE CURRENT EDITION OF MUTCD (MANUAL ON UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL 

FOR CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES. CONTRACTOR'S TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES SHALL MEET THE 

CONTROL DEVICES, SUCH AS SIGNS, BARRICADES, FLASHERS, PYLONS AND FLAGGERS REQUIRED 

TRAFFIC CONTROL - LUMP SUM PRICE SHALL INCLUDE FURNISHING MISCELLANEOUS TRAFFIC 16.

SHEET C.1.

AND MATERIALS FOR PAINTING OF PAVEMENT MARKINGS. SEE TABULATION 108-22 ON 

NEEDED ON TEMPORARY PAVEMENT. UNIT PRICE PER STATION INCLUDES LABOR, EQUIPMENT 

PAINTED PAVEMENT MARKINGS, HIGHBUILD WATERBORNE - INCLUDES PAVEMENT MARKINGS 15. 

INCIDENTAL TO PAVEMENT REMOVALS.

DISPOSED OF OFF-SITE.  COMPLY WITH SUDAS 7040. SAW CUTTING FOR REMOVALS IS 

MATERIALS FOR REMOVAL OF PAVEMENT.   DEBRIS FROM REMOVALS SHALL BE PROPERLY 

PAVEMENT REMOVAL - UNIT PRICE PER SQUARE YARD INCLUDES LABOR, EQUIPMENT AND 14.

BID ITEM.

REQUIREMENTS OF SUDAS 7040, 2.01. COLD WEATHER PROTECTION WILL BE INCIDENTAL TO THIS 

6 INCH PCC OR 7 INCH HMA PAVEMENT PLACEMENT, FINISHING AND TESTING.  COMPLY WITH THE 

UNIT PRICE PER SQUARE YARD FOR TEMPORARY PAVEMENT. WORK INCLUDES, BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO, 

AND MATERIALS FOR THE INSTALLATION OF TEMPORARY PAVEMENT. PAYMENT WILL BE MADE AT THE

TEMPORARY PAVEMENT - UNIT PRICE PER SQUARE YARD INCLUDES LABOR, EQUIPMENT 13.

B
S

C
-
-
-

D
R

N
C

H
K

D
A

T
E

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

$
$

U
S

E
R
$
$

$
$

P
E

N
$
$

$
$

P
R

F
$
$

      

 
 
 

C
H

E
C

K
 

P
L

A
N

S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D
E

C
 
2
0
2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

     60637669

DRAWING NO

SHEET NO

FILENAME

PROJECT NO

DATE

 
 
 

C
I

T
Y
 

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 

N
O
.
 

R
C
-
0
0
0
-
3
2
4
0
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

W
.
 
2
7
t
h
 

S
T

R
E

E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

S
A

N
I

T
A

R
Y
 

S
E

W
E

R
 

E
X

T
E

N
S
I

O
N
 
 
 
 
 

               

                            

W
W

W
.A

E
C

O
M
.C

O
M

T
 3

1
9
.2

3
2
.6

5
3
1
  
  
F
 3

1
9
.2

3
2
.0

2
7
1

W
a
te
rl
o
o
, 
Io

w
a
  
5
0
7
0
4
-1

4
9
7

5
0
1
 S

y
c
a

m
o
re
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 S

u
it
e
 2

2
2

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

R
E

V

D
E
S

D
R

N
1-
IN

C
H

C
H

K

A
P
P

           

D
E
S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

V
E
R
IF

Y
 
S
C

A
L
E
 
IF
 
P
L
A

N
 

S
H

E
E
T
 
IS
 
R
E

D
U

C
E

D

$
$

D
A

T
E
$
$

$
$

D
G

N
$
$

 
 
 
 
 

C
I

T
Y
 

O
F
 

C
E

D
A

R
 

F
A

L
L

S
,
 
I

O
W

A
 
 
 
 

   JANUARY 2021

286

Item 30.



 
 
 
 
E

S
T
IM

A
T

E
D
 

Q
U

A
N

T
IT
IE

S
 
 
 

                    C-01.DGN

             03

 
 
 

A
N

D
 
E

S
T
IM

A
T

E
 
R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E
 
 

C.2

B
S

C
-
-
-

D
R

N
C

H
K

D
A

T
E

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

$
$

U
S

E
R
$
$

$
$

P
E

N
$
$

$
$

P
R

F
$
$

      

 
 
 

C
H

E
C

K
 

P
L

A
N

S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D
E

C
 
2
0
2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

     60637669

DRAWING NO

SHEET NO

FILENAME

PROJECT NO

DATE

 
 
 

C
I

T
Y
 

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 

N
O
.
 

R
C
-
0
0
0
-
3
2
4
0
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

W
.
 
2
7
t
h
 

S
T

R
E

E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

S
A

N
I

T
A

R
Y
 

S
E

W
E

R
 

E
X

T
E

N
S
I

O
N
 
 
 
 
 

               

                            

W
W

W
.A

E
C

O
M
.C

O
M

T
 3

1
9
.2

3
2
.6

5
3
1
  
  
F
 3

1
9
.2

3
2
.0

2
7
1

W
a
te
rl
o
o
, 
Io

w
a
  
5
0
7
0
4
-1

4
9
7

5
0
1
 S

y
c
a

m
o
re
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 S

u
it
e
 2

2
2

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

R
E

V

D
E
S

D
R

N
1-
IN

C
H

C
H

K

A
P
P

           

D
E
S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

V
E
R
IF

Y
 
S
C

A
L
E
 
IF
 
P
L
A

N
 

S
H

E
E
T
 
IS
 
R
E

D
U

C
E

D

$
$

D
A

T
E
$
$

$
$

D
G

N
$
$

 
 
 
 
 

C
I

T
Y
 

O
F
 

C
E

D
A

R
 

F
A

L
L

S
,
 
I

O
W

A
 
 
 
 

   JANUARY 2021

287

Item 30.



 
 
 
 
E

S
T
IM

A
T

E
D
 

Q
U

A
N

T
IT
IE

S
 
 
 

                    C-01.DGN

             03

 
 
 

A
N

D
 
E

S
T
IM

A
T

E
 
R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E
 
 

C.2

B
S

C
-
-
-

D
R

N
C

H
K

D
A

T
E

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

$
$

U
S

E
R
$
$

$
$

P
E

N
$
$

$
$

P
R

F
$
$

      

 
 
 

C
H

E
C

K
 

P
L

A
N

S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D
E

C
 
2
0
2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

     60637669

DRAWING NO

SHEET NO

FILENAME

PROJECT NO

DATE

 
 
 

C
I

T
Y
 

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 

N
O
.
 

R
C
-
0
0
0
-
3
2
4
0
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

W
.
 
2
7
t
h
 

S
T

R
E

E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

S
A

N
I

T
A

R
Y
 

S
E

W
E

R
 

E
X

T
E

N
S
I

O
N
 
 
 
 
 

               

                            

W
W

W
.A

E
C

O
M
.C

O
M

T
 3

1
9
.2

3
2
.6

5
3
1
  
  
F
 3

1
9
.2

3
2
.0

2
7
1

W
a
te
rl
o
o
, 
Io

w
a
  
5
0
7
0
4
-1

4
9
7

5
0
1
 S

y
c
a

m
o
re
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 S

u
it
e
 2

2
2

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

R
E

V

D
E
S

D
R

N
1-
IN

C
H

C
H

K

A
P
P

           

D
E
S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

V
E
R
IF

Y
 
S
C

A
L
E
 
IF
 
P
L
A

N
 

S
H

E
E
T
 
IS
 
R
E

D
U

C
E

D

$
$

D
A

T
E
$
$

$
$

D
G

N
$
$

 
 
 
 
 

C
I

T
Y
 

O
F
 

C
E

D
A

R
 

F
A

L
L

S
,
 
I

O
W

A
 
 
 
 

   JANUARY 2021

288

Item 30.



PROJECT SITE DESCRIPTION

The extent of the work involved is open cut installation of approximately
1650 LF of 15” sanitary sewer trunk line (6 MH structures) that will
service the future CFHS and adjoining developments along and north of
27th street in Cedar Falls, IA.  The line will extend from the north side of
27th Street and head south where it will connect to an existing  18”
interceptor sewer.  This will require some removal and replacement of
existing 27th Street but in general will be constructed through an existing
corn field.  The current cover includes crop residue with no existing cover
crop in place.  During construction controls will be used to limit erosion
and sediment runoff.  After project completion the all disturbed areas will
be restored to original vegetative conditions.  It is anticipated that the
field will continue to be used for agricultural purposes after construction.
The overall site area is approximate 0.95 acres with an estimated 0.76
acres being disturbed for construction activities.  Based on the project
location dewatering is going to be needed during construction and will
likely be completed by using well points.  Runoff from this project will
flow from the site to West Branch Dry Run Creek, ultimately, to the
Cedar River.

STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP)

All contractors shall conduct their operations in a manner that controls
pollutants, minimizes erosion, and prevents sediments from entering
waters of the state and leaving the project area.  The contractor shall
follow the SWPPP layout shown in the construction plans and should
update the plan as required during construction.  The prime contractor
shall be responsible for updating the plan and maintaining the controls
for the entire contract.  This responsibility shall be further shared with
subcontractors whose work is a source of potential pollution.  A NPDES
General Permit No. 2 is not required for this project as the area of
disturbance is below the 1.0 acre threshold, however a City of City Falls
Construction Site Runoff Permit is required and shall be obtained prior to
construction activities.  The contractor shall meet all the SWPPP
requirements for the City of Cedar Falls.  It is the contractor's
responsibility to maintain the pollution control measures until permanent
stabilization has occurred.

GENERAL STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN
NOTES

1.) Contractor shall contact the City Engineer's Office for a
pre-construction inspection prior to commencing construction activities.
This meeting shall be documented for future reference.

2.) Contractor and Subcontractors shall sign certification forms prior to
construction activities.  Copies of these forms shall be kept on-site.

3.) Contractor shall used stabilized construction entrances/exits to
reduce off-site tracking.  Probable locations are shown on the erosion
control sheets.  These locations may vary with construction staging and
at the Engineer's discretion.  Any changes should be noted on the
SWPPP map.  Any material tracked outside of the project area shall be
cleaned up by the end of the workday of such occurrence.

4.) Silt fence or equivalent (must be approved by the Engineer) shall be
placed in areas where sediment and other pollutants have the potential

to enter waterways or leave the site.  Refer to the erosion control sheets
for probable location information.  These locations may vary based on
construction staging and if conditions warrant additional locations.  Any
changes to the plan shall be added to the erosion control sheets as
construction progresses.  All stock pile areas shall also be protected with
silt fence.  Refer to note 6 for more information regarding stockpiling of
material.  All intakes within the project area that may be affected by
sediment transport shall be protected with filter socks throughout
construction.

5.)  Silt fence or equivalent (must be approved by the Engineer) shall be
used as ditch checks for concentrated flow areas.  Refer to the erosion
control sheets for location information.  These locations may vary as
conditions warrant or at the discretion of the engineer.

6.)  A concrete washout area(s) shall be set up on-site and clearly
marked during all paving operations.  The washout area must be
accessible to concrete trucks during wet or muddy conditions and must
have adequate storage volume to contain all washout and possible rain.
Washouts are required to be used and maintained during all paving
activities.

7.) If a porta-potty is placed on-site it shall be in an area that would
minimize pollution through storm water runoff if a spill were to occur.
This location may vary with construction staging and shall be added to
the erosion control sheets.

8.) If applicable to this project dumpsters and hazardous
material/chemical storage areas shall be set up and clearly marked
on-site.  These locations may vary with construction staging and shall be
added to the erosion control sheets.

9.) Construction material/equipment storage areas and employee parking
shall be set up and clearly marked on-site.  A probable location is shown
on the erosion control sheets.  This location may vary with construction
staging.  Any changes shall be added to the erosion control sheets.

10.) SWPPP Site inspections shall be conducted at least once every 7
calendar days.  All inspections shall joint inspections between the
contractor and the inspector.  The City of Cedar Falls may also be
present during inspections.  Signatures of each are required on each
inspection form.  Any deficiencies found during an inspection shall be
corrected according to City of Cedar Falls requirements.  All corrective
measures shall be implemented as soon as practical, but not more than
7 calendar days from the inspection.  If a written or verbal notification is
provided by the City of Cedar Falls or other regulatory agencies, the
contractor must implement all corrective actions within 48 hours of the
notification.  If this is not possible, the City and/or regulatory agency shall
be notified immediately, and arrangements shall be made according to
the permit requirements.

11.) The contractor shall not disturb existing vegetation unless necessary
for construction activities.  Care should be taken to avoid driving
equipment in areas that may damage existing vegetation unless
absolutely necessary.

12.)  If construction activity is not planned to occur in a disturbed area for
at least 14 days temporary or permanent seeding will be required
immediately.

13.)  Hydraulic seeding and double netted wood excelsior matting shall

be utilized for all disturbed area on this project, except the corn field/row
crop areas that current have no stabilization in place.  The matting will be
required on all slopes 4:1 or greater and in all applications in or near an
existing drainageway or waterways.

14.) If SWPPP control locations cannot be pre-determined based on
construction staging, the SWPPP manager shall add them to the site
map as they are implemented.

15.)  Dewatering is anticipated for this project and shall be the
responsibility of the contractor.  The dewatering shall include all
necessary labor, equipment and materials required to dewater the trench
according to City regulations.  The dewatering water must be free of silt
and sediment and not cause erosion issues at the outlet location or
downstream of the outlet.

Sequence of Pollution Prevention Activities:

A.Review erosion control sheets and storm water pollution prevention
plan.

B. Contractor to submit certification statements for prime contractor
and subcontractors.

C.Contact City of Cedar Falls for a pre-construction site inspection.

D.Install/implement erosion control measures.  Update the erosion
control sheets as necessary to reflect current conditions.

E.Remove ground cover/topsoil on areas as necessary for
construction.

F. Complete construction and immediately follow with final topsoil
placement.

G.Install temporary stabilization mix, permanent seeding/mulching
ground cover or other permanent stabilization measures as
described in the project plans.

H.Throughout construction maintain all erosion control measures.

I. Repeat above sequence (D-I) as ground cover is removed by
subsequent construction activity.

EC.1

P
O

L
L

U
T

IO
N

 P
R

E
V

E
N

T
IO

N
P

L
A

N

289

Item 30.



UTILITY CONTACTS

 
 
 
 
 
 
P

L
A

N
 

A
N

D
 
P

R
O

F
IL

E
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
L

E
G

E
N

D
 

A
N

D
 
S

Y
M

B
O

L
S
 
 
 
 

EC.2

EC-01.Dgn

SURVEY SYMBOLS UTILITY LEGEND

F   TFR Tree Fruit

  PPA Power Pole Co. 1

  IN Storm Sewer Intake

  MH Utility Access (Manhole)

  TSG Traffic Signal

  OUT Tile Outlet

  TSL Traffic Signal and Luminare

SIGN   SL Speed Limit Sign

GP   GP Guard Post (Less Than 4 Posts)

  MIS Miscellaneous

TP   TPD Telephone Pedestal

GV   GV Gas Valve

EB   EB Electrical Box

UB   UB Utility Box

WV   WV Water Valve

  PR Electic Riser Pole

  LUM Luminaire

  CUL Culvert

  LIN Miscellaneous Line

  TIL Tile Line

  GDL Guard Rail Steel

  ROC Rock Outcropping

  BLD Building or Foundation

  CON Concrete or A/C Slab

  CU Back of Curb

  GU Gutter In Front of Curb

  ENP Edge Paved Entrance & Park Lot

  SWK Sidewalk

  EP Edge of Paved Roads (ML or SR)

  ENT Centerline BL of Entrance

  SH Paved Shoulder

  SNP Unpaved Shoulder

  DU Centerline Draw or Stream (Up)

  BNK Stream Bank

  EG Edge of Gravel Road

  RIP Rip-Rap

BB   BB Billboard

SIGN   SI Sign

MM   MM Mile Marker Post

  INB Storm Sewer Beehive Intake

  DIK Centerline of Dike or Dam

  TLNL Tree Line Left

  FHD Fire Hydrants

TVP   TVP TV Pedestal

Flg   FLG Flag Poles

SB   SHR Shrub

  TEV Evergeen Tree

  TDC Tree Deciduous

  D Centerline Draw or Stream (Down)

  RET Retaining Walls

  HDG Hedge Row

  TLNR Tree Line Right

  FW Wire Fence

  FWD Wood Fence

  TDL Trafic Detection Loop

Existing Utilities 

Proposed Granular Shading

Existing Ground Line Profile 

Existing Utilities 

Highlight for Critical Notes or Features 

Blue, Light Proposed Ditch Grades, Left 

Proposed Ditch Grades, Median 

Proposed Ditch Grades, Right 

(230) 

(0) Black

Grading Shading

Green (2) Existing Topographic Features and Labels

Proposed Alignment, Stationing, Tic Marks, and Alignment Annotation 

Proposed Pavement Shading

Proposed Profile and Annotation 

(5) Magenta 

(1) 

(14) Rust 

Blue

(5) 

(4) Yellow 

(1) Blue 

(236) 

(2) Green 

Gray, Light 

(3) Red 

(80) Gray, Med 

(48) 

PLAN VIEW COLOR LEGEND OF PLAN AND PROFILE SHEETS

PROFILE VIEW COLOR LEGEND OF PLAN AND PROFILE SHEETS

Delineates Restricted Areas

(9) Lavender

(112) Gray, Dark

Temporary Pavement Shading

C/A

Station

Easement

Easement (Temporary)

Access Control

Proposed Right-of-Way

Existing and Proposed Right-of-Way

Easement and Existing Right-of-Way

Section Corner

Reference Point

Survey Line
RIGHT-OF-WAY LEGEND

Ground Line Intercept

Saw Cut

Magenta

Guardrail

Brown, Light

Proposed Sidewalk Shading

LINEWORK Design Color No.

SHADING Design Color No.

LINEWORK Design Color No.

(8) Tan

Pink

Proposed Sidewalk Landing Shading

Proposed Sidewalk Ramp Shading

(230) 

(11) 

Blue, Light

Trench Drain

Guardrail

HighTension Cable 

Grubbing Area

Clearing & 

Removal

Pavement 

Sheet Pile

Proposed Grade and Pave Shading  "In conjunction with a paving project"

Property Line

Existing Right of Way

   FOC Underground Fiber Optic - UPN

   ELC Underground Electric Conductor - MidAmerican

   ELC Underground Electric Secondary Conductor - MidAmerican

   FOC Underground Fiber Optic - Cedar Falls Utlilities

   FOC Underground Fiber Optic - Mediacom

   FOC Underground Fiber Optic - Aereon

   FOC Underground Fiber Optic - Century Link

   GC Gas - MidAmerican

   CTVC Cable Tv - Mediacom

   SANC Sanitary Sewer - Cedar Falls Utilities

   ST.SC Storm Sewer - Cedar Falls Utilities

   WLC Underground Water Line - Cedar Falls Utilities

   ELC Traffic Signal Electric Service - Cedar Falls Utilities

PLAN AND PROFILE

Existing Utilities 

Proposed Granular Shading

Existing Ground Line Profile 

Existing Utilities 

Highlight for Critical Notes or Features 

Blue, Light Proposed Ditch Grades, Left 

Proposed Ditch Grades, Median 

Proposed Ditch Grades, Right 

(230) 

(0) Black

Grading Shading

Green (2) Existing Topographic Features and Labels

Proposed Alignment, Stationing, Tic Marks, and Alignment Annotation 

Proposed Pavement Shading

Proposed Profile and Annotation 

(5) Magenta 

(1) 

(14) Rust 

Blue

(5) 

(4) Yellow 

(1) Blue 

(236) 

(2) Green 

Gray, Light 

(3) Red 

(80) Gray, Med 

(48) 

PLAN VIEW COLOR LEGEND OF PLAN AND PROFILE SHEETS

PROFILE VIEW COLOR LEGEND OF PLAN AND PROFILE SHEETS

Delineates Restricted Areas

(9) Lavender

(112) Gray, Dark

Temporary Pavement Shading

C/A

Station

Easement

Easement (Temporary)

Access Control

Proposed Right-of-Way

Existing and Proposed Right-of-Way

Easement and Existing Right-of-Way

Section Corner

Reference Point

Survey Line
RIGHT-OF-WAY LEGEND

Ground Line Intercept

Saw Cut

Magenta

Guardrail

Brown, Light

Proposed Sidewalk Shading

LINEWORK Design Color No.

SHADING Design Color No.

LINEWORK Design Color No.

(8) Tan

Pink

Proposed Sidewalk Landing Shading

Proposed Sidewalk Ramp Shading

(230) 

(11) 

Blue, Light

Trench Drain

Guardrail

HighTension Cable 

Grubbing Area

Clearing & 

Removal

Pavement 

Sheet Pile

Proposed Grade and Pave Shading  "In conjunction with a paving project"

Property Line

Existing Right of Way

(COVERS SHEET SERIES EC, H, J, & MSA)

B
S

C
-
-
-

D
R

N
C

H
K

D
A

T
E

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

$
$

U
S

E
R
$
$

$
$

P
E

N
$
$

$
$

P
R

F
$
$

      

 
 
 

C
H

E
C

K
 

P
L

A
N

S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D
E

C
 
2
0
2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

     60637669

DRAWING NO

SHEET NO

FILENAME

PROJECT NO

DATE

 
 
 

C
I

T
Y
 

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 

N
O
.
 

R
C
-
0
0
0
-
3
2
4
0
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

W
.
 
2
7
t
h
 

S
T

R
E

E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

S
A

N
I

T
A

R
Y
 

S
E

W
E

R
 

E
X

T
E

N
S
I

O
N
 
 
 
 
 

               

                            

W
W

W
.A

E
C

O
M
.C

O
M

T
 3

1
9
.2

3
2
.6

5
3
1
  
  
F
 3

1
9
.2

3
2
.0

2
7
1

W
a
te
rl
o
o
, 
Io

w
a
  
5
0
7
0
4
-1

4
9
7

5
0
1
 S

y
c
a

m
o
re
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 S

u
it
e
 2

2
2

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

R
E

V

D
E
S

D
R

N
1-
IN

C
H

C
H

K

A
P
P

           

D
E
S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

V
E
R
IF

Y
 
S
C

A
L
E
 
IF
 
P
L
A

N
 

S
H

E
E
T
 
IS
 
R
E

D
U

C
E

D

$
$

D
A

T
E
$
$

$
$

D
G

N
$
$

 
 
 
 
 

C
I

T
Y
 

O
F
 

C
E

D
A

R
 

F
A

L
L

S
,
 
I

O
W

A
 
 
 
 

   JANUARY 2021

290

Item 30.



W
.
 
2

7
t
h

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

S
A

N
I
T

A
R

Y
 
S

E
W

E
R

 
E

X
T

E
N

S
I
O

N

C
I
T

Y
 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
N

O
.
 
R

C
-
0

0
0

-
3

2
4

0

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
C

E
D

A
R

 
F

A
L

L
S

,
 
I
O

W
A

5
0

1
 
S

y
c
a

m
o

r
e

 
S

t
r
e

e
t
,
 
S

u
i
t
e

 
2

2
2

W
a

t
e

r
l
o

o
,
 
I
o

w
a

 
 
5

0
7

0
4

-
1

4
9

7

T
 
5

1
5

.
2

3
2

.
6

5
3

1
 
 
 
 
F

 
5

1
5

.
2

3
2

.
0

2
7

1

W
W

W
.
A

E
C

O
M

.
C

O
M

L
a

s
t
 
s
a

v
e

d
 
b

y
:
 

T
Y

L
E

R
.
G

A
M

E
R

D
I
N

G
E

R
(
2

0
2

1
-
0

1
-
1

2)
 
 
 
 
 
L

a
s
t
 
P

l
o

t
t
e

d
:
 

2
0

2
1

-
0

1
-
1

3

F
i
l
e

n
a

m
e

:
 
\
\
U

S
W

A
T

1
F

P
0

0
1

\
D

A
T

A
\
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
\
6

0
6

3
7

6
6

9
\
9

0
0

-
C

A
D

-
G

I
S

\
2

1
0

-
S

A
N

I
T

A
R

Y
\
S

H
T

_
M

S
A

_
E

C
0

1
.
D

W
G

             SILT FENCE

SEEDING

SAFETY FENCE

ROLLED EROSION

CONTROL PRODUCT

EC.3

E
R

O
S

I
O

N
 
C

O
N

T
R

O
L

PLAN NOTES

291

Item 30.



W
.
 
2

7
t
h

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

S
A

N
I
T

A
R

Y
 
S

E
W

E
R

 
E

X
T

E
N

S
I
O

N

C
I
T

Y
 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
N

O
.
 
R

C
-
0

0
0

-
3

2
4

0

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
C

E
D

A
R

 
F

A
L

L
S

,
 
I
O

W
A

5
0
1
 
S

y
c
a
m

o
r
e
 
S

t
r
e
e
t
,
 
S

u
i
t
e
 
2
2
2

W
a
t
e
r
l
o
o
,
 
I
o
w

a
 
 
5
0
7
0
4
-
1
4
9
7

T
 
5
1
5
.
2
3
2
.
6
5
3
1
 
 
 
 
F

 
5
1
5
.
2
3
2
.
0
2
7
1

W
W

W
.
A

E
C

O
M

.
C

O
M

L
a
s
t
 
s
a
v
e
d
 
b
y
:
 

T
Y

L
E

R
.
G

A
M

E
R

D
I
N

G
E

R
(
2
0
2
1
-
0
1
-
1
2
)
 
 
 
 
 
L
a
s
t
 
P

l
o
t
t
e
d
:
 

2
0
2
1
-
0
1
-
1
3

F
i
l
e
n
a
m

e
:
 
\
\
U

S
W

A
T

1
F

P
0
0
1
\
D

A
T

A
\
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
\
6
0
6
3
7
6
6
9
\
9
0
0
-
C

A
D

-
G

I
S

\
2
1
0
-
S

A
N

I
T

A
R

Y
\
S

H
T

_
M

S
A

_
E

C
0
1
.
D

W
G

EC.4

E
R

O
S

I
O

N
 
C

O
N

T
R

O
L

             SILT FENCE

SEEDING

SAFETY FENCE

ROLLED EROSION

CONTROL PRODUCT

292

Item 30.



Survey Information

ELEV.=947.31

E=15437951.060

N=8850279.273

IaRCS ZONE 5 US FT

Name: BHC Monument 172

Validation Point

ELEV.=943.95

E=15437905.270

N=8850180.855

IaRCS ZONE 5 US FT

Name: CF1 - 1/2" Rebar

Validation Point

E=15436622.270

N=8850201.930

IaRCS ZONE 5 US FT

Name: N22 - Cut "X" in Pavement

Validation Point

ELEV.=951.86

E=15439254.500

N=8850213.060

IaRCS ZONE 5 US FT

Name: NE22 - Cut "X" in Pavement

Validation Point

W. 27th Street

BHC Mon 172

W. 27th Street

N22

W. 27th Street

CF1

W. 27th Street

NE22

W. 27th Street

N22

CF1

NE22

G.1

and Benchmark 1
BHC Monument 172

Benchmark 2

Benchmark 3

                           Elevation 929.67

15-T89N-R14W. 

the Southwest corner of the Southeast 1/4 of th Southeast 1/4 of Section 

62' East of the RCB under 27th Street. The RCB is approximately 800' West of 

Mag nail in power pole on the North side of 27th Street that is approximately 

Benchmark 3    

                           Elevation  926.81

Southeast 1/4 of Section 15-T89N-R14W.                            

approximately 800' West of the Southwest corner of the Southeast 1/4 of th 

Cut "X" on the South headwall of the RCB under 27th Street. The RCB is 

Benchmark 2   

                          Elevation 947.31

15-T89N-R14W.

at the Southwest corner of the Southeast 1/4 of th Southeast 1/4 of Section 

cap stamped 2000-005 that is 54.6' North of the North edge of W. 27th Street 

Black Hawk County Monument ID 172 - a 5/8" fluted rod with a 2.5" aluminum 

Benchmark 1

Benchmarks:

Stamped 2000-005 was used as the beginning benchmark for this project. 

Vertical datum for this survey is NAVD88. Black Hawk County Monument ID 172 

Vertical Control

These marks can be used to validate results while staking design points.

system was used for design. Local marks have been designated for future use. 

Regional Coordinates System Zone 05 (U.S. Survey Feet). This coordinate 

The geographic coordinate system used to perform the design survey is Iowa 

Horizontal Control

B
S

C
-
-
-

D
R

N
C

H
K

D
A

T
E

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

W
a
t
e
r
l
o
o
,
 
I
o

w
a

 
.
.
.
\
p
l
t
c
f
g
\
1
1
x
1
7
_
p
d
f
.
p
l
t
c
f
g
,
 
.
.
.
\
t
a
b
l
e
s
\
p
e
n
\

B
S

C
_

P
E

N
.

T
B

L

P
r
i
n
t
e
d
 
f
r
o

m
 

M
i
c
r
o

S
t
a
t
i
o
n
 

V
8
i

      

 
 
 

C
H

E
C

K
 

P
L

A
N

S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D
E

C
 
2
0
2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

     60637669

DRAWING NO

SHEET NO

FILENAME

PROJECT NO

DATE

 
 
 

C
I

T
Y
 

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 

N
O
.
 

R
C
-
0
0
0
-
3
2
4
0
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

W
.
 
2
7
t
h
 

S
T

R
E

E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

S
A

N
I

T
A

R
Y
 

S
E

W
E

R
 

E
X

T
E

N
S
I

O
N
 
 
 
 
 

               

                            

W
W

W
.A

E
C

O
M
.C

O
M

T
 3

1
9
.2

3
2
.6

5
3
1
  
  
F
 3

1
9
.2

3
2
.0

2
7
1

W
a
te
rl
o
o
, 
Io

w
a
  
5
0
7
0
4
-1

4
9
7

5
0
1
 S

y
c
a

m
o
re
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 S

u
it
e
 2

2
2

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

R
E

V

D
E
S

D
R

N
1-
IN

C
H

C
H

K

A
P
P

           

D
E
S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

V
E
R
IF

Y
 
S
C

A
L
E
 
IF
 
P
L
A

N
 

S
H

E
E
T
 
IS
 
R
E

D
U

C
E

D

P
l
o
t
t
e
d
: 
1
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
1
, 
4
:5

5
:0

0
 

P
M

D
e
s
i
g
n
 

F
i
l
e
 

P
:\

6
0
6
3
7
6
6
9
\
9
0
0
-

C
A

D
-

G
I
S
\
2
1
0
-
S
a
n
i
t
a
r
y
\
6
0
6
3
7
6
6
9
-
S

H
T
-

G
-
0
1
.D

g
n
, 

M
o
d
e
l
 
F
i
e
l
d
_

G
_
S
h
e
e
t

 
 
 
 
 

C
I

T
Y
 

O
F
 

C
E

D
A

R
 

F
A

L
L

S
,
 
I

O
W

A
 
 
 
 

   JANUARY 2021

293

Item 30.



W
.
 
2

7
t
h

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

S
A

N
I
T

A
R

Y
 
S

E
W

E
R

 
E

X
T

E
N

S
I
O

N

C
I
T

Y
 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
N

O
.
 
R

C
-
0

0
0

-
3

2
4

0

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
C

E
D

A
R

 
F

A
L

L
S

,
 
I
O

W
A

5
0
1
 
S

y
c
a
m

o
r
e
 
S

t
r
e
e
t
,
 
S

u
i
t
e
 
2
2
2

W
a
t
e
r
l
o
o
,
 
I
o
w

a
 
 
5
0
7
0
4
-
1
4
9
7

T
 
5
1
5
.
2
3
2
.
6
5
3
1
 
 
 
 
F

 
5
1
5
.
2
3
2
.
0
2
7
1

W
W

W
.
A

E
C

O
M

.
C

O
M

L
a
s
t
 
s
a
v
e
d
 
b
y
:
 
T

Y
L
E

R
.
G

A
M

E
R

D
I
N

G
E

R
(
2
0
2
1
-
0
1
-
1
3
)
 
 
 
 
 
L
a
s
t
 
P

l
o
t
t
e
d
:
 
2
0
2
1
-
0
1
-
1
3

F
i
l
e
n
a
m

e
:
 
\
\
U

S
W

A
T

1
F

P
0
0
1
\
D

A
T

A
\
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
\
6
0
6
3
7
6
6
9
\
9
0
0
-
C

A
D

-
G

I
S

\
2
1
0
-
S

A
N

I
T

A
R

Y
\
H

-
S

H
E

E
T

.
D

W
G

H.1

R
I
G

H
T

 
O

F
 
W

A
Y

W
.
 
2
7
t
h

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

294

Item 30.



ROAD

CLOSED

AHEAD
ROAD

CLOSED

ROAD

CLOSED

AHEAD

ROAD

CLOSED

AHEAD

PROPOSED WORK AREA

ROAD

CLOSED

OO

FEET

50

100'

X

X

X

J.1

U
N
I

O
N
 

R
O

A
D

G
R

E
E

N
H
I

L
L
 

R
O

A
D

W 27TH STREET

X

X

X

X

X

X

W 27TH STREET

THRU TRAFFIC

ROAD CLOSED
TO

THRU TRAFFIC

ROAD CLOSED
TO

ROAD

CLOSED

ROAD

CLOSED

ROAD

CLOSED

AHEAD

OO

FEET

250

GENERAL TRAFFIC CONTROL NOTES

                    J-01.DGN

100'

 
 
 
 
 
 
T

R
A

F
F
IC
 
C

O
N

T
R

O
L
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
P

L
A

N
S
 

A
N

D
 

N
O

T
E

S
 
 
 
 
 
 

ROAD CLOSURE SHALL BE LIMITED TO 30 CALENDAR DAYS3.

RETROFLECTIVE SHEETING ON BOTH SIDES

DIRECTIONS OF TRAFFIC WHEN APPLICABLE WITH

TYPE III BARRICADES MUST BE VISIBLE TO BOTH 2. 

DETAIL 8030.116

AND COMPLY WITH SUDAS 1070.2.06 AND REFERENCE 

STREETS AND HIGHWAYS) IN EQUIPMENT AND PLACEMENT

(MANUAL ON UNIFROM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES FOR 

THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE CURRENT EDITION OF MUTCD

CONTRACTOR'S TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES SHALL MEET1. 
 AND SAFETY FENCE

TYPE III BARRICADE

TYPE III BARRICADE

TYPE III BARRICADE

B
S

C
-
-
-

D
R

N
C

H
K

D
A

T
E

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

$
$

U
S

E
R
$
$

$
$

P
E

N
$
$

$
$

P
R

F
$
$

      

 
 
 

C
H

E
C

K
 

P
L

A
N

S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D
E

C
 
2
0
2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

     60637669

DRAWING NO

SHEET NO

FILENAME

PROJECT NO

DATE

 
 
 

C
I

T
Y
 

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 

N
O
.
 

R
C
-
0
0
0
-
3
2
4
0
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

W
.
 
2
7
t
h
 

S
T

R
E

E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

S
A

N
I

T
A

R
Y
 

S
E

W
E

R
 

E
X

T
E

N
S
I

O
N
 
 
 
 
 

               

                            

W
W

W
.A

E
C

O
M
.C

O
M

T
 3

1
9
.2

3
2
.6

5
3
1
  
  
F
 3

1
9
.2

3
2
.0

2
7
1

W
a
te
rl
o
o
, 
Io

w
a
  
5
0
7
0
4
-1

4
9
7

5
0
1
 S

y
c
a

m
o
re
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 S

u
it
e
 2

2
2

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

R
E

V

D
E
S

D
R

N
1-
IN

C
H

C
H

K

A
P
P

           

D
E
S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

V
E
R
IF

Y
 
S
C

A
L
E
 
IF
 
P
L
A

N
 

S
H

E
E
T
 
IS
 
R
E

D
U

C
E

D

$
$

D
A

T
E
$
$

$
$

D
G

N
$
$

 
 
 
 
 

C
I

T
Y
 

O
F
 

C
E

D
A

R
 

F
A

L
L

S
,
 
I

O
W

A
 
 
 
 

   JANUARY 2021

X

X

X

295

Item 30.



GENERAL NOTES

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S

A
N
IT

A
R

Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 

N
O

T
E

S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                  MSA-02.DGN

MSA.1

REPLACED IN KIND.

ANY FENCES REMOVED OR DAMAGED DUE TO CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES SHALL BE REPAIRED OR 19. 

PROTECT EXISTING WATERWAYS.  DO NOT DISTURB WATERWAYS (DRAINAGE CHANNELS).18. 

REPAIRS OR REPLACEMENT OF DAMAGED PROPERTY TO BE MADE IN-KIND.

CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY DAMAGE TO PROPERTY CAUSED BY THEIR ACTIVITIES.  17. 

ENGINEER.

RECONNECT DISTURBED FIELD TILE.  RECORD SIZE AND LOCATION AND GIVE INFORMATION TO 16. 

DISPOSAL OF MATERIALS TO BE CONSIDERED INCIDENTAL UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.15. 

COMPLY WITH ALL FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL LAWS WHEN DISPOSING OF MATERIALS FROM SITE.14. 

CONFERENCE AND UPDATE AS NECESSARY AS CONSTRUCTION PROGRESSES.

PROVIDE DETAILED ANTICIPATED CONSTRUCTION STAGING PLAN IN WRITING AT PRECONSTRUCTION 13. 

SEPARATE PAYMENT FOR THIS WORK.

WIRE, GRADE STAKES, CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS OR OTHER OBJECTIONABLE MATERIAL.  NO 

AFTER SEED BED PREPARATION REMOVE STONES LARGER THAN 1 - INCH, STUMPS, ROOTS, BRUSH, 12. 

SEEDED AND MULCHED. 

GRASSED AREAS DISTURBED DURING CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE FINISH GRADED, FERTILIZED, 11. 

SALVAGE AND SEPARATELY STOCKPILE EXISTING TOPSOIL AND USE TO FINISH TOP 6" OF TRENCH.10. 

CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL OF ALL EXCESS EXCAVATION.9. 

GRADE ALL AREAS TO DRAIN.8. 

MINIMIZE INCONVENIENCE TO PUBLIC AND PRIVATE PROPERTY OWNERS.

FINISH GRADE AND CLEANUP IMMEDIATELY BEHIND EXCAVATION AND BACKFILL OPERATIONS TO 7. 

MINIMIZE DISRUPTION TO EXISTING STREETS.6. 

FRAME AND COVER.  USE SW-601 TYPE A OR C CASTINGS.

WHERE WATERTIGHT LIDS INDICATED ATTACH FRAME TO STRUCTURE AND PROVIDE BOLT DOWN 5. 

THE ROADWAY.

CONTRACTOR NOT ALLOWED TO STORE EQUIPMENT OR MATERIALS WITHIN THE CLEAR ZONE FOR 

SUCH WRITTEN AGREEMENT SHALL BE MADE AVAILABLE TO THE CITY AND THE ENGINEER.   

AUTHORIZATION IS OBTAINED FROM THE PROPERTY OWNER BY THE CONTRACTOR. A COPY OF 

ON, PARKED ON, DEPOSITED ON, OR DRIVEN OVER ANY PRIVATE PROPERTY UNLESS WRITTEN 

CONSTRUCTION LIMITS. NO MATERIALS, EXCAVATED MATERIAL, OR EQUIPMENT SHALL BE STORED 

EASEMENTS. CONTRACTOR SHALL RESTRICT CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS TO WITHIN DESIGNATED 

WORK INVOLVED IN THIS PROJECT SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED ON CITY OWNED PROPERTY OR 4. 

DELAY CAUSED BY SUCH WORK.

ADDITIONAL COMPENSATION WILL BE ALLOWED TO CONTRACTOR FOR ANY INTERFERENCE OR 

THEIR EXISTENCE AND EXACT LOCATION AND TO AVOID DAMAGE THERETO.  NO CLAIMS FOR 

PRESENTLY NOT KNOWN OR SHOWN.  IT IS THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO DETERMINE 

APPROXIMATE ONLY.  IT IS POSSIBLE THERE MAY BE OTHERS, THE EXISTENCE OF WHICH IS 

AVAILABLE SURVEYS AND RECORDS, AND THEREFORE THEIR LOCATIONS MUST BE CONSIDERED 

SERVICES. UNDERGROUND FACILITIES, STRUCTURES AND UTILITIES HAVE BEEN PLOTTED FROM 

CONTRACTOR SHALL AFFORD ACCESS TO THESE FACILITIES FOR NECESSARY MODIFICATION OF 

CONTRACTOR TO NOTIFY OWNERS OF UTILITIES PRIOR TO BEGINNING CONSTRUCTION.  

ENCOUNTERED WITHIN THE CONSTRUCTION AREA, IT SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF 

WHERE PUBLIC AND PRIVATE UTILITY FIXTURES ARE SHOWN AS EXISTING ON DRAWINGS OR 3. 

FOR EXISTING UTILITIES LOCATIONS PRIOR TO EXCAVATION.

RELOCATION OF ANY UTILITIES AND/OR UTILITY POLES.  CONTACT IOWA ONE CALL (1-800-292-8989) 

CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH THE VARIOUS UTILITY COMPANIES FOR SUPPORT OR 2. 

(STATEWIDE URBAN DESIGN AND SPECIFICATIONS) SPECIFICATIONS.

CEDAR FALLS SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS AND THE 202ADDITION OF THE IOWA SUDAS 

CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND CURRENT 1. 

B
S

C
-
-
-

D
R

N
C

H
K

D
A

T
E

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

$
$

U
S

E
R
$
$

$
$

P
E

N
$
$

$
$

P
R

F
$
$

      

 
 
 

C
H

E
C

K
 

P
L

A
N

S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D
E

C
 
2
0
2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

     60637669

DRAWING NO

SHEET NO

FILENAME

PROJECT NO

DATE

 
 
 

C
I

T
Y
 

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 

N
O
.
 

R
C
-
0
0
0
-
3
2
4
0
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

W
.
 
2
7
t
h
 

S
T

R
E

E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

S
A

N
I

T
A

R
Y
 

S
E

W
E

R
 

E
X

T
E

N
S
I

O
N
 
 
 
 
 

               

                            

W
W

W
.A

E
C

O
M
.C

O
M

T
 3

1
9
.2

3
2
.6

5
3
1
  
  
F
 3

1
9
.2

3
2
.0

2
7
1

W
a
te
rl
o
o
, 
Io

w
a
  
5
0
7
0
4
-1

4
9
7

5
0
1
 S

y
c
a

m
o
re
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 S

u
it
e
 2

2
2

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

R
E

V

D
E
S

D
R

N
1-
IN

C
H

C
H

K

A
P
P

           

D
E
S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

V
E
R
IF

Y
 
S
C

A
L
E
 
IF
 
P
L
A

N
 

S
H

E
E
T
 
IS
 
R
E

D
U

C
E

D

$
$

D
A

T
E
$
$

$
$

D
G

N
$
$

 
 
 
 
 

C
I

T
Y
 

O
F
 

C
E

D
A

R
 

F
A

L
L

S
,
 
I

O
W

A
 
 
 
 

   JANUARY 2021

296

Item 30.



∅ 

∅ 

∅ 

∅ 

∅ 

W
.
 
2

7
t
h

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

S
A

N
I
T

A
R

Y
 
S

E
W

E
R

 
E

X
T

E
N

S
I
O

N

C
I
T

Y
 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
N

O
.
 
R

C
-
0

0
0

-
3

2
4

0

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
C

E
D

A
R

 
F

A
L

L
S

,
 
I
O

W
A

5
0
1
 
S

y
c
a
m

o
r
e
 
S

t
r
e
e
t
,
 
S

u
i
t
e
 
2
2
2

W
a
t
e
r
l
o
o
,
 
I
o
w

a
 
 
5
0
7
0
4
-
1
4
9
7

T
 
5
1
5
.
2
3
2
.
6
5
3
1
 
 
 
 
F

 
5
1
5
.
2
3
2
.
0
2
7
1

W
W

W
.
A

E
C

O
M

.
C

O
M

L
a
s
t
 
s
a
v
e
d
 
b
y
:
 
A

A
R

O
N

.
M

U
E

L
L
E

R
(
2
0
2
1
-
0
2
-
1
7

)
 
 
 
 
 
L
a
s
t
 
P

l
o
t
t
e
d
:
 
2
0
2
1
-
0
2
-
1
7

F
i
l
e
n
a
m

e
:
 
P

:
\
6
0
6
3
7
6
6
9
\
9
0
0
-
C

A
D

-
G

I
S

\
2
1
0
-
S

A
N

I
T

A
R

Y
\
M

S
A

.
3
.
D

W
G

MSA.2

S
A

N
I
T

A
R

Y

P
L

A
N

 
A

N
D

 
P

R
O

F
I
L

E

W
.
 
2
7
t
h

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

PLAN NOTES

297

Item 30.



1 

PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS 
FOR 

W. 27TH STREET SANITARY SEWER EXTENSION 
PROJECT 

 
Project RC-000-3240 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 

 
 

ENGINEER'S CERTIFICATION 

 
 

 

 
I hereby certify that this engineering document was prepared by me or 
under my direct personal supervision and that I am a duly licensed 
professional engineer under the laws of the State of Iowa. 
 
 
________________________________________  Date: ___________ 
Michelle Sweeney, PE, PTOE,  Iowa License No. 20830 
My license renewal date is 12/31/2021 
 
Pages or sheets covered by this seal: A.1, B.1, C.1-C.2, EC.1-EC.4, G.1, 
H.1, J.1, MSA.1-MSA.2 

 

2/2/2021

298

Item 30.



2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

299

Item 30.



 

2 

 

 
 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 
    Page Number 
 
TITLE SHEET  .....................................................................................  1 
 
TABLE OF CONTENTS ...............................................................................  2-3 
 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ..................................................................  4 
 
NOTICE TO BIDDERS .................................................................................  5-6 
 
DIVISION 1 – Instruction to Bidders 

01 Definition and Terms ....................................................................  7 
 02 Qualification of the Bidder.............................................................  7-8 

03 Contents of the Proposal Forms ...................................................  8 
04 Taxes  .....................................................................................  8 
05 Submission of the Proposal, Identity of Bidder and Bid Security ....  9 
Form of Proposal ...............................................................................  10-12 
Bid Bond  .....................................................................................  13 
Bidder Status Form ............................................................................  14 
Authorization to transact business .....................................................  15 
Non-Collusion Affidavit of Prime Bidder .............................................  16 
Form of Contract ................................................................................  17-18 

 Performance, Payment and Maintenance Bond ................................  19-22 
 
DIVISION 2 – Special Provisions 

01 Award of Contract .........................................................................  23 
02 Availability of Site .........................................................................  23 
03 Protection of Line and Grade Stakes ............................................  23 
04 Borrow and Waste Sites ...............................................................  23 
05 Subletting or Assignment of Contract ...........................................  24 
06 Contract Time ...............................................................................  24 
07 Work Progress and Schedule .......................................................  25 
08 Weekly record of Working Days ...................................................  25 
09 Liquidated Damages .....................................................................  25 
10 Progress Payments and Vouchers ...............................................  25 
11 Pollution Prevention Plan .............................................................  26-27 
12 Method of Measurement ...............................................................  28 
13 Basis of Payment                                                                              28 

300

Item 30.



 

3 

 

DIVISION 3 – Standard Specifications 
 

 The current version of the Statewide Urban Design and Specifications (SUDAS)   
 shall apply to this project and serve as the City’s Standard Specification. 
  

The Standard Specification is amended by the City of Cedar Falls Supplemental 
Specifications to SUDAS, latest edition. 
 
Links to both documents can be found on the City’s website at: 
www.cedarfalls.com/designstandards  

 
DIVISION 4 – Supplemental Plans and Specifications 

SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS - BID ITEMS ..........................  30-32 

301

Item 30.

http://www.cedarfalls.com/designstandards


 

4 

 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, 
FORM OF CONTRACT, AND ESTIMATE OF COST FOR THE  

W. 27TH STREET SANITARY SEWER EXTENSION PROJECT IN THE 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 
TO ALL TAXPAYERS OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND OTHER PERSONS 
INTERESTED: 
 

Public notice is hereby given that the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

will conduct a Public Hearing on Plans, Specifications, Form of Contract, and Estimated 

Total Cost for the construction of the W. 27TH STREET SANITARY SEWER EXTENSION 

PROJECT in said City at 7:00 p.m. on the 7th day of June 2021 said meeting to be held in 

the Council Chambers in the City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

Said Plans, Specifications, Form of Contract, and Estimated Total Cost are now on 

file in the office of the City Clerk in the City Hall in Cedar Falls, Iowa, and may be inspected 

by any persons interested. 

Any person interested may appear at said meeting of the City Council for the 

purpose of making objections to said Plans, Specifications, Contract, or Estimated Total 

Cost of making said improvement. 

This notice given by order of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

   City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

    By: _______________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC  

City Clerk 

302

Item 30.



 

5 

 

NOTICE TO BIDDERS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 
W. 27TH STREET SANITARY SEWER EXTENSION PROJECT 

 
Time and Place for Filing Sealed Proposals: Proposals will only be accepted electronically on the 
Quest CDN website before 2:00 p.m. on the 15th day of June 2021. 
 
Time and Place Sealed Proposals will be Opened and Considered: Sealed proposals will be 
publicly opened online at 2:00 p.m. on the 15th day of June 2021 at www.questcdn.com, for 
consideration by the City of Cedar Falls City Council at its meeting at 7:00 PM on the 21st day of 
June 2021 or at such later time and place as may be fixed. The City of Cedar Falls reserves the 
right to reject any and all proposals including without limitation, nonconforming, nonresponsive, 
unbalanced, or conditional bids.  
 
Time for Commencement and Completion of Work: The work under the proposed contract shall 
commence within ten (10) calendar days after the date set forth in the written Notice to Proceed and 
shall be performed regularly and diligently throughout the duration of the project. All work shall be 
completed within 60 working days. Working days will be accumulated concurrently from the date set 
forth in the written Notice to Proceed. 
 
Bid Security: Bidders shall provide a bid security in the amount defined in the Instructions to 
Bidders- Division 1 Section 05.  A scanned copy of the Bid Bond must be included with the online 
bid submitted at www.questcdn.com. 
 
Performance and Payment Bonds:  The successful Bidder shall furnish to the City a performance 
bond in an amount equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the contract price, guaranteeing faithful 
performance of the contract and guaranteeing the completed project against defective workmanship 
and materials for a period of two (2) years from and after completion and acceptance by the City.  
The successful Bidder shall also provide a payment bond in an amount equal to one hundred 
percent (100%) of the contract price guaranteeing payment of all persons supplying labor and 
materials, or both, in the execution of the work provided for in the contract. 
 
Contract Documents: The contract documents are available at www.cedarfalls.com/QuestCDN and 
www.questCDN.com .  This contract is QuestCDN project number 7808563.  A contractor may view 
the contract documents at no cost prior to deciding to become a Planholder.  To be considered a 
Planholder for bids, a contractor must register with QuestCDN.com.  Registering as a planholder is 
recommended for all prime contractors and subcontractors as Planholders will receive automatic 
notice of addenda and other contract document updates via QuestCDN.  Contact QuestCDN 
Customer Support at (952) 233-1632 or info@questcdn.com for assistance in membership 
registration, downloading digital project information and vBid online bid submittal questions.  To 
access the electronic bid form, download the project documents and click the online bid button at 
the top of the bid advertisement page.  Bids will only be received and accepted via the online 
electronic bid service through QuestCDN.com.  To access the electronic bid form, download the 
project documents and click on the online bid button at the top of the bid advertisement page.  
Prospective bidders must be on the Planholder list through QuestCDN for bids to be accepted.  If 
required, hard copies of the project documents may be obtained from the City Engineer’s office, 220 
Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 for a refundable deposit of $250.00 if returned to City 
Engineer’s office within 14 days after the bid opening. Failure to return within the 14 days will forfeit 
your deposit.   
 

303

Item 30.

http://www.questcdn.com/
http://www.questcdn.com/
http://www.cedarfalls.com/QuestCDN
http://www.questcdn.com/
mailto:info@questcdn.com


 

6 

 

If any prospective bidder is in doubt as to the true meaning of any parts of the contract documents, 
the bidder may request an interpretation from the Engineer, in writing, through email.  Questions 
received less than five (5) days prior to the date for opening bids may not be answered. 
 
 
Contact individuals shall be as follows: 
 
Michelle Sweeney, PE, PTOE 
AECOM 
501 Sycamore Street, Suite 222 
Waterloo, Iowa 50703 
Michelle.Sweeney@AECOM.com 
 
Any interpretation of the contract documents will be made in writing and only by addendum with 
online notification given to bidders.  Only questions answered by Addenda will be binding.  Oral and 
other interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect.  Addenda may be issued to clarify, 
correct or change the contract documents as deemed advisable by the City of Cedar Falls or the 
Engineer of record. 
 

Preference for Iowa Products and Labor:  By virtue of statutory authority, a preference will be given 

to products and provisions grown and coal produced within the State of Iowa. 
 
In accordance with Iowa statutes, a resident bidder shall be allowed a preference as against a 
nonresident bidder from a state or foreign country if that state or foreign country gives or requires 
any preference to bidders from that state or foreign country, including but not limited to any 
preference to bidders, the imposition of any type of labor force preference, or any other form of 
preferential treatment to bidders or laborers from that state or foreign country. The preference 
allowed shall be equal to the preference given or required by the state or foreign country in which 
the nonresident bidder is a resident. In the instance of a resident labor force preference, a 
nonresident bidder shall apply the same resident labor force preference to a public improvement in 
this state as would be required in the construction of a public improvement by the state or foreign 
country in which the nonresident bidder is a resident. 
 
Failure to submit a fully completed Bidder Status Form with the bid may result in the bid being 
deemed nonresponsive and rejected. 
 

Sales Tax: Contractors and approved subcontractors will be provided a Sales Tax Exemption 

Certification to purchase building materials, supplies or equipment to be used in the performance of 
this project. Products utilized in the construction of this project shall be exempt from tax as provided 
by Code of Iowa Sections 423.2 and 423.45. 
 
Project Description: This projects will extend sanitary sewer from the Union Interceptor to the north 
side of W. 27th Street. This project includes 1,650 lineal feet of sanitary sewer. 

 

Published upon order of the City Council of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 
   CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
   BY: __________________________ 
          Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC 
           City Clerk 

304

Item 30.



 

7 

 

 
DIVISION I – Instructions to Bidders 

 
The work comprising the W. 27th Street Sanitary Sewer Extension Project shall be 
constructed in accordance with the 2021 Edition of the SUDAS and as further modified by the 
City of Cedar Falls’ Supplemental Specifications and the special provisions included in the 
contract documents. The terms used in the contract revision of the documents are defined in 
said Standard Specifications. 
 
Before submitting your bid, please review the requirements of “Division One, General 
Provisions and Covenants”, in particular the sections regarding proposal requirements, 
bonding, contract execution, and insurance requirements.  Please be certain that all 
documents have been completed properly; as failure to complete and sign all documents and 
to comply with the requirements listed below can cause your bid not to be considered. 
 
01 Definition and Terms 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1010 – 1.03: 
 
Code of Iowa: The latest edition of the Code of Iowa 
 
Engineer: The City Engineer of Cedar Falls, Iowa or an authorized representative. 
 
Owner: The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa acting through its City Council. 
 
Project: W. 27TH STREET SANITARY SEWER EXTENSION PROJECT 

Project No. RC-000-3240 
 
02 Qualification of the Bidder 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.01: 
 
To demonstrate bidder’s qualifications to perform the work, within five days of the Owners 
request, bidder shall submit written evidence such as may be called for below: 
 
The address and description of the bidder’s place of business; The number of years 
engaged in the contracting business under the present firm name, and the name of the 
state where incorporated; A list of the property and equipment available to the bidder to 
evaluate if the bidder can complete the work in accordance with the bidding documents; A 
financial statement of the bidder showing that the bidder has the financial resources to 
meet all obligations incidental to the work; The bidder’s performance record giving the 
description, location, and telephone number of similar projects constructed in a satisfactory 
manner by the bidder; A list of projects presently under contract, the approximate contract 
amount and the percent of completion of each; A list of contracts which resulted in lawsuits; 
A list of contracts defaulted; A statement of the bidder indicating whether or not the bidder 
has ever filed bankruptcy while performing work of a like nature or magnitude;  A list of 

305

Item 30.



 

8 

 

officers of the firm who, while in the employ of the firm or the employ of previous firms, were 
associated with contracts which resulted in lawsuits, contracts defaulted or filed for 
bankruptcy; The technical experience of personnel guaranteed to be employed in 
responsible charge of the work stating whether the personnel have or have not performed 
satisfactorily on other contracts of like nature and magnitude or comparable difficulty at 
similar rate of progress; Such additional information as will assist the Owner in determining 
whether the bidder is adequately prepared to fulfill the contract. Owner’s decision as to 
qualifications of the bidder will be final. 
 
The Owner hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that in any contract 
entered into pursuant to this advertisement, disadvantaged business enterprises will be 
afforded full opportunity to submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be 
discriminated against on the grounds of race, color or national origin in consideration for an 
award. 
 
03 Contents of the Proposal Forms 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.02: 
 
The contract documents are available at www.cedarfalls.com/QuestCDN and 
www.questCDN.com .  This contract is QuestCDN project number 7808563.  A contractor 
may view the contract documents at no cost prior to deciding to become a Planholder.  To 
be considered a Planholder for bids, a contractor must register with QuestCDN.com.  
Registering as a planholder is recommended for all prime contractors and subcontractors 
as Planholders will receive automatic notice of addenda and other contract document 
updates via QuestCDN.  Contact QuestCDN Customer Support at (952) 233-1632 or 
info@questcdn.com for assistance in membership registration, downloading digital project 
information and vBid online bid submittal questions.  To access the electronic bid form, 
download the project documents and click the online bid button at the top of the bid 
advertisement page.  Bids will only be received and accepted via the online electronic bid 
service through QuestCDN.com.  To access the electronic bid form, download the project 
documents and click on the online bid button at the top of the bid advertisement page.  
Prospective bidders must be on the Planholder list through QuestCDN for bids to be 
accepted.   
 
04 Taxes 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.08: 
 
Contractors and approved subcontractors will be provided a Sales Tax Exemption 
Certification to purchase building materials, supplies or equipment to be used in the 
performance of this project. Products utilized in the construction of this project will be 
exempt from tax as provided by Code of Iowa Sections 423.2 and 423.45. 
 
 
 

306

Item 30.

http://www.cedarfalls.com/QuestCDN
http://www.questcdn.com/
mailto:info@questcdn.com


 

9 

 

05 Submission of the Proposal, Identity of Bidder and Bid Security 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.12: 
 
The bid security must be in the minimum amount of 10% of the total bid amount including all 
add alternates (do not deduct the amount of deduct alternates). The bid security shall be in 
the form of a cashier's check or certified check drawn on a state-chartered or federally 
chartered bank, or a certified share draft drawn on a state-chartered or federally chartered 
credit union, or a bidder's bond with corporate surety satisfactory to the City. The bid bond 
must be submitted on the provided Bid Bond form, as no other bid bond forms are 
acceptable.  All signatures on the bid bond must be original signatures in ink; facsimile (fax) 
of any signature on the bid bond is not acceptable.  Bid security other than said bid bond 
shall be made payable to City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls. 
 
“Miscellaneous Bank checks”, as well as “Money Orders” and “Traveler’s Checks” issued by 
persons, firms or corporations licensed under Code of Iowa Chapter 533B are not acceptable 
bid security. 
 
Proposals will only be accepted electronically on the Quest CDN website.  Bidders will also 
be required to submit the following forms online with their bid:  bid security, bidder status 
form and non-collusion Affidavit. 
 

307

Item 30.



 

10 

 

 

FORM OF PROPOSAL 
W. 27TH STREET SANITARY SEWER EXTENSION PROJECT 

PROJECT NO. RC-000-3240 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 
 

To the Mayor and City Council 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 
The undersigned hereby certifies that __________________________ have personally and 

carefully examined the specifications, general conditions, and form of contract annexed 

hereto. Having made such examination, the undersigned hereby proposes to construct the 

improvements for the W. 27TH STREET SANITARY SEWER EXTENSION PROJECT in 

accordance with the plans and specifications on file in the office of the City Clerk, the 

published Notice to Bidders and the Form of Contract, herewith, complying with all the laws 

of the State of Iowa, and the Rules, Regulations and Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, 

and to the satisfaction of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including the 

guaranteeing of this Project for a period of two (2) years from the date of final acceptance 

thereof at the following prices, to-wit: 

 
 

BID 
ITEM 

# DESCRIPTION UNITS QUANTITY UNIT PRICE 
EXTENDED 

PRICE 

1 CLEARING AND GRUBBING ACRE                  0.7   $  $ 

2 
STRIP, SALVAGE, AND RESPREAD 
TOPSOIL 

CY          3,580.0   $  $ 

3 
SUBGRADE PREPARATION, 12 
INCH 

SY              251.0   $  $ 

4 MODIFIED SUBBASE, 6 INCH SY              251.0   $  $ 

5 
REPLACEMENT OF UNSUITABLE 
BACKFILL MATERIAL 

CY              100.0   $  $ 

6 
SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, 
TRENCHED, TRUSS, 8 INCH 

LF                  8.0  $ $ 

7 
SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, 
TRENCHED, TRUSS, 12 INCH 

LF                  8.0  $ $ 

308

Item 30.



 

11 

 

BID 
ITEM 

# DESCRIPTION UNITS QUANTITY UNIT PRICE 
EXTENDED 

PRICE 

8 
SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, 
TRENCHED, TRUSS, 15 INCH 

LF          1,644.0  $ $ 

9 
SUBDRAIN INSTALLATION, LESS 
THAN 10 INCH 

LF              200.0  $ $ 

10 MANHOLE, SW-301, 48 INCH EA                  5.0  $ $ 

11 
CONNECTION TO EXISTING 
SANITARY MANHOLE 

EA                  1.0  $ $ 

12 GRANULAR SURFACING SY                36.7  $ $ 

13 TEMPORARY PAVEMENT SY              214.0  $ $ 

14 PAVEMENT REMOVAL SY              214.0  $ $ 

15 
PAINTED PAVEMENT MARKINGS, 
HIGHBUILD WATERBORNE 

STA                  1.8  $ $ 

16 TRAFFIC CONTROL LS                  1.0  $ $ 

17 SAFETY FENCE LF              300.0  $ $ 

18 
SEEDING, FERTILIZING AND 
MULCHING FOR HYDRAULIC 
SEEDING - TYPE 3 SEED MIX 

ACRE                0.65  $ $ 

19 
SEEDING, FERTILIZING AND 
MULCHING FOR HYDRAULIC 
SEEDING - TYPE 5 SEED MIX 

ACRE                0.65  $ $ 

20 SWPPP MANAGEMENT LS                  1.0  $ $ 

21 
TEMPORARY ROLLED EROSION 
CONTROL PRODUCTS (RECP) 

SY              600.0  $ $ 

22 SILT FENCE, INSTALLATION LF          1,555.0  $ $ 

23 SILT FENCE, MAINTENANCE LF          1,555.0  $ $ 

24 SILT FENCE, REMOVAL LF          1,555.0  $ $ 

25 CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE SY              175.0  $ $ 

26 MOBILIZATION LS                  1.0  $ $ 

27 
FIELD FENCE, REMOVAL AND 
REINSTALL 

LF              255.0  $ $ 

 TOTAL BID $ 

Bidders may not independently bid on selective items of work. In this project, all items 
constitute one indivisible work that will be let to one bidder. A unit price shall be submitted 
for each of the items (Items 1-27).  The successful bidder will be determined by evaluating 
the Total Bid shown above which shall be done online via the QuestCDN website. The 
Owner reserves the right to delete any part or all of any item. 
 

The Owner reserves the right to reject any and all bids, including without limitation, 
nonconforming, nonresponsive, unbalanced, or conditional bids. The Owner further 

309

Item 30.



 

12 

 

reserves the right to reject the bid of any bidder whom it finds, after reasonable inquiry and 
evaluation, to be non-responsible. The Owner may also reject the bid of any bidder if the 
Owner believes that it would not be in the best interest of the project to make an award to 
that bidder. The Owner also reserves the right to waive all informalities not involving price, 
time or changes in the work. 
 

If written notice of approval of award is mailed, emailed or delivered to the bidder within 
thirty (30) calendar days after the opening thereof, or any time thereafter before this bid is 
withdrawn, the undersigned agrees to execute and deliver an agreement in the prescribed 
form and furnish the required bond within ten (10) calendar days after the Contract is 
presented to the Contractor for signature, and start work within ten (10) calendar days after 
the date as set forth in the written Notice to Proceed.  
 

Bid Security in the sum of _________________________________ in the form of 
__________________________________, is submitted herewith in accordance with the 
Instructions to Bidders. 
 
The bidder is prepared to submit a financial and experience statement upon request. 
 
The bidder has received the following Addendum or Addenda: 
 
Addendum No.  ______________     Date _____________ 
  ______________ _____________ 
 
The bidder has filled in all blanks on this Proposal. 
 
Note: The Penalty for making false statements in offers is prescribed in 18 U.S.A., Section 
1001. 
 
Name of bidder 
________________________________  _____________________________ 
   By 
________________________________  _____________________________  
Official Address   Title 
 

310

Item 30.



 

13 

 

BID BOND 
 

 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that we, __________________________________________________ 
__________________________, as Principal, and __________________________________________________ 
as Surety are held and firmly bound unto the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, as Obligee, hereinafter called "OBLIGEE," In the 
penal sum of______________________________________ Dollars ($______________) lawful money of the United 
States, for the payment of which sum will and truly be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, 
and successors, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. Whereas the Principal has submitted the accompanying 
bid dated the _______ day of______________________, 20_____, for _____________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________________________. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, 
 
(a) If said Bid shall be rejected, or in the alternate, 
 
(b) If said Bid shall be accepted and the Principal shall execute and deliver a contract in the form specified and 

shall furnish a bond for the faithful performance of said contract, and for the payment of all persons performing 
labor or furnishing materials in connection therewith, and shall in all other respects perform the agreement 
created by the acceptance of said Bid, 

 
Then this obligation shall be void, otherwise the same shall remain in force and effect; it being expressly understood 
and agreed that the liability of the Surety for any and all claims hereunder shall, in no event, exceed the penal amount of 
this obligation as herein stated. 
 
By virtue of statutory authority, the full amount of this bid bond shall be forfeited to the Obligee in liquidation of damages 
sustained in the event that the Principal fails to execute the contract and provide the bond as provided in the 
specifications or by law. 
 
The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that the obligations of said Surety and its bond shall be in 
no way impaired or affected by any extension of the time within which the Obligee may accept such Bid or execute such 
contract; and said Surety does hereby waive notice of any such extension. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Principal and the Surety, have hereunto set their hands and seals, and such of them as 
are corporations, have caused their corporate seals to be hereto affixed and these presents to be signed by their proper 
officers this ______ day of ____________________, A.D., 20_____. 
 
 
 

_________________________________ (Seal) 
Principal 

 
 
_______________________________________ By_______________________________ (Title) 
Witness 

_________________________________ (Seal) 
Surety 

 
_______________________________________ By____________________________________ 
Witness                                  Attorney-in-fact 

311

Item 30.



 

14 

 

 

312

Item 30.



 

15 

 

313

Item 30.



 

16 

 

                 NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT OF PRIME BIDDER           
 PROJECT NO. RC-000-3240 

 
STATE OF _______________________  

                           ss 
COUNTY OF _____________________ 
 
 
__________________________________, being first duly sworn, deposes and says that: 
 
(1)  We are _______________________________________________________ of ______________  
           (Owner, partner, officer, representative, or agent) 
 
______________________________________________, the Bidder that has submitted the attached bid: 
 
(2)  We are fully informed respecting the preparation and contents of the attached bid and of all pertinent 
circumstances respecting such bid: 
 
(3)   Such bid is genuine and is not a collusive or sham bid: 
 
(4)  Neither the said Bidder nor any of its officers, partners, Owners, agents, representatives, employees 
or parties in interest, including this affiant, has in any way colluded, conspired, connived or agreed, directly or 
indirectly, with any other Bidder, firm or person to submit a collusive or sham bid in connection with the 
Contract for which the attached bid has been submitted or to refrain from bidding in connection with such 
Contract, or has in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement or collusion or communication or 
conference with any other Bidder, firm or person to fix the price or prices in the attached bid or of any other 
Bidder, or, to fix any overhead, profit or cost element of the bid price of any other Bidder, or to secure through 
any collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or unlawful agreement any advantage against the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, or any person interested in the proposed Contract; and 
 
(5)   The price or prices quoted in the attached bid are fair and proper and are not tainted by a collusion, 
conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement on the part of the Bidder or any of its agents, representatives, 
Owners, employees or parties in interest, including this affiant. 
 
 
 
   __________________________________________ 

Signed      
  __________________________________________ 

    Title 
 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me 
 
this _______ day of ________________, 20_____ 
 
________________________________________ 
 
________________________________________ 
Title 
 
My Commission expires ____________________. 

314

Item 30.



 

17 

 

 

FORM OF CONTRACT 

 
This Contract entered into in quadruplicate at Cedar Falls, Iowa, this ____ day of 

_____________, 2021, by and between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereinafter called the 

Owner, and_____________ of ___________________, hereinafter called the Contractor. 

WITNESSETH: 

The Contractor hereby agrees to furnish all labor, tools, materials and equipment 

and construct the public improvement consisting of: W. 27TH STREET SANITARY SEWER 

EXTENSION PROJECT, Project No. RC-000-3240 all in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

ordered to be constructed by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, by 

Resolution duly passed on the 7th day of June 2021, and shown and described in the Plans 

and Specifications therefore now on file with the City Clerk of said City. 

Said improvement shall be constructed strictly in accordance with said Plans and 

Specifications. 

The following parts of the Plans and Specifications for said Project No. RC-000-3240 

attached hereto shall be made a part of this contract as fully as though set out herein 

verbatim: 

a. Resolution ordering construction of the improvement 
b. Plans 
c. Notice of Public Hearing on Plans and Specifications 
d. Notice to Bidders 
e. Instructions to Bidders 
f. Supplemental Conditions 
g. General Conditions 
h. Project Specifications 
i. Form of Proposal 
j. Performance, Payment, and Maintenance Bond 
k. Form of Contract 
l. Non-collusion Affidavit of Prime Bidder 

 m. Bidders Status Form 

315

Item 30.



 

18 

 

 
 
In Witness whereof, this Contract has been executed in quadruplicate on the date first  
 
herein written.   
 

 __________________________ 
 Contractor 

 
 
    CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
    By____________________________ 

    Robert M. Green, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: _________________________ 
 Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC 
 City Clerk 

316

Item 30.



 

19 

 

Performance, Payment and Maintenance Bond 
 

SURETY BOND NO.           

 

 

 KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS: 

  

 That we, __________________________, as Principal (hereinafter the “Contractor” or “Principal” and 

____________________________________________________ as Surety are held and firmly bound unto 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, as Obligee (hereinafter referred to as “the Owner”), and to all persons who 

may be injured by any breach of any of the conditions of this Bond in the penal sum of 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

($_______________), lawful money of the United States, for the payment of which sum, well and truly to be 

made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, legal representatives and assigns, jointly or severally, firmly by these 

presents. 

  

 The conditions of the above obligations are such that whereas said Contractor entered into a contract with the 

Owner, bearing date the _______ day of __________, 2021, hereinafter the “Contract”) wherein said Contractor 

undertakes and agrees to construct the following described improvements: 

 

W. 27th Street Sanitary Sewer Extension Project 

Project RC-000-3240 
 

and to faithfully perform all the terms and requirements of said Contract within the time therein specified, in a 

good and workmanlike manner, and in accordance with the Contract Documents.   
 
 
It is expressly understood and agreed by the Contractor and Surety in this bond that the following provisions are 

a part of this Bond and are binding upon said Contractor and Surety, to-wit: 

 
 
1. PERFORMANCE:  The Contractor shall well and faithfully observe, perform, fulfill, and abide by   each 

and every covenant, condition, and part of said Contract and Contract Documents, by reference made a 

part hereof, for the above referenced improvements, and shall indemnify and save harmless the Owner 

from all outlay and expense incurred by the Owner by reason of the Contractor’s default or failure to 

perform as required.  The Contractor shall also be responsible for the default or failure to perform as 

required under the Contract and Contract Documents by all its subcontractors, suppliers, agents, or 

employees furnishing materials or providing labor in the performance of the Contract. 
     
2. PAYMENT:  The Contractor and the Surety on this Bond hereby agreed to pay all just claims submitted 

by persons, firms, subcontractors, and corporations furnishing materials for or performing labor in the 

performance of the Contract on account of which this Bond is given, including but not limited to claims 

for all amounts due for labor, materials, lubricants, oil, gasoline, repairs on machinery, equipment, and 

tools, consumed or used by the Contractor or any subcontractor, wherein the same are not satisfied out of 

the portion of the contract price the Owner is required to retain until completion of the improvement, but 

the Contractor and Surety shall not be liable to said persons, firms, or corporations unless the claims of 

said claimants against said portion of the contract price shall have been established as provided by law.  

The Contractor and Surety hereby bind themselves to the obligations and conditions set forth in Chapter 

573 of the Iowa Code, which by this reference is made a part hereof as though fully set out herein. 
     
3. MAINTENANCE:  The Contractor and the Surety on this Bond hereby agree, at their own expense: 

317

Item 30.



 

20 

 

 

A. To remedy any and all defects that may develop in or result from work to be performed 

under the Contract within the period of   2   year (s) from the date of acceptance of 

the work under the Contract, by reason of defects in workmanship or materials used in 

construction of said work; 

 

   B. To keep all work in continuous good repair; and 

 

   C. To pay the Owner’s reasonable costs of monitoring and inspection to assure that any 

defects are remedied, and to repay the Owner all outlay and expense incurred as a result of 

Contractor’s and Surety’s failure to remedy any defect as required by this section. 

 

Contractor’s and Surety’s agreement herein made extends to defects in 

workmanship or materials not discovered or known to the Owner at the time such 

work was accepted. 
 

4. GENERAL:  Every Surety on this Bond shall be deemed and held bound, any contract to the contrary 

notwithstanding, to the following provisions: 
 

   A. To consent without notice to any extension of time to the Contractor in which to perform 

the Contract; 

 

   B.  To consent without notice to any change in the Contract or Contract Documents, which 

thereby increases the total contract price and the penal sum of this bond, provided that all 

such changes do not, in the aggregate, involve an increase of more than 20% of the total 

contract price, and that this bond shall then be released as to such excess increase; and  

 

    C. To consent without notice that this Bond shall remain in full force and effect until the 

Contract is completed, whether completed within the specified contract period, within an 

extension thereof, or within a period of time after the contract period has elapsed and the 

liquidated damage penalty is being charged against the Contractor. 

 

The Contractor and every Surety on the bond shall be deemed and held bound, any contract to the 

contrary notwithstanding, to the following provisions: 
 

        D. That no provision of this Bond or of any other contract shall be valid that limits to     less 

than five years after the acceptance of the work under the Contract the right to sue on this 

Bond. 

        E. That as used herein, the phrase “all outlay and expense” is not to be limited in any way, but 

shall include the actual and reasonable costs and expenses incurred by the Owner including 

interest, benefits, and overhead where applicable.  Accordingly, “all outlay and expense” 

would include but not be limited to all contract or employee expense, all equipment usage 

or rental, materials, testing, outside experts, attorney’s fees (including overhead expenses of 

the Owner’s staff attorneys), and all costs and expenses of litigation as they are incurred by 

the Owner.  It is intended the Contractor and Surety will defend and indemnify the Owner 

on all claims made against the Owner on account of Contractor’s failure to perform as 

required in the Contract and Contract Documents, that all agreements and promises set 

forth in the Contract and Contract Documents, in approved change orders, and in this Bond 

will be fulfilled, and that the Owner will be fully indemnified so that it will be put into the 

position it would have been in had the Contract been performed in the first instance as 

required. 

318

Item 30.



 

21 

 

     
In the event the Owner incurs any “outlay and expense” in defending itself against any claim as to which 

the Contractor or Surety should have provided the defense, or in the enforcement of the promises given by 

the Contractor in the Contract, Contract Documents, or approved change orders, or in the enforcement of 

the promises given by the Contractor and Surety in this Bond, the Contractor and Surety agree that they 

will make the Owner whole for all such outlay and expense, provided that the Surety’s obligation under 

this bond shall not exceed 125% of the penal sum of this bond. 

  

In the event that any actions or proceedings are initiated regarding this Bond, the parties agree that the venue 

thereof shall be in the Iowa District Court for Blackhawk County, State of Iowa.  If legal action is required by 

the Owner to enforce the provisions of this Bond or to collect the monetary obligation incurring to the benefit of 

the Owner, the Contractor and the Surety agree, jointly, and severally, to pay the Owner all outlay and expense 

incurred therefor by the Owner.  All rights, powers, and remedies of the Owner hereunder shall be cumulative 

and not alternative and shall be in addition to all rights, powers, and remedies given to the Owner, by law.  The 

Owner may proceed against surety for any amount guaranteed hereunder whether action is brought against the 

Contractor or whether Contractor is joined in any such action(s) or not. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, the condition of this obligation is such that if said Principal shall faithfully perform all the 

promises of the Principal, as set forth and provided in the Contract, in the Contract Documents, and in this Bond, 

then this obligation shall be null and void, otherwise it shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

When a work, term, or phrase is used in this Bond, it shall be interpreted or construed first as defined in this 

Bond, the Contract, or the Contract Documents; second, if not defined in the Bond, Contract, or Contract 

Documents, it shall be interpreted or construed as defined in applicable provisions of the Iowa Code; third, if not 

defined in the Iowa Code, it shall be interpreted or construed according to its generally accepted meaning in the 

construction industry; and fourth, if it has no generally accepted meaning in the construction industry, it shall be 

interpreted or construed according to its common or customary usage. 

 

Failure to specify or particularize shall not exclude terms or provisions not mentioned and shall not limit liability 

hereunder.  The Contract and Contract Documents are hereby made a part of this Bond. 

 

 

319

Item 30.



 

22 

 

         Project No. RC-000-3240 

 

Witness our hands, in triplicate, this _______ day of ____________, 2021. 

 

  Surety Countersigned By:                                PRINCIPAL: 

 

     ___________________________________                   _________________________________ 
      Signature of Agent                   Contractor 

  

 

 By:    _____________________________ 
                                   Signature 

     ___________________________________                   _________________________________ 
                    Printed Name of Agent                      Title 

 

 ___________________________________  SURETY: 
                                 Company Name           

 

 ___________________________________                   _________________________________ 
                          Company Address                                       Surety Company 

 

 ___________________________________      By:      _______________________________ 
                        City, State, Zip Code                                                      Signature Attorney-in-Fact Officer 

 

 ______________________________________    _______________________________________ 
                     Company Telephone Number                                 Printed Name of Attorney-in-Fact Officer 

 

                                                                                            ____________________________________ 
                                 Company Name 

 

                                                                                         ____________________________________ 
                                                             Company Address 

  FORM APPROVED BY:  

                                                                                                             ______________________________________ 
                               City, State, Zip Code 
 

 ________________________________________________   __________________________________________________ 

                             Attorney for Owner                                                                            Company Telephone Number 

 

 

 

NOTE: 

  

 1. All signatures on this performance, payment, and maintenance bond must be original signatures in 

ink; copies, facsimile, or electronic signatures will not be accepted. 

 2.  This bond must be sealed with the Surety’s raised, embossing seal. 

 3. The Certificate or Power of Attorney accompanying this bond must be valid on its face and sealed 

with the Surety’s raised, embossing seal. 

 4. The name and signature of the Surety’s Attorney-in-Fact/Officer entered on this bond must be 

exactly as listed on the Certificate or Power of Attorney accompanying this bond. 

 

320

Item 30.



 

23 

 

DIVISION 2 – Special Provisions 
 

 
Special Provisions are intended to amend or supplement the General Provisions and 
Covenants of the SUDAS Standard Specifications. All sections that are not amended or 
supplemented remain in full force and effect. 
 
01 Award of Contract 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1030 – 1.03: 
 
The lowest responsive bidder shall be required to furnish a performance, payment and 
maintenance bond in the sum equal to one hundred (100%) percent of the total bid. The 
maintenance bond shall guarantee the maintenance of the improvements for a period of 
two (2) years from and after its completion and acceptance by the City of Cedar Falls. 
 
02 Availability of Site  
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1050 – 1.04: 
 
During construction of this project, the Contractor shall be required to coordinate all 
operations with those of other Contractors working within the same area of the following 
projects and/or events: 
 

1) Cedar Falls High School Project 
 

03 Protection of Line and Grade Stakes 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1050 – 1.10: 
 
The Contractor shall notify the Engineer at least 48 hours prior to the need for survey 
stakes. The Contractor shall be responsible for preserving survey stakes and marks and if 
any survey stakes or marks are destroyed or disturbed by the Contractor, Contractor will be 
charged for the cost of replacing them. 
 
04 Borrow and Waste Sites 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1070 – 2.13: 
 
It shall be the Contractor's responsibility to provide waste areas or disposal sites for excess 
material which is not desirable to be incorporated in the work involved on this project 
(excavation or broken concrete). No payment for overhaul will be allowed for material 
hauled to these sites. The Engineer shall review all proposed disposal sites and determine 
the acceptability of each. Overhaul will not be measured or paid for but will be considered 
incidental to pavement removal or roadway excavation on this project. 
 

321

Item 30.



 

24 

 

05 Subletting or Assignment of Contract 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.01: 
 
The Contractor's own organization shall perform work amounting to not less than thirty-five 
(35%) percent of the total contract cost unless otherwise specified. Item designated as a 
specialty item may be performed by subcontract, and the cost of any such specialty item as 
performed by subcontract may be deducted from the total cost before computing the 
amount of work required by the Contractor's organization.  
 
06 Contract Time 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.02: 
 
The work on the Contract shall commence ten calendar days after the date set forth in the 
written Notice to Proceed and shall be completed within 60 working days as set forth in the 
written Notice to Proceed. 
 
Intermediate working days for construction staging will be as follows: 
 
W. 27th Street Stage   30 calendar days 
  

The Contractor will be limited to a maximum of 30 calendar days for the W. 27th Street 
roadway closure. These days are included in the total 60 working days for the project.  
 
If the stage is not open to local traffic within the allotted working days, liquidated damages 
of $1000 per day will be assessed.  
 

322

Item 30.



 

25 

 

07 Work Progress and Schedule 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.03: 
 
The progress of the work shall be such that at the expiration of one-fourth of the working 
days, one-eighth of the work shall be completed; at the expiration of one-half of the working 
days, three-eighths of the work shall be completed; at the expiration of three-fourths of the 
working days, the work shall be three-fourths completed, and the whole work shall be 
completed at the expiration of the working days. 
 
08 Weekly Record of Working Days 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.06: 
 
Work shall not begin before 7:00 a.m. and shall stop at sunset.  
 
09 Liquidated Damages 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.12: 
 
Liquidated damages in the amount of $1000 dollars per working day will be assessed for 
each working day that the work remains uncompleted after the expiration of the contract 
time. 
 
10 Progress Payments and Vouchers 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1090 – 1.01: 
 
Pay estimates will be submitted to the City Council for approval on the First and Third 
Mondays of each month. 
 
Payment to the Contractor will be made in cash from such cash funds of said City as may 
be legally used for said purposes, including the proceeds of the Local Option Tax and 
General Obligation Bonds. Any other combination of funds may be used at the discretion of 
the City Council. 
 
See Division 2 – Special Provisions Section 06- Contract time for liquidated damages for 
Intermediate working days. 
 
Before final payment is made, the Contractor shall furnish vouchers showing that all 
subcontractors and all persons furnishing labor and materials have been fully paid for such 
materials and labor and that the City may retain the last month's payment for a period of 
ninety (90) calendar days following such completion and approval, unless satisfied that 
material and laborers have been paid in full. 
 

323

Item 30.



 

26 

 

11 Pollution Prevention Plan 
 
1. Site Description 
 
The proposed W. 27th Street Sanitary Sewer Extension Project involves extending sanitary 
sewer from the Union Interceptor to the north side of W. 27th Street. This project includes 
1,650 lineal feet of sanitary sewer. 
 
Access to the site shall be from W. 27th Street and temporary easements.  
 
The existing soils report will be provided upon request to the Engineer.  
 
2. Erosion and Sediment Controls  
 
Construction activities that disturb soils are shown in the project plan set. The primary 
means of controlling silt movement during construction is by minimizing the exposure of 
subgrade soils by way of silt fence and seeding. In addition, rolled erosion control product 
will be installed in the ditch to prevent erosion. 
 
Stabilizing of all disturbed areas shall be by sodding or seeding as shown in the Project 
plan as soon as practical after completion of the backfilling of the curbs and/or the 
placement of the topsoil. The Contractor shall be responsible for installation and 
maintenance of all erosion control measures as described in the Project plan. The 
Contractor may elect to delegate portions of these tasks to subcontractors. 
 
All contractors operating on the site shall take efforts to prevent contamination of storm 
water runoff, groundwater and soils by hazardous material and/or pollutants caused by 
work operations or encountered in their work. All waste building materials and supplies 
must be removed from the site. If construction equipment maintenance or repair is 
performed on the site, provisions must be made to capture and remove any lubricants or 
other fluids. 
 
The Contractor shall notify the Owner immediately upon finding a hazardous material 
contamination either existing at the site or caused by construction activities. 
 
Each and every Contractor shall be responsible to the Owner to: 
 1. Execute Contractor’s part of the Pollution Prevention Plan as described. 
 2. Conduct all activities to not damage an existing erosion control measure or 

stabilizing vegetation.  If damages occur, the Contractor shall make repairs 
with no additional cost to the Owner. 

 3. Coordinate with the Owner for installation of additional erosion control 
measures that may be needed during construction. 

324

Item 30.



 

27 

 

3. Storm Water Management  
 
Storm water shall be routed to the natural drainage channels adjacent to the project and 
protected by silt fence. Temporary sediment basins were not incorporated because of the 
limited area exposed in each stage of construction. Storm water runoff volumes will not 
change as a result of the construction project, but storm water runoff shall be managed 
during construction to minimize erosion. 
 
4. Pollution Prevention Plan Reporting and Updates 
 
The Owner or a representative is to insure compliance with the Pollution Prevention Plan 
will carry out regular inspections. Owner designated and qualified personnel will inspect 
disturbed areas of the construction site that have not reached “final stabilization” at least 
once every seven (7) calendar days. Owner will be responsible for executing the Plan 
towards the goal of a stabilized site. Owner will make determination of Contractors 
compliance with the plan and may direct additional measures to be taken by any 
Contractor. When a plan deficiency or the occurrence of a pollutant entering the drainage 
system is observed, corrective action shall be taken. The Pollution Prevention Plan will be 
revised and modifications made to the control facilities as needed. 
 
Intermittent reports based on site observation will be made and will become part of the 
pollution prevention plan. A final report and Notice of Discontinuation will be filed 30 days 
after final stabilization of the project has occurred. 
 
5. Certification Statement 
 

N.P.D.E.S. CERTIFICATION 
PROJECT NO. RC-000-3240 

 
 
Contractor certifies under penalty of law that they understand the terms and conditions of 
the general National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit that 
authorizes the storm water discharges associated with industrial activity from the 
construction site as part of this certification. Further, by signing and entering into contract 
for this work, the contractor understands that they are becoming a co-permittee, along with 
the owner(s) and other contractors and subcontractors, to the Iowa Department of Natural 
Resources NPDES General Permit No. 2 for “Storm Water Discharge Associated with 
Industrial Activity for Construction Activities” at the identified site. As co-permittee, the 
contractor understands that they and their company are legally required under the Clean 
Water Act and the Code of Iowa, to ensure compliance with the terms and conditions of the 
Storm Pollution Prevention Plan developed under this NPDES permit and the terms of this 
NPDES permit. 

325

Item 30.



 

28 

 

12        METHOD OF MEASUREMENT 
 
The Engineer will measure the items of work that have been acceptably constructed as 
specified in the contract documents in accordance with the 2021 Edition of the SUDAS and 
as further modified by the City of Cedar Falls Supplemental Specifications, except as 
amended or supplemented as follows: 
 
Item No. 28 – Field Fence, Removal and Reinstall 
The Field Fence, Removal and Reinstall will be measured in lineal feet of the installation of 
the existing field fence. 
 
13 BASIS OF PAYMENT 
 
Payment for the items listed in the Method of Measurement shall be determined by 
multiplying the item quantity (as determined in the Method of Measurement) by the unit 
price as bid on the proposal form in accordance with the 2021 Edition of the SUDAS and as 
further modified by the City of Cedar Falls Supplemental Specifications, except as 
amended or supplemented as follows: 
 
Item No. 27 – Field Fence, Removal and Reinstall 
Payment will be full compensation for removing and reinstalling fence and replacement 
of any fence parts that are not able to be salvaged and reinstalled. 

 

326

Item 30.



 

29 

 

DIVISION 3 
 

STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS 
 

The City of Cedar Falls has adopted the current edition of the STATEWIDE URBAN 
STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS (SUDAS) as the City’s 
Standard Specification. 

 
This Standard Specification is amended by the City of Cedar Falls Supplemental 
Specifications to the 2021 edition of SUDAS.  
 

Links to both documents can be found on the City’s website at: 
www.cedarfalls.com/designstandards   

 
Item No. 27 – Field Fence, Removal and Reinstall 
Specifications for construction shall be per Iowa DOT Standard Specifications Section 2519 
Fence Construction.  

327

Item 30.

http://www.cedarfalls.com/designstandards


 

30 

 

DIVISION 4 
 

SUPPLEMENTAL PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
All work shall be constructed as specified in the Contract documents for the W. 27th Street 
Sanitary Sewer Extension Project in accordance with the current edition of the SUDAS as 
amended by the City of Cedar Falls Supplemental Specifications to the 2021 Edition of the 
SUDAS, except as amended or supplemented as follows: 
 
Items No. 13 – Temporary Pavement 
For Temporary PCC pavement, saw cuts for new P.C.C. pavement joints shall meet the 
requirements of Standard Specification 7010-3.02J2. Early “soft cut saws” are preferred for 
cutting transverse joints. All other types of saw cuts for new P.C.C. pavement joints shall be 
wet sawn as per Standard Specification Section. This shall also include removal of wet saw 
residue on the entire street surface by washing down the street surface after wet sawing. 
 
Standard Specification shall apply for opening the new pavement to General Traffic with the 
following modification: 
 
"Five (5) calendar days after placing the new P.C.C. pavement, a beam will be broken. With 
adequate flexural strength, the Contractor will be allowed on the new pavement to seal the 
pavement joints. The equipment used to seal the pavement joints shall be restricted to the 
size and weight limitations outlined in the Standard Specifications.  General traffic shall be 
allowed on the new pavement as per the Standard Specifications." 
 
Unless otherwise specified in the contract documents, at the Contractor's option, the time 
for opening pavement may be determined through the use of the maturity method as 
described in Standard Specification Section 7010-3.08A and Materials I.M. 383. 
 
For Temporary HMA, up to 10% of unclassified Recycled Asphalt Pavement (RAP) may be 
incorporated into these bid items. 
 
Item No. 3 – Subgrade Preparation, 12 In. 
The portion of the subgrade to be covered by the granular subbase shall be scarified for a 
depth of 6 inches. The scarified material shall be uniformly dried or wetted and re-
compacted to not less than 95 percent of standard proctor density as determined in 
accordance with AASHTO T-99. The price bid for "Subgrade Preparation" shall be full 
payment for scarification, manipulation and compaction of the material and for furnishing all 
water required for the work in conformance with the plans and specifications. 
 
Item No. 4 - Subbase, Modified, 6 In. 
Material for Modified Subbase shall comply with the Standard Specification, consisting of 
virgin crushed stone material. Placement and compaction shall comply with the Standard 
Specification Section. 
 

328

Item 30.



 

31 

 

Item No. 14 - Pavement Removal 
Saw cutting required for pavement removal will be incidental to bid item. All saw cutting 
required for removals shall be full depth. Saw cuts required for new pavement joints shall 
be incidental to the cost per square yard for new pavement. 
 
Item No. 5 – Replacement of Unsuitable Backfill Material  
Replacement of Unsuitable Backfill Material shall be natural sand meeting the requirements 
as per the Standard Specification Gradation No. 32. During sanitary sewer installation, 
granular backfill is to be utilized, as directed by the Engineer, when unsuitable backfill 
material is encountered under pavement areas.  The price bid per ton shall include removal 
and disposal of the unsuitable material displaced by the granular backfill. 
 
Item No. 9 – Subdrain Installation, Less than 10 Inch 
Material for field tile and fittings shall be in accordance with Standard Specification for 
perforated corrugated polyethylene (PE) tubing and fittings. 
 
Item No. 10 – Manhole, SW-301, 48 In.  
Chimney Liner Specifications: 
The chimney liner shall be constructed of Vylon Pipe, or its equivalent. The chimney liner 
must be made from polyvinyl chloride compounds which comply with the requirements for a 
minimum cell classification of 12364 as defined by ASTM D-1784. 
 
The chimney liner must also meet all the following physical requirements: 
 
Pipe Stiffness – minimum pipe stiffness shall be 46 psi when tested in accordance with 
ASTM D-2412. 
 
Impact Resistance – no visual cracking or splitting of the waterway wall shall be evidenced 
when tested in accordance with ASTM D-2444 with a 20 lb. weight, tup B, flat plate holder 
B to a level of 220 ft. lbs. 
 
Fusion Quality – there shall be no sign of flaking or disintegration when immersed in 
anhydrous acetone for 20 minutes as described in ASTM D-2152. 
 
Air Tightness – each length of pipe shall pass a factory 3.5 psi air test as described in 
ASTM F-1803. 
 
Waterstop Specifications: The waterstop shall be constructed of Swellstop 3/8” x 3/4” 
controlled expansion waterstop or equivalent. Swellstop is available from GREENSTREAK, 
3400 Tree Court Industrial Blvd., St. Louis, MO. 63122. 
 
The waterstop must meet all of the following physical requirements: 
 
Specific Gravity – shall be 1.55 +/- 5% when tested in accordance with ASTM D-71. 
 
Volatile Matter – shall not exceed 1% when tested in accordance with ASTM D-6. 

329

Item 30.



 

32 

 

Application Temperature – must be able to be applied from -10 degrees F to 125 degrees F 
as a minimum. 
 
Service Temperature – must be able to function properly in service from -30 degrees F to 
180 degrees F as a minimum. 
 

330

Item 30.



4/30/2021

ITEM NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT
ESTIMATED 
QUANTITY

ESTIMATED 
UNIT PRICE

TOTAL

1 CLEARING AND GRUBBING ACRE 0.7                6,000.00$     4,200.00$                   
2 STRIP, SALVAGE, AND RESPREAD TOPSOIL CY 3,580.0         12.00$          42,960.00$                 
3 SUBGRADE PREPARATION, 12 INCH SY 251.0            1.60$            401.60$                      
4 MODIFIED SUBBASE, 6 INCH SY 251.0            7.00$            1,757.00$                   
5 REPLACEMENT OF UNSUITABLE BACKFILL MATERIAL CY 100.0            28.00$          2,800.00$                   
6 SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, TRUSS, 8 INCH LF 8.0                90.00$          720.00$                      
7 SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, TRUSS, 12 INCH LF 8.0                90.00$          720.00$                      
8 SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, TRUSS, 15 INCH LF 1,644.0         80.00$          131,520.00$               
9 SUBDRAIN INSTALLATION, LESS THAN 10 INCH LF 200.0            12.00$          2,400.00$                   

10 MANHOLE, SW-301, 48 INCH EA 5.0                6,500.00$     32,500.00$                 
11 CONNECTION TO EXISTING SANITARY MANHOLE EA 1.0                700.00$        700.00$                      
12 GRANULAR SURFACING SY 36.7              10.00$          367.00$                      
13 TEMPORARY PAVEMENT SY 214.0            45.00$          9,630.00$                   
14 PAVEMENT REMOVAL SY 214.0            7.00$            1,498.00$                   
15 PAINTED PAVEMENT MARKINGS, WATERBORNE STA 1.8                60.00$          107.40$                      
16 TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1.0                5,000.00$     5,000.00$                   
17 SAFETY FENCE LF 300.0            5.00$            1,500.00$                   
18 SEEDING, FERTILIZING AND MULCHING FOR HYDRAULIC SEEDING - TYPE 3 SEED MIX ACRE 0.65              4,000.00$     2,600.00$                   
19 SEEDING, FERTILIZING AND MULCHING FOR HYDRAULIC SEEDING - TYPE 5 SEED MIX ACRE 0.65              4,000.00$     2,600.00$                   
20 SWPPP MANAGEMENT LS 1.0                2,500.00$     2,500.00$                   
21 TEMPORARY ROLLED EROSION CONTROL PRODUCTS (RECP) SY 600.0            3.00$            1,800.00$                   
22 SILT FENCE, INSTALLATION LF 1,555.0         3.00$            4,665.00$                   
23 SILT FENCE, MAINTENANCE LF 1,555.0         3.00$            4,665.00$                   
24 SILT FENCE, REMOVAL LF 1,555.0         1.00$            1,555.00$                   
25 CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE SY 175.0            18.00$          3,150.00$                   
26 MOBILIZATION LS 1.0                15,000.00$   15,000.00$                 
27 FIELD FENCE, REMOVAL AND REINSTALL LF 255.0            16.00$          4,080.00$                   

TOTAL ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION COSTS 281,396.00$          

W. 27th Street Sanitary Sewer Extension Project 
Engineer's Opinion of Costs

331

Item 30.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: May 13, 2021 
 
 SUBJECT: Oak Park Sanitary Sewer Repair  
  City Project Number SA-002-3182 
  Request for PS&E Approval 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs 
and Quantities for the Oak Park Sanitary Sewer Repair Project. 
 

We recommend setting Monday, June 7th, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. as the date and time for the public 
hearing on this project and Friday, June 11th, 2021 at 2:00 p.m. as the date and time for 
receiving and opening bids. We also request that the Notice to Bidders be published by May 
21st, 2021. The Plans and Specifications will be ready for distribution to contractors on May 21st, 
2021, allowing three (3) weeks of review before contract letting. 
 

This project consists of 800 linear feet of sanitary sewer removal and replacement. The project 
also includes the abandonment and removal of the previously failed aerial sanitary line that 
collapsed. The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $545,000.00. The City 
will use Sanitary Sewer Rental Funds for the design, right of way portion, and construction of 
this project. 
 

The Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities are available for your review at 
the City Clerk's office or the Engineering Division of the Public Works Department. 
 

xc: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 

  

332

Item 31.



T
IT

L
E
 S

H
E

E
T

1
'

A
.1

A.1

 

1
'

A
.1

T
IT

L
E
 S

H
E

E
T

1
'

A.1

NO. DESCRIPTION

INDEX OF SHEETS

A.1 TITLE SHEET

A.3

A.2

B.1

G.1

J.1

U.1

LEGENDS

GENERAL NOTES

QUANTITIES AND ESTIMATE REFERENCE

POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN

SURVEY CONTROL & REFERENCE INFORMATION

RIGHT-OF-WAY

SANITARY SEWER PLAN & PROFILE

SPECIAL DETAILS

PROJECT REMOVALS

SIDEWALK SHEETSS.1-S.2

319-362-9394

MEMBERS

CITY COUNCIL

FILING WITH THE CITY CLERK

THIS ENGINEERING DOCUMENT IS RECOMMENDED FOR

DATE

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

OR DESIGNEE
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR, CITY ENGINEER 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

OAK PARK BLVD SEWER REPLACEMENT

C.20-C.22

H.1-H.2

MSA.1-MSA.3

R.1-R.2

C.1-C.4

M.1 STORM SEWER PLAN & PROFILE

SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS, 2021.

(SUDAS) AND THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

STATEWIDE URBAN DESIGN AND SPECIFICATIONS 

ACCORDANCE WITH THE 2021 VERSION OF THE 

THESE DRAWINGS HAVE BEEN DESIGNED IN 

THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS INCLUDED IN 

NOTE:

UTILITY OWNER

CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613

220 CLAY STREET

(319) 268-5561

MIKE NYMAN

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

C
E

N
S
E
D

E
E

L
I

PROFE IO
PROFE IOSSSS NAL

E

NAL
EN

G
IN

E
E
R

N
G
IN

E
E
R

AIOW

Lindsay R. Beaman, P.E.

License Number

My License Renewal Date is December 31, 2021

Pages or sheets covered by this seal:

P19971

Date 

State of Iowa.

Professional Engineer under the laws of the

supervision and that I am a duly licensed

was prepared by me or under my direct personal

I hereby certify that this engineering document

P19971
 

BEAMAN
LINDSAY R.

REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS AND STANDARDS.

TO BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE 

SPECIFICATIONS. CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE 

AND THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS' SUPPLEMENTAL 

URBAN STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS (SUDAS) MANUAL 

WITH THE 2021 EDITION OF THE IOWA STATEWIDE

COMPLETE ALL CONSTRUCTION IN ACCORDANCE

NOTE:

DAVE SIRES

KELLY DUNN

FRANK DARRAH

SIMON HARDING

DARYL KRUSE

SUSAN DEBUHR

MARK MILLER

ROBERT M. GREEN, MAYOR

TYPICAL CROSS SECTIONS

STAGING AND TRAFFIC CONTROL

BID DATE: JUNE 2021

CONTRACT NUMBER: SA-002-3182

BLACKHAWK COUNTY, IOWA

 

 

 

CONSTRUCTION PLANS FOR

 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

3
1
9
-3

6
2
-9

3
9
4
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

C
E

D
A

R
 R

A
P
ID

S
, 
IA
 5

2
4
0
4

5
0
0
5
 B

O
W

L
IN

G
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 S
.W
.

k
n
o
o
n
a
n

V
:\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
9
\

1
1
9
.0

1
1
5
.0

8
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
9
0
1
1
5
_

A
0
1
.d

g
n

5
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
1

7
:4

3
:2

4
 

A
M

S
n
y
d
e
r

1
:2

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
s
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iB

W
H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

O
A

K
 P

A
R

K
 B

L
V

D
 S

E
W

E
R
 R

E
P

L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

1190115

K
R

N
L

R
B

R
W

S
0
5
/
1
2
/
2
1

1
1
9
0
1
1
5

ST

D
A

M
A

S
C

U
SD

R

P
A

R
K

G
A

T
E

R
D

D
R

B
A

R
N

E
T

T

4TH ST

ST3RDM
A

G
N

O
L
I
A

D
R

C
E

D
A

R
C

R
E

S
T

CRESCENT DR

D
R

D
R

B
R

E
N

T
W

O
O

D

A
N

G
I
E

D
R

H
I
L

L
C

T

D
R

LINDA

AVE

HORIZON

DR

D
R

RIDGE
RIVERBLUFF

WILLOW

R
I
V

E
R

W
E

S
T
-

W
O

O
D

D
R

ROW
RD

R
IVE

R
L

N

CRESC

E
N
T

D
R

O
A

K
P

A
R

K
B
LV

D

R
D

TIMBERLEDGEDR

PL

TIMBERLEDGE

E
A

G
L

E
 

R
I
D

G
E
 

R
D

SOUTH RIDGE

DR

M
I
N
N

E
T

O
N

K
A

LN

R
ID

G
E

Y

O

CO

UNTR

M

AE
D

W

GLEN OAKS DR

L
A

K
E
 

R
I
D

G
E
 

D
R

M
INNETONKA DR

S FOREST

RD

O
A

K
 

P
A

R
K
 

B
L

V
D

ALICE

D
R THEIMER

H
I
G

H
L

A
N

D

D
R

NORTH RIDGE CIR

FALCON LN

L
A

K
E

V
I
E

W
D

R WALTERSPONDP
L

WILLOW BEND DR

W
HITETAIL DR

NN
 

H
I
G

H
L

A
N

D

NORTHVIEW

LN

R
I
D

G
E

L
A

K
E

NOT TO SCALE 

VICINITY MAP

PROJECT LOCATION

ALL

5/12/21

333

Item 31.



 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

3
1
9
-3

6
2
-9

3
9
4
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

C
E

D
A

R
 R

A
P
ID

S
, 
IA
 5

2
4
0
4

5
0
0
5
 B

O
W

L
IN

G
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 S
.W
.

k
n
o
o
n
a
n

V
:\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
9
\

1
1
9
.0

1
1
5
.0

8
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
9
0
1
1
5
_

A
0
2
.d

g
n

5
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
1

7
:4

3
:2

4
 

A
M

S
n
y
d
e
r

1
:2

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
s
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iB

W
H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

O
A

K
 P

A
R

K
 B

L
V

D
 S

E
W

E
R
 R

E
P

L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

1190115

K
R

N
L

R
B

R
W

S
0
5
/
1
2
/
2
1

1
1
9
0
1
1
5

93
93.

0

93

C

OC

FO

E

OE

4" G

4" HPG

8" W

8" S

12" ST12" ST

G

G

AST

UST

Features Existing Proposed

G

EB

W

LEGEND

8" W(*)

8" S(*)

4" G(*)

4" HPG(*)

C(*)

OC(*)

FO(*)

E(*)

OE(*)

DUCT(*)

93
.0

UTILITY WARNING

1

UTILITY QUALITY SERVICE LEVELS

Soil Boring

Mailbox

Satellite Dish

Sign

Above Ground Storage Tank

Underground Storage Tank

Fence Post or Guard Post

Gas Apparatus

Gas Manhole

Gas Valve

Fiber Optic Handhole

Fiber Optic Manhole

Communication Handhole

Communication Manhole

Communication Pedestal

Traffic Sign

Electric Transformer

Electric Box

Yard Light

Street Light

Utility Pole with Transformer

Utility Pole with Light

Guy Anchor

Utility Pole

Well

Water Service Valve

Water Main Valve

Fire Hydrant on Building

Fire Hydrant

Double Storm Sewer Intake

Single Storm Sewer Intake

Storm Manhole

Storm Sewer with Size

Sanitary Manhole

(*) Denotes the survey quality service level for utilities 

Test Hole Location for SUE w/ID

Duct Bank

Sanitary Sewer with Size

Water Main with Size

High Pressure Gas Main with Size

Gas Main with Size

Overhead Electric

Underground Electric

Fiber Optic

Overhead Communication

Communication

Coniferous Tree or Shrub

Deciduous Tree or Shrub

Tree Stump

Tree Line

Fence (Silt)

Fence (Wood)

Fence (Chain Link)

Fence (Barbed, Field, Hog)

Contour Elevation

Spot Elevation

UTILITY CONTACTS

UTILITY PROVIDER CONTACT NAME CONTACT PHONE

1
'

A
.2

A.2

L
E

G
E

N
D

S

The Type, Size, Condition, Material, And Other Characteristics.

By Actual Exposure Or Verification Of Previously Exposed Subsurface Utilities, As Well As 

 Is Horizontal And Vertical Position Of Underground Utilities ObtainedQUALITY LEVEL (A)

Subsurface Utilities.

Geophysical Methods To Determine The Existence And Approximate Horizontal Position Of 

 Information Is Obtained Through The Application Of Appropriate Surface QUALITY LEVEL (B)

Quality D Information.

Utility Features And Using Professional Judgment In Correlating This Information With 

 Information Is Obtained By Surveying And Plotting Visible Above-Ground QUALITY LEVEL (C)

 Information Is Derived From Existing Utility Records Or Oral Recollections.QUALITY LEVEL (D)

Applicable, Size.  The Quality Levels Are Based On The CI / ASCE 38-02 Standard.

Quality Levels Of Utilities Are Shown In The Parentheses With The Utility Type And When

Except Where Noted As Quality Level A.

Utilities Or Subsurface Features Shown Are In The Exact Location Indicated 

Service Or Abandoned. The Surveyor Further Does Not Warrant That The 

Subsurface Features Shown Comprise All Such Items In The Area, Either In 

Records Obtained.  The Surveyor Makes No Guarantee That The Utilities Or 

The Utilities Shown Have Been Located From Field Survey Information And/Or

SUDAS SPECIFICATION FIGURES

All SUDAS Figures Are Included By Reference As Necessary.

The Following Figures Are Specifically Brought To The Contractor's Attention. 

FIGURE NAME

11040.101

11030.101

9040.120

9040.105

9040.103

9040.102

9030.102

9030.101

7030.101

7010.102

7010.101

6010.601

6010.307

6010.306

6010.303

6010.301

4020.211

4010.203

4010.201

3010.103

3010.102

3010.101

Chicago Central and Pacific Railroad

Cedar Falls Engineering

CFU Water

Cedar Falls Transit

Cedar Falls Sanitary & Storm

Cedar Falls Public Works

Cedar Falls Police

Cedar Falls Fire

Cedar Falls Arborist

CFU Gas

CFU Electric

Century Link

Mediacom

(Business)

Matt Tolan

Travis Schrage

Matt Lukehart

Mike Nyman

Chase Schrage

(Business)

(Business)

Brett Morris

Jerald Lukensmeyer

John Osterhaus

Tommy Brower

Kevin Parker

1-800-465-9239

319-268-5164

319-266-1761

319-268-8629

319-268-5561

319-268-5170

319-273-8612

319-273-8622

319-268-5516

319-266-1761

319-266-1761

641-682-9455

855-633-4226

CHICAGO CENTRAL AND PACIFIC RAILROAD NOTES

the general area. 

order to obtain the necessary permit prior to beginning construction in 

Chicago Central and Pacific Railroad to submit a certified shoring plan in 

P-11357 for the respective project. Contractor shall work directly with 

the Chicago Central and Pacific Railroad and reference job number 

Joe Wojcik (Telephone: (708) 332-4739, Email: josephs.wojcik@cn.ca) with 

Crossing/Encroachment Permit from the railroad. Contractor shall contact 

Central and Pacific Railroad Right-of-Way without obtaining a Utility 

Contractor shall not commence construction activities within Chicago 

Temporary Granular Sidewalk and Temporary Residential Access

Temporary Mailboxes

Stabilized Construction Entrance

Wattle

Rolled Erosion Control Product (RECP) Installation On Slopes

Filter Berm And Filter Sock

Tree Staking, Guying, And Wrapping

Planting Pit

Concrete Driveway, Type A

PCC Curb Details

Joints

Castings For Sanitary Sewer Manholes

External Drop Connection For Sanitary Sewer Manhole

Chimney Seals For Sanitary Sewer Manholes

Sanitary Sewer Manhole Over Existing Sewer

Circular Sanitary Sewer Manhole

Storm Sewer Pipe Connections

Sanitary Sewer Cleanout

Sanitary Sewer Service Stub

Flexible Gravity Pipe Trench Bedding

Rigid Gravity Pipe Trench Bedding

Trench Bedding And Backfill Zones

334

Item 31.



 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

3
1
9
-3

6
2
-9

3
9
4
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

C
E

D
A

R
 R

A
P
ID

S
, 
IA
 5

2
4
0
4

5
0
0
5
 B

O
W

L
IN

G
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 S
.W
.

k
n
o
o
n
a
n

V
:\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
9
\

1
1
9
.0

1
1
5
.0

8
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
9
0
1
1
5
_

A
0
3
.d

g
n

5
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
1

7
:4

3
:2

5
 

A
M

S
n
y
d
e
r

1
:2

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
s
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iB

W
H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

O
A

K
 P

A
R

K
 B

L
V

D
 S

E
W

E
R
 R

E
P

L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

1190115

K
R

N
L

R
B

R
W

S
0
5
/
1
2
/
2
1

1
1
9
0
1
1
5

Couplings On Pressure Lines Shall Be Restrained Solid Sleeve.

Connections Within 3 To 4 Feet From Structures.  All Sleeve Type 

Vaults, Wet Wells, Tanks, And Buildings Shall Have Sleeve Type Flexible 

All Buried Connections To Structures, Including But Not Limited To Valve 14.

Pressure Test All Gravity Pipelines After Installation, As Specified. 13.

 

Clean All Piping As Directed By Engineer, Before Testing.12.

Additional Cost.

Correct Settlement Occurring During The Contract Warranty Period At No 

Compaction Tests Will Be Performed In Accordance With Specifications. 11.

Engineer.

Written Dimensions Shall Prevail. Report Any Discrepancies Immediately To10.

Coordinated With Equipment Provided, And/Or Existing Conditions. 

All Equipment And Piping Layout Dimensions Shall Be Field Verified And9.

And Alignment Indicated On The Drawings.

All Bends (Horizontal And Vertical) As Required To Meet The Elevations 

Bends In Pressurized Lines With Thrust Blocks And Retainer Glands. Provide 

No Crests In Piping Will Be Permitted. Restrain All Horizontal And Vertical

Slope All Pipelines Uniformly Between Elevations Indicated On The Drawings. 8.

Where Depth Of Cover Is Less Than 4 Feet.

Otherwise Noted By Pipe Elevations.  Pipeline Insulation Shall Be Used 

Minimum Cover Of 4 Feet Is Required On All Liquid Carrying Pipes, Unless 7.

Center Of Manhole.

Lengths Of Gravity Sewer Are Dimensioned From Center Of Manhole To 6.

On Adjustable Pipe Saddle Supports.

Support Pipes Within Valve Vaults 12 Inches Above Bottom Of Valve Vault 

Manhole Frame Flush With Finish Grade, Unless Otherwise Noted On Drawings.

Manholes Are 4 Feet In Diameter Unless Otherwise Noted. Set Top Of 5.

Requirements.

Refer To Specifications For Pipe And Structure Bedding And Backfill4.

 

Be Coordinated Through The Owner.

Requiring Repair, Relocation Or Adjustment As A Result Of The Work Shall 

Operations Shall Be Repaired At The Contractor's Expense. All Utilities

To Any Such Structures Caused By Or Resulting From The Contractor's

Any Trench Excavation By The Contractor Until The Trench Is Backfilled. Damage 

Protect And Support All Structures And Pipelines Located Adjacent To 3.

Existing Piping.To Locate 

Orientation And Materials Of Construction. Excavate Test Pits As Required 

To Complete Connections To Existing Piping. Verify Location, Elevation, 

Furnish And Install All Adapters, Fittings, And Additional Pipe As Required 2.

Service Unless Otherwise Noted.

All Existing Utilities Encountered During Construction Are To Remain In 1.

GENERAL NOTES SITE PIPING NOTES

1
'

A
.3

A.3

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 N

O
T

E
S

Hours Before Construction Begins.

Signs That Are In Conflict With The Construction. Notify The Owner 48 

Contractor Shall Remove And Replace All Existing Permanent Traffic22.

Approved Manual On Uniform Traffic Control Devices.    

Provide Traffic Control In Accordance With Current State Of Iowa 21.

Destroyed By Contract Operations.

Authorized Surveyor Re-Establish Any Monuments Unnecessarily

Their Location. The Contractor Will Be Responsible For Having An

Authorized Surveyor, Or Agent, Has Witnessed Or Otherwise Referenced

Protect And Carefully Preserve All Monuments Until The City And 

Before Such Monuments Are Removed Or Disturbed. The Contractor Shall

Or Iron Pipe Monuments Are Encountered, The City Shall Be Notified

Where Section Or Sub-Section Monuments, Benchmarks, Right-Of-Way Pins,20.

 

With Surface Access To Match Final Grades, Unless Otherwise Indicated.

Adjust All Manholes, Valve Pits, Valve Boxes And Other Buried Facilities 19.

   

Included In The Bid.

And Replacement Work Is Incidental And All Associated Costs Shall Be

Construction, Or Better, As Determined By The Engineer.  The Removal 

Replace" And Shall Replace Them To The Condition Existing Prior To 

Improvements Within The Work Area Shown On The Plan As "Remove &    

As Necessary For Construction, The Contractor Shall Remove Existing 18.

Specifications.

Designated For Removal On The Plans.  Dispose Of In Accordance With 

Completely Remove And Dispose Of Trees, Shrubs And Vegetation 17.

Items Damaged During Construction At Contractor's Expense.

Specifically Noted Or Designated Otherwise On The Plans. Replace Any

Protect Existing Trees, Shrubs, Fences, And Landscaping Unless 16.

   

Any Damage Without Additional Compensation.

Properties Outside The Easement Area And Streets.  Remove And Repair 

Protect And Keep Debris Deposited By The Construction Off Of Adjacent15.

Encountered That Are Damaged Through No Fault Of The Contractor.

Record Drawings. Notify Owner And Engineer If Piping Or Utilities Are

Construction. Provide Data To The Engineer For Incorporation Into The

Depth Of All Underground Piping, Tiling, And Utilities Encountered During

AndConstruction As Specified. Record The Existing Type, Size, Location

Pipes, And Any Other Piping Or Utilities That Are Damaged During

Repair All Field/Drain Tiles, Stormwater Pipes, Wastewater Pipes, Water14.

To Construction.

To Maintain Positive Drainage Within The Construction Limits Is Incidental

Storm Water Flows During Construction. Any Extra Grading Work Needed

Private Property Caused By Their Action Or Inaction In The Handling Of 

Structures.  Contractor Fully Liable For All Damages To Public Or 

Do Not Restrict Drainage Channels And Protect All Existing Drainage 13.

Expense.

Construction Limits Shall Be Repaired And Restored At The Contractor's 

Properties.  Any Areas Disturbed By Construction Outside Of The 

Coordinate The Construction To Minimize The Disruptions To The Adjacent 12.

Complete The Project. 

Limit Grading And Construction Operations To The Minimum Required To 11.

Incidental To Construction.

Provisions To Maintain Positive Drainage. Work Will Be Considered 

Properly Surfaced For Utilization By Construction Vehicles And Include

To The Construction Limits.  The Accesses Must Be Adequately Sized And 

Contractor Responsible For Constructing And Maintaining All Accesses10.

Trees Needed To Complete The Construction.

Preserve As Many Trees As Possible, Only Clear The Minimum Number Of

Tree Removal To Only Occur Between September 30th And April 1st.9.

Access Permission To The Project Construction Limits. 

Protected By The Contractor. The Contractor Shall Obtain Necessary

All Construction Limits Shall Be Clearly Marked In The Field And

Within The Construction Limits Unless Otherwise Authorized By The Owner.

Limits Shown On These Plans.  Confine All Construction Activity To 

Construction Limits Are The City Owned Property Limits And Easement 8.

Encountered During Construction Until Backfilling Is Completed.

Provide Temporary Support For Existing Utility Lines That Are7.

Control Requirements Of Iowa Code And Local Ordinances. 

Any Off-Site Areas Used For This Project.  Comply With Soil Erosion

Siltation, Erosion And Dust Pollution Within Construction Limits And 

Provide Erosion Control Measures Necessary To Protect Against 6.

Relocation Of Utilities Is Incidental To Construction.

Temporary Supports, And Staging Construction To Accommodate The 

For Locating Existing Utilities, Coordinating Relocation Work, Providing 

Companies With Respect To Relocating Any Conflicting Facilities. Costs 

Coordinate Construction Operations And Cooperate With Utility 5.

To The Soil Conditions.

Contractors Shall Satisfy Themselves Prior To Submission Of Bids As4.

Damage Caused By Construction Operations At Contractor's Expense.

Utilities And Underground Features During Construction.  Repair Any 

Notify Utility Companies Prior To Commencing Work.  Avoid Damage To 3.

All Existing Utilities Within Construction Limits.

Or Underground Features May Exist.  Determine The Exact Location Of 

Be Considered As Approximate Only, With Possibility That Other Utilities 

Shown Are From Available Surveys And Records.  These Locations Should 

Location Of Existing Underground Facilities, Structures And Utilities 2.

Construction.

Notify Owner And Engineer At Least 72 Hours Prior To Starting 1.

Responsible For The Cost Of Replacing Them.  

Disturbed By The Contractor Due To Construction, The Contractor Will Be 

Stakes And Marks And If Any Survey Stakes Or Marks Are Destroyed Or 

Each Operation. The Contractor Shall Be Responsible For Preserving Survey 

The Need For Survey Stakes. One Set Of Survey Stakes Will Be Provided For 

The Contractor Shall Notify The Engineer / Owner At Least 48 Hours Prior To 43.

Safety Fencing At All Times That A Hazard Exists.

Protect All Pedestrians From Open Trenches And Excavation With Approved42.

Agreements, And All Other Compliance Associated With The Railroad.

Contractor Is Responsible For All Permit Applications, Permits, Right-Of-Way 41.

The Occupational Safety And Health Administration (Osha).

To, Fencing And On-Site Signage. Comply With All Applicable Regulations Of

Contractor Is Responsible For All Site Safety Including, But Not Limited40. 

And Federal Agencies.

Stop Immediately And Notify The City Who Shall Notify The Appropriate State

If Any Historical Or Archaeological Artifacts Are Identified During Construction,39. 

Collection Will Be Made And Mail Will Be Delivered.

Description Of Available Parking Locations; Details Of How And When Garbage

Area; Date Of Construction Activities; Duration Of Construction Activities;

Emergency Contact Numbers; Description Of Construction Activities In The

Has Been Provided That Includes The Following: Contractor's Name And

Prior To Commencing Construction. Work Will Not Begin Unless Notification

Door Hanging Notices A Minimum Of One Week (But Not More Than Two Weeks)

Contractor Shall Notify All Affected Property Owners And Residents With 38.

On All Streets And All Affected Properties At All Times.

Parking, Driveway  And Emergency Vehicle Access. Maintain Emergency Access

Accommodations In The Construction Area For Mail And Parcel Deliver Service,

Restricted By Construction. The Contractor Shall Coordinate Or Make

And Yard Waste Collection For Areas Affected By Or Whose Access Is

Contractor Is Responsible For Coordinating Trash, Recycling,37. 

Detailed Plans, The Detailed Plans Shall Govern.

In The Event Of A Discrepancy Between The Quantity Estimates And The36.

Conditions To Project Engineer Immediately.

Field. Report Any Such Changes Or Conflicts Between The Plan And Field 

Information At The Time Of Design.  Deviations May Be Necessary In The 

Dimensions, Street Locations, Utilities, And Grading Are Based On Available35.

Manholes For Inspection.

To Attend Final And Intermediate Inspections Of Project,  Open All 

All Necessary Field Locations And Measurements. Contractor Required

Assist Engineer's Field Representative With Daily Record Keeping Including34.

 

Grading Is Incidental To Construction.  

Acceptable. Re-Grade Any Ditch Which Does Not Properly Drain. All Ditch

Noted. Grade All Ditches For Proper Drainage.  Ponding Of Water Is Not 

Cross Sections. Replace Culverts To Original Grades Unless Otherwise 

Reconstruct Any Road Ditches Disturbed, Including Ditch Grades And33.

Properties And Streets.

Right-Of-Way.  Keep Construction Debris And Dirt Off Of The Adjacent 

State And Federal Requirements. Do Not Place Waste Material Within The 

For Material Hauled To These Sites. Dispose Of In Accordance With Local, 

Concrete, Steel Or Broken Concrete). No Extra Payments Will Be Made

Provide Waste Areas Or Disposal Sites For Waste Material (Asphaltic32.

Federal Requirements.

Of Non-Salvageable Materials In Accordance With Local, State And

Location Designated By The Public Works Department. Dispose

The Project Area.  If Directed, Deliver Items Or Materials To Owner At 

Owner Has First Right Of Refusal To Retain Any Material Removed From 31.

From The Top 6 Inches Of Topsoil.  This Work Is Incidental To Construction.

Surface Restoration Includes The Removal Of All Granular Material30.

Minimum, Unless Otherwise Noted.

Slope All Driveways, Sidewalks And Road Surfaces 1/4 Inch Per Foot29.

Right-Of-Way To 95% Standard Proctor Density.

Compact All Trench Backfill, Under Paved Surfaces, And Within  28.

 

Additional Compensation.

Street Surfacing. Remove And Replace Damaged Surfacing Without

Operations For The Removal Of Existing Pavement. Protect Adjacent 

Exercise Extreme Care When Performing Any Necessary Saw Cutting 27.

To The Satisfaction Of The Owner And Engineer.

Damaged By Construction Activities To Their Original Condition And/Or

Remove And Replace, Or Repair All Road Surfaces And Other Items26.

Directed By The Engineer. 

Remove The Existing Pavement Areas To The Nearest Existing Joint Or As25.

Detours Or Temporary Accesses Shall Be Incidental To The Project.

Blading, Shaping Or Maintenance Of Temporary Connections, Crossings24.

Equipment And/Or Materials. 

Streets Open To Traffic. Provide Areas As Needed For Storage Of 

Do Not Store Equipment And/Or Materials Within Public Right Of Way On 23.

335

Item 31.



1

2

1

3

1

2

3

4 KT-2 or L-2 Longitudinal Joints

Existing Sidewalk

Earth Shoulder Finishing

6" Standard Curb

3

 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

3
1
9
-3

6
2
-9

3
9
4
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

C
E

D
A

R
 R

A
P
ID

S
, 
IA
 5

2
4
0
4

5
0
0
5
 B

O
W

L
IN

G
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 S
.W
.

k
n
o
o
n
a
n

V
:\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
9
\

1
1
9
.0

1
1
5
.0

8
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
9
0
1
1
5
_

B
0
1
.d

g
n

5
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
1

7
:4

3
:2

6
 

A
M

S
n
y
d
e
r

1
:2

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
s
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iB

W
H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

O
A

K
 P

A
R

K
 B

L
V

D
 S

E
W

E
R
 R

E
P

L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

1190115

K
R

N
L

R
B

R
W

S
0
5
/
1
2
/
2
1

1
1
9
0
1
1
5

1
'

B
.1

B.1

T
Y

P
IC

A
L
 C

R
O

S
S
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
S

1

1

4:
1 (

Ma
x.)Va

rie
s

4:1 (Max.)

Varies

6"

NOTES:

1.5% Target

4.0'

4:
1 (

Ma
x.)Va

rie
s

4:1 (Max.)

Varies

Subgrade Preparation for Shared Use Path 4" PCC Pavement

2

2

2

2

2
grade.
4:1 maximum slope tying back to existing

slopes shall drain toward Minnetonka Drive.
2% maximum cross slope.  Direction of

C
L

VARIES

3.0'

PROFILE GRADEPROFILE GRADEPROFILE GRADEPROFILE GRADE

6" Subdrain

2.0% 2.0%

Existing Sidewalk

R
.O
.W
.

R
.O
.W
.

80' RIGHT-OF-WAY

15.5' 15.5'

3.5' 3.5'

31.0' B-B

7" PCC Pavement

12" Granular Subbase

Storm Sewer

2-LANE 31' B-B

MINNETONKA DRIVE

TYPICAL CROSS SECTION

NO SCALE

4.0' 16.0' 3.0' 4.0'16.0'

VARIES

Existing Sidewalk

12.0' 12.0'

NO SCALE

SIDEWALK

TYPICAL CROSS SECTION

6" Compacted Subgrade

4
4 4

336

Item 31.



 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

3
1
9
-3

6
2
-9

3
9
4
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

C
E

D
A

R
 R

A
P
ID

S
, 
IA
 5

2
4
0
4

5
0
0
5
 B

O
W

L
IN

G
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 S
.W
.

k
n
o
o
n
a
n

V
:\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
9
\

1
1
9
.0

1
1
5
.0

8
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
9
0
1
1
5
_

C
0
1
.d

g
n

5
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
1

7
:4

3
:2

6
 

A
M

S
n
y
d
e
r

1
:2

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
s
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iB

W
H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

O
A

K
 P

A
R

K
 B

L
V

D
 S

E
W

E
R
 R

E
P

L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

1190115

K
R

N
L

R
B

R
W

S
0
5
/
1
2
/
2
1

1
1
9
0
1
1
5

1
'

C
.1

C.1

Q
U

A
N

T
IT
IE

S
 A

N
D
 E

S
T
IM

A
T

E
 R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

337

Item 31.



 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

3
1
9
-3

6
2
-9

3
9
4
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

C
E

D
A

R
 R

A
P
ID

S
, 
IA
 5

2
4
0
4

5
0
0
5
 B

O
W

L
IN

G
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 S
.W
.

k
n
o
o
n
a
n

\
\

G
e

m
in
i\

V
o
lu

m
e
\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
9
\

1
1
9
.0

1
1
5
.0

8
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
9
0
1
1
5
_

C
0
2
.d

g
n

5
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
1

7
:4

3
:3

6
 

A
M

S
n
y
d
e
r

1
:2

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
S
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iB

W
H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

O
A

K
 P

A
R

K
 B

L
V

D
 S

E
W

E
R
 R

E
P

L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

1190115

K
R

N
L

R
B

R
W

S
0
5
/
1
2
/
2
1

1
1
9
0
1
1
5

1
'

C
.2

C.2

Q
U

A
N

T
IT
IE

S
 A

N
D
 E

S
T
IM

A
T

E
 R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

338

Item 31.



 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

3
1
9
-3

6
2
-9

3
9
4
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

C
E

D
A

R
 R

A
P
ID

S
, 
IA
 5

2
4
0
4

5
0
0
5
 B

O
W

L
IN

G
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 S
.W
.

k
n
o
o
n
a
n

\
\

G
e

m
in
i\

V
o
lu

m
e
\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
9
\

1
1
9
.0

1
1
5
.0

8
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
9
0
1
1
5
_

C
0
3
.d

g
n

5
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
1

7
:4

3
:4

4
 

A
M

S
n
y
d
e
r

1
:2

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
S
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iB

W
H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

O
A

K
 P

A
R

K
 B

L
V

D
 S

E
W

E
R
 R

E
P

L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

1190115

K
R

N
L

R
B

R
W

S
0
5
/
1
2
/
2
1

1
1
9
0
1
1
5

1
'

C
.3

C.3

Q
U

A
N

T
IT
IE

S
 A

N
D
 E

S
T
IM

A
T

E
 R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

339

Item 31.



 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

3
1
9
-3

6
2
-9

3
9
4
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

C
E

D
A

R
 R

A
P
ID

S
, 
IA
 5

2
4
0
4

5
0
0
5
 B

O
W

L
IN

G
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 S
.W
.

k
n
o
o
n
a
n

\
\

G
e

m
in
i\

V
o
lu

m
e
\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
9
\

1
1
9
.0

1
1
5
.0

8
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
9
0
1
1
5
_

C
0
4
.d

g
n

5
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
1

7
:4

3
:5

1
 
A

M

S
n
y
d
e
r

1
:2

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
S
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iB

W
H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

O
A

K
 P

A
R

K
 B

L
V

D
 S

E
W

E
R
 R

E
P

L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

1190115

K
R

N
L

R
B

R
W

S
0
5
/
1
2
/
2
1

1
1
9
0
1
1
5

1
'

C
.4

C.4

Q
U

A
N

T
IT
IE

S
 A

N
D
 E

S
T
IM

A
T

E
 R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

340

Item 31.



 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

3
1
9
-3

6
2
-9

3
9
4
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

C
E

D
A

R
 R

A
P
ID

S
, 
IA
 5

2
4
0
4

5
0
0
5
 B

O
W

L
IN

G
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 S
.W
.

k
n
o
o
n
a
n

V
:\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
9
\

1
1
9
.0

1
1
5
.0

8
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
9
0
1
1
5
_

C
2
0
.d

g
n

5
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
1

7
:4

3
:5

4
 

A
M

S
n
y
d
e
r

1
:2

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
s
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iB

W
H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

O
A

K
 P

A
R

K
 B

L
V

D
 S

E
W

E
R
 R

E
P

L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

1190115

K
R

N
L

R
B

R
W

S
0
5
/
1
2
/
2
1

1
1
9
0
1
1
5

1
'

C
.2

0

C.20

P
O

L
L

U
T
IO

N
 P

R
E

V
E

N
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

POLLUTION PREVENTION NOTES GRADING NOTES

With Erosion Control Law.
Areas After Ground Cover Has Been Established.  Comply 
Been Completed.  Place Silt Fence And Maintain In Problem 
Erosion Control:  Seed The Site After Rough Grading Has 

Mixture Applied At Rate Recommended By Supplier.
Seeded Using Commercially Available Erosion Control Seed.  
All Drainage Swales And Slopes 5 To 1 Or Greater To Be 

Disturbed.
Engineer During Construction.  Place Topsoil Over All Areas 
Any Excess Cut To Be Spread On Site As Directed By 

Grades.
Cut Or Filled.  Respread To Minimum 6" Depth To Finish 
Contractor To Strip And Stockpile Topsoil On All Areas To Be 

4.

3.

2.

1.

Waste Prior To Filing Of The "Notice Of Discontinuation".
Remove All Temporary Erosion Control Measures And Site K.

Onsite.
Where Possible.  Concrete Washout Must Be Contained 
And Direct To A Sediment Basin Or Other Control Device 
Staging Areas With Diversion Berms And/Or Silt Barriers 
And Concrete Washout Facility. Control Runoff From 
Area, Temporary Sanitary Facilities, Materials Storage, 
The Following: Job Trailers, Fueling / Vehicle Maintenance 
Unless Noted Otherwise, Staging Areas Should Contain 
Coordinate Locations Of Staging Areas With The Owner. J.

A Period Exceeding 14 Calendar Days.
Any Portion Of The Site And Which Will Not Resume For 
Activity Is Finally Completed Or Temporarily Ceased On 
Stabilization Measures Immediately After Construction 
Completion Or Delay Of Grading Operations.  Initiate 
Pavement Immediately As Soon As Possible Upon 
Temporary Seed Mix, Permanent Seed Mix, Sod, Or 
Stabilize Undeveloped, Disturbed Areas With Mulch, I.

Located.
Where Pavement, Buildings Or Other Improvements Are 
Topsoil Found In Sod) On All Disturbed Areas, Except 
Respread A Minimum Of 6 Inches Of Topsoil (Including H.

As Soon As Storm Sewers Are Installed. 
Runoff Control. Provide Inlet And Outlet Control Measures 
Construction Operations Progress To Ensure Continuous 
Soon As Areas Reach Their Final Grades And As 
Erosion Control Mats, Mulch, Ditch Checks Or Riprap As 
Install Necessary Control Measures Such As Silt Barriers, G.

Remedial Actions For Future Prevention.
Accumulation Of Earth Or Debris Immediately And Take 
Drainageways, Or Underground Sewers. Remove Any 
Properties, Including Streets, Driveways, Sidewalks, 
Construction Activities On Adjoining Public Or Private 
Prevent Accumulation Of Earth And Debris From F.

Recommended Measures Within 7 Days.
The Pollution Prevention Plan And Implement Any 
Engineer During Construction On A Weekly Basis. Revise 
Inspections And Any Resulting Actions To The Owner Or 
Seven Calendar Days. Record The Findings Of These 
Qualified Personnel Assigned By The Contractor) Every 
Inspect The Project Area And Control Devices (By E.

The Measures Have Lost 50% Of Their Original Capacity.
Permit Period. Clean Or Replace Silt Control Devices When 
Replacement, And Sediment Removal Throughout The 
Measures In Working Order, Including Cleaning, Repairing, 
Maintain All Temporary And Permanent Erosion Control D.

Disturbed By Construction Operations At Any Time.
Construction And Limit To A Minimum The Total Area 
Preserve Existing Vegetation In Areas Not Needed For C.

Activities Prior To Site Clearing And Grading Operations.
Sedimentation Basins Downstream Of Soil Disturbing 
As Silt Barriers, Ditch Checks, Diversion Berms, Or 
Install Perimeter And Final Sediment Control Measures Such B.

Minimize Soil Compaction.
Removal And Maximize Storm Water Infiltration, And 
Storm Water To Vegetated Areas To Increase Sediment 
Maintain Natural Buffers Around Surface Waters, Direct 
Surface When Discharging From Basins, Provide And 
Utilize Outlet Structures That Withdraw Water From The A.

Not Applicable:
Not Limited To, The Following BMP's Unless Infeasible Or 
Requirements Of The Pollution Prevention Plan, Including, But 
The Contractor Is Responsible For Compliance With All 3.

Changes At The Project Site.
Expeditiously Revised To Reflect Construction Progress And 
The Pollution Prevention Plan And Site Map Should Be 2.

From Those Shown On The Plan May Be Required.
Contractor To Identify, Note And Implement. Additional BMP's 
Construction Activities Are The Responsibility Of The 
Erosion Control Measures Required As A Result Of 
And Best Management Practices (BMP).  All BMP's And 
The Pollution Prevention Plan Illustrates General Measures 1.

B. Pollution Prevention Plan

Thereof From Amounts Due To The Contractor.
Need Not, Remove Such Items And Deduct The Cost 
Adjoining Public Or Private Property, The Owner May, But 
Remove Earth Sedimentation Or Debris Which Comes Onto 
Contractor Fails To Take Necessary Steps To Promptly 
Attorney Fees Incurred To Owner. Further, If The 
Adjoining Public Or Private Property, Including Reasonable 
Any Type Whatsoever Resulting From Damages To 
Architect / Engineer Harmless From Any And All Claims Of 
Damage Claims: The Contractor Will Hold The Owner And 2.

Or As A Result Of Performance.
All Off-Site Borrow Or Deposit Areas During Performance 
Against Erosion And Pollution From This Project Site And 
Contractor Shall Take All Necessary Steps To Protect 
U.S. Clean Water Act And Any Local Ordinances. The 
Department Of Natural Resources (IDNR) NPDES Permit, The 
Control Requirements Of The Iowa Code, The Iowa 
Compliance With All Potential Pollution And Soil Erosion 
Code Compliance: The Contractor Is Responsible For 1.

A. Pollution Prevention And Erosion Protection

341

Item 31.



12

3011 MINNETONKA DR.

& HEISTERKAMP, VALERIE S.

HEISTERKAMP, DAVID P.

13

3003 MINNETONKA DR.

& LENEHAN, JAMIE E.

LENEHAN, DARCI K.

14

2927 MINNETONKA DR.

DOBSON, H. RICHARD

15

2913 MINNETONKA DR.

& TRESEMER, MEGANN E.

TRESEMER, JASON J.

2915 MINNETONKA DR.

& HUSAIN, SHAMEEM

HUSAIN, TAHSEEN

18

2916 MINNETONKA DR.

& BODENSTEINER, JASON E.

HEMANN, MARRY T.

RAILROAD

CHICAGO, CENTRAL & PACIFIC

RD
RD

S
H

C

C

CC

C

C

908

908

9
0
8

908

9
0
8

9
0
9

91
0

9
10

91
1

9
11

912

9
12

913

9
1
3

914

915

91
6

91
7

918

919

920
9
2
1

922

922

923

9
2
3

9
2
4

11

3019 MINNETONKA DR, 

SNODGRASS,CONNIE M

SNODGRASS,JAMES D &

1
0
0

+
0
0

1
0
1
+
0
0

1
0
2

+
0
0

103+00

104+00

10
5
+
0
0

1
0
6

+
0
0

108+00

 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

3
1
9
-3

6
2
-9

3
9
4
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

C
E

D
A

R
 R

A
P
ID

S
, 
IA
 5

2
4
0
4

5
0
0
5
 B

O
W

L
IN

G
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 S
.W
.

k
n
o
o
n
a
n

V
:\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
9
\

1
1
9
.0

1
1
5
.0

8
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
9
0
1
1
5
_

C
2
1
.d

g
n

5
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
1

7
:4

3
:5

6
 

A
M

S
n
y
d
e
r

1
:4

0

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
s
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iB

W
H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

O
A

K
 P

A
R

K
 B

L
V

D
 S

E
W

E
R
 R

E
P

L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

1190115

K
R

N
L

R
B

R
W

S
0
5
/
1
2
/
2
1

1
1
9
0
1
1
5

2
0
'

C
.2

1

P
O

L
L

U
T
IO

N
 P

R
E

V
E

N
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

C.21

M
IN

N
E

T
O

N
K

A
 D

R
Slope Mix with Temporary RECP

Sod

Proposed Pavement Improvements

Filter Sock, Inlet Protection Device

LEGEND

0 20

FEET

342

Item 31.



14

2927 MINNETONKA DR.

DOBSON, H. RICHARD

16

2821 MINNETONKA DR.

& MARSHALL, CRISTIN K.

MARSHALL, ROBERT K.

15

2913 MINNETONKA DR.

& TRESEMER, MEGANN E.

TRESEMER, JASON J.

21

929 OAK PARK BLVD

& POE, MONIQUE H. TRUST

POE, MICHAEL J. TRUST 20

941 OAK PARK BLVD

TAKES, DAVID L.

C

C

EB

S
H

CC

C

C

872 8
7
3

8
7
4

8
7
5

876

877

878

878

879

879

880

880

881

881

882

882

883

883

884

884

885

885

886

886

887

887

888

888

889

889

890

890

891

891

892

89
2

893

89
3

894

89
4

895

8
9
5

896

8
9
6

897

8
9
7

898

898

899

899

900

9
0
0

901

9
0
1

9
0
2

902

9
0
3

903

9
0
4

904

90
5

905

906

9
0
6

907

9
0
7

908

9
0
8

908

908

9
0
8

908

9
0
8

909

9
0
9

9
0
9 9
10

9
10

9
1
0

9
11

9
11

9
11

9
12

912

9
1
2

9
1
3

9
1
3

915 9
15

9
16

9
1
7

9
1
8

9
1
9

9
2
0

10
5
+
0
0

1
0
6

+
0
0

1
0
7

+
0
0

108+00

109+00

110+00

 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

3
1
9
-3

6
2
-9

3
9
4
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

C
E

D
A

R
 R

A
P
ID

S
, 
IA
 5

2
4
0
4

5
0
0
5
 B

O
W

L
IN

G
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 S
.W
.

k
n
o
o
n
a
n

V
:\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
9
\

1
1
9
.0

1
1
5
.0

8
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
9
0
1
1
5
_

C
2
2
.d

g
n

5
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
1

7
:4

3
:5

6
 

A
M

S
n
y
d
e
r

1
:4

0

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
s
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iB

W
H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

O
A

K
 P

A
R

K
 B

L
V

D
 S

E
W

E
R
 R

E
P

L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

1190115

K
R

N
L

R
B

R
W

S
0
5
/
1
2
/
2
1

1
1
9
0
1
1
5

2
0
'

C
.2

2

P
O

L
L

U
T
IO

N
 P

R
E

V
E

N
T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N

C.22

MINNETONKA DR

Slope Mix with Temporary RECP

Sod

Proposed Pavement Improvements

Filter Sock, Inlet Protection Device

Existing Sanitary Sewer

Proposed Sanitary Sewer

LEGEND

0 20

FEET

343

Item 31.



100+00

101+00

102+001
0
3

+
0
0

1
0
4

+
0
0

10
5
+
0
0

106+00

107+00

1
0
8

+
0
0

1
0
9

+
0
0

1
1
0

+
0
0

1
1
1
+
0
0

 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

3
1
9
-3

6
2
-9

3
9
4
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

C
E

D
A

R
 R

A
P
ID

S
, 
IA
 5

2
4
0
4

5
0
0
5
 B

O
W

L
IN

G
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 S
.W
.

k
n
o
o
n
a
n

V
:\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
9
\

1
1
9
.0

1
1
5
.0

8
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
9
0
1
1
5
_

G
0
1
.d

g
n

5
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
1

7
:4

3
:5

8
 

A
M

S
n
y
d
e
r

1
:8

0

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
s
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iB

W
H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

O
A

K
 P

A
R

K
 B

L
V

D
 S

E
W

E
R
 R

E
P

L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

1190115

K
R

N
L

R
B

R
W

S
0
5
/
1
2
/
2
1

1
1
9
0
1
1
5

G.1

G
.1

4
0
'

CP13

CP12

CP11

CP10

CP20

CP22

CP21

S
U

R
V

E
Y
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L
 &
 R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E
 I

N
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N

Existing Sanitary Sewer

Proposed Sanitary Sewer

O
A

K
 P

A
R

K
 B

L
V

D

M
IN

N
E

T
O

N
K

A
 D

R

0 40

FEET

344

Item 31.



12

3011 MINNETONKA DR.

& HEISTERKAMP, VALERIE S.

HEISTERKAMP, DAVID P.

13

3003 MINNETONKA DR.

& LENEHAN, JAMIE E.

LENEHAN, DARCI K.

14

2927 MINNETONKA DR.

DOBSON, H. RICHARD

15

2913 MINNETONKA DR.

& TRESEMER, MEGANN E.

TRESEMER, JASON J.

17

2915 MINNETONKA DR.

& HUSAIN, SHAMEEM

HUSAIN, TAHSEEN

18

2916 MINNETONKA DR.

& BODENSTEINER, JASON E.

HEMANN, MARRY T.

RAILROAD

CHICAGO, CENTRAL & PACIFIC

11

3019 MINNETONKA DR, 

SNODGRASS,CONNIE M

SNODGRASS,JAMES D &

1
0
0

+
0
0

1
0
1
+
0
0

1
0
2

+
0
0

103+00

104+00

10
5
+
0
0

1
0
6

+
0
0

1
0
7

+
0
0

108+00

 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

3
1
9
-3

6
2
-9

3
9
4
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

C
E

D
A

R
 R

A
P
ID

S
, 
IA
 5

2
4
0
4

5
0
0
5
 B

O
W

L
IN

G
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 S
.W
.

k
n
o
o
n
a
n

V
:\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
9
\

1
1
9
.0

1
1
5
.0

8
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
9
0
1
1
5
_

H
0
1
.d

g
n

5
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
1

7
:4

4
:4

2
 

A
M

S
n
y
d
e
r

1
:4

0

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
s
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iB

W
H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

O
A

K
 P

A
R

K
 B

L
V

D
 S

E
W

E
R
 R

E
P

L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

1190115

K
R

N
L

R
B

R
W

S
0
5
/
1
2
/
2
1

1
1
9
0
1
1
5

H.1

H
.1

2
0
'

R
IG

H
T
-O

F
-W

A
Y

t
n

e

m
e
s

a
E
 

n
oit

c
u
rt

s
n

o
C
 

y
r

a
r

o
p

m
e

T
 '

01
 

d
e

s
o

p
o
r

P

E
x
is
t
in

g
 
1
5
' 
S
a
n
it
a
r
y
 

E
a
s
e

m
e
n
t

Proposed Sanitary Sewer

Proposed Sanitary Sewer

Proposed 15' Sanitary Sewer Easement

Proposed 5' Temporary Construction Easement

1
8
.3
'

1
5
.0
'

LEGEND

Found Monument

Proposed Pavement Improvements

Construction Limits

Existing Property Line

Existing Right of Way

0 20

FEET

345

Item 31.



15

2913 MINNETONKA DR.

& TRESEMER, MEGANN E.

TRESEMER, JASON J.

14

2927 MINNETONKA DR.

DOBSON, H. RICHARD

16

2821 MINNETONKA DR.

& MARSHALL, CRISTIN K.

MARSHALL, ROBERT K.

20

941 OAK PARK BLVD

TAKES, DAVID L.

21

929 OAK PARK BLVD

& POE, MONIQUE H. TRUST

POE, MICHAEL J. TRUST

106+00

107+00

1
0
8

+
0
0

1
0
9

+
0
0

1
1
0

+
0
0

1
1
1
+
0
0

 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

3
1
9
-3

6
2
-9

3
9
4
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

C
E

D
A

R
 R

A
P
ID

S
, 
IA
 5

2
4
0
4

5
0
0
5
 B

O
W

L
IN

G
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 S
.W
.

k
n
o
o
n
a
n

\
\

G
e

m
in
i\

V
o
lu

m
e
\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
9
\

1
1
9
.0

1
1
5
.0

8
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
9
0
1
1
5
_

H
0
2
.d

g
n

5
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
1

7
:4

4
:5

6
 

A
M

S
n
y
d
e
r

1
:4

0

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
S
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iB

W
H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

O
A

K
 P

A
R

K
 B

L
V

D
 S

E
W

E
R
 R

E
P

L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

1190115

K
R

N
L

R
B

R
W

S
0
5
/
1
2
/
2
1

1
1
9
0
1
1
5

H.2

H
.2

2
0
'

R
IG

H
T
-O

F
-W

A
Y

C
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
io

n
 

E
a
s
e

m
e
n
t

P
r
o
p
o
s
e
d
 
1
0
' T

e
m

p
o
r
a
r
y

Existing 15' Sanitary Easement

Existing 15' Sanitary Easement

Proposed Sanitary Sewer

Existing Sanitary Sewer

M
IN

N
E

T
O

N
K

A
 D

R

LEGEND

Found Monument

Proposed Pavement Improvements

Construction Limits

Existing Property Line

Existing Right of Way

0 20

FEET

346

Item 31.



 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

3
1
9
-3

6
2
-9

3
9
4
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

C
E

D
A

R
 R

A
P
ID

S
, 
IA
 5

2
4
0
4

5
0
0
5
 B

O
W

L
IN

G
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 S
.W
.

k
n
o
o
n
a
n

\
\

G
e

m
in
i\

V
o
lu

m
e
\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
9
\

1
1
9
.0

1
1
5
.0

8
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
9
0
1
1
5
_
J
0
1
.d

g
n

5
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
1

7
:4

5
:0

9
 

A
M

S
n
y
d
e
r

1
:1

0
0

C
:\

S
A
_

C
A

D
D
_

V
8
i\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iB

W
H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

O
A

K
 P

A
R

K
 B

L
V

D
 S

E
W

E
R
 R

E
P

L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

1190115

K
R

N
L

R
B

R
W

S
0
5
/
1
2
/
2
1

1
1
9
0
1
1
5

ROAD  CLOSED
TO

THRU  TRAFFIC

5
0
'

J
.1

J.1

S
T

A
G
IN

G
 A

N
D
 T

R
A

F
F
IC
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L
 

M
IN

N
E

T
O

N
K

A
 D

R

O
A

K
 P

A
R

K
 B

L
V

D

LEGEND

Construction Access Route

Stabilized Construction Entrance

Type 3 Barricade

Traffic Sign

48x30

R11-2

ROAD

CLOSED

48x30

R11-2

ROAD

CLOSED

60x30

R11-4

36x36

W20-1

ROAD

WORK

AHEAD

0 50

FEET

347

Item 31.



C

C

EB

S
H

CC

C

C

ACC

Cedar Falls Utilities
FND 3/4" Pinch Pipe

Brick Planter w/ Shr
ubs

PVC Curb Stop

Cap Missing Shot Rim

Planter w/ Mulch

Mulch Planter w/ Plan
ts

w/ Mulch

Planter 

Brick 

FND 1" Pinch Pipe

F.L.=902.40 8" CMP S

F.L.=906.04 4" Tile W

F.L.=902.69 14" PVC N

F.L.=902.21 15" RCP E

Rim=908.25

F.L.=900.76 21" RCP SW

F.L.=900.76 21" RCP E

Rim=908.43

F.L.=902.50 14" PVC S

F.L.=902.30 8" CMP NNE

F.L.=903.28 8" CMP NNE

F.L.=901.78 21" RCP NE

F.L.=902.19 15" RCP W

Rim=908.09

Inv=899.74 8" PVC NW
Inv=899.69 8" VCP S

Rim=910.53

ACC

Inv=898.91 8" VCP SW

Inv=898.95 8" VCP N

Rim=908.06

Inv=898.17 " VCP SE

Inv=903.99 " VCP SW

Inv=898.31 " VCP SW

Inv=898.28 8" VCP NE

Rim=914.72

8"                           8"                           8"                           8"                           8"                           8"

8
"
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
"
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
"

8
" 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

8
"

8"                           8"                           8"                           8"

8
"
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
"
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
"

1
0
1
+
0
0

1
0
2

+
0
0

104+00

10
5
+
0
0

1
0
6

+
0
0

1
0
7

+
0
0

108+00

 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

3
1
9
-3

6
2
-9

3
9
4
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

C
E

D
A

R
 R

A
P
ID

S
, 
IA
 5

2
4
0
4

5
0
0
5
 B

O
W

L
IN

G
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 S
.W
.

k
n
o
o
n
a
n

V
:\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
9
\

1
1
9
.0

1
1
5
.0

8
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
9
0
1
1
5
_

M
0
1
.d

g
n

5
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
1

7
:4

5
:3

9
 

A
M

S
n
y
d
e
r

1
:4

0

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
s
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iB

W
H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

O
A

K
 P

A
R

K
 B

L
V

D
 S

E
W

E
R
 R

E
P

L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

1190115

K
R

N
L

R
B

R
W

S
0
5
/
1
2
/
2
1

1
1
9
0
1
1
5

Sanitary Sewer

Proposed 8" 21" RCP @ 2.13%STP-1 48 L
.F. of 

F.L.=900.76 Out E

F.L.=900.76 In SW

Rim=908.43

F.L.=901.78 Out NE

F.L.=902.50 In S

F.L.=902.30 In NNE

F.L.=903.28 In NNE

F.L.=902.19 In W

Rim=908.09

2
0
'

Existing Grade S
T

O
R

M
 S

E
W

E
R
 P

L
A

N
 &
 P

R
O

F
IL

E

M.1

M
.1

900

905

910

915

920

895

900

905

910

915

920

895

STP-1

MINNETONKA DR

Proposed Pavement Improvements

LEGEND
0 20

FEET

348

Item 31.



RDRD

C

C

C

C

ACC

ACC

PVC Curb Stop

Planter w/ Mulch

Mulch Planter w/ Plants

w/ Mulch

Planter 

Brick 

FND 1" Pinch Pipe

Diamond Plate

River Rock

Planter w/ 

Brick 

Deck

FND 1" Pinch Pipe

Tile to Roof Drain

F.L.=921.65 4" 

F.L.=917.52 15" RCP W

F.L.=917.70 8" CMP NW

F.L.=917.70 8" CMP NW

Rim=921.58

F.L.=916.95 15" RCP E

F.L.=916.93 14" PVC SE

F.L.=917.23 8" CMP NW

Rim=921.37

F.L.=902.40 8" CMP S
F.L.=906.04 4" Tile 

W
F.L.=902.69 14" PVC N
F.L.=902.21 15" RCP E
Rim=908.25

F.L.=900.76 21" RCP SW
F.L.=900.76 21" RCP E

Rim=908.43

Inv=899.74 8" 
PVC NW

Inv=899.69 8" 
VCP S

Rim=910.53

from Aerial Image)
Centerline (Obtained 
Existing Railroa

d 

8"                           8"                           8"                           8"                           8"                           8"

8
"
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
"
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
"

8
" 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

8
"

8"                           8"     
                      8"             

              8"

1
0
0

+
0
0

1
0
1
+
0
0

1
0
2

+
0
0

103+00

104+00

 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

3
1
9
-3

6
2
-9

3
9
4
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

C
E

D
A

R
 R

A
P
ID

S
, 
IA
 5

2
4
0
4

5
0
0
5
 B

O
W

L
IN

G
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 S
.W
.

k
n
o
o
n
a
n

\
\

G
e

m
in
i\

V
o
lu

m
e
\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
9
\

1
1
9
.0

1
1
5
.0

8
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
9
0
1
1
5
_

M
S

A
0
1
.d

g
n

5
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
1

7
:4

5
:4

0
 

A
M

S
n
y
d
e
r

1
:4

0

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
s
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iB

W
H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

O
A

K
 P

A
R

K
 B

L
V

D
 S

E
W

E
R
 R

E
P

L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

1190115

K
R

N
L

R
B

R
W

S
0
5
/
1
2
/
2
1

1
1
9
0
1
1
5

SAP-2 130 L.F. of 8" PVC @ 0.41%
SAP-3 94 L.F. of 8" PVC @ 0.40%

F.L.=889.10 Out SE
F.L.=889.11 In NW
F.L.=890.37 In SW
Rim=904.00
Sta. 100+00.00
SA-1, SW-303

F.L.=895.37 Out NW
F.L.=895.57 In SE
Rim=910.48
Sta. 104+14.89
SA-3, SW-301

SAP-1 284 L.F
. of 8" Tren

chless AWWA C900 @ 1.50%

Track
Railroad 
Existing 

C
C

P
 

R
A
IL

R
O

A
D
 

R
.O
.W
.

C
C

P
 

R
A
IL

R
O

A
D
 

R
.O
.W
.

(Overflow and Drop)
Drop Structure 
Install External 

F.L.=894.64 Out NE
F.L.=894.84 In SE
F.L.=895.64 In NW
F.L.=907.14 In NW
Rim=918.65
Sta. 102+84.43
SA-2, SW-301

9
2
4
.1

4

2
0
'

MSA.1

M
S

A
.1

S
A

N
IT

A
R

Y
 S

E
W

E
R
 P

L
A

N
 &
 P

R
O

F
IL

E

Existing Grade

SA-2

SA-3

SAP-1

S
A

P
-
2

SEE NOTE 1

SEE NOTE 1

151.
0'

28.
5'

74.0'

 INFLUENCE

ZONE OF

7
6
.4
°BORE PIT

30'X20' 

30'x20' BORE PIT

74.0'

BORE PIT

INFLUENCE
ZONE OF 

M
IN

N
E

T
O

N
K

A
 D

R

9
2
4
.1

1

9
1
4
.9

5

9
0
4
.0

0

SA-1

NOTES:

MIN. FROM CENTERLINE OF RAILROAD TRACKS.

CONTRACTOR TO PLACE EXCAVATION MATERIAL 25'2.

ILLUMINATED IF LEFT UNATTENDED.

TIMES AND FENCED WITH REFLECTIVE MATERIAL OR

ALL EXCAVATIONS MUST BE PROTECTED AT ALL1.

Proposed Pavement Improvements

890

895

900

905

910

915

925

920

890

895

900

905

910

915

925

920

100+80 101+00 101+20 101+40 101+60 101+80 102+00 102+20 102+40 102+60 102+80 103+00 103+20 103+40 103+60 103+80 104+00 104+20 104+40 104+60

9
2
3
.4

9

9
2
2
.7

0

9
2
2
.0

2

9
2
1
.4

6

9
2
1
.0

7

9
2
0
.9

9

9
2
0
.9

6

9
2
0
.5

8

9
2
0
.3

4

9
1
9
.6

3

9
1
8
.7

2

9
1
7
.4

2

9
1
6
.0

3

9
1
4
.6

4

9
1
3
.3

1

9
1
2
.0

9

9
1
1
.0

4

9
1
0
.1

5

9
0
9
.3

1

9
0
8
.9

4

100+60100+40100+20100+00

LEGEND
0 20

FEET

S
A
P
-
3

349

Item 31.



C

C

EB

S
H

CC

C

C

ACC

F
.L
.=

8
9
6
.0

0
 
2
1
"
 

R
C

P

Brick Planter w/ Shrubs

Cedar Falls Utilities

FND 3/4" Pinch Pipe

Brick Planter w/ Shrubs

PVC Curb Stop

Cap Missing Shot Rim

Planter w/ Mulch

Mulch Planter w/ Plants

w/ Mulch

Planter 

Brick 

F.L.=902.40 8" CMP S
F.L.=906.04 4" Tile 

W
F.L.=902.69 14" PVC N
F.L.=902.21 15" RCP E
Rim=908.25

F.L.=900.76 21" RCP SW
F.L.=900.76 21" RCP E

Rim=908.43

F.L.=902.50 14" PVC S
F.L.=902.30 8" CMP NNE
F.L.=903.28 8" CMP NNE
F.L.=901.78 21" RCP NE
F.L.=902.19 15" RCP W

Rim=908.09

Inv=899.74 8" 
PVC NW

Inv=899.69 8" 
VCP S

Rim=910.53

Inv=897.67 " VCP NW

Inv=897.67 8" PVC SE

Rim=905.28

ACC

Inv=898.91 8" VCP SW

Inv=898.95 8" VCP N

Rim=908.06

Inv=898.17 " VCP SE

Inv=903.99 " VCP SW

Inv=898.31 " VCP SW

Inv=898.28 8" VCP NE

Rim=914.72

8"                           8"                           8"                           8"                           8"                           8"

8
"
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
"
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
"

8
" 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

8
"

8"                           8"      
                     8"              

             8"

8
"
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
"
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
"

104+00

10
5
+
0
0

1
0
6

+
0
0

1
0
7

+
0
0

108+00

 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

3
1
9
-3

6
2
-9

3
9
4
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

C
E

D
A

R
 R

A
P
ID

S
, 
IA
 5

2
4
0
4

5
0
0
5
 B

O
W

L
IN

G
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 S
.W
.

k
n
o
o
n
a
n

\
\

G
e

m
in
i\

V
o
lu

m
e
\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
9
\

1
1
9
.0

1
1
5
.0

8
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
9
0
1
1
5
_

M
S

A
0
2
.d

g
n

5
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
1

7
:4

5
:4

1
 
A

M

S
n
y
d
e
r

1
:4

0

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
s
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iB

W
H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

O
A

K
 P

A
R

K
 B

L
V

D
 S

E
W

E
R
 R

E
P

L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

1190115

K
R

N
L

R
B

R
W

S
0
5
/
1
2
/
2
1

1
1
9
0
1
1
5

SAP-2 130 L.F. of 8" PVC @ 0.41%
SAP-3 94 L.F. of 8" PVC @ 0.40%

SAP-4 199 L.F. of 8" PVC @ 0.40%
SAP-5 125 L.F. of 8" PVC @ 0.40%

F.L.=895.37 Out NW
F.L.=895.57 In SE
Rim=910.48
Sta. 104+14.89
SA-3, SW-301

F.L.=895.95 Out NW
F.L.=896.15 In SW
Rim=908.05
Sta. 105+09.34
SA-4, SW-301

F.L.=897.64 Out NW
Rim=907.46
Sta. 108+32.89
SA-6, SW-203

Sewer
21" Storm 
Existing 

(Overflow and Drop)
Drop Structure 
Install External 

F.L.=896.94 Out NW
F.L.=897.14 In SE
F.L.=897.94 In SW
F.L.=903.99 In SW
Rim=914.62
Sta. 107+08.02
SA-5, SW-301

2
0
'

MSA.2

M
S

A
.2

S
A

N
IT

A
R

Y
 S

E
W

E
R
 P

L
A

N
 &
 P

R
O

F
IL

E

Existing Grade

885

890

895

900

905

910

915

920

885

890

895

900

905

910

915

920

SA-3

SA-6 (cleanout)

SA-5

SAP-4

S
A

P
-
5

MINNETONKA DR

Proposed Pavement Improvements

103+20 103+40 103+60 103+80 104+00 104+20 104+40 104+60 104+80 105+00 105+20 105+40 105+60 105+80 106+00 106+20 106+40 106+60 106+80 107+00 107+20 107+40 107+60 107+80 108+00 108+20 108+40 108+60 108+80

9
1
6
.0

3

9
1
4
.6

4

9
1
3
.3

1

9
1
2
.0

9

9
1
1
.0

4

9
1
0
.1

5

9
0
9
.3

1

9
0
8
.9

4

9
0
8
.2

8

9
0
7
.9

1

9
0
7
.9

1

9
0
8
.1

6

9
0
9
.0

0

9
0
9
.7

3

9
1
0
.6

1

9
1
1
.4

0

9
1
2
.1

4

9
1
2
.8

1

9
1
3
.4

3

9
1
4
.2

8

9
1
4
.6

9

9
1
3
.7

6

9
1
2
.7

9

9
1
1
.6

8

9
1
0
.0

0

9
0
8
.2

6

9
0
6
.8

2

9
0
5
.1

4

9
0
3
.6

0

LEGEND
0 20

FEET

S
A
P
-
3

SA-4

 curbline of Minnetonka Drive.
 sanitary sewer as to protect adjacent
 excavations associated with proposed
Contractor shall utilize trench boxes for

350

Item 31.



C

C C

E
B

Mediacom

Swingset

Brick Wall

Brick Wall

Bottom PCC Footing

Top PCC Column

Top of DIP

Top of Clay Pipe

FND 3/4" Pinch Pipe

River Rock

Brick Planter W/ 

X

Brick Planter

F.L.=904.48, 4" Tile

F.L.=904.48, 10" HDPE

B
r
ic

k
 
P
la

n
t
e
r
 

w
/
 

S
h
r
u
b
s

C
e
d
a
r
 
F
a
ll
s
 

U
t
il
it
ie
s

F
N

D
 
3
/
4
"
 
P
in

c
h
 
P
ip

e

P
V

C
 

C
u
r
b
 
S
t
o
p

C
a
p
 

M
is
s
in

g
 
S
h
o
t
 
R
im

In
v

=
8
9
7
.6

7
 
"
 

V
C

P
 

N
W

In
v

=
8
9
7
.6

7
 

8
"
 
P

V
C
 

S
E

R
im

=
9
0
5
.2

8

A
C

C

In
v

=
8
9
8
.1

7
 
"
 

V
C

P
 

S
E

In
v

=
9
0
3
.9

9
 
"
 

V
C

P
 

S
W

In
v

=
8
9
8
.3

1
 
"
 

V
C

P
 

S
W

In
v

=
8
9
8
.2

8
 
8
"
 

V
C

P
 

N
E

R
im

=
9
1
4
.7

2 Inv=901.77 4" PVC NW

Inv=901.93 6" PVC NW

Inv=896.38 8" PVC NW

Inv=896.26 8" VCP SW

Inv=896.29 "  NE

Rim=916.78

Inv=896.11 " VCP SW

Inv=896.12 " VCP NW

Rim=915.40

8
"
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
"
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
"
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
"

8"                           8"                           8"

106+00

107+00

1
0
8

+
0
0

1
0
9

+
0
0

1
1
0

+
0
0

1
1
1
+
0
0

 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

3
1
9
-3

6
2
-9

3
9
4
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

C
E

D
A

R
 R

A
P
ID

S
, 
IA
 5

2
4
0
4

5
0
0
5
 B

O
W

L
IN

G
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 S
.W
.

k
n
o
o
n
a
n

\
\

G
e

m
in
i\

V
o
lu

m
e
\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
9
\

1
1
9
.0

1
1
5
.0

8
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
9
0
1
1
5
_

M
S

A
0
3
.d

g
n

5
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
1

7
:4

5
:4

1
 
A

M

S
n
y
d
e
r

1
:4

0

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
s
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iB

W
H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

O
A

K
 P

A
R

K
 B

L
V

D
 S

E
W

E
R
 R

E
P

L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

1190115

K
R

N
L

R
B

R
W

S
0
5
/
1
2
/
2
1

1
1
9
0
1
1
5

SAP-5 125 L.F. of 8" PVC @ 0.40%

F.L.=896.26 Out SW
F.L.=901.77 In NW
F.L.=901.93 In NW
F.L.=896.38 In NW
F.L.=896.29 In NE
Rim=916.78

Existing 8" PVC to Remain

F.L.=897.64 Out NW
Rim=907.46
Sta. 108+32.89
SA-6, SW-203 F.L.=896.89 Out SE

F.L.=896.91 In NW
Rim=910.90
Sta. 110+34.82
SA-7, SW-203

Sanitary Sewer
Plug Existing 8" 

Detail 2 on Sheet U.1.
Sanitary Sewer. Refer to 
Connect to Existing 8" 

(Overflow and Drop)
Drop Structure 
Install External 

F.L.=896.94 Out NW
F.L.=897.14 In SE
F.L.=897.94 In SW
F.L.=903.99 In SW
Rim=914.62
Sta. 107+08.02
SA-5, SW-301

2
0
'

MSA.3

M
S

A
.3

S
A

N
IT

A
R

Y
 S

E
W

E
R
 P

L
A

N
 &
 P

R
O

F
IL

E

Existing Grade

885

890

895

900

905

910

915

920

885

890

895

900

905

910

915

920

SA-5

SAP-5

SA-6 (cleanout) SA-7 (cleanout)
S

A
P
-
4

M
IN

N
E

T
O

N
K

A
 D

R

M
IN

N
E

T
O

N
K

A
 D

R

O
A

K
 P

A
R

K
 B

L
V

D

Proposed Pavement Improvements

106+20 106+40 106+60 106+80 107+00 107+20 107+40 107+60 107+80 108+00 108+20 108+40 108+60 108+80 109+00 109+20 109+40 109+60 109+80 110+00 110+20 110+40 110+60 110+80 111+00 111+20 111+40 111+60

9
1
1
.4

0

9
1
2
.1

4

9
1
2
.8

1

9
1
3
.4

3

9
1
4
.2

8

9
1
4
.6

9

9
1
3
.7

6

9
1
2
.7

9

9
1
1
.6

8

9
1
0
.0

0

9
0
8
.2

6

9
0
6
.8

2

9
0
5
.1

4

9
0
3
.6

0

8
9
7
.7

1

8
8
6
.5

1

8
7

3
.7

4

8
8
2
.9

2

8
9
7
.4

3

9
0
1
.5

3

9
0
8
.5

9

9
1
1
.1

2

9
1
2
.3

2

9
1
3
.8

7

9
1
4
.9

7

9
1
5
.7

6

9
1
6
.7

5

9
1
6
.6

7

LEGEND
0 20

FEET

351

Item 31.



12

3011 MINNETONKA DR.

& HEISTERKAMP, VALERIE S.

HEISTERKAMP, DAVID P.

13

3003 MINNETONKA DR.

& LENEHAN, JAMIE E.

LENEHAN, DARCI K.

14

2927 MINNETONKA DR.

DOBSON, H. RICHARD

15

2913 MINNETONKA DR.

& TRESEMER, MEGANN E.

TRESEMER, JASON J.

17

2915 MINNETONKA DR.

& HUSAIN, SHAMEEM

HUSAIN, TAHSEEN

18

2916 MINNETONKA DR.

& BODENSTEINER, JASON E.

HEMANN, MARRY T.

C

C

EB

RD
RD

S
H

C

C

CC

C

C

F
.L
.=

8
9
6
.0

0
 
2
1
"
 

R
C

P

Tile to Roof Dr
ain

F.L.=921.65 4" 

F.L.=917.52 15"
 RCP W

F.L.=917.70 8"
 CMP NW

F.L.=917.70 8"
 CMP NW

Rim=921.58 F.L.=916.95 15"
 RCP E

F.L.=916.93 14"
 PVC SE

F.L.=917.23 8" 
CMP NW

Rim=921.37

F.L.=902.40 8" CMP S

F.L.=906.04 4" Tile W

F.L.=902.69 14" PVC N

F.L.=902.21 15" RCP E

Rim=908.25

F.L.=900.76 21" RCP SW

F.L.=900.76 21" RCP E

Rim=908.43

F.L.=902.50 14" PVC S

F.L.=902.30 8" CMP NNE

F.L.=903.28 8" CMP NNE

F.L.=901.78 21" RCP NE

F.L.=902.19 15" RCP W

Rim=908.09

Inv=899.74 8" PVC NW

Inv=899.69 8" VCP S

Rim=910.53

Inv=897.67 " V
CP NW

Inv=897.67 8" 
PVC SE

Rim=905.28

C
P
2
2

C
P
1
3

Inv=898.91 8" VCP SW

Inv=898.95 8" VCP N

Rim=908.06

Inv=898.17 " VCP SE

Inv=903.99 " VCP SW

Inv=898.31 " VCP SW

Inv=898.28 8" VCP NE

Rim=914.72

from Aerial Image)

Centerline (Obtained 

Existing Railroad 

11

3019 MINNETONKA DR, 

SNODGRASS,CONNIE M

SNODGRASS,JAMES D &

1
0
0

+
0
0

1
0
1
+
0
0

1
0
2

+
0
0

103+00

104+00

10
5
+
0
0

1
0
6

+
0
0

1
0
7

+
0
0

108+00

 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

3
1
9
-3

6
2
-9

3
9
4
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

C
E

D
A

R
 R

A
P
ID

S
, 
IA
 5

2
4
0
4

5
0
0
5
 B

O
W

L
IN

G
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 S
.W
.

k
n
o
o
n
a
n

V
:\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
9
\

1
1
9
.0

1
1
5
.0

8
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
9
0
1
1
5
_

R
0
1
.d

g
n

5
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
1

7
:4

5
:4

2
 

A
M

S
n
y
d
e
r

1
:4

0

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
s
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iB

W
H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

O
A

K
 P

A
R

K
 B

L
V

D
 S

E
W

E
R
 R

E
P

L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

1190115

K
R

N
L

R
B

R
W

S
0
5
/
1
2
/
2
1

1
1
9
0
1
1
5

R.1

R
.1

2
0
'

P
R

O
J
E

C
T
 R

E
M

O
V

A
L
S

M
IN

N
E

T
O

N
K

A
 D

R

B
  
  
  
  
  
 B
  
  
  
  
  
 B
  
  
  
  
  
 B
  
  
  
  
  
 B
  
  
  
  
  
 B
  
  
  
  
  
 B
  
  
  
  
  
 B

B           B           B           B           B           B           B           B           B           B           B           B           B

B
   
   
   
  B
   
   
   
  B
   
   
   
  B
   
   
   
  B
   
   
   
  B

S           S           S

light pole with CFU.

and reinstallation of 

coordinate removal 

Contractor shall 

 Works, typ.

 Cedar Falls Public

 replacement with

 coordinate tree

Contractor shall

removal

pavement 

69 SY 

 removal

 sidewalk

35 SY

removal

driveway 

40 SY 

 removal

 driveway/sidewalk

6 SY

 removal

 sidewalk

31 SY

removal

driveway 

39 SY 

 removal

 driveway/sidewalk

7 SY
 removal

 driveway

21 SY

 removal

 sidewalk

46 SY

removal

driveway 

32 SY 

removal

driveway/sidewalk 

5 SY 

removal

sidewalk 

46 SY 

 removal

 driveway

46 SY

 removal

 driveway/sidewalk

8 SY

 removal

 sidewalk

20 SY

 manhole

Remove

manhole

Remove 

 manhole

Remove

B

LEGEND

S

B

Pavement Removals

Sidewalk Removals

Removal of Sanitary Sewer

Removal of Sanitary Sewer
Aerial Crossing

Removal of Storm Sewer

Saw Cut Lines

Tree Removal

0 20

FEET

352

Item 31.



15

2913 MINNETONKA DR.

& TRESEMER, MEGANN E.

TRESEMER, JASON J.

14

2927 MINNETONKA DR.

DOBSON, H. RICHARD

16

2821 MINNETONKA DR.

& MARSHALL, CRISTIN K.

MARSHALL, ROBERT K.

20

941 OAK PARK BLVD

TAKES, DAVID L.

21

929 OAK PARK BLVD

& POE, MONIQUE H. TRUST

POE, MICHAEL J. TRUST

C

C C

E
B

X

F.L.=904.48, 4" Tile

F.L.=904.48, 10" HDPE

S
H

C
C

F
.L
.=

9
0
2
.4

0
 
8
"
 

C
M

P
 

S
F
.L
.=

9
0
6
.0

4
 

4
"
 
T
ile
 

W
F
.L
.=

9
0
2
.6

9
 
1
4
"
 
P

V
C
 

N
F
.L
.=

9
0
2
.2

1
 
1
5
"
 

R
C

P
 

E
R
im

=
9
0
8
.2

5

In
v

=
8
9
7
.6

7
 
"
 

V
C

P
 

N
W

In
v

=
8
9
7
.6

7
 

8
"
 
P

V
C
 

S
E

R
im

=
9
0
5
.2

8

C
P
1
3

C
P
2
0

C
P
1
2

In
v

=
8
9
8
.9

1
 
8
"
 

V
C

P
 

S
W

In
v

=
8
9
8
.9

5
 
8
"
 

V
C

P
 

N

R
im

=
9
0
8
.0

6

In
v

=
8
9
8
.1

7
 
"
 

V
C

P
 

S
E

In
v

=
9
0
3
.9

9
 
"
 

V
C

P
 

S
W

In
v

=
8
9
8
.3

1
 
"
 

V
C

P
 

S
W

In
v

=
8
9
8
.2

8
 
8
"
 

V
C

P
 

N
E

R
im

=
9
1
4
.7

2 Inv=901.77 4" PVC NW

Inv=901.93 6" PVC NW

Inv=896.38 8" PVC NW

Inv=896.26 8" VCP SW

Inv=896.29 "  NE

Rim=916.78

Inv=896.11 " VCP SW

Inv=896.12 " VCP NW

Rim=915.40

106+00

107+00

1
0
8

+
0
0

1
0
9

+
0
0

1
1
0

+
0
0

1
1
1
+
0
0

 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

3
1
9
-3

6
2
-9

3
9
4
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

C
E

D
A

R
 R

A
P
ID

S
, 
IA
 5

2
4
0
4

5
0
0
5
 B

O
W

L
IN

G
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 S
.W
.

k
n
o
o
n
a
n

V
:\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
9
\

1
1
9
.0

1
1
5
.0

8
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
9
0
1
1
5
_

R
0
2
.d

g
n

5
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
1

7
:4

5
:4

3
 

A
M

S
n
y
d
e
r

1
:4

0

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
s
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iB

W
H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

O
A

K
 P

A
R

K
 B

L
V

D
 S

E
W

E
R
 R

E
P

L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

1190115

K
R

N
L

R
B

R
W

S
0
5
/
1
2
/
2
1

1
1
9
0
1
1
5

R.2

R
.2

2
0
'

P
R

O
J
E

C
T
 R

E
M

O
V

A
L
S

M
IN

N
E

T
O

N
K

A
 D

R

M
IN

N
E

T
O

N
K

A
 D

R

B
           B

           B
           B

           B
           B

           B
           B

           B
           B

           B
           B

           B

B
           B

           B
           B

           B
           B

 manhole

Remove

 cleanout shall be filled and plugged.

 crossing to proposed sanitary sewer

Existing pipe from end of aerial pipe

considered incidental to 'removal of structure' bid item.

removed and disposed of. This work shall be 

Any fallen pipe near aerial pipe crossing shall be 

incidental to 'removal of structure' bid item.

crossing. This work shall be considered 

and disposed of along with aerial pipe 

All footings and columns to be removed 

B

LEGEND

S

B

Pavement Removals

Sidewalk Removals

Removal of Sanitary Sewer

Removal of Sanitary Sewer
Aerial Crossing

Removal of Storm Sewer

Saw Cut Lines

Tree Removal

0 20

FEET

353

Item 31.



12

3011 MINNETONKA DR.

& HEISTERKAMP, VALERIE S.

HEISTERKAMP, DAVID P.

13

3003 MINNETONKA DR.

& LENEHAN, JAMIE E.

LENEHAN, DARCI K.

14

2927 MINNETONKA DR.

DOBSON, H. RICHARD

18

2916 MINNETONKA DR.

& BODENSTEINER, JASON E.

HEMANN, MARRY T.

C C

C
C

C

C

11

3019 MINNETONKA DR, 

SNODGRASS,CONNIE M

SNODGRASS,JAMES D &

1
0
3

+
0
0

1
0
4

+
0
0

10
5
+
0
0

 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

3
1
9
-3

6
2
-9

3
9
4
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

C
E

D
A

R
 R

A
P
ID

S
, 
IA
 5

2
4
0
4

5
0
0
5
 B

O
W

L
IN

G
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 S
.W
.

k
n
o
o
n
a
n

V
:\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
9
\

1
1
9
.0

1
1
5
.0

8
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
9
0
1
1
5
_

S
0
1
.d

g
n

5
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
1

7
:4

5
:4

4
 

A
M

D
e
f
a
u
lt

1
:2

0

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
s
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iB

W
H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

O
A

K
 P

A
R

K
 B

L
V

D
 S

E
W

E
R
 R

E
P

L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

1190115

K
R

N
L

R
B

R
W

S
0
5
/
1
2
/
2
1

1
1
9
0
1
1
5

1
0
'

S
.1

S.1

S
ID

E
W

A
L

K
 S

H
E

E
T
S

9
2
0
.2

1 E
X

9
19
.7

4

1
.5

%

7.1%

4.7%

2
.0

%

E
X

3
.1

%

1
.5

%

1
.5

%

1.
5

%

1.
5

%

1.5%

1.5%

9
14
.5

1 9
13
.6

5

910
.00

9
0
8
.3

3

9
0
8
.8

1

9
0
8
.7

2
 
E
X

9
0
8
.2

4
 
E
X

9
0
8
.9

9
 
E
X

9
10
.0

1 
E
X

9
13
.0

8
 
E
X

9
14
.6

4
 
E
X

Typ.
4'

Typ.

4'

T
y
p
.

4
'

13
5
'

R

12
0
'

R

100'R

@ |

6.6% EX

3
.2

%

3
.0

%

2
.6

%

2
.5

%

1.2%

0.5%

908.09

0.
5%

9
17
.4

5
 
E
X9

18
.7

5
 
E
X

9
17
.12
 
E
X

9
18
.4

3
 
E
X

1.5
%

0
.6

%

@
 
|

3
.8

%
 

E
X

3
.8

%

9
19
.8

0

9
2
0
.3

3
 
E
X

9
14
.5

7
 
E
X 9

13
.7

1 
E
X

9
10
.0

6
 

E
X

90
9.5

0 
EX

9
0
9
.4

4

9
0
8
.1
5

9
0
8
.3

9
 
E
X

9
0
8
.8

7
 
E
X

6.55%

20'

6.25%

13.77'

3.59%

15.61'
4
.2

2
%

1
1
.3

7
'

918
.85
 E

X 917.54 EX

9
18
.3

9
 
E
X 9

17
.0

9
 
E
X

9
18
.7

7
 
E
X

9
17
.4

7
 
E
X

E
X

EX

Figure 7010.101.

In Accordance With SUDAS 

All Pavement Joints Shall Be 

Note:

0 10

FEET

pavement
7" PCC 
69 SY 

sidewalk
4" PCC 
36 SY 

driveway
6" PCC 
40 SY 

 driveway/sidewalk
6" PCC

6 SY 

sidewalk
4" PCC 
32 SY 

 driveway
 6" PCC

38 SY

driveway/sidewalk
6" PCC 
7 SY 

driveway
6" PCC 
21 SY 

sidewalk
4" PCC 
46 SY 

 driveway
 6" PCC

31 SY

driveway/sidewalk
6" PCC 
5 SY 

354

Item 31.



16

2821 MINNETONKA DR.

& MARSHALL, CRISTIN K.

MARSHALL, ROBERT K.

15

2913 MINNETONKA DR.

& TRESEMER, MEGANN E.

TRESEMER, JASON J.

17

2915 MINNETONKA DR.

& HUSAIN, SHAMEEM

HUSAIN, TAHSEEN

C C

E
B

C
C

106+00

107+00

1
0
8

+
0
0

 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

3
1
9
-3

6
2
-9

3
9
4
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

C
E

D
A

R
 R

A
P
ID

S
, 
IA
 5

2
4
0
4

5
0
0
5
 B

O
W

L
IN

G
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 S
.W
.

k
n
o
o
n
a
n

V
:\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
9
\

1
1
9
.0

1
1
5
.0

8
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
9
0
1
1
5
_

S
0
2
.d

g
n

5
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
1

7
:4

5
:4

4
 

A
M

D
e
f
a
u
lt

1
:2

0

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
s
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iB

W
H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

O
A

K
 P

A
R

K
 B

L
V

D
 S

E
W

E
R
 R

E
P

L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

1190115

K
R

N
L

R
B

R
W

S
0
5
/
1
2
/
2
1

1
1
9
0
1
1
5

1
0
'

S
.2

S.2

S
ID

E
W

A
L

K
 S

H
E

E
T
S

9
15
.5

2
 
E
X

1.5%

3
.8

%

EX
4.1%

1.5%

1.5%

9
12
.8

7

1.5%

9
13
.5

1

9
0
8
.7

2
 
E
X

9
0
8
.8

1
0.5%

9
13
.3

7
 
E
X

9
12
.4

9
 
E
X

2.8%

@
 
|

3
.8

%
 

E
X

9
0
8
.8

7
 
E
X

9
12
.9

3
 
E
X

9
13
.5

7
 
E
X

2.8%

9
15
.6

8
 
E
X

3
.3

0
%

1
9
.4

0
'

9
14
.9

4

9
14
.8

8

4
.0

%

Figure 7010.101.

In Accordance With SUDAS 

All Pavement Joints Shall Be 

Note:

0 10

FEET

 sidewalk
 4" PCC

47 SY

 driveway
 6" PCC

46 SY

 sidewalk
 4" PCC

21 SY

driveway/sidewalk
6" PCC 
9 SY 

355

Item 31.



CLEANOUT

CASTING

45° Bend

Wye
Sewer Main

Plug

6'' PVC Riser
3

Concrete Pad
20'' Min.

1
Casting

Class I  Bedding Material

Connection

Flexible Pipe 

90   Elbow or Two 45   Bends

Concrete Encasement

Transition Coupling

Possible Sleeve or 24'' min.

Sewer Main

Sanitary

Standard

15'-0'' min.

Mechanical  Joint Ductile Iron Pipe 

Manhole Risers

Connection

Flexible Pipe 

Overflow

D
r
o
p

1

2

1

2

and fittings.

Provide mechanical joints for all ductile iron pipe 

pipe of same diameter specified for sewer main.  

Construct drop and overflow from ductile iron 

Use A-LOK connectors.

minimum on all sides.

Encase elbow in concrete. 12 inches 

elbow to bottom of sewer main. 

flowable mortar, or concrete from top of 

Place Class I bedding material, CLSM, 

3

3

3

 B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
M

A
R

K

S
c
a
le
:

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

E
n
g
in
e
e
r:

T
e
c
h
n
ic
ia

n
:

D
a
te
:

F
ie
ld
 B

k
: 
  
  
  
  
P
g
:

1
"=
 

Sheet

S
h
e
e
t

Project No:

S
N

Y
D

E
R
 

&
 
A

S
S

O
C
I
A

T
E

S
,
 
I
N

C
.

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

3
1
9
-3

6
2
-9

3
9
4
  
| 
 w

w
w
.s

n
y
d
e
r-
a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
.c

o
m

C
E

D
A

R
 R

A
P
ID

S
, 
IA
 5

2
4
0
4

5
0
0
5
 B

O
W

L
IN

G
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 S
.W
.

k
n
o
o
n
a
n

V
:\

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\

2
0
1
9
\

1
1
9
.0

1
1
5
.0

8
\

C
A

D
D
\

C
D
_

1
1
9
0
1
1
5
_

U
0
1
.d

g
n

5
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
1

7
:4

5
:4

5
 

A
M

S
n
y
d
e
r

1
:2

V
:\

R
e
f
L
ib
r
a
r
y
\

C
A

D
D

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

W
o
r
k
s
p
a
c
e
\

S
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
s
\

P
r
in
t
in

g
\

P
e
n
_

T
a
b
le
s
\

d
a
t
e
.t

b
l

V
8
iB

W
H
a
lf

W
e
ig

h
t
P

D
F
.p
lt
c
f
g

O
A

K
 P

A
R

K
 B

L
V

D
 S

E
W

E
R
 R

E
P

L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S
, 
IO

W
A

1190115

K
R

N
L

R
B

R
W

S
0
5
/
1
2
/
2
1

1
1
9
0
1
1
5

1
'

U
.1

U.1

S
P

E
C
IA

L
 D

E
T

A
IL

S

U.1

2 SANITARY SEWER CLEANOUT

SCALE:  N.T.S

per plans
Slope as

U.1

3 DRIVEWAY DROP CURB

SCALE:  N.T.S

FORM

GRADE

ELEV.

Varies

"2
1

7

(as specified)

''2
1

1

U.1

1

SCALE:  N.T.S

EXTERNAL DROP CONNECTION FOR SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

6''9''

#4 Bar (Typ.)

2'' Min.

2 4'' Min.

Cap
4 1

(Dimensions Are Nominal)

"8
7

15
"8

7

"8
7

9

"8
7

1

2

3

4
Ferrule With Brass Screw Plug

Threaded Pvc Cap Or Iron Body 

6 Inch PVC Service Pipe

Top Of Riser Pipe.

Do Not Allow Casting To Bear On 

''Sanitary'' Or ''Sanitary C.O.''

With AASHTO M 306.  Mark Lid With 

Standard Duty Casting Complying 

356

Item 31.



1 

PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS 
FOR 

OAK PARK BLVD SEWER REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

Project SA-002-3182 
Cedar Falls, Iowa

ENGINEER'S CERTIFICATION 

I hereby certify that this engineering document was prepared by me or 
under my direct personal supervision and that I am a duly licensed 
professional engineer under the laws of the State of Iowa. 

________________________________________  Date: 05/12/2021 
Lindsay R. Beaman, P.E.      Iowa License No. P19971 
My license renewal date is December 31, 2021 

Pages or sheets covered by this seal: ALL 

357

Item 31.



 

2 
 

 
 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 
    Page Number 
 
TITLE SHEET  1 
 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 2-3 
 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 4 
 
NOTICE TO BIDDERS 5-6 
 
DIVISION 1 – Instruction to Bidders 

01 Definition and Terms 7 
 02 Qualification of the Bidder 7-8 

03 Contents of the Proposal Forms 8 
04 Taxes  8 
05 Submission of the Proposal, Identity of Bidder and Bid Security 8-9 
Form of Proposal 10-13 
Bid Bond  14  
Bidder Status Form 15 
Authorization to transact business 16 
Non-Collusion Affidavit of Prime Bidder 17 
Form of Contract 18-19 

 Performance, Payment and Maintenance Bond 20-23 
 
DIVISION 2 – Special Provisions 

01 Award of Contract 24 
02 Availability of Site 24 
03 Protection of Line and Grade Stakes 24 
04 Borrow and Waste Sites 24 
05 Subletting or Assignment of Contract 25 
06 Contract Time 25 
07 Work Progress and Schedule 25 
08 Weekly record of Working Days 25 
09 Liquidated Damages 25 
10 Progress Payments and Vouchers 26 
11 Pollution Prevention Plan 26-27 
12 Method of Measurement 27 
13 Basis of Payment                                                                              27 

358

Item 31.



 

3 
 

DIVISION 3 – Standard Specifications 
The City of Cedar Falls has adopted the 2021 Edition of the STATEWIDE URBAN 
STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS (SUDAS) as the 
City’s Standard Specification. 
 
This Standard Specification is amended by the “City of Cedar Falls” Supplemental 
Specifications to the 2021 Edition of SUDAS.  

 
 Links to both documents can be found on the City’s website at: 
 www.cedarfalls.com/designstandards   28 
 
DIVISION 4 – Supplemental Plans and Specifications 

SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS - BID ITEMS 29-38 

359

Item 31.



 

4 
 

 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, 
FORM OF CONTRACT, AND ESTIMATE OF COST FOR THE  

OAK PARK BLVD SEWER REPLACEMENT PROJECT IN THE 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 
TO ALL TAXPAYERS OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND OTHER PERSONS 
INTERESTED: 
 

Public notice is hereby given that the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

will conduct a Public Hearing on Plans, Specifications, Form of Contract, and Estimated 

Total Cost for the construction of the OAK PARK BLVD SEWER REPLACEMENT 

PROJECT in said City at 7:00 p.m. on the 7th day of June 2021, said meeting to be held in 

the Council Chambers in the City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

Said Plans, Specifications, Form of Contract, and Estimated Total Cost are now on 

file in the office of the City Clerk in the City Hall in Cedar Falls, Iowa, and may be inspected 

by any persons interested. 

Any person interested may appear at said meeting of the City Council for the 

purpose of making objections to said Plans, Specifications, Contract, or Estimated Total 

Cost of making said improvement. 

This notice given by order of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

   City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

    By: _______________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC  

City Clerk 

360

Item 31.



 

5 
 

NOTICE TO BIDDERS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

OAK PARK BLVD SEWER REPLACEMENT PROJECT 
 

Time and Place for Filing Sealed Proposals: Sealed proposals will only be accepted electronically on 
the Quest CDN website before 2:00 p.m. on the 11th day of June 2021. 
 
Time and Place Sealed Proposals will be Opened and Considered: Sealed proposals will be publicly 
opened online at 2:00 p.m. on the 11th day of June 2021 at www.questcdn.com, for consideration by 
the City of Cedar Falls City Council at its meeting at 7:00 PM on the 21st day of June 2021 or at 
such later time and place as may be fixed. The City of Cedar Falls reserves the right to reject any 
and all proposals including without limitation, nonconforming, nonresponsive, unbalanced, or 
conditional bids.  
 
Time for Commencement and Completion of Work: The work under the proposed contract shall 
commence within ten (10) calendar days after the date set forth in the written Notice to Proceed and 
shall be performed regularly and diligently throughout the duration of the project. All work shall be 
completed within One Hundred Twenty  (120) calendar days. Calendar days will be accumulated 
concurrently from the date set forth in the written Notice to Proceed. 
 
Bid Security: Each Form of Proposal shall be accompanied by a bid security as defined in the 
Instructions to Bidders- Division 1 Section 05. A scanned copy of the Bid Bond must be included 
with the online bid submitted at www.questcdn.com. 
 
Performance and Payment Bonds:  The successful Bidder shall furnish to the City a performance 
bond in an amount equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the contract price, guaranteeing faithful 
performance of the contract and guaranteeing the completed project against defective workmanship 
and materials for a period of two (2) years from and after completion and acceptance by the City.  
The successful Bidder shall also provide a payment bond in an amount equal to one hundred 
percent (100%) of the contract price guaranteeing payment of all persons supplying labor and 
materials, or both, in the execution of the work provided for in the contract. 
 
Contract Documents: The contract documents are available at www.cedarfalls.com/QuestCDN and 
www.questCDN.com. This contract is QuestCDN project number #7808596. A contractor may view 
the contract documents at no cost prior to deciding to become a Planholder. To be considered a 
Planholder for bids, a contractor must register with QuestCDN.com. Registering as a planholder is 
recommended for all prime contractors and subcontractors as Planholders will receive automatic 
notice of addenda and other contract document updates via QuestCDN. Contact QuestCDN 
Customer Support at (952) 233-1632 or info@questcdn.com for assistance in membership 
registration, downloading digital project information and vBid online bid submittal questions. Bids will 
only be received and accepted via the online electronic bid service through QuestCDN.com. To 
access the electronic bid form, download the project documents and click on the online bid button at 
the top of the bid advertisement page. Prospective bidders must be on the Planholder list through 
QuestCDN for bids to be accepted. 
 
If any prospective bidder is in doubt as to the true meaning of any parts of the contract documents, 
the bidder may request an interpretation from the Engineer, in writing, through email.  Questions 
received less than five (5) days prior to the date for opening bids may not be answered. 
 
 
 

361

Item 31.



 

6 
 

Contact individuals shall be as follows: 
 
Lindsay Beaman, P.E. 
Snyder & Associates, Inc. 
5005 Bowling St. SW, Suite A 
Cedar Rapids, IA 52404 
lbeaman@snyder-associates.com 
 
 
Any interpretation of the contract documents will be made in writing and only by addendum with 
online notification given to bidders.  Only questions answered by Addenda will be binding.  Oral and 
other interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect.  Addenda may be issued to clarify, 
correct or change the contract documents as deemed advisable by the City of Cedar Falls or the 
Engineer of record. 
 
Preference for Iowa Products and Labor:  By virtue of statutory authority, a preference will be given 
to products and provisions grown and coal produced within the State of Iowa. 
 
In accordance with Iowa statutes, a resident bidder shall be allowed a preference as against a 
nonresident bidder from a state or foreign country if that state or foreign country gives or requires 
any preference to bidders from that state or foreign country, including but not limited to any 
preference to bidders, the imposition of any type of labor force preference, or any other form of 
preferential treatment to bidders or laborers from that state or foreign country. The preference 
allowed shall be equal to the preference given or required by the state or foreign country in which 
the nonresident bidder is a resident. In the instance of a resident labor force preference, a 
nonresident bidder shall apply the same resident labor force preference to a public improvement in 
this state as would be required in the construction of a public improvement by the state or foreign 
country in which the nonresident bidder is a resident. 
 
Failure to submit a fully completed Bidder Status Form with the bid may result in the bid being 
deemed nonresponsive and rejected. 
 
Sales Tax: Contractors and approved subcontractors will be provided a Sales Tax Exemption 
Certification to purchase building materials, supplies or equipment to be used in the performance of 
this project. Products utilized in the construction of this project shall be exempt from tax as provided 
by Code of Iowa Sections 423.2 and 423.45. 
 
Project Description: This project involves the removal and replacement of approximately 750 LF of 
8” sanitary sewer adjacent to Minnetonka Drive, including 285 LF of trenchless installation. The 
project includes manhole installation, sanitary sewer service reconnection, pavement removal and 
replacement, plantings, and sodding. The project will be located on City, residential, and railroad 
right-of-way.  
 
Published upon order of the City Council of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
   CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
   BY: __________________________ 
          Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC 
           City Clerk 

362

Item 31.



 

7 
 

 
DIVISION I – Instructions to Bidders 

 
The work comprising the Oak Park Blvd Sewer Replacement Project shall be constructed in 
accordance with the 2021 Edition of the SUDAS and as further modified by the City of Cedar 
Falls’ Supplemental Specifications and the special provision included in the contract 
documents. The terms used in the contract revision of the documents are defined in said 
Standard Specifications. 
 
Before submitting your bid, please review the requirements of “Division One, General 
Provisions and Covenants”, in particular the sections regarding proposal requirements, 
bonding, contract execution, and insurance requirements.  Please be certain that all 
documents have been completed properly; as failure to complete and sign all documents and 
to comply with the requirements listed below can cause your bid not to be read. 
 
01 Definition and Terms 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1010 – 1.03: 
 
Code of Iowa: The latest edition of the Code of Iowa 
 
Engineer: The City Engineer of Cedar Falls, Iowa or an authorized representative. 
 
Owner: The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa acting through its City Council. 
 
Project: OAK PARK BLVD SEWER REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

Project No. SA-002-3182 
 
02 Qualification of the Bidder 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.01: 
 
To demonstrate bidder’s qualifications to perform the work, within five days of the Owners 
request, bidder shall submit written evidence such as may be called for below: 
 
The address and description of the bidder’s place of business; The number of years 
engaged in the contracting business under the present firm name, and the name of the 
state where incorporated; A list of the property and equipment available to the bidder to 
evaluate if the bidder can complete the work in accordance with the bidding documents; A 
financial statement of the bidder showing that the bidder has the financial resources to 
meet all obligations incidental to the work; The bidder’s performance record giving the 
description, location, and telephone number of similar projects constructed in a satisfactory 
manner by the bidder; A list of projects presently under contract, the approximate contract 
amount and the percent of completion of each; A list of contracts which resulted in 
lawsuits; A list of contracts defaulted; A statement of the bidder indicating whether or not 
the bidder has ever filed bankruptcy while performing work of a like nature or magnitude;  A 

363

Item 31.



 

8 
 

list of officers of the firm who, while in the employ of the firm or the employ of previous 
firms, were associated with contracts which resulted in lawsuits, contracts defaulted or filed 
for bankruptcy; The technical experience of personnel guaranteed to be employed in 
responsible charge of the work stating whether the personnel have or have not performed 
satisfactorily on other contracts of like nature and magnitude or comparable difficulty at 
similar rate of progress; Such additional information as will assist the Owner in determining 
whether the bidder is adequately prepared to fulfill the contract. Owner’s decision as to 
qualifications of the bidder will be final. 
 
The Owner hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that in any contract 
entered into pursuant to this advertisement, disadvantaged business enterprises will be 
afforded full opportunity to submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be 
discriminated against on the grounds of race, color or national origin in consideration for an 
award. 
 
03 Contents of the Proposal Forms 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.02: 
 
Plans, specifications, and proposal forms may be obtained from the office of the City 
Engineer. Plans, specifications, and proposal forms have been approved by the City 
Council and are now on file for public examination in the office of the City Clerk. 
 
04 Taxes 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.08: 
 
Contractors and approved subcontractors will be provided a Sales Tax Exemption 
Certification to purchase building materials, supplies or equipment to be used in the 
performance of this project. Products utilized in the construction of this project will be 
exempt from tax as provided by Code of Iowa Sections 423.2 and 423.45. 
 
05 Submission of the Proposal, Identity of Bidder and Bid Security 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.12: 
 
The bid security must be in the minimum amount of 10% of the total bid amount including all 
add alternates (do not deduct the amount of deduct alternates). The bid security shall be in 
the form of a cashier's check or certified check drawn on a state-chartered or federally 
chartered bank, or a certified share draft drawn on a state-chartered or federally chartered 
credit union, or a bidder's bond with corporate surety satisfactory to the City. The bid bond 
must be submitted on the enclosed Bid Bond form, as no other bid bond forms are 
acceptable.  All signatures on the bid bond must be original signatures in ink; facsimile (fax) 
of any signature on the bid bond is not acceptable.  Bid security other than said bid bond 
shall be made payable to City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls”. 
 
 

364

Item 31.



 

9 
 

 
“Miscellaneous Bank checks”, as well as “Money Orders” and “Traveler’s Checks” issued by 
persons, firms or corporations licensed under Code of Iowa Chapter 533B are not acceptable 
bid security. 
 
The bid shall be submitted on the Form of Proposal included herewith or on a computer 
printed proposal. All entries on this proposal shall be filled in ink, typed or computer printed. 
The bidder shall not alter the quantity, unit price or the extension that has been provided 
for items that have been predetermined by the contracting authority. 
 
If the proposal is computer generated, the bidder shall submit a form titled as “Form of 
Proposal,” followed by: the project name, project number, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa and 
the bidder's name. The form shall then include the item numbers, item descriptions, and 
units and their quantities. The bidder shall specify a unit price in figures of dollars and 
cents for all pay items, the extensions for the respective unit prices and quantities in figures 
in a column provided for the purpose, and the total amount of the proposal obtained by 
adding the amounts of the several items. The form shall then conclude with the bidder's 
name, that of its representative and the representative's signature. 
 
The computer generated proposal then is to be attached to the Form of Proposal included 
herewith, which has the following entries completed: bid security sum and form, the name 
of the bidder and its official address, and the bidder's representative's name, signature, 
and title. Also the total bid shall be completed with the entry of "see attached." 
 
The proposal shall be submitted in a sealed envelope separate from the bid security, 
bidders status form and non-collusion Affidavit. The envelope shall bear the return address 
of the bidder and shall be addressed as follows: 
 

To: City Clerk 
City of Cedar Falls 
City Hall 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

 
Proposal for: OAK PARK BLVD SEWER REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

Project No. SA-002-3182 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

365

Item 31.



 

10 
 

 
FORM OF PROPOSAL 

OAK PARK BLVD SEWER REPLACEMENT PROJECT 
PROJECT NO. SA-002-3182 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 

 
To the Mayor and City Council 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 
The undersigned hereby certifies that __________________________ have personally 

and carefully examined the specifications, general conditions, and form of contract 

annexed hereto. Having made such examination, the undersigned hereby proposes to 

construct the improvements for the OAK PARK BLVD SEWER REPLACEMENT 

PROJECT in accordance with the plans and specifications on file in the office of the City 

Clerk, the published Notice to Bidders and the Form of Contract, herewith, complying with 

all the laws of the State of Iowa, and the Rules, Regulations and Ordinances of the City of 

Cedar Falls, and to the satisfaction of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

including the guaranteeing of this Project for a period of two (2) years from the date of final 

acceptance thereof at the following prices, to-wit: 

 
 

BID 
ITEM # DESCRIPTION UNITS QUANTITY UNIT PRICE 

EXTENDED 
PRICE 

1 Clearing and Grubbing LS 1     

2 Topsoil, On-site CY 242     

3 Excavation, Class 13 CY 67     

4 Subgrade Preparation SY 455     

5 Subbase, 12" Modified SY 69     

6 Removal of Structure EA 4   

7 Compaction Testing LS 1   

8 Trench Foundation TON 59   

366

Item 31.



 

11 
 

BID 
ITEM # DESCRIPTION UNITS QUANTITY UNIT PRICE 

EXTENDED 
PRICE 

9 
Replacement of Unsuitable Backfill 
Material CY 103   

10 Trench Compaction Testing LS 1   

11 
Sanitary Sewer Gravity Main, 
Trenched, PVC, SDR 26, 8" LF 560   

12 

Sanitary Sewer Gravity Main, 
Trenchless, PVC, AWWA C900 SDR 
18, 8" LF 284   

13 
Sanitary Sewer Service Stub, PVC, 
SDR 23.5, 4" LF 78   

14 
Removal of Sanitary Sewer, All Types 
and Sizes LF 714   

15 Sanitary Sewer Cleanout EA 2   

16 
Sanitary Sewer Abandonment, Fill 
and Plug LF 49   

17 Storm Sewer, Trenched, RCP, 21" LF 48   

18 Removal of Storm Sewer, RCP, 21" LF 48   

19 Subdrain, Type 1, 6" LF 20   

20 Manhole, SW-301, 48" EA 1   

21 Manhole, SW-301, 60" EA 3   

22 Manhole, SW-303, 60" EA 1   

23 External Drop Connection EA 2   

24 Remove Manhole EA 4   

25 Pavement, PCC,  7" SY 69   

26 Removal of Sidewalk SY 178   

27 Removal of Driveway SY 204   

28 Sidewalk, PCC, 4" SY 182   

29 Driveway, Paved, PCC, 6" SY 203   

30 Subbase Over-excavation TON 143   

31 Pavement Removal SY 69   

32 Temporary Traffic Control LS 1   

33 
Hydraulic Seeding, Seeding, 
Fertilizing, and Mulching, Slope Mix AC 0.3   

34 Sod SQ 167   

35 Plants, Trees EA 5   

36 SWPPP Management LS 1   

367

Item 31.



 

12 
 

BID 
ITEM # DESCRIPTION UNITS QUANTITY UNIT PRICE 

EXTENDED 
PRICE 

37 Filter Sock, 12" LF 1362   

38 Filter Sock, Removal LF 1362   

39 Temporary RECP, Type 4 SY 1000   

40 Stabilized Construction Entrance SY 133   

41 Inlet Protection Device, Filter Sock EA 2   

42 Inlet Protection Device, Maintenance EA 2   

43 Mobilization  LS 1   

44 Maintenance of Postal Service LS 1   

45 
Maintenance of Solid Waste 
Collection LS 1   

46 
Temporary Pedestrian Residential 
Access SY 176   

47 Concrete Washout LS 1   

48 Railroad Requirements LS 1   
 

TOTAL BID  
 
Bidders may not independently bid on selective items of work. In this project, all items 
constitute one indivisible work that will be let to one bidder. A unit price shall be submitted 
for each of the items (Items 1-50). The successful bidder will be determined by evaluating 
the Total Bid shown above. Failure to submit a bid on any item shall be just cause for 
disqualification of the entire proposal. Unit bids must be filled in ink, typed or computer 
generated, or the bid will be rejected. The Owner reserves the right to delete any part or all 
of any item. 
 

The Owner reserves the right to reject any and all bids, including without limitation, 
nonconforming, nonresponsive, unbalanced, or conditional bids. The Owner further 
reserves the right to reject the bid of any bidder whom it finds, after reasonable inquiry and 
evaluation, to be non-responsible. The Owner may also reject the bid of any bidder if the 
Owner believes that it would not be in the best interest of the project to make an award to 
that bidder. The Owner also reserves the right to waive all informalities not involving price, 
time or changes in the work. 
 

If written notice of approval of award is mailed, telegraphed or delivered to the undersigned 
within thirty (30) calendar days after the opening thereof, or any time thereafter before this 
bid is withdrawn, the undersigned agrees to execute and deliver an agreement in the 
prescribed form and furnish the required bond within ten (10) calendar days after the 
Contract is presented to the Contractor for signature, and start work within ten (10) 
calendar days after the date as set forth in the written Notice to Proceed. 
 

368

Item 31.



 

13 
 

Bid Security in the sum of _________________________________ in the form of 
__________________________________, is submitted herewith in accordance with the 
Instructions to Bidders. 
 

The bidder is prepared to submit a financial and experience statement upon request. 
 

The bidder has received the following Addendum or Addenda: 
 

Addendum No.  ______________     Date _____________ 
  ______________ _____________ 
 

The bidder has filled in all blanks on this Proposal. 
 

Note: The Penalty for making false statements in offers is prescribed in 18 U.S.A., Section 
1001. 
 
Name of bidder 
________________________________  _____________________________ 

   By 
________________________________  _____________________________  
Official Address   Title  

369

Item 31.



 

14 
 

BID BOND 
 

 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that we, ___________________________________________ 
__________________________, as Principal, and ___________________________________________ 
as Surety are held and firmly bound unto the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, as Obligee, hereinafter called "OBLIGEE," In the 
penal sum of______________________________________ Dollars ($______________) lawful money of the United 
States, for the payment of which sum will and truly be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, and 
successors, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. Whereas the Principal has submitted the accompanying bid 
dated the _______ day of_______________________, 20_____, for ______________________________________ 
____________________________________________________________________________________. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, 
 
(a) If said Bid shall be rejected, or in the alternate, 
 
(b) If said Bid shall be accepted and the Principal shall execute and deliver a contract in the form specified and shall 

furnish a bond for the faithful performance of said contract, and for the payment of all persons performing labor 
or furnishing materials in connection therewith, and shall in all other respects perform the agreement created by 
the acceptance of said Bid, 

 
Then this obligation shall be void, otherwise the same shall remain in force and effect; it being expressly understood and 
agreed that the liability of the Surety for any and all claims hereunder shall, in no event, exceed the penal amount of this 
obligation as herein stated. 
 
By virtue of statutory authority, the full amount of this bid bond shall be forfeited to the Obligee in liquidation of damages 
sustained in the event that the Principal fails to execute the contract and provide the bond as provided in the 
specifications or by law. 
 
The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that the obligations of said Surety and its bond shall be in 
no way impaired or affected by any extension of the time within which the Obligee may accept such Bid or execute such 
contract; and said Surety does hereby waive notice of any such extension. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Principal and the Surety, have hereunto set their hands and seals, and such of them as 
are corporations, have caused their corporate seals to be hereto affixed and these presents to be signed by their proper 
officers this ______ day of ____________________, A.D., 20_____. 
 
 
 

_________________________________ (Seal) 
Principal 

 
 
_______________________________________ By_______________________________ (Title) 
Witness 

_________________________________ (Seal) 
Surety 

 
_______________________________________ By____________________________________ 
Witness                                  Attorney-in-fact 

370

Item 31.



 

15 
 

 

371

Item 31.



 

16 
 

372

Item 31.



 

17 
 

                 NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT OF PRIME BIDDER           
 PROJECT NO. RC-000-3153 

 
STATE OF _______________________  

                           ss 
COUNTY OF _____________________ 
 
 
__________________________________, being first duly sworn, deposes and says that: 
 
(1)  We are _______________________________________________________ of ______________       
     (Owner, partner, officer, representative, or agent) 
 
_____________________________, the Bidder that has submitted the attached bid: 
 
(2)  We are fully informed respecting the preparation and contents of the attached bid and of all pertinent 
circumstances respecting such bid: 
 
(3)   Such bid is genuine and is not a collusive or sham bid: 
 
(4)  Neither the said Bidder nor any of its officers, partners, Owners, agents, representatives, employees 
or parties in interest, including this affiant, has in any way colluded, conspired, connived or agreed, directly or 
indirectly, with any other Bidder, firm or person to submit a collusive or sham bid in connection with the 
Contract for which the attached bid has been submitted or to refrain from bidding in connection with such 
Contract, or has in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement or collusion or communication or 
conference with any other Bidder, firm or person to fix the price or prices in the attached bid or of any other 
Bidder, or, to fix any overhead, profit or cost element of the bid price of any other Bidder, or to secure through 
any collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or unlawful agreement any advantage against the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, or any person interested in the proposed Contract; and 
 
(5)   The price or prices quoted in the attached bid are fair and proper and are not tainted by a collusion, 
conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement on the part of the Bidder or any of its agents, representatives, 
Owners, employees or parties in interest, including this affiant. 
 
 
 
   __________________________________________ 

Signed      
  __________________________________________ 

    Title 
 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me 
 
this _______ day of ________________, 20_____ 
 
________________________________________ 
 
_________________________________________ 
Title 
 
My Commission expires ______________________. 

373

Item 31.



 

18 
 

 

FORM OF CONTRACT 
 

This Contract entered into in quadruplicate at Cedar Falls, Iowa, this ____ day of 

_________, 2021, by and between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereinafter called the 

Owner, and_____________ of ___________________, hereinafter called the Contractor. 

WITNESSETH: 

The Contractor hereby agrees to furnish all labor, tools, materials and equipment 

and construct the public improvement consisting of: OAK PARK BLVD SEWER 

REPLACEMENT PROJECT, Project No. SA-002-3182 all in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

ordered to be constructed by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, by 

Resolution duly passed on the 18th day of May 2021, and shown and described in the 

Plans and Specifications therefore now on file with the City Clerk of said City. 

Said improvement shall be constructed strictly in accordance with said Plans and 

Specifications. 

The following parts of the Plans and Specifications for said Project No. SA-002-3182 

attached hereto shall be made a part of this contract as fully as though set out herein 

verbatim: 

a. Resolution ordering construction of the improvement 
b. Plans 
c. Notice of Public Hearing on Plans and Specifications 
d. Notice to Bidders 
e. Instructions to Bidders 
f. Supplemental Conditions 
g. General Conditions 
h. Project Specifications 
i. Form of Proposal 
j. Performance, Payment, and Maintenance Bond 
k. Form of Contract 
l. Non-collusion Affidavit of Prime Bidder 

 m. Bidders Status Form 

374

Item 31.



 

19 

 

 
 
In Witness whereof, this Contract has been executed in quadruplicate on the date first  
 
herein written.   
 

 __________________________ 
 Contractor 

 
 
    CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
    By____________________________ 

    Robert M. Green, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: _________________________ 
 Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC 
 City Clerk 

375

Item 31.



 

20 
 

Performance, Payment and Maintenance Bond 
 

SURETY  BOND NO.           
 

 
 KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS: 
  
 That we, __________________________, as Principal (hereinafter the “Contractor” or “Principal” and 
____________________________________________________ as Surety are held and firmly bound unto CITY 
OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, as Obligee (hereinafter referred to as “the Owner”), and to all persons who may be 
injured by any breach of any of the conditions of this Bond in the penal sum of 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
($_______________), lawful money of the United States, for the payment of which sum, well and truly to be 
made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, legal representatives and assigns, jointly or severally, firmly by these presents. 
  
 The conditions of the above obligations are such that whereas said Contractor entered into a contract with the 
Owner, bearing date the _______ day of __________, 2021, hereinafter the “Contract”) wherein said Contractor 
undertakes and agrees to construct the following described improvements: 
 

Oak Park Blvd Sewer Replacement Project 
Wastewater Collection 
Project SA-002-3182 

 
and to faithfully perform all the terms and requirements of said Contract within the time therein specified, in a 
good and workmanlike manner, and in accordance with the Contract Documents.   
 
 
It is expressly understood and agreed by the Contractor and Surety in this bond that the following provisions are a 
part of this Bond and are binding upon said Contractor and Surety, to-wit: 
 
 
1. PERFORMANCE:  The Contractor shall well and faithfully observe, perform, fulfill, and abide by   each 

and every covenant, condition, and part of said Contract and Contract Documents, by reference made a 
part hereof, for the above referenced improvements, and shall indemnify and save harmless the Owner 
from all outlay and expense incurred by the Owner by reason of the Contractor’s default or failure to 
perform as required.  The Contractor shall also be responsible for the default or failure to perform as 
required under the Contract and Contract Documents by all its subcontractors, suppliers, agents, or 
employees furnishing materials or providing labor in the performance of the Contract. 

     
2. PAYMENT:  The Contractor and the Surety on this Bond hereby agreed to pay all just claims submitted 

by persons, firms, subcontractors, and corporations furnishing materials for or performing labor in the 
performance of the Contract on account of which this Bond is given, including but not limited to claims 
for all amounts due for labor, materials, lubricants, oil, gasoline, repairs on machinery, equipment, and 
tools, consumed or used by the Contractor or any subcontractor, wherein the same are not satisfied out of 
the portion of the contract price the Owner is required to retain until completion of the improvement, but 
the Contractor and Surety shall not be liable to said persons, firms, or corporations unless the claims of 
said claimants against said portion of the contract price shall have been established as provided by law.  
The Contractor and Surety hereby bind themselves to the obligations and conditions set forth in Chapter 
573 of the Iowa Code, which by this reference is made a part hereof as though fully set out herein. 

     

376

Item 31.



 

21 
 

3. MAINTENANCE:  The Contractor and the Surety on this Bond hereby agree, at their own expense: 
 

A. To remedy any and all defects that may develop in or result from work to be performed under 
the Contract within the period of   2   year (s) from the date of acceptance of the work 
under the Contract, by reason of defects in workmanship or materials used in construction of 
said work; 

 
   B. To keep all work in continuous good repair; and 
 
   C. To pay the Owner’s reasonable costs of monitoring and inspection to assure that any defects 

are remedied, and to repay the Owner all outlay and expense incurred as a result of 
Contractor’s and Surety’s failure to remedy any defect as required by this section. 

 
Contractor’s and Surety’s agreement herein made extends to defects in 
workmanship or materials not discovered or known to the Owner at the time such 
work was accepted. 

 
4. GENERAL:  Every Surety on this Bond shall be deemed and held bound, any contract to the contrary 

notwithstanding, to the following provisions: 
 

   A. To consent without notice to any extension of time to the Contractor in which to perform the 
Contract; 

 
   B.  To consent without notice to any change in the Contract or Contract Documents, which 

thereby increases the total contract price and the penal sum of this bond, provided that all 
such changes do not, in the aggregate, involve an increase of more than 20% of the total 
contract price, and that this bond shall then be released as to such excess increase; and  

 
    C. To consent without notice that this Bond shall remain in full force and effect until the 

Contract is completed, whether completed within the specified contract period, within an 
extension thereof, or within a period of time after the contract period has elapsed and the 
liquidated damage penalty is being charged against the Contractor. 

 
The Contractor and every Surety on the bond shall be deemed and held bound, any contract to the contrary 
notwithstanding, to the following provisions: 

 

        D. That no provision of this Bond or of any other contract shall be valid that limits to     less 
than five years after the acceptance of the work under the Contract the right to sue on this 
Bond. 

        E. That as used herein, the phrase “all outlay and expense” is not to be limited in any way, but 
shall include the actual and reasonable costs and expenses incurred by the Owner including 
interest, benefits, and overhead where applicable.  Accordingly, “all outlay and expense” 
would include but not be limited to all contract or employee expense, all equipment usage or 
rental, materials, testing, outside experts, attorney’s fees (including overhead expenses of the 
Owner’s staff attorneys), and all costs and expenses of litigation as they are incurred by the 
Owner.  It is intended the Contractor and Surety will defend and indemnify the Owner on all 
claims made against the Owner on account of Contractor’s failure to perform as required in 
the Contract and Contract Documents, that all agreements and promises set forth in the 
Contract and Contract Documents, in approved change orders, and in this Bond will be 

377

Item 31.



 

22 
 

fulfilled, and that the Owner will be fully indemnified so that it will be put into the position it 
would have been in had the Contract been performed in the first instance as required. 

     
In the event the Owner incurs any “outlay and expense” in defending itself against any claim as to which 
the Contractor or Surety should have provided the defense, or in the enforcement of the promises given by 
the Contractor in the Contract, Contract Documents, or approved change orders, or in the enforcement of 
the promises given by the Contractor and Surety in this Bond, the Contractor and Surety agree that they 
will make the Owner whole for all such outlay and expense, provided that the Surety’s obligation under 
this bond shall not exceed 125% of the penal sum of this bond. 
  
In the event that any actions or proceedings are initiated regarding this Bond, the parties agree that the venue 
thereof shall be in the Iowa District Court for Blackhawk County, State of Iowa.  If legal action is required by the 
Owner to enforce the provisions of this Bond or to collect the monetary obligation incurring to the benefit of the 
Owner, the Contractor and the Surety agree, jointly, and severally, to pay the Owner all outlay and expense 
incurred therefor by the Owner.  All rights, powers, and remedies of the Owner hereunder shall be cumulative and 
not alternative and shall be in addition to all rights, powers, and remedies given to the Owner, by law.  The Owner 
may proceed against surety for any amount guaranteed hereunder whether action is brought against the Contractor 
or whether Contractor is joined in any such action(s) or not. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the condition of this obligation is such that if said Principal shall faithfully perform all the 
promises of the Principal, as set forth and provided in the Contract, in the Contract Documents, and in this Bond, 
then this obligation shall be null and void, otherwise it shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
When a work, term, or phrase is used in this Bond, it shall be interpreted or construed first as defined in this Bond, 
the Contract, or the Contract Documents; second, if not defined in the Bond, Contract, or Contract Documents, it 
shall be interpreted or construed as defined in applicable provisions of the Iowa Code; third, if not defined in the 
Iowa Code, it shall be interpreted or construed according to its generally accepted meaning in the construction 
industry; and fourth, if it has no generally accepted meaning in the construction industry, it shall be interpreted or 
construed according to its common or customary usage. 
 
Failure to specify or particularize shall not exclude terms or provisions not mentioned and shall not limit liability 
hereunder.  The Contract and Contract Documents are hereby made a part of this Bond. 
 
 

378

Item 31.



 

23 
 

         Project No. SA-002-3182 
 

Witness our hands, in triplicate, this _______ day of ____________, 2021. 
 
  Surety Countersigned By:                                PRINCIPAL: 
 
     ___________________________________                   _________________________________ 
      Signature of Agent                   Contractor 
  
 
 By:    _________________________________  
                                         Signature 
     ___________________________________                   _________________________________          
                    Printed Name of Agent                   Title 
 
 ___________________________________  SURETY: 
                                 Company Name           
 
 ___________________________________                   _________________________________ 
                          Company Address                                       Surety Company 
 
 ___________________________________      By:      _________________________________ 
                        City, State, Zip Code                                             Signature Attorney-in-Fact Officer 
 
 ______________________________________    ____________________________________ 
                     Company Telephone Number                                 Printed Name of Attorney-in-Fact Officer 
 
                                                                                            _________________________________ 
                                 Company Name 
 
                                                                                         _________________________________ 
                                                          Company Address 

  FORM APPROVED BY:  
                                                                                                             _________________________________ 
                      City, State, Zip Code 
 
 ________________________________________________    _____________________________________________ 
                             Attorney for Owner                                                              Company Telephone Number 
 
 

 
NOTE: 
  
 1. All signatures on this performance, payment, and maintenance bond must be original signatures in 

ink; copies, facsimile, or electronic signatures will not be accepted. 
 2.  This bond must be sealed with the Surety’s raised, embossing seal. 
 3. The Certificate or Power of Attorney accompanying this bond must be valid on its face and sealed 

with the Surety’s raised, embossing seal. 
 4. The name and signature of the Surety’s Attorney-in-Fact/Officer entered on this bond must be 

exactly as listed on the Certificate or Power of Attorney accompanying this bond. 
 

379

Item 31.



 

24 
 

DIVISION 2 – Special Provisions 
 
Special Provisions are intended to amend or supplement the General Provisions and 
Covenants of the SUDAS Standard Specifications. All sections that are not amended or 
supplemented remain in full force and effect. 
 
01 Award of Contract 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1030 – 1.03: 
 
The lowest responsive bidder shall be required to furnish a performance, payment and 
maintenance bond in the sum equal to one hundred (100%) percent of the total bid. The 
maintenance bond shall guarantee the maintenance of the improvements for a period of 
two (2) years from and after its completion and acceptance by the City of Cedar Falls. 
 
02 Availability of Site 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1050 – 1.04: 
 
During construction of this project, the Contractor shall be required to coordinate all 
operations with those of other Contractors working within the same area of the following 
projects and/or events: 
 

1) None identified 
 
03 Protection of Line and Grade Stakes 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1050 – 1.10: 
 
The Contractor shall notify the Engineer at least 48 hours prior to the need for survey 
stakes. One set of survey stakes will be provided for each operation. The Contractor shall 
be responsible for preserving survey stakes and marks and if any survey stakes or marks 
are destroyed or disturbed by the Contractor due to construction, the Contractor will be 
charged for the cost of replacing them. 
 
04 Borrow and Waste Sites 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1070 – 2.13: 
 
It shall be the Contractor's responsibility to provide waste areas or disposal sites for excess 
material which is not desirable to be incorporated in the work involved on this project 
(excavation or broken concrete). No payment for overhaul will be allowed for material 
hauled to these sites. The Engineer shall review all proposed disposal sites and determine 
the acceptability of each. Overhaul will not be measured or paid for but will be considered 
incidental to pavement removal or roadway excavation on this project. 
 
 

380

Item 31.



 

25 
 

05 Subletting or Assignment of Contract 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.01: 
 
The Contractor's own organization shall perform work amounting to not less than thirty five 
(35%) percent of the total contract cost unless otherwise specified. Item designated as a 
specialty item may be performed by subcontract, and the cost of any such specialty item as 
performed by subcontract may be deducted from the total cost before computing the 
amount of work required by the Contractor's organization.  
 
06 Contract Time 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.02: 
 
The work on the Contract shall commence ten calendar days after the date set forth in the 
written Notice to Proceed and shall be completed within One Hundred Twenty  (120) 
calendar days as set forth in the written Notice to Proceed. 
 
07 Work Progress and Schedule 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.03: 
 
The progress of the work shall be such that at the expiration of one-fourth of the calendar 
days, one-eighth of the work shall be completed; at the expiration of one-half of the 
calendar days, three-eighths of the work shall be completed; at the expiration of three-
fourths of the calendar days, the work shall be three-fourths completed, and the whole 
work shall be completed at the expiration of the calendar days. 
 
08 Weekly Record of Working Days 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.06: 
 
Work shall not begin before 7:00 a.m. and shall stop at sunset.  
 
09 Liquidated Damages 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.12: 
 
Liquidated damages in the amount of One Thousand  ($1000.00) dollars per calendar day 
will be assessed for each calendar day that the work remains uncompleted after the 
expiration of the contract time. 
 
 
 
 
 

381

Item 31.



 

26 
 

10 Progress Payments and Vouchers 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1090 – 1.01: 
 
Pay estimates will be submitted to the City Council for approval on the First and Third 
Mondays of each month. 
 
Payment to the Contractor will be made in cash from such cash funds of said City as may 
be legally used for said purposes, including the proceeds of the Local Option Tax and 
General Obligation Bonds. Any other combination of funds may be used at the discretion of 
the City Council. 
 
Before final payment is made, the Contractor shall furnish vouchers showing that all 
subcontractors and all persons furnishing labor and materials have been fully paid for such 
materials and labor and that the City may retain the last month's payment for a period of 
ninety (90) calendar days following such completion and approval, unless satisfied that 
material and laborers have been paid in full. 
 
11 Pollution Prevention Plan 
 
1. Site Description 
 
The proposed Oak Park Blvd Sewer Replacement Project involves the removal and 
replacement of approximately 750 LF of 8” sanitary sewer adjacent to Minnetonka Drive, 
including 285 LF of trenchless installation. The project includes manhole installation, 
sanitary sewer service reconnection, pavement removal and replacement, plantings, and 
sodding. The project will be located on City, residential, and railroad right-of-way. 
 
Access to the site shall be from Minnetonka Drive. 
 
2. Erosion and Sediment Controls 
 
Construction activities that disturb soils are shown in the project plan set. The primary 
means of controlling silt movement during construction is by minimizing the exposure of 
subgrade soils by way of a designated staging plan. In addition, sediment filters shall be 
installed on intake wells in sump locations and at the low point of the construction stage. 
Sediment filters shall also be placed on intake openings until the areas between the back 
of curb and the existing undisturbed grass are sodded or have established growth from 
seeding. Silt dams shall be installed at the low point of a construction stage where 
necessary to prevent silt from migrating off site.  
 
Stabilizing of all disturbed areas shall be by sodding or seeding as shown in the Project 
plan as soon as practical after completion of the backfilling of the curbs and/or the 
placement of the topsoil. The Contractor shall be responsible for installation and 
maintenance of all erosion control measures as described in the Project plan. The 
Contractor may elect to delegate portions of these tasks to subcontractors. 

382

Item 31.



 

27 
 

 
All contractors operating on the site shall take efforts to prevent contamination of storm 
water runoff, groundwater and soils by hazardous material and/or pollutants caused by 
work operations or encountered in their work. All waste building materials and supplies 
must be removed from the site. If construction equipment maintenance or repair is 
performed on the site, provisions must be made to capture and remove any lubricants or 
other fluids. 
 
The Contractor shall notify the Owner immediately upon finding a hazardous material 
contamination either existing at the site or caused by construction activities. 
 
Each and every Contractor shall be responsible to the Owner to: 
 1. Conduct all activities to not damage an existing erosion control measure or 

stabilizing vegetation.  If damages occur, the Contractor shall make repairs 
with no additional cost to the Owner. 

 2. Coordinate with the Owner for installation of additional erosion control 
measures that may be needed during construction. 

 
3. Storm Water Management 
 
Storm water shall be routed by means of concrete curb intakes and storm sewer. Concrete 
and plastic pipes shall be used to channel water from curb intakes to the existing main 
storm sewer pipes. The storm sewer pipes will range in size up to 48-inch diameter.  
Longitudinal sub-drains shall be included behind the curb line on both sides of the street. 
The sub-drains shall tie into the concrete curb intakes. The storm water collection system 
was designed for the 5-year storm water event in accordance with local design standards. 
Temporary sediment basins were not incorporated because of the limited area exposed in 
each stage of street construction. Sediment filters shall be incorporated in specific intakes 
to serve as sediment control structures during each stage. Storm water runoff volumes will 
not change as a result of the street construction project, but storm water runoff shall be 
managed during construction to minimize erosion. 
 
12        METHOD OF MEASUREMENT 
 
The Engineer will measure the items of work that have been acceptably constructed as 
specified in the contract documents for the Oak Park Blvd Sewer Replacement Project in 
accordance with the 2021 Edition of the SUDAS and as further modified by the City of Cedar 
Falls’ Supplemental Specifications. 
 
13 BASIS OF PAYMENT 
 
Payment for the items listed in the Method of Measurement shall be determined by 
multiplying the item quantity (as determined in the Method of Measurement) by the unit 
price as bid on the proposal form in accordance with the 2021 edition of the SUDAS as 
amended by the City of Cedar Falls’ Supplemental Specifications to the 2021 edition of the 
SUDAS. 

383

Item 31.



 

28 
 

DIVISION 3 – Standard Specifications 

 
The City of Cedar Falls has adopted the 2021 Edition of the STATEWIDE URBAN 
STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS (SUDAS) as the City’s 
Standard Specification. 

 
This Standard Specification is amended by the “City of Cedar Falls” Supplemental 
Specifications to the 2021 Edition of SUDAS.  
 
Links to both documents can be found on the City’s website at: 
www.cedarfalls.com/designstandards   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

384

Item 31.



 

29 
 

DIVISION 4 – Supplemental Plans and Specifications 

 
All work shall be constructed as specified in the Contract documents for the Oak Park Blvd 
Sewer Replacement Project in accordance with the 2021 Edition of the SUDAS as 
amended by the City of Cedar Falls’ Supplemental Specifications to the 2021 Edition of the 
SUDAS, except as amended or supplemented as follows: 
 
SECTION 2010: EARTHWORK, SUBGRADE, AND SUBBASE 
 
MODIFY Part 3 – Execution 
 
3.10 STRUCTURE REMOVALS 
 

1. Contractor to remove the existing aerial sanitary sewer crossing structure 
located between Oak Park Blvd. and Minnetonka Dr.  Structure removal 
includes, but is not limited to, the removal of concrete footings, truss beam, 
wooden beam, and protective tarp. 

2. Aerial structure footings shall be removed no deeper than one (1) foot below the 
existing ground elevation. 

3. Contractor to haul and dispose of aerial crossing structure after removal.  
Disposal shall be in accordance with all rules and regulations set forth by the 
City of Cedar Falls and the State of Iowa. 

 
SECTION 3010:  TRENCH EXCAVATION AND BACKFILL 
 
MODIFY Part 1 – General as follows: 
 
1.03 SUBMITTALS 
 

C. Submit a dewatering operation plan including methods and discharge points.  
Select suitable discharge locations to prevent damage or flooding of private or 
public property.  Submit a dewatering plan to the Engineer for review prior to 
construction. 

 
D. Submit a trench sheeting, shoring, and bracing plan prepared by a licensed 

Professional Engineer in the State of Iowa for excavations greater than twenty 
(20) feet in depth.  Submission shall include a drawing indicating materials and 
dimensions of the sheeting, shoring, and bracing materials as well as a plan and 
cross section view of the excavation which the sheeting, shoring, and bracing is 
necessary. 

 
 
 
 

 

385

Item 31.



 

30 
 

ADD Part 1 – General as follows: 
 
1.07 SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS 
 

A. Construction site dewatering may require a variety of permits depending on 
dewatering methods. The Contractor is responsible for obtaining all permits 
necessary to dewater the construction site prior to the beginning of these 
operations (including fee payments).  The Contractor shall be fully liable for all 
fines applied to the project for not acquiring proper permits prior to construction 
or failure to meet the conditions of the permits set forth therein.  The following is 
a partial list of permits and/or requirements that may be necessary: 

  
1. Iowa DNR National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) 

General Permit No. 6 for well construction and well service discharges if 
discharge from well construction reaches waters of the United States of 
America. 
 

2. Iowa DNR General Permit No. 9 
 

1.08 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 
 

 A.  General 
 

1. Hazardous waste disposal including, but not limited to, removal and 
disposal of all hazardous materials from the project site to comply with all 
local, state, and federal law.  A waste is determined to be hazardous if it 
is specifically listed on one of four lists (F, K, P, and U) found in title 40 of 
the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) in Section 261. 

 
SECTION 3020:  TRENCHLESS CONSTRUCTION 
 
ADD Part 1 – General as follows: 
 
1.03 SUBMITTALS 
 

 E.  Provide a contingency plan that includes actions that will be taken in case 
any surface subsidence, subsurface difficulties, above normal groundwater or 
surface water conditions, running sands, or solid rock (including bedrock) 
present themselves. 

 
 F.  Plan showing location and arrangement of the tunneling and receiving pits 

including details on pit construction that illustrate equipment used, installation 
methods, handling of excavated materials, backfilling of pits, and certified 
sheeting and shoring plan prepared by a licensed Professional Engineer in 
the State of Iowa if pit exceeds 20-feet in depth. 

 

386

Item 31.



 

31 
 

1.09 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 
 
 No price adjustment or additional compensation will be made for variations in the 

rate of tunnel production, amount of dewatering, removal of rock (including bed 
rock), debris, cobbles, boulders, or other subterranean objects. 

 
ADD Part 3 – Execution as follows: 
 
3.04 TRENCHLESS INSTALLATION 
 

E.  Should a solid rock face, debris, or boulder(s) be encountered the Contractor 
shall notify the Engineer of the conditions encountered immediately. 

 
SECTION 4010:  SANITARY SEWERS 
 
MODIFY Part 1 – General as follows: 
 
1.08 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 
 
 A.  Sanitary Sewer Gravity Main: 
 

1. Trenched: 
 

 c. Includes:  Unit price includes, but is not limited to, furnishing and 
installing pipe; trench excavation, dewatering, furnishing bedding 
material, placing bedding and backfilling material, wyes and other 
fittings, pipe joints, pipe connections, testing, bypass pumping and 
inspection. 

 
2. Trenchless: 

 
   c. Includes:  Unit price includes, but is not limited to, furnishing and 

installing pipe; trenchless installation materials and equipment, pit 
excavation, dewatering, and placing backfill material; pipe connections; 
bypass pumping; testing; and inspection. 

 
ADD Part 3 – Execution as follows: 
 
3.14 BYPASS PUMPING 
 
  Comply with bypass pumping per Section 4050 3.02. 
 
 
 
 
 

387

Item 31.



 

32 
 

SECTION 0000:  MISCELLANEOUS 
 
ADD Part 1 – General as follows: 
 
1.01 SECTION INCLUDES 

 
Section includes the requirements for working in Chicago Central and Pacific 
Railroad right-of-way, also known as Canadian National Railroad, in Cedar Falls, 
Iowa. 

 
1.02 DESCRIPTION OF WORK 

 
Contractor shall be responsible for obtaining all necessary permitting, 
documentation, insurance, and training required by the Canadian National 
railroad. 

 
1.03 SUBMITTALS 

 
All permits and agreements received by the Contractor from the Canadian 
National Railroad shall be submitted to the Engineer and the Owner. 

 
1.04 SUBSTITUTIONS 

 
Comply with Division 1 – General Provisions and Covenants. 

 
1.05 DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING 

 
Comply with Division 1 – General Provisions and Covenants. 

 
1.06 SCHEDULING AND CONFLICTS 

 
Comply with Division 1 – General Provisions and Covenants. 

 
1.07 SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS 
 

A.  Utility Crossing/Encroachment Permit 
Contractor shall be responsible for obtaining a Utility Crossing/Encroachment 
permit from the Chicago Central and Pacific Railroad which will require the 
development of a certified shoring plan. 
   

B.  Right-of-Entry License 
Contractor shall be responsible for obtaining a Right-of-Entry License from 
the Canadian National Railroad. 

 
 
 

388

Item 31.



 

33 
 

C.  Insurance 
Canadian National Railroad allows outside parties to come onto Canadian 
National Railroad property to perform work, such as survey or inspection 
work, installation of pipelines and wirelines, and other work for projects 
necessitating the occupancy of Railroad Company. Before commencing work, 
and until the license of allowing such occupancy ends or is terminated, 
outside parties shall provide and maintain the following insurance in form and 
amount with companies satisfactory to and as approved by Railroad 
Company. 

 
1. Minimum insurance required of outside party: 

 
a) Statutory Workers’ Compensation and Employers’ Liability 

Insurance. 
b) Automobile Liability Insurance in an amount not less than 

$1,000,000 combined single limit. 
c) Commercial General Liability Insurance (Occurrence Form) in an 

amount not less than $5,000,000 per occurrence, with an 
aggregate limit of not less than $10,000,000. The policy must 
name Canadian National Railroad and its Parents as additional 
insureds in the following form: 

 
Chicago Central and Pacific Railroad Company and its 
Parents 
Attn: Nick Burwell 
1006 East 4th Street 
Waterloo, Iowa 50703 

 
The policy must remove any provisions excluding coverage for 
injury, loss or damage arising out of or resulting from doing 
business or undertaking construction or demolition on, near, or 
adjacent to railroad track or facilities using endorsement CG 
2417 10 01 or equivalent approved by Railroad Company. 

 
d) When outside party is required by Canadian National Railroad or 

Governing Authority to purchase Railroad Protective Liability 
Insurance to cover work on, near or adjacent to railroad track or 
facilities, and outside party is not being hired for this project by 
Railroad Company, outside party must procure Railroad 
Protective Liability Insurance in the following form: 

 
This coverage shall be written on an Occurrence Form with limits 
of not less than $5,000,000 per occurrence for Bodily Injury, 
Personal Injury and Physical Damage to Property, with an 
aggregate limit of not less than $10,000,000. The policy must 
name: 

389

Item 31.



 

34 
 

 
Chicago Central and Pacific Railroad Company and its 
Parents 
Attn: Nick Burwell 
1006 East 4th Street 
Waterloo, Iowa 50703 

 
e) In the event the privileges provided herein to Applicant involve 

any work that could result in the discharge, spillage, disposal, 
release or escape of any Hazardous Material or petroleum 
product onto the Railroad Company’s property, Applicant shall 
purchase and maintain in effect at all times during the term of 
this License a Contractor’s Pollution Liability policy in an amount 
not less than two million dollars ($2,000,000) combined single 
limit (and with a deductible not to exceed $50,000) insuring 
Railroad against any and all damages, costs, liabilities and 
expenses resulting from on- or offsite bodily injury (including 
death to any person), on- or off-site loss, damage or destruction 
of property (including that belonging to the parties hereto), and 
on- or offsite cleanup costs (including expenses incurred in the 
investigation, removal, remediation, neutralization, or 
immobilization of contaminated soils, surface water, groundwater 
or any other contamination) growing out of or incidental to any 
discharge, spillage, disposal, release, or escape of any 
Hazardous Material or petroleum product arising therefrom. For 
purposes of this Agreement, the term “Hazardous Material” shall 
include, without limit, any flammable explosives, radioactive 
materials, hazardous materials, hazardous wastes, hazardous or 
toxic substances, or related materials defined in the 
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and 
Liability Act of 1980, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 9601, et seq.), 
the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, as amended (49 
U.S.C. §§ 1801, et seq.), the Resource Conservation and 
Recovery Act, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 6901 et seq.), the 
Toxic Substances Control Act, as amended (15 U.S.C. §§ 2601, 
et seq.), similar laws or ordinances enacted by any state, county 
or municipality in which the Property is located, or in the 
regulations adopted and publications promulgated pursuant to 
any of the above, as such laws or regulations now exist or may 
exist in the future. Applicant is required to advise Canadian 
National Railroad by thirty (30) day advance written notice when 
any work to be performed under this License may require 
Pollution Liability Insurance pursuant to the previous paragraph. 

 
f)  All policies described above must include description of 

operations, Canadian National Railroad milepost, highway or 

390

Item 31.



 

35 
 

street name, city and state of location, project number, and 
Canadian National Railroad contact person on the certificate. 

 
2. Before commencing work, outside party shall deliver to Canadian 

National Railroad a certificate of insurance evidencing the foregoing 
coverages and, if requested by Railroad Company, true and complete 
copies of the policies described above. If the policy is being issued in 
conjunction with, or as a result of, a city, county or state contract, the 
policy should be initially submitted to the respective city, county or state 
agency that will review it first and then forward it to Railroad Company. 
 

3. Common Policy Provisions. Each policy described in paragraph 1, parts 
a) through e) above, must include the following provisions: 

 
a) Each policy shall include a waiver by the insurer of any right of 

subrogation against any recovery by or on behalf of any insured. 
 
b) Each policy shall provide for not less than thirty (30) days prior 

written notice to Canadian National Railroad at the address listed 
above of cancellation of or any material change in that policy. 

 
4. It is understood and agreed that the foregoing insurance coverage 

requirements, and outside party’s compliance with those requirements, 
is not intended to, and shall not, relieve outside party from, or serve 
limit, outside party’s liability and indemnity obligations under the 
provisions therein. 

 
5. Canadian National Railroad shall have the right, from time to time, to 

revise the amount or form of insurance coverage required as 
circumstances or changing economic conditions may require.  
Canadian National Railroad shall give outside party written notice of 
any such requested change at least thirty (30) days before the date of 
expiration of the then-existing policy or policies, outside party agrees to, 
and shall thereupon provide Canadian National Railroad with such 
revised policy or policies. 

 
6.  Insurance required of Subcontractor: 
 

a) If Subcontractor is to be employed by outside party to perform work 
on Canadian National Railroad under or by the permission for 
occupancy granted to outside party by Railroad Company, before 
commencing work, the Subcontractor shall provide and thereafter 
maintain all of the insurance described in paragraph 1, parts a) 
through e), above, in the same forms and amounts as provided for 
above and subject to the other terms and conditions provided for in 
paragraphs 2 through 4 above. 

391

Item 31.



 

36 
 

b) As an alternative, before the Subcontractor commences work for 
outside party on Railroad Company, outside party may provide and 
thereafter maintain all of the insurance described in paragraph 1, 
parts a) through e) above, in the same forms and amounts as 
provided for above and subject to the other terms and conditions 
provided for in paragraphs 2 through 5 above, provided that all 
such insurance names, Subcontractor as an additional insured and 
all such insurance provides coverage to all additional insured and 
all such insurance provides coverage to all additional insureds, 
including Railroad Company, for any liability arising out of work 
performed by all other additional insureds, including Subcontractor. 

 
7. The City of Cedar Falls shall be named as an “additional insured” in 

each policy.  The City of Cedar Falls’ consultants completing 
construction observation as part of this project shall also be named as 
an “additional insured” in each policy 

 
D.  Flaggers 
 

Flaggers will be required any time work is performed within twenty-five (25) 
feet of nearest rail. Contractor shall be responsible for requesting flagger from 
Canadian National Railroad, and for following all requirements of Canadian 
National Railroad for said flaggers. 

 
 E.  Safety Training 
   

Prior to any entry onto Railroad Company’s property, the employees and/or 
Subcontractors of the Contractor that will work on Canadian National property 
shall, at minimum, finish training from www.contractororientation.com.  
Contractor shall be responsible for any other training as required by 
Canadian National Railroad. 

 
 F.  Safety Action Plan 
 

1. Equipment Safety 
 

a) All equipment will be placed outside of 50 feet of centerline of the 
Railroad tracks. 

b) All cranes and man-lifts will be parked and operated in a direction that 
in case of any type of mechanical failure the booms will not create a 
potential danger to the Railroad tracks. 

c) In any case that equipment must be inside the limits of the Railroad 
tracks, a CN Railroad Flagger will be present for the duration of the 
work going on. 

 

392

Item 31.



 

37 
 

d) If equipment is not being used, no parts of the equipment will be left to 
be in potential danger of falling on the Railroad tracks. 

e) Equipment that will be crossing the Railroad tracks will require the 
presence of a CN Railroad Flagger. 

f)  Equipment left unattended near the track must be immobilized so that it 
may not be moved by any unauthorized party. 

 
2. Employee Safety 

a) All employees working are to remain outside the 50-foot limit unless CN 
Flagman is present. 

b) Employees in man-lifts working over the Railroad’s tracks will do so at 
the direction of a CN Flagman. 

c) Employees working on bridge decks or beams are to be tied off using 
OSHA approved safety harnesses and safety cables. 

d) All employees will be alerted to any moving equipment that may 
endanger them. 

e) Employees will be wearing appropriate safety hardhat, vest and safety 
gear while working on and around bridge. 

 
3. General Safety 

a) Temporary safety fence will be placed 50 feet from centerline to warn 
all personnel of the Railroad right-of-way limits. If equipment needs to 
be within that limit, a CN Flagger will be present. 

b) A safety meeting will be held each morning emphasizing Railroad 
safety issues. 

c) No material will be left or stored inside the 50 feet from centerline area 
without written permission from the appropriate Railroad official. 

d) Holes inside Railroad right-of-way will not be left unattended and filled 
promptly upon completion. 

 
4. Contractor’s Project Safety Representative 
 

____________________, Foreman, Project Foreman, Phone 
Number:________________ 

 
a) A safety briefing will be held each morning to go over that day’s planned 

work and caution all employees about work and equipment safety. 
b) Foreman, ________________ , will coordinate with the Project 

Manager,____________ Phone Number:____________________ , 
when to schedule an official Railroad Flagman. 

c) ___________________, Project Foreman, Phone 
Number:______________________ . 

    Project Foreman, _________________________ , will assist in 
watching movement of   men and equipment so that all work is being 
accomplished in a safe and reasonable manner to alert everyone of any 
potential danger. 

393

Item 31.



 

38 
 

 
5. Contractor shall have an emergency action plan as required by the 

Canadian National Railroad. 
    

1.08 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 
 
 A.  Railroad Requirements 
 

1. Measurement:  Lump sum item; no measurement will be made. 
 

2. Payment:  Payment will be at a lump sum price. 
 

3. Includes all work associated with obtaining a Utility Crossing / 
Encroachment Permit, including the development of a certified shoring 
plan. Includes all labor, materials, and fees necessary to comply with 
railroad requirements and regulations including, but not limited to, 
obtaining a right of entry license, providing the railroad with insurance 
information, scheduling and utilizing railroad flaggers, providing staff with 
the required safety training, preparing a safety action plan, and filling out 
any and all documentation required by the railroad.

 

394

Item 31.



5/12/2021

1 2010-C Clearing and Grubbing 1 LS 15,000.00$              15,000.00$              
2 2010-D-1 Topsoil, On-site 242 CY 7.50$                        1,815.00$                 
3 2010-E Excavation, Class 13 67 CY 13.00$                      871.00$                    
4 2010-G Subgrade Preparation 455 SY 3.00$                        1,365.00$                 
5 2010-I Subbase, 12" Modified 69 SY 15.00$                      1,035.00$                 
6 2010-J-1 Removal of Structure 4 EA 1,500.00$                 6,000.00$                 
7 2010-L Compaction Testing 1 LS 2,000.00$                 2,000.00$                 
8 3010-C Trench Foundation 59 TON 25.00$                      1,475.00$                 
9 3010-D Replacement of Unsuitable Backfill Material 103 CY 25.00$                      2,575.00$                 

10 3010-F Trench Compaction Testing 1 LS 2,000.00$                 2,000.00$                 
11 4010-A-1 Sanitary Sewer Gravity Main, Trenched, PVC, SDR 26, 8" 560 LF 150.00$                    84,000.00$              
12 4010-A-2 Sanitary Sewer Gravity Main, Trenchless, PVC, AWWA C900 SDR 18, 8" 284 LF 250.00$                    71,000.00$              
13 4010-E Sanitary Sewer Service Stub, PVC, SDR 23.5, 4" 78 LF 50.00$                      3,900.00$                 
14 4010-H Removal of Sanitary Sewer, All Types and Sizes 714 LF 25.00$                      17,850.00$              
15 4010-I Sanitary Sewer Cleanout 2 EA 3,000.00$                 6,000.00$                 
16 4010-L Sanitary Sewer Abandonment, Fill and Plug 49 LF 45.00$                      2,205.00$                 
17 4020-A-1 Storm Sewer, Trenched, RCP, 21" 48 LF 90.00$                      4,320.00$                 
18 4020-D Removal of Storm Sewer, RCP, 21" 48 LF 40.00$                      1,920.00$                 
19 4040-A Subdrain, Type 1, 6" 20 LF 25.00$                      500.00$                    
20 6010-A Manhole, SW-301, 48" 1 EA 9,000.00$                 9,000.00$                 
21 6010-A Manhole, SW-301, 60" 3 EA 10,000.00$              30,000.00$              
22 6010-A Manhole, SW-303, 60" 1 EA 8,000.00$                 8,000.00$                 
23 6010-C-2 External Drop Connection 2 EA 4,000.00$                 8,000.00$                 
24 6010-H Remove Manhole 4 EA 3,000.00$                 12,000.00$              
25 7010-A Pavement, PCC,  7" 69 SY 55.00$                      3,795.00$                 
26 7030-A Removal of Sidewalk 178 SY 15.00$                      2,670.00$                 
27 7030-A Removal of Driveway 204 SY 15.00$                      3,060.00$                 
28 7030-E Sidewalk, PCC, 4" 182 SY 40.00$                      7,280.00$                 
29 7030-H-1 Driveway, Paved, PCC, 6" 203 SY 45.00$                      9,135.00$                 
30 7040-B Subbase Over-excavation 143 TON 20.00$                      2,860.00$                 
31 7040-H Pavement Removal 69 SY 20.00$                      1,380.00$                 
32 8030-A Temporary Traffic Control 1 LS 2,500.00$                 2,500.00$                 
33 9010-B Hydraulic Seeding, Seeding, Fertilizing, and Mulching, Slope Mix 0.3 AC 10,000.00$              3,000.00$                 
34 9020-A Sod 167 SQ 100.00$                    16,700.00$              
35 9030-A Plants, Trees 5 EA 750.00$                    3,750.00$                 
36 9040-A-2 SWPPP Management 1 LS 5,000.00$                 5,000.00$                 
37 9040-D-1 Filter Sock, 12" 1362 LF 2.50$                        3,405.00$                 
38 9040-D-2 Filter Sock, Removal 1362 LF 1.50$                        2,043.00$                 
39 9040-E-0 Temporary RECP, Type 4 1000 SY 25.00$                      25,000.00$              
40 9040-O-1 Stabilized Construction Entrance 133 SY 10.00$                      1,330.00$                 
41 9040-T-1 Inlet Protection Device, Filter Sock 2 EA 1,000.00$                 2,000.00$                 
42 9040-T-2 Inlet Protection Device, Maintenance 2 EA 50.00$                      100.00$                    
43 11,020-A Mobilization 1 LS 100,000.00$            100,000.00$            
44 11,030-A Maintenance of Postal Service 1 LS 1,000.00$                 1,000.00$                 
45 11,030-B Maintenance of Solid Waste Collection 1 LS 1,000.00$                 1,000.00$                 
46 11,040-A Temporary Pedestrian Residential Access 176 SY 15.00$                      2,640.00$                 
47 11,050-A Concrete Washout 1 LS 2,500.00$                 2,500.00$                 
48 0000-999-A Railroad Requirements 1 LS 50,000.00$              50,000.00$              

TOTAL (ROUNDED): 545,000.00$            

UNIT PRICE

OPINION OF PROBABLE PROJECT COSTS

ITEM 
NO.

ITEM CODE ITEM UNIT

OAK PARK BLVD SEWER REPLACEMENT
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

119.0115.08

QUANTITY EXTENDED PRICE

\\Gemini\Volume\Projects\2019\119.0115.08\CADD\EstRefInfo_OakParkBlvd.xlsm
1 of 1

5/13/2021
395

Item 31.



1 

 

   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PHONE 319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     M E M O R A N D U M 
Legal Services Division 

 TO: Mayor Green, City Council 

 FROM: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 

 DATE: May 13, 2021 

   SUBJECT:   Amendment to Code of Ordinances Sec. 2-276 
 
 

There is an ambiguity in the reappointment process for members of City authorized Boards and 

Commissions.  While these members serve for a definite term as provided in the Code of 

Ordinances, there appears to be a just cause standard and hearing rights if a member is not 

reappointed for additional terms after the first term is served.  Such a situation basically renders 

terms meaningless. 

 

In order to clarify this ambiguity, Mayor Green has requested that the Section of the Code of 

Ordinances dealing with Boards and Commissions be amended to make it clear that 

reappointment for successive terms is within the discretion of the Mayor and Council, and non-

reappointment need not be for cause.   

 

Removal of a Board or Commission member mid-term, however, would still require just cause. 

 

The proposed amendment is attached. 

   

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions.  

396

Item 32.



1 
 

Prepared by: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, (319)273-8600 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SECTION 2-276, MEMBERS MOVING FROM CITY; 

ABSENCE FROM MEETINGS, OF DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE IV, BOARDS 

AND COMMISSIONS, OF CHAPTER 2, ADMINISTRATION, OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND ENACTING IN LIEU 

THEREOF A NEW SECTION 2-276, APPOINTMENT; MEMBERS MOVING FROM CITY; 

ABSENCE FROM MEETINGS; NON-REAPPOINTMENT. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

       Section 1.  Section 2-276, Members Moving From City; Absence From Meetings, of Division 

1, Generally, of Article IV, Boards and Commissions, of Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code 

of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new 

Section 2-276, Appointment; members Moving From City; Absence From Meetings; Non-

reappointment, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

 

Sec. 2-276. mMembers moving from city; absence from meetings; non-Appointment; 

reappointment. 

Members of boards and commissions established by this Code are appointed by the mayor with the approval 
of the council.  The permanent removal from the city of any such member of a board or commission wherein the 
members are appointed by the mayor with the approval of the council, or the absence from three consecutive 
regular meetings or five meetings within one year by sucha member of any of such boards or commissions, except 
in case of sickness or temporary absence from the city, without due explanation, shall render the member's office 
vacant.  Reappointment of such members for additional terms shall be at the discretion of the mayor and council.  
No hearing shall be afforded in the event of non-reappointment, which may be without cause.  

(Code 2017, § 2-211) 

 

INTRODUCED:  ___________________________________________________________ 
PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:  _____________________________________________ 
PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:  _____________________________________________ 
PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:  ______________________________________________ 
ADOPTED:  _______________________________________________________________ 
 
                                                                                             ___________________________ 
                                                                                              Robert M. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
_________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk          

397

Item 32.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 

 FROM: Ben Claypool, Civil Engineer II, PhD, EI 
 

 DATE: May 12, 2021 
 

 SUBJECT: Updates to City Code Section 23-374 – Parking Prohibited on Specific Streets 
 
With the success observed of the Place to Play playground on the corner of Algonquin Drive and 
Ashworth Drive, the currently available off-street parking does not provide the adequate number of 
parking stalls. Through site observation, citizens utilizing the new playground can be found parking 
along both sides of Ashworth Drive and Algonquin Drive bordering the playground. During peak 
hours, this on-street parking creates a congested corridor that can lead to single lane traffic and 
dangerous pedestrian crossings for the primarily young family demographic that this park draws in. 
 
In cooperation with the police department, temporary parking restrictions at the proposed permanent 
locations have been in effect since late fall of 2020. Since the installation, we have seen the expected 
reduction of on-street parking congestion. To maintain this reduction, the Engineering division is 
recommending these areas permanently prohibit parking. Public Works street crews are planning to 
begin work on the installation of 14 additional angled parking stalls on the north side of Algonquin 
Drive, opposite the current parking area. This will provide a significant amount of space for citizens to 
still park close to the park, while reducing unsafe mid-block street crossings. 
 

 
398

Item 33.



The Engineering Division is proposing changes to City Code Section 23-374 – Parking Prohibited on 
Specific Streets so the code matches what has been designed and will be constructed. Please see 
the attached changes for City Code Section 23-374 – Parking Prohibited on Specific Streets.  
 
The Engineering Division recommends approval to set the three newly defined areas to prohibit on-
street parking. These areas are highlighted in the image on the previous page. 
 
If you have any questions or concerns, please feel free to ask.  
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer  

399

Item 33.



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-04-12 12:55:40 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 9) 

 
Page 1 of 16 

Sec. 23-374. Parking prohibited on specific streets. 

When signs are erected giving notice thereof, no person shall park a vehicle at any time upon any of the 
streets or portions of streets enumerated in this section.  

Street  Portion Where  
Parking Prohibited  

First Street (West)  On both sides between Main Street and the west city limits.  

Second Street (West)  On both sides between Walnut Street and Francis Street.  

 On the north side between Francis Street and Hudson Road.  

Third Street (East)   

Third Street (West)   

 On both sides of said street between Clay Street and Franklin Street on Saturday 
mornings only commencing with the first Saturday of May of each year and continuing 
through the last Saturday of October each year during the hours of 6:00 a.m. to 12:00 
noon.  

 On the north side of said street from the most westerly point of the flare-out of the 
driveway approach to the north-south alley located in the 200 block between 
Washington Street and Clay Street, west a distance of 143 feet to the east curb line of 
Clay Street, extended northerly, as such east curb line is located in the 300 block of 
Clay Street, on Saturday mornings only commencing with the first Saturday of May of 
each year and continuing through the last Saturday of October of each year during the 
hours of 6:00 a.m. to 12:00 noon.  

 On the south side of said street from the most westerly point of the flare-out of the 
driveway approach to the north-south alley located in the 300 block between 
Washington Street and Clay Street, west a distance of 143 feet to the east curb line of 
Clay Street, extended northerly, as such east curb line is located in the 300 block of 
Clay Street, on Saturday mornings only commencing with the first Saturday of May of 
each year and continuing through the last Saturday of October of each year during the 
hours of 6:00 a.m. to 12:00 noon.  

 On the south side of said street from the west curb line of Ellen Street west to the east 
curb line of Hudson Road.  

 On the north side from the west curb line of Tremont Street west to the east curb line 
of Ellen Street.  

 On the north side of said street from Cedar Crest Drive to Magnolia Drive.  

Fourth Street  On both sides from College Street to Hudson Road.  

 On the south side between Franklin Street and College Street.  

Fourth Street (East)   

Fourth Street (West)  On both sides from College Street to Hudson Road; on the north side from the west 
line of Main Street to a point 20 feet west thereof; on the north side from the west 
line of Cedar Crest Drive a distance of 30 feet west, and from the east line of Cedar 
Crest Drive a distance of 30 feet east; on the north side from the east line of Angie 
Drive to the west line of Hudson Road; on both sides of said street from the west line 
of Chateau Court to Hudson Road; on the south side from the west line of Main Street 
to a point ten feet west thereof; on the south side between Washington Street and 
College Street.  

 On the north side from the west line, extended north, of Jessica Lane to a point 200 
feet west thereof.  

Fifth Street (West)  On the north side from the west line of Main Street west a distance of 150 feet.  

400

Item 33.



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-04-12 12:55:40 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 9) 

 
Page 2 of 16 

 On the south side from a point 48 feet east of the east line of Clay Street west to the 
alley between Clay Street and Franklin Street.  

 On the north side from the west curb line of Franklin Street west to the east curb line 
of College Street.  

Sixth Street (East)  On the north side from the east curb line of Main Street east a distance of 200 feet.  

 On the south side from the east curb line of Main Street east to the west curb line of 
State Street.  

Sixth Street (West)  On both sides between Main Street and Franklin Street, except that on the north side 
of West Sixth Street, from a point 40 feet west of the west curb line of Washington 
Street to a point 144 feet west of the west curb line of Washington Street.  

 On the north side from the east curb line of College Street east a distance of 150 feet.  

 On the south side from the east curb line of College Street east a distance of 75 feet.  

Seventh Street (East)  On the south side from State Street to the west line of Bluff Street.  

Seventh Street (West)  On the north side from Washington Street to Clay Street, except Saturdays and 
Sundays.  

 On the north side from the west curb line of Division Street west a distance of 40 feet.  

 On the north side from the east curb line of Division Street east a distance of 40 feet.  

 On the south side from the west curb line of Division Street west a distance of 40 feet.  

 On the south side from the east curb line of Division Street east a distance of 40 feet.  

Eighth Street (East)  On the north side from Main Street to State Street.  

Eighth Street (West)  On the north side between Franklin Street and College Street.  

 On the north side between Division Street and Ellen Street.  

 On the south side between College Street and Pearl Street.  

 On the south side from the centerline of Barrington Drive east a distance of 500 feet.  

 On the north side from the centerline of Barrington Drive east a distance of 110 feet.  

 On the north side from the centerline of Barrington Drive west a distance of 50 feet.  

 On the south side from the west curb line of Catherine Street west a distance of 40 
feet.  

 On the south side from the east curb line of Catherine Street east a distance of 40 feet.  

Ninth Street (East)  On the north side from Bluff Street east to Grove Street, except Sundays.  

Ninth Street (West)  On the north side from Clay Street east 100 feet.  

 On the north side from the west line of Tremont Street west to the east line of 
Catherine Street.  

 On the north side from the west curb line of Catherine Street west a distance of 40 
feet.  

 On the south side from the west curb line of Catherine Street west a distance of 40 
feet.  

 On the south side from the east curb line of Catherine Street east a distance of 40 feet.  

Tenth Street (East)  On both sides from a point 180 feet east of the east curb line of Grove Street to a 
point 250 feet east of the east line of Grove Street.  

 On the north side from Main Street to Grove Street.  

Tenth Street (West)  On the north side from the west curb line of Tremont Street west to the east curb line 
of Division Street.  

 On the south side from the west curb line of Iowa Street west a distance of 40 feet.  

 On the south side from the west curb line of Catherine Street west a distance of 40 
feet.  

 On the south side from the east curb line of Catherine Street east a distance of 40 feet.  

11th Street (East)  On the north side from State Street to Grove Street.  

401

Item 33.



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-04-12 12:55:40 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 9) 

 
Page 3 of 16 

 On the north side from Main Street to State Street.  

 On the south side from the east curb line of State Street east a distance of 40 feet.  

 On the south side from the west curb line of Grove Street west a distance of 40 feet.  

11th Street (West)  On the north side between Franklin Street and Walnut Street.  

 On the north side from the west curb line of College Street west to the east curb line 
of Division Street.  

 On the south side from the west curb line of Catherine Street west a distance of 40 
feet.  

 On the south side from the east curb line of Catherine Street east a distance of 40 feet.  

12th Street (West)  On both sides from Main Street to College Street.  

 On the south side from the east line of Clark Drive east a distance of 40 feet.  

 On the south side from the west line of Clark Drive west a distance of 40 feet.  

 On both sides from Hudson Road to Union Road.  

13th Street (West)  On both sides from the east curb line of Walnut Street east a distance of 20 feet.  

 On both sides from the west curb line of Walnut Street west a distance of 20 feet.  

 On the north side from the west curb line of Clay Street west to the east curb line of 
Franklin Street.  

14th Street (East)  On the south side between State Street and Waterloo Road.  

14th Street Court 
(East)  

On the north side from the east curb line of Bluff Street east to the end of the street.  

14th Street (West)  On the north side of said street from Main Street to Franklin Street.  

15th Street (West)  On the north side of said street from the west curb line of Clay Street west to the east 
curb line of Franklin Street.  

16th Street (West)  On the south side from the west curb line of Main Street to the east curb line of 
Franklin Street.  

18th Street (East)  On both sides from Main Street to Waterloo Road.  

18th Street (West)  On both sides of the street from the west curb line of Main Street west to the east 
curb line of College Street.  

 On the north side from the west curb line of College Street west to the east curb line 
of Hudson Road.  

 On the north side from the west line of Hudson Road west a distance of 200 feet.  

 On the north side from a point 455 feet west of the west line of Hudson Road west a 
distance of 101 feet.  

 On the north side from a point 922 feet west of the west line of Hudson Road west a 
distance of 101 feet.  

 On the south side from the west line of Hudson Road west a distance of 1,116 feet.  

 On the south side from the west curb line of Summit Drive west a distance of 100 feet.  

 On the south side from the east curb line of Summit Drive east a distance of 100 feet.  

 On the south side from the west curb line of Campus Street west a distance of 20 feet.  

 On the south side from the east curb line of Campus Street east a distance of 20 feet.  

 On the south side from the west curb line of Merner Avenue west a distance of 40 
feet.  

 On the south side from the east curb line of Merner Avenue east a distance of 40 feet.  

 On the south side from the west curb line of College Street west a distance of 40 feet.  

 On the south side from the east curb line of Hudson Road east a distance of 40 feet.  

19th Street (West)  On the north side between College Street and Hudson Road, between 8:00 a.m. and 
3:30 p.m., Mondays through Fridays.  

402

Item 33.



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-04-12 12:55:40 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 9) 

 
Page 4 of 16 

 On the south side from the west curb line of College Street west to the east curb line 
of Campus Street.  

 On the south side from the west curb line of Campus Street west a distance of 30 feet.  

 On the south side from the east curb line of Hudson Road east a distance of 30 feet.  

 On the north side from the east curb line of Merner Avenue east a distance of 30 feet.  

 On the north side from the west curb line of Merner Avenue west a distance of 30 
feet.  

20th Street (West)  On the south side from the east curb line of Campus Street east to the west curb line 
of Main Street.  

 On the south side from the east curb line of Merner Avenue east a distance of 45 feet.  

 On the north side from the east line of Merner Avenue east a distance of 45 feet.  

 On the north side from the west curb line of Campus Street east to the west curb line 
of Merner Avenue, between the hours of 1:00 a.m. and 6:00 a.m. daily.  

21st Street (West)  On the south side from the west line of Franklin Street west to the east line of College 
Street.  

 On the south side from the west curb line of College Street west a distance of 40 feet.  

 On the north side from the west curb line of College Street west a distance of 40 feet.  

 On the north side from the east curb line of College Street east a distance of 40 feet.  

22nd Street (West)  On the north side from College Street to Campus Street from 1:00 a.m. to 5:30 p.m., 
Monday through Saturday and from 1:00 a.m. to 8:00 a.m. on Sunday.  

 On the south side from College Street to Campus Street.  

 On the south side between Main Street and Tremont Street.  

 On the north side from the west curb line of Tremont Street west to the east curb line 
of College Street.  

23rd Street (West)  On the north side from the east curb line of Merner Avenue east a distance of 40 feet.  

 On the north side between Campus Street and Hudson Road.  

 On the south side from the west line of Minnesota Street, which belongs to the state, 
to the east line of Hudson Road.  

 On both sides from the east curb line of Merner Avenue west to the west curb line of 
Campus Street.  

 On the south side from the west curb line of Campus Street west to the east curb line 
of Minnesota Street, one-hour parking is allowed between the hours of 7:30 a.m. and 
4:30 p.m., except on weekends and holidays.  

29th Street  On the south side from 225 feet west of the centerline of College Street to 290 feet 
west of the centerline of College Street, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., 
Monday through Friday.  

29th Street (West)  On the north side from the east curb line of College Street east to the west curb line of 
Walnut Street.  

31st Street (West)  On both sides from Hudson Road to the west end of the street.  

Adams Street  On the east side of said street from the north curb line of East 18th Street north to the 
end of the street.  

 On both sides of said street from East 18th Street south.  

Alexis Boulevard  On the south and west sides from the north line of West 12th Street northerly and 
westerly to the east edge of the cul-de-sac.  

 On the east side from the north line of West 12th Street north a distance of 120 feet.  

Algonquin Drive  On the north and east sides of the street from the east curb line of Ashworth Drive 
east and south to the north curb line of Amelia Drive, extended east; On the 

southwesterly side of the street from the west curb line of Ashworth 

403

Item 33.



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-04-12 12:55:40 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 9) 

 
Page 5 of 16 

Drive northwest a distance of 160 feet. 

Ashworth Drive On the northwestern side of the street from the north curb line of 
Algonquin Drive northeast a distance of 100 feet; On the southeast 
side of the street from the north curb line of Algonquin Drive 
northeast to the south curb line of Loren Drive, a distance of 300 feet. 

Balboa Street  On the north side from the west line of South Main Street to a point 403 feet west of 
the west line of South Main Street.  

 On the south side from the west line of South Main Street to a point 119 feet west of 
the west line of South Main Street.  

Barkwood Drive  On the north side from the west curb line of Ironwood Drive west to the east curb line 
of Applewood Lane.  

Barnett Drive  On the west side from the south curb line of Crescent Drive south to the north curb 
line of West Twelfth Street.  

 On the east side from a point 150 feet north of the north curb line of West Fourth 
Street north to a point 50 feet north thereof.  

 On the east side from the north curb line of West Twelfth Street north a distance of 60 
feet.  

Barrington Drive  On the west, south and east sides of Barrington Drive from the south line of West 
Eighth Street south, east and north to the south edge of the cul-de-sac.  

Bicentennial Drive  On both sides of said street from Cedar Heights Drive west a distance of 500 feet.  

Big Woods Road  On both sides from Independence Avenue to the north city limits.  

Birch Street  On the east side from Grand Boulevard to Rainbow Drive.  

Birdsall Drive (East)  On the north side from Birdsall Drive east to the end of the street.  

Blair Ridge Road  On the west side from Wild Horse Drive north to the end of the street.  

Bluegrass Circle  Along the outside edge from the east curb line of the north intersection with Prairie 
Parkway to the east curb line of the south intersection with Prairie Parkway.  

Bluff Street  On the east side from the south curb line of East Ninth Street south to a point 70 feet 
south of the south curb line of East 12th Street.  

 On the east side from the south curb line of East 13th Street to the north curb line of 
East 15th Street.  

 On the west side from the north curb line of East 15th Street north a distance of 40 
feet.  

 On both sides from the south curb line of East 15th Street south a distance of 40 feet.  

Bonita Boulevard  On the south side from the west line of South Lawn Road west a distance of 60 feet.  

Boulder Drive  On both sides from University Avenue to Orchard Drive.  

Boxwood Drive  On the north side from the west curb line of Ironwood Drive west to the east curb line 
of Applewood Lane.  

Brookside Drive  On the north side from the east curb line of Hudson Road east to the west curb line of 
Starview Drive.  

 On the south side from the east curb line of Hudson Road east to the southerly 
extension of the east curb line of Starview Drive.  

California Drive  On the east side from the south curb line of Rainbow Drive south to the north curb line 
of Hawthorne Drive.  

Campus Street  On the east side from the north curb line of West 18th Street north to the south curb 
line of West 16th Street.  

 On the west side from the north curb line of West 18th Street north a distance of 40 
feet.  

 On the west side from the south curb line of West 19th Street south a distance of 40 

404

Item 33.



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-04-12 12:55:40 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 9) 

 
Page 6 of 16 

feet.  

 On the east side from the south curb line of West 19th Street south a distance of 40 
feet.  

 On the east side from the north curb line of West 20th Street north a distance of 40 
feet.  

 On the west side from the north line of the parking lot situated on the west side of the 
2000 block of Campus Street, south a distance of 188 feet.  

 On both sides from the south curb line of West 22nd Street south to the north curb 
line of West 23rd Street.  

Catherine Street  On the west side from the south curb line of West First Street south a distance of 40 
feet.  

 On the east side from the south curb line of West First Street south to the north curb 
line of West Fourth Street.  

 On the east side from the south curb line of West Eighth Street to the north curb line 
of West 12th Street.  

 On the west side from the south curb line of West Eighth Street south a distance of 40 
feet.  

 On the west side from the north curb line of West Ninth Street north a distance of 40 
feet.  

 On the west side from the south curb line of West Ninth Street south a distance of 40 
feet.  

 On the west side from the north curb line of West Tenth Street north a distance of 40 
feet.  

 On the west side from the south curb line of West Tenth Street south a distance of 40 
feet.  

 On the west side from the north curb line of West 11th Street north a distance of 40 
feet.  

 On the west side from the south curb line of West 11th Street south a distance of 40 
feet.  

 On the west side from the north curb line of West 12th Street north a distance of 40 
feet.  

Cedar Heights Drive  On both sides from Rainbow Drive to University Avenue.  

Cedar Hills Road  On both sides from the east curb line of Chadwick Road east to the west curb line of 
Cedar Heights Drive.  

Cedar Street  On the south side from Center Street to Vine Street.  

Center Street  On both sides from First Street to the north city limits.  

Chadwick Road  On the west side from a point 10 feet north of the northwest edge of the cul-de-sac at 
the south end of Chadwick Road, south to the northwest edge of said cul-de-sac.  

 From the northwest edge of the cul-de-sac at the south end of Chadwick Road, south, 
east and north to the northeast edge of said cul-de-sac.  

 From the southwest edge of the cul-de-sac at the north end of Chadwick Road, north, 
east and south to the southeast edge of said cul-de-sac.  

 On the east side from the southeast edge of the cul-de-sac at the north end of 
Chadwick Road, south to the northeast edge of the cul-de-sac at the south end of 
Chadwick Road.  

Clark Drive  On the west side from the south line of West 12th Street south a distance of 40 feet.  

 On the east side from the south line of West 12th Street south a distance of 40 feet.  

Clay Street  On both sides between First Street and a point 35 feet south of the south line of First 

405

Item 33.



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-04-12 12:55:40 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 9) 

 
Page 7 of 16 

Street.  

 On both sides of said street from the south curb line of West Third Street north a 
distance of 245 feet to the north line of the driveway entrance to the city police 
station parking lot, extended westerly, on Saturday mornings only commencing with 
the first Saturday of May of each year and continuing through the last Saturday of 
October of each year during the hours of 6:00 a.m. to 12:00 noon.  

 On both sides of said street from the south curb line of West Third Street south a 
distance of 134 feet to the north line of the northerly driveway entrance to the Cedar 
Falls Women's Club parking lot, on Saturday mornings only, commencing with the first 
Saturday of May of each year and continuing through the last Saturday of October of 
each year during the hours of 6:00 a.m. to 12:00 noon.  

 On the east side from the south curb line of West Third Street south a distance of 35 
feet.  

 On both sides from the south curb line of West Fourth Street south a distance of 48 
feet.  

 On the east side from the north curb line of West Fifth Street north a distance of 32 
feet.  

 On the west side from the north curb line of West Sixth Street north a distance of 41 
feet.  

 On the east side from the north curb line of West Sixth Street north a distance of 41 
feet.  

 On the east side from 15th Street to 18th Street.  

 On the west side between 15th Street and 18th Street.  

 On both sides between 18th Street and Seerley Boulevard.  

College Street (North)  On the west side from the north curb line of Higby Drive north to the end of the street.  

 On the west side from the south curb line of Higby Drive south a distance of 75 feet.  

 On the west side from the north curb line of West First Street north a distance of 120 
feet.  

 On the east side from the north curb line of West First Street north to the north end of 
the street.  

College Street (South)  On the east side from the south curb line of West Fifth Street south to the north curb 
line of West Sixth Street.  

 On both sides from the south curb line of West Sixth Street south a distance of 100 
feet.  

 On the east side from the south curb line of West Eighth Street south to the north curb 
line of West 12th Street.  

 On the west side from the south curb line of West 12th Street south to the north curb 
line of West 18th Street.  

 On the east side from a point 50 feet north of the north curb line of West 18th Street 
south to the north curb line of West 20th Street.  

 On the west side from the south curb line of West 18th Street south a distance of 80 
feet.  

 On the west side from the north curb line of West 19th Street north a distance of 50 
feet.  

 On the west side from the south curb line of West 19th Street south a distance of 50 
feet.  

 On the west side from the north curb line of West 20th Street north a distance of 50 
feet.  

406

Item 33.



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-04-12 12:55:40 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 9) 

 
Page 8 of 16 

 On the west side from the south curb line of West 20th Street south to the north curb 
line of West 22nd Street.  

 On the east side from the south curb line of West 21st Street south to the north curb 
line of West 22nd Street.  

 On the west side from the south curb line of West 23rd Street south a distance of 60 
feet.  

 On the west side from a point 75 feet north of the westerly extension of the north 
curb line of West Seerley Boulevard south to a point 95 feet north of the north curb 
line of West 26th Street.  

 On the east side from the south curb line of West 23rd Street south to the north curb 
line of University Avenue.  

 On the west side from the south curb line of West 26th Street south to the north curb 
line of University Avenue.  

 On both sides from the south curb line of University Avenue south a distance of 65 
feet.  

Colorado Road  On the south side from the west curb line of Tucson Drive west to the west end of the 
cul-de-sac situated about 250 feet west of Dallas Drive.  

Columbia Drive  On the north and east sides of Columbia Drive from West 16th Street south and east 
to College Street.  

Cottage Lane  On the west side from the south curb line of Columbia Drive to the north curb line of 
West 18th Street.  

Cottonwood Lane  On both sides from Garden Avenue east to the end of the street.  

Covey Court  On the north side from Quail Ridge Road west to the end of the street.  

 On the north side from Quail Ridge Road east to the end of the street.  

Crescent Drive  On the south side from the east curb line of Lakeview Drive east to the west curb line 
of Brentwood Drive.  

Dallas Drive  On the west side from the north curb line of Idaho Street north to the south curb line 
of University Avenue.  

 On the east side from the north curb line of Idaho Street north a distance of 50 feet.  

 On the east side from a point 125 feet north of the north curb line of Idaho Street 
north to the south curb line of University Avenue.  

 On the east side from the south curb line of Idaho Street south a distance of 25 feet.  

Division Street  On the west side from the driveway south of Tenth Street to 11th Street.  

 On the east side of said street from the north line of West Eighth Street a distance of 
120 feet north.  

 On the west side from the north curb line of West Seventh Street north a distance of 
40 feet.  

 On the east side from the north curb line of West Seventh Street north a distance of 
40 feet.  

 On the west side from the south curb line of West Seventh Street south a distance of 
40 feet.  

 On the east side from the south curb line of West Seventh Street south a distance of 
40 feet.  

 On the west side from the south curb line of West Eighth Street south a distance of 50 
feet.  

Drury Lane  On the west side from the south curb line of Columbia Drive to the north curb line of 
West 18th Street.  

Dunkerton Road  On both sides from Center Street to the east city limits.  

407

Item 33.



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-04-12 12:55:40 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 9) 

 
Page 9 of 16 

Eagle Ridge Road  On the west and south sides of Eagle Ridge Road from the intersection of the west 
curb line of Eagle Ridge Road with the north curb line of Falcon Lane, in a northerly 
and westerly direction to the southeast edge of the cul-de-sac.  

 Around the perimeter of the curb adjacent to the center island of the cul-de-sac 
located at the west end of Eagle Ridge Road.  

East Street  On the west side of East Street from the south curb line of 19th Street a distance of 
100 feet south.  

Ellen Street  On both sides between First Street and a point 35 feet south of the south line of First 
Street.  

 On the east side from the south line of Parkway Avenue south to the north line of First 
Street.  

Erik Road  On the north side between the east curb line of Hudson Road east to the west curb 
line of Norse Drive.  

 On the south side from the east curb line of Hudson Road east a distance of 70 feet.  

 On the south side from the west curb line of Norse Drive west a distance of 25 feet.  

Feather Ridge Drive  On the north side from Quail Run Lane to Feather Run Trail.  

Floral Court  On both sides of the radius of the cul-de-sac.  

 On the north side from the east curb line of Merner Avenue to the cul-de-sac.  

 On the south side from the east curb line of Merner Avenue to the cul-de-sac, from 
1:00 a.m. to 6:00 a.m. each day.  

Forrest Road  On the west side from the north curb line of South Park Road north to River Bluff 
Drive.  

Fox View Drive  On the east side from the north curb line of Hunter Drive north to the end of the 
street.  

Francis Street  On both sides between First Street and a point 35 feet south of the south line of First 
Street.  

Franklin Street  On both sides from First Street to Sixth Street.  

 On both sides from First Street north to the north city limits.  

 On the east side between 12th Street and Seerley Boulevard.  

 On the west side from the north curb line of 18th Street north a distance of 100 feet.  

Frontage roads along 
the south side of 
University Avenue  

On both sides of the frontage road from the east curb line of Boulder Drive east to the 
end of said frontage road near the east line of Black Hawk Village, near McClain Drive.  

 On both sides of the frontage road from the east curb line of Cedar Heights Drive east 
to the west curb line of Midway Drive.  

Frontage roads along 
the north side of 
University Avenue  

On both sides of said frontage road from the east curb line of Valley Park Drive east to 
the end of said frontage road at the entrance to the Holiday Inn Motel.  

 On both sides of said frontage road from the west curb line of Ohio Street (UNI 
Institutional Road) west to the east curb line of Hudson Road.  

 On both sides of the frontage road along the north side of University Avenue between 
Main Street and Tremont Street, from the most westerly curb cut on said frontage 
road, west to the end of said frontage road.  

Frontage road on the 
west side of Hudson 
Road  

On both sides from West 31st Street south to the end of the street.  

Galloway Avenue  On the east side from Grand Boulevard to Rainbow Drive.  

 On the west side from Grand Boulevard a distance of 50 feet south, and from Rainbow 

408

Item 33.



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-04-12 12:55:40 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 9) 

 
Page 10 of 16 

Drive a distance of 50 feet north.  

Genevieve Street  On both sides between First Street and a point 35 feet south of the south line of First 
Street.  

 On both sides from the north right-of-way line of First Street north a distance of 132 
feet.  

 On the northwest side from First Street north to the end of the street.  

Gibson Street  On the west side from Rainbow Drive to Grand Boulevard.  

Grand Boulevard  On the south side from the east line of East Street east to the west line of Park Drive.  

 On the north side from the west line of East Street east to the east line of Scoggin 
Street.  

 On the north side from the west line, extended, of Schreiber Street east to a point 75 
feet east of the east line, extended, of Schreiber Street.  

 On the north side from the west line, extended, of Birch Street east to a point 65 feet 
east of the east line, extended, of Birch Street.  

 On the north side from the east line of Belle Avenue east to the west line of Park Drive.  

 On the north side from the east line of Edwards Street east a distance of 170 feet.  

Green Creek Road  On the north and west sides from the east line of Rownd Street east and north to the 
south line of Greenhill Road.  

Greenhill Drive  On the south side from the east curb line of Rownd Street east to the west curb line of 
Veralta Drive.  

Grove Street  On the east side from the south curb line of East Ninth Street to the north curb line of 
East 12th Street.  

Harvest Lane  On the west, north and east sides of the street proceeding west from the eastern 
intersection of Harvest Lane with Autumn Ridge Road to the western intersection of 
Harvest Lane with Autumn Ridge Road.  

Hawthorne Drive  On the north side from the east curb line of Waterloo Road to the west curb line of 
Victory Drive.  

 On both sides of said street from the centerline of Willow Lane, west a distance of 50 
feet.  

Hedgewood Circle  On the east side from the north curb line of Boxwood Drive north to the southeast 
edge of the cul-de-sac.  

Heritage Road  On the east and north sides from Bergstrom Boulevard in a southerly and easterly 
direction to the east end of Heritage Road.  

 On the west side from the north line of West Gate Avenue north a distance of 40 feet.  

 On the west side from the south line of West Gate Avenue south a distance of 40 feet.  

Hickory Lane  On the east side from the south curb line of Rainbow Drive south to the north curb line 
of Hawthorne Drive.  

Highland Drive  On the east side from the south curb line of West First Street south a distance of 89 
feet.  

 On the west side from the south curb line of West First Street south a distance of 54 
feet.  

Highview Court  On the east side from the south curb line of Rainbow Drive south to the north curb line 
of Parker Street.  

Holmes Drive  On the east side between the hours of 7:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, 
from Fourth Street to the south end.  

Hudson Road  On both sides between First Street and the south city limits.  

Hunter Drive  On the south side from the east line of Center Street east to the east end of the street.  

Ida Street  On both sides of the street from the east curb line of North College Street east to the 

409

Item 33.



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-04-12 12:55:40 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 9) 

 
Page 11 of 16 

end of the street.  

Idaho Street  On the north side from Dallas Drive to Boulder Drive.  

 On the south side of Idaho Street a distance of 25 feet west from the west curb line of 
Boulder Drive.  

Independence Avenue  On both sides from Lincoln Street to Big Woods Road.  

Iowa Highway 58/U.S. 
Highway 218  

On both sides of said Highway from Greenhill Road north to the north city limits.  

Iowa Street  On both sides between First Street and a point 35 feet south of the south line of First 
Street.  

 On the west side between West Third Street and West 11th Street.  

 On the east side from the south curb line of West Fourth Street south a distance of 40 
feet.  

 On the east side from the north curb line of West Fourth Street north a distance of 40 
feet.  

 On the east side from the south curb line of West 11th Street south a distance of 40 
feet.  

 On the east side from the north curb line of West 11th Street north a distance of 40 
feet.  

 On both sides from the south curb line of West 18th Street south a distance of 40 feet.  

Ironwood Drive  On the west side from the north end of Erik Road south and east to the northwest 
edge of the cul-de-sac.  

Irving Street  On the east side from 11th Street to 12th Street.  

Jaclyn Street  On the west side from the north curb line of Lantz Avenue north to the end of the 
street.  

Kaspend Place  On the east side from the south line of Pheasant Drive south to the north edge of the 
cul-de-sac.  

Lake Street  On both sides from Central Avenue to Leversee Road.  

Lantz (East)  On the north side from Center Street to Jackson Avenue.  

Laurie Avenue  On the east side from the south curb line of Grand Boulevard south to the north curb 
line of Rainbow Drive.  

Leversee Road  On the west side from Lincoln Street to the north city limits.  

Lilac Lane  On the north side from Boulder Drive to Carlton Drive.  

Lincoln Street  On both sides from Main Street east to the city limits.  

Lone Tree Road  On both sides from Ford Road to Big Woods Road.  

Longview (West)  On both sides from Central Avenue to Center Street.  

Madison Street  On the north side from Belle Avenue to Ashland Drive.  

 On the south side from the intersection of Belle Avenue east for a distance of 200 feet.  

Main Street  On both sides from First Street north to the north end of the river bridge.  

 On both sides between Sixth Street and the south city limits, except that parking is 
allowed from Sixth to 14th Street on Sundays between 7:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m.  

Main Street (North)  On the south side between the existing entrance of Calhoun Manufacturing Company 
and Second Avenue, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m.  

Mandalay Drive  On the north and west sides of the street from the north curb line of Grand Boulevard 
north and east to the west curb line of Park Drive.  

Maplewood Drive  On both sides from Carlton Drive to Boulder Drive.  

McClain Drive  On the east side from the south curb line of University Avenue south a distance of 77 
feet.  

 On the west side from the south curb line of University Avenue south a distance of 647 

410

Item 33.



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-04-12 12:55:40 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 9) 

 
Page 12 of 16 

feet.  

Meadow View Circle  On the north side from the east curb line of Meadowlark Lane east to the northwest 
edge of the cul-de-sac.  

Meadowlark Lane  On the east side from the south curb line of Erik Road south to the northeast edge of 
the cul-de-sac.  

Melrose Court  On both sides of the street for its entire length, including the entire cul-de-sac.  

Melrose Drive  On the north side from Linwood Drive west to Melrose Court.  

 On the west side from Royal Drive to Seerley Boulevard from 7:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., 
Monday through Friday.  

Merner Avenue  On the east side from the south curb line of West 19th Street south to the north curb 
line of West 22nd Street.  

 On both sides from the south curb line of West 22nd Street south to the north curb 
line of West 23rd Street.  

 On the west side from the north end of the bridge over Dry Run Creek south to the 
south end of the bridge.  

Nordic Drive  On both sides of said street from Viking Road north to the end of said street.  

 On the east side from Viking Road south a distance of 610 feet.  

Norse Drive  On the west side from the south curb line of Erik Road south a distance of 25 feet.  

North College Street  On the west side from the south line of Higby Drive south 75 feet.  

Oak Avenue  On the north side from the north curb line of Madison Street north and west to the 
east curb line of Ashland Avenue.  

Olive Street  On the east side from the south curb line of West First Street south to the south curb 
line of West 12th Street.  

 On the east side from the south curb line of West 16th Street south to the north curb 
line of West 17th Street.  

 On the west side from the south curb line of West 18th Street south to a point 75 feet 
south of the south curb line of West 18th Street.  

 On the east side from the south curb line of West 18th Street south to the north curb 
line of West 21st Street.  

Orchard Drive  On the south side from South Main Street Road to Rownd Street, between the hours 
of 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m., on weekdays only, excluding the following holidays: New 
Year's Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and 
Christmas Day, or the days on which such holidays are observed.  

 On the south side from Veralta Drive to Chapman Court.  

Panther Lane  On the east side from University Avenue to Springbrook Drive.  

 On the west side from the south curb line of University Avenue to the north curb line 
of the south leg of Starbeck Circle.  

 On the west side from the south curb line of Starview Drive south a distance of 40 
feet.  

Park Drive  On both sides from Rainbow Drive to Park Circle.  

Parker Street  On the south side from Belle Avenue to Victory Drive.  

Parrish Street  On the east side from Rainbow Drive to West Winter Ridge Road.  

Pearl Street  On the east side between First Street and Third Street.  

 On the west side between First Street and a point 35 feet south of the south line of 
First Street.  

 On the east side between the south curb line of West Eighth Street to the north curb 
line of West 11th Street.  

Pendleton Drive  On the east and north sides from Quail Hollow Lane north and west to Lexington Drive.  

411

Item 33.



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-04-12 12:55:40 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 9) 

 
Page 13 of 16 

Pheasant Drive  For a distance of 120 feet east of the centerline of the jog in Pheasant Drive and for a 
distance of 120 feet west of the center of the jog in Pheasant Drive.  

Quail Hollow Lane  On the north side from Quail Run Lane west to the end of the street.  

Quail Ridge Road  On the west side from West 12th Street south to Quail Hollow Lane.  

Quail Run Lane  On the west side from Quail Ridge Road south to Quail Hollow Lane.  

Rainbow Drive  On both sides from Waterloo Road to the east city limits.  

Ravine Drive  On both sides from the north curb line of Forrest Road north to the south curb line of 
Willow Avenue.  

Ridgeway Lane  On the west side from the east curb line of Merner Avenue east to the west curb line 
of Columbia Drive.  

River Ridge Lane  On the north side from the west curb line of River Ridge Road north and west to the 
northeast edge of the cul-de-sac.  

River Ridge Road  On the east, north and west sides from the easterly intersection of River Ridge Road 
with Timberledge Drive, northwest, west, and south to the westerly intersection with 
Timberledge Drive.  

Rownd Street  On both sides from Rainbow Drive to Sunnyside Drive.  

 On the east side from Sunnyside Drive to Greenhill Road.  

 On both sides from Rainbow Drive to Sunnyside Drive except that parking is allowed 
from a point 60 feet south of Rainbow Drive on the west side of said street on Sundays 
between 8:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m.  

 On the east side from Sunnyside Drive to Greenhill Road.  

 On the west side from the north line of Primrose Drive north a distance of 20 feet.  

 Anywhere within the vehicle drop off lane located on the west side of Rownd Street 
adjacent to Orchard Hill School, from a point 141 feet north of the north curb line of 
Valley High Drive north to a point 365 feet north of the north curb line of Valley High 
Drive, except that parking is permitted in the angle parking area east of the raised curb 
which separates the vehicle drop off lane from the traveled portion of Rownd Street.  

First Street (West)  On both sides between Main Street and the west city limits.  

 On the west side from the south line of Primrose Drive south a distance of 40 feet.  

Royal Drive  On both sides from Waterloo Road to Melrose Drive.  

Russell Drive  On the east side from the south curb line of Sunnyside Drive south to the north curb 
line of Hawthorne Drive.  

Sandahlwood Circle  From the intersection of the north curb line of Pheasant Drive with the west curb line 
of the east leg of Sandahlwood Circle, along such curb line of Sandahlwood Circle in a 
northerly, westerly and southerly direction to the intersection of the north curb line of 
Pheasant Drive with the east curb line of the west leg of Sandahlwood Circle.  

Scenic Drive  On both sides from Cottonwood Lane north to the end of the street.  

 On the east side from the south curb line of Cadillac Drive south to the north curb line 
of Sunray Drive.  

 On the west side from the south curb line of Cadillac Drive south a distance of 250 
feet, from 10:00 p.m. to 6:00 a.m. daily.  

Schreiber Street  On the east side from the south end of the street north to the south curb line of Grand 
Boulevard.  

 On the west side from the south end of the street north a distance of 70 feet.  

Scoggin Street  On the east side from the north curb line of Newman Avenue north to the south curb 
line of Grand Boulevard.  

Seerley Boulevard  On both sides between Clay Street and Valley Park Drive.  

Shady Lane  On the east side from the north curb line of Terrace Drive north and east to the south 

412

Item 33.



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-04-12 12:55:40 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 9) 

 
Page 14 of 16 

curb line of Loma Street.  

South Lawn Road  On the east side from the north line of Bonita Boulevard south a distance of 200 feet.  

 On the west side from the south line of Bonita Boulevard south a distance of 60 feet.  

 On the east side from the south curb line of Stanwood Drive south a distance of 240 
feet.  

Springbrook Drive  On the north side from Starview Drive east to Panther Lane.  

Spruce Hills Drive  On the west and south sides, from the south curb line of Westgate Avenue to the west 
curb line of Estate Drive.  

Starbeck Circle  From the intersection of the west right-of-way line, extended, of Panther Lane with 
the north leg of Starbeck Circle, along the north curb line of Starbeck Circle in a 
southwesterly, southerly, easterly and northeasterly direction to the intersection of 
the west right-of-way line, extended, of Panther Lane with the south leg of Starbeck 
Circle.  

 From the intersection of the west right-of-way line, extended, of Panther Lane with 
the north leg of Starbeck Circle, southwest along the south curb line of Starbeck Circle 
a distance of approximately 545 feet, between 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Monday through 
Friday.  

Starview Drive  On the east side from the north curb line of Brookside Drive north to a point 240 feet 
north of the north curb line of Springbrook Drive.  

 On the north, northwesterly and west sides of the street from the west curb line of 
Panther Lane in a westerly, southwesterly and southerly direction to a point 140 feet 
north of the north curb line of Springbrook Drive.  

State Street  On the east side from the south curb line of East Seventh Street to the north curb line 
of East 18th Street.  

 On the west side from the south curb line of East Fourth Street to the north curb line 
of Waterloo Road.  

Summit Drive  On both sides from the north curb line of West 18th Street north a distance of 100 
feet.  

 On the west side from the south curb line of West 18th Street south to the north curb 
line of West 19th Street.  

 On the east side from the south curb line of West 18th Street south a distance of 50 
feet.  

 On the east side from the north curb line of West 1 th Street north a distance of 50 
feet.  

Terrace Drive  On the north side from Cedar Heights Drive to a point 400 feet west of Neola Street.  

 On the south side a distance of 165 feet west of the west line of Neola Street.  

Timber Drive  On the east and north sides from the north curb line of Grand Boulevard north and 
west to the south curb line of Greenwood Avenue.  

Timberledge Drive  On the north side from the east curb line of the westerly intersection of Timberledge 
Drive and River Ridge Road east to the west curb line of Westwood Drive.  

Timberledge Place  On the east side from the west curb line of the easterly intersection of Timberledge 
Drive westerly to the north curb line of the westerly intersection with Timberledge 
Drive.  

Tremont Street  On east side between Seventh Street and Eighth Street.  

 On the west side from the south curb line of West 12th Street south to the north curb 
line of West 18th Street.  

 On the east side of said street for a distance of 60 feet north of the curb line of 18th 
Street (West).  

413

Item 33.



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-04-12 12:55:40 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 9) 

 
Page 15 of 16 

 On the east side from the south curb line of West 18th Street south to the north curb 
line of West 22nd Street.  

Tucson Drive  On the west side from University Avenue to Arizona Road.  

 On the east side from University Avenue to a point 40 feet south of the south right-of-
way line of Idaho Road.  

Utility Parkway  On the west and north sides from the east curb line of Waterloo Road northerly and 
easterly to the entrance to Washington Park.  

University Avenue  On both sides from the east city limits to the west city limits.  

Valley Park Drive  On the west side from the north curb line of University Avenue north a distance of 110 
feet.  

 On the east side from University Avenue north to Waterloo Road.  

Victory Drive  On the west side from the south curb line of Rainbow Drive south a distance of 40 
feet.  

 On the east side from the south curb line of Rainbow Drive south a distance of 150 
feet.  

Viking Road  On both sides from the east curb line of Highway 58 east to the west curb line of Cedar 
Heights Drive.  

 On both sides from the west curb line of Highway 58 west to the east curb line of 
Hudson Road.  

 On both sides from the west curb line of Hudson Road west to the west city limits.  

Vine Street cul-de-sac  Around the entire length of the cul-de-sac a distance of 240 feet from the north line of 
the Cedar Street right-of-way.  

Virgil Street  On the east side from the south curb line of Rainbow Drive south to the north curb line 
of Hawthorne Drive.  

Walnut Street  On the west side from the north curb line of 18th Street north a distance of 80 feet.  

 On both sides from the north curb line of 13th Street north a distance of 40 feet.  

 On the west side from the south curb line of 13th Street south a distance of 60 feet.  

 On the east side from the south curb line of 13th Street south a distance of 15 feet.  

Washington Street  On the west side from the north curb line of West Sixth Street north a distance of 35 
feet.  

 On the east side from 10th Street to 18th Street.  

 On the east side from west Sixth Street to West 10th Street, except from 3:00 p.m. 
Saturday to 1:00 p.m. Sunday.  

 On the east side from the West First Street to West Sixth Street.  

 On the west side from the north curb line of West Seventh Street north a distance of 
100 feet.  

Waterloo Road  On both sides from the east curb line of Main Street east to University Avenue.  

West Gate Avenue  On the south side from South Main Street to Heritage Road.  

 On the north side from the west line of Heritage Road west a distance of 40 feet.  

Westminster Drive  On both sides of said street from Nordic Drive to the end of said street.  

Whiteway Drive  On both sides for the entire length of the street.  

Willow Avenue  On the north side from the west curb line of Ravine Drive west to the east curb line of 
Westwood Drive.  

Winters Drive  On the south side of the east-west portion of Winters Drive from the east edge of the 
enlarged semi-circular corner east to the east end of the street.  

 On the east side of the north-south portion of Winters Drive from the south line of 
Hunter Drive south to the north edge of the enlarged semi-circular corner.  

 

414

Item 33.



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-04-12 12:55:40 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 9) 

 
Page 16 of 16 

(Ord. No. 2945, § 2, 6-17-2019) 

 

415

Item 33.



 
Prepared By: Ben Claypool, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 23-374, PARKING PROHIBITED ON 
SPECIFIC STREETS, OF DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE IV, 
STOPPING, STANDING AND PARKING, OF CHAPTER 23, TRAFFIC AND 
MOTOR VEHICLES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, (1) BY REPEALING THE SUBSECTION  PROHIBITING 
PARKING ON PORTIONS OF ALGONQUIN DRIVE, AND ENACTING A NEW 
SUBSECTION PROHIBITING PARKING ON PORTIONS OF ALGONQUIN 
DRIVE IN LIEU THEREOF; AND (2) BY ADDING A NEW SUBSECTION 
PROHIBITING PARKING ON PORTIONS OF ASHWORTH DRIVE. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
Section 1.  The subsection prohibiting parking on portions of Algonquin Drive contained 

in Section 23-374, Parking prohibited on specific streets, of Division 1, Generally, of Article IV, 
Stopping, Standing and Parking, of Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, is hereby repealed 
in its entirety and a new subsection prohibiting parking on portions of Algonquin Drive contained 
in Section 23-374 is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

 

            Street                                    Portion Where Parking Prohibited 

Algonquin Drive.                 On the north and east sides of the street from the east curb 
line of Ashworth Drive east and south to the north curb line 
of Amelia Drive, extended east;  

 
                                            On the southwesterly side of the street from the west curb 

line of Ashworth Drive northwest a distance of 160 feet. 
 

Section 2. Section 23-374, Parking prohibited on specific streets, of Division 1, 
Generally, of Article IV, Stopping, Standing and Parking, of Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor 
Vehicles, is hereby amended by adding thereto a subsection prohibiting parking on portions of 
Ashworth Drive, as follows: 
 

           Street                                  Portion Where Parking Prohibited 

 
Ashworth Drive.                   On the northwestern side of the street from the north curb 

line of Algonquin Drive northeast a distance of 100 feet;  
 
                                            On the southeast side of the street from the north curb line 

of Algonquin Drive northeast to the south curb line of 
Loren Drive, a distance of 300 feet.  

 
 
 

416

Item 33.



2 

 

INTRODUCED:     May 17, 2021     
 
PASSED 1st CONSIDERATION:         
 
PASSED 2nd CONSIDERATION:         
 
PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:         
 
ADOPTED:            
 
 

_____________________________ 
                                                                           Robert M. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

417

Item 33.



418

Item 34.



419

Item 34.



420

Item 34.



421

Item 34.



422

Item 34.



423

Item 34.



424

Item 34.



425

Item 34.



426

Item 34.



427

Item 34.



428

Item 34.



429

Item 34.



430

Item 34.



431

Item 34.



432

Item 34.



433

Item 34.



434

Item 34.



435

Item 34.



436

Item 34.



437

Item 34.



438

Item 34.



439

Item 34.



440

Item 34.



441

Item 34.



442

Item 34.



443

Item 34.



444

Item 34.



445

Item 34.



446

Item 34.



447

Item 34.



448

Item 34.



449

Item 34.



450

Item 34.



451

Item 34.



452

Item 34.



453

Item 34.



454

Item 34.



455

Item 34.



456

Item 34.



457

Item 34.



458

Item 34.



459

Item 34.



460

Item 34.



461

Item 34.



462

Item 34.



463

Item 34.



464

Item 34.



465

Item 34.



466

Item 34.



467

Item 34.



468

Item 34.



469

Item 34.



470

Item 34.



471

Item 34.



472

Item 34.



473

Item 34.



474

Item 34.



475

Item 34.



476

Item 34.



477

Item 34.



478

Item 34.



479

Item 34.



480

Item 34.



481

Item 34.



482

Item 34.



483

Item 34.



484

Item 34.



485

Item 34.



486

Item 34.



487

Item 34.



488

Item 34.



489

Item 34.



490

Item 34.



491

Item 34.



492

Item 34.



493

Item 34.


	Top
	Item 1.	Minutes-Regular Meeting of May 3, 2021
	210503MINUTES

	Item 2.	Proclamation-National Public Works Week
	2021-05-W3_PublicWorksWeek

	Item 3.	Proclamation-National Trails Day
	2021-06-FIRSTSAT_NationalTrailsDay

	Item 4.	Olive Box Public Hearing
	1. Memo - ROW Acquisition Public Hearing
	2. ROW Figure

	Item 5.	PH-Rezoning - Pinnacle Prairie
	1 - CC Staff Report for Cedar Heights Drive Rezoning 5.17.21
	2 -Rezoning Plat - 2-23-2021
	3 - Cedar Hts. Dr. Explanation of Request 3-8-2021
	4 - 309.001_PDP06-2021-03-08
	5 - 309.001_MP16-MP 2021-03-08
	6 - 309.001 DESIGN GUIDELINES - SDA 2021-03-08
	7 - Master Plan 4-9-15
	Ord-Rezoning-Pinnacle Prairie RZ21-001

	Item 6.	Mask Mandate
	RES-Mask Mandate.05.17.21

	Item 7.	Tobacco Applications 5/17/2021
	05172021 Tobacco Applications

	Item 8.	Liquor-Beer 05-17-21
	Liquor Beer 05-17-21

	Item 9.	FY22 Budget Appropriations
	app res council.mem
	FY22 Appropriations Resolution

	Item 10.	Memo & Capital Projects Loan to Sewer Fund
	1-sewer loan amendment 20121council memo.mem
	2-Capital Projects Loan to Sewer Fund 2021 Amend

	Item 11.	Health Trust Loan to Sewer Fund 1
	3-Health Trust Loan to Sewer Fund 1 2021 Amend

	Item 12.	Health Trust Loan to Sewer Fund 2
	4-Health Trust Loan to Sewer Fund  2 2021 Amend

	Item 13.	Health Trust Loan to Sewer Fund 3
	5-Health Trust Loan to Sewer Fund  3 2021 Amend

	Item 14.	Health Trust Loan to Sewer Fund 4
	6-Health Trust Loan to Sewer Fund  4 2021 Amend

	Item 15.	Animals-Sturgis Falls
	Sturgis Animal 2021
	Sturgis Falls Street closures

	Item 16.	Organized Crime Drug Enforcement Task Forces
	OCDETF grant request memo
	1582_001

	Item 17.	FY22 Towing Contract-L&M Transmission
	FY22 Towing Contract Memo (3)
	L&amp;M

	Item 18.	FY22 Towing Contract-Rasmussen Towing
	FY22 Towing Contract Memo (3)
	Rasmussen

	Item 19.	CHP-FY22 Economic Development Grant
	1. CHP FY22 Contract Memo To CC 05-17-21
	2_College Hill Partnership FY22 ED Grant Contract - Signed

	Item 20.	CMS-FY22 Economic Development Grant
	1. CMS FY22 Contract Memo To CC 05-17-21
	2_CMS FY22 Economic Development Grant - Signed

	Item 21.	GCV-FY22 Economic Development Grant
	1. GCV FY22 Contract Memo To CC 05-17-21
	2_FY22 GCV ED Contract - Signed

	Item 22.	Access Easement-422 Main Street
	1. Council Staff Memo acceptance of easement - 422 Main.
	2. Aerial Image
	Res-Accepting Access Easement
	4. Access Easement Agreement
	5. Subordination Agreement
	6. Exhibit A.12.8.20

	Item 23.	CDBG-CV2-Northeast Iowa Food Bank
	1. memo to council food bank CV2
	2. Subrecipent Agreement Signed
	3. Subrogation Agreement Signed
	4. Duplilcation of Benefits Signed

	Item 24.	R-P Master Plan Amendment for Autumn Ridge Development
	1. CC Staff Report for Autumn Ridge Masterplan Amendment
	2. ZoningLocationMap
	3 - Master Plan 2021-04-09_10th Addition
	4. Master Plan 2001
	5. Lot 3 RP Plan as per originally approved Master plan in 2001
	6. Lot 3 RP Plan Amendment 2005

	Item 25.	Preliminary-Autumn Ridge 10th Addition
	1. CC Staff Report for Autumn Ridge 10th Addition
	2. ZoningLocationMap
	3. 5684 Preliminary Plat 2020-11-11
	4. 5684 Final Plat Overall - Signed
	5_deed of dedication_Signed
	6. Certificate of Survey - Signed

	Item 27.	Iowa DOT Agreement
	1. Memo MRA IDOT
	2. Agreement

	Item 28.	Purchase Agreement & Easements-W 27th St. Sanitary Sewer Right of Way
	1.Memo West 27th St Sanitary Sewer Ext. ROW
	2. W. 27th St Sanitary Sewer ROW Exhibit
	3. W 27th ROW San - Parcel 1-SAN
	4. W 27th ROW San - Parcel 2-SAN
	5. W 27th ROW San - Parcel 3-SAN

	Item 29.	Set PH-Ashworth Drive
	1. Memo - ROW Acquisition Setting of Public Hearing
	2. Ashworth Exhibit

	Item 30.	Set PH-West 27th Street Sanitary Sewer Project
	1. PS&E Memo - W 27th Street Sanitary Sewer
	2. Final - W. 27th St Sanitary Sewer - Final Plans 4-30-2021
	3. Final - W. 27th Street Project Specifications 2021-04-30
	4. Final Estimated Construction Costs - 2021-04-30

	Item 31.	Set PH-PS&E-Oak Park Sanitary Project
	1. PS&amp;E Memo - Oak Park Sanitary Sewer
	2. PLANS_2021-05-12_OakParkBlvd
	3. PM_2021-05-12_OakParkBlvd
	4. EOPC_2021-05-12_OakParkBlvd

	Item 32.	Ord-Board-Commission Appts
	1-Memo to Mayor Council Sec.  2-276 amendment
	2-Redline Ordinance Amendment to Sec. 2-276

	Item 33.	Ord-Parking Prohibited on Ashworth and Algonquin Drive
	1. Parking Prohibited on Algonquin and Ashworth Drive Ordinance Memo
	3. Redlined Sec._23_374
	Ord-Traffic and Motor Vehicles-Parking

	Item 34.	Bills
	1 Daily Invoices 051721
	2 Council Invoices 051721

	Bottom

